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PERFORMANCE MATTERS

B CONSTELLATION ENERGY

B S&P 500 $123.21
B S&P 500 ELECTRIC UTILITIES INDEX $122.69

$115.79

T T T T I

12/31/05 Q1°06 Q206 Q306 Q4’06

1-YEAR TOTAL RETURN TO SHAREHOLDERS
An investment of $100 in Constellation Energy common stock on December 31, 2003,
was worth—with dividends reinvested—$122.69 on December 31, 2006. Our 23 percent total
return to shareholders was in line with the total recurn of the S&D 500 Electric Utiliries Index
and was berter than the S&P 500.

$299.56
B CONSTELLATION ENERGY
W S&FP 500 )
& 5aP 500 ELECTRIC UTILITIES INDEX

$193.00

/ $135.02

5-YEAR TOTAL RETURN TO SHAREHOLDERS
An investment of $100 in Constellation Energy common stock on December 31, 2001,
was worth—with dividends reinvested—$299.56 on December 31, 2006. That's significantly
better than the S&P 500 Electric Utilities Index and the S&T 500.




PERFORMANCE MATTERS

$3.61

$2.89

$2.43

04 05 06

ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Qur adjusted earnings per share grew to a record
$3.61, up 25 percent from 2005.
Note: See Finzncial Highlights, incdluding the GAAP reconciliation,

on the inside front cover for more details. Alse, ¢crtain prior year amounts

have been reclassified to conform to current year's presentation.

$1.74

$1.51

$1.34

$1.14

04 05 06 07

DIVIDEND GROWTH
(Annual amount per share}
Our commitment to sharcholders has included increasing
dividends approximarely in line with our earnings growth.
Since 2004, our annual dividend payments have increased
by more than 52 percent.

$19.3
$17.0

$12.1

04 05 06

REVENUES

(In billicns of dallars)

Continuing our record performance, total revenues increased
to $19.3 billion in 2006. Our growing scale, extensive industry
knowledge, and disciplined risk management approach give us

a strong competitive edge.

—3$170-180
—$157-162

TARGET

2006

REALIZED

PRODUCTIVITY GAINS

(In millions of dollars}

Since announcing our long-term productivity initiatives

in 2003, we've achieved $97 million in pre-tax savings, and
we expect to deliver up to $83 million in additional permanent

productivity gains over the next two years,

B
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. ENERGY DOES MATTER ‘ ' 4

Our goal is to be the premier energy company in North America.
We generate, transmit, and deliver energy, help customers manage energy
costs and usage, buy and manage fuels for other power generators,

and excel at serving customers all along the energy value chain.

bbal markets energy policy balance competitive advantage - dependability g,
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Our focus is-energy. We provide innovative solutions and extensive
industry knowledge to give our customers a competitive advantage. .
Wie execute our business plan with precision to deliver valsle for our
shareholders, and we implement the right strategies to driveour future
success. We care about what matters to our customers, our share-

holders, our employees, and the communities where we do business.

What matters most to us is what matters most to you.

CONTENTS

Letter to Shareholders 2 Competitive Energy Advantages 4 Delivering Value 6 Our Furture Success 8
Caring About Whar Matters Most 10 Constellation Energy at aGlance 12 Board of Directors 14
Executive Team 16 Understanding Our Form 10-K 18 Glossary 24 Form 10-K
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Mayo A. Shattuck 111

Chairman, President & CEQ

DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS:

2006 was an extraordinary year for our company on many frents, and
we delivered exceptional results. We gcncraréd $19.3 billion in revenues
and grew adjusted earnings by 25 percent to a record $3.61 per share.

The strong execution of our business straregy translated into superior
returns for our investors. Including stock price appreciation and divi-
dends, we achieved toral shareholder return of nearly 23 percent in 2006,
following a 35 percent return in 2005.

These results continue our long track record of success. Qur current
management team has met or exceeded our earnings targets and the guidance
we gave Wall Street for more than five years, And since November 2001
the expansion of our competitive strategy—our shares have appreciated
208 percent, three times greater than the S&P 500 Electric Utilities Index
and six times greater than the S&P 500.

Our success-also has allowed us to grow dividends approximarely
in line with our earnings growth. In January 2007, we announced a
quarterly dividend increase of 15 percent—from 37.75 cents per share to
43.5 cents per share—equivalent to a new annual dividend of $1.74.

EXECUTING ON ALL FRONTS

Our continued success is due in large part to our integrared, yer diversi-
fied, business model. Each business excels in its market and contributes
to our overall performance.

Constellation Energy Commodities Group, our competitive energy
wholesale business, is a global leader in energy portfolio management, the
largest power marketer in the country, and the fifth largest gas markerer.
We conrinue to grow our power business profirably, and we're making
significant gains in narural gas and coal markets in the United Stares
and abroad. In addition, the successful initial public offering (IPO) of
Constellation Energy Partners LLC last November was an important
milestone and will help us realize more value from our expanding port-
folio of natural gas properties.

On the retail side, both Constellation NewEnergy and Constellation
NewEnergy-Gas performed very well, We've steadily grown sales volumes
and margins, and our high renewal rates for power and gas provide stabil-
ity in our customer base. More importantly, the future growth picture for
these businesses is strong.

Constellation Energy Generation Group also had a busy and
productive year. We increased generating capacity by 17 percent at our
R.E. Ginna Nuclear Power Plant, and we completed 2 refueling ourage
at our Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station in record time.

Qur generation team also completed the successful sale of six of
our gas-fired merchant plants for $1.6 billion. Marker conditions were
advantageous, and the artractive price we received provided us with a sig-
nificant return on our investments in the plants. We've used a portion of
the proceeds to pay down debt and strengthen our already strong balance

sheet, and the remainder of the proceeds provides funds for us to invest
in more strategically aligned opportunities.

0

RETURNING TO REGULATORY STABILITY IN MARYLAND
Volatile power and gas prices, the end of a six-year freeze on residencial
electric rates, and election-year politics made 2006 a challenging and
difficult year for our regulated transmission and distribution urility,
Baltimore Gas and Electric Company (BGE), and its customers.

My expectation is that 2007 will see a return to a more stable regula-
tory climate in Maryland. There is widespread support for Maryland’s suc-
cessful marker srrucrure, and the Maryland Public Service Commission
already has initiated proceedings designed to identify and implement
improvements in the wholesale energy auction process. The improve-
ments should help reduce the likelihood of sudden and severe price
spikes for residential customers.

We remain committed to doing everything we can to help customers
manage rising power prices. An important focus is intreducing new
options for our customers ta better manage their usage and lower their
bills. The options include new demand response and advanced metering
programs, which BGE will launch to test groups later this year. We
believe these types of energy managemenr and conservation programs
will become a way of life for BGE and its customers.

DEFINING A STRONG INDEPENDENT COURSE

Last year at this time, it was our expecration that our proposed merger
with FPL: Group would have closed by now. However, last October, given
the considerable regulatory and political uncerinty in Maryland, we
reached a mutual and amicable agreement ro terminate ir.

The reaction from investors was favorable. Reaffirming our independ-
ent course and promising future, our stock reached a new all-ime high
in 2006. This tells us three things: investors understand fully why we
entered—and why we exited—the propased merger; they have full confi-
dence in our strengths and capabilities as a stand-alone company; and they
believe we're returning to a period of greater stability in energy markers.

The proposed merger would have enabled us to meet an important
strategic goal and rapidly grow the scale of our company. However, it fell
victim to events beyond the control of either company.

1 look back on our outstanding performance during this challenging
period with great pride. Despite the distractions, we continued to live up
to the commirment of meeting and exceeding our financial promises
to investors,

THINKING STRATEGICALLY ABOUT THE FUTURE
I strongly believe thar competitive markets are the fucure of the energy
industry. They're good for customers, for the economy, and for companies
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like ours that value efficiency and being the best ar meeting customers’
needs. Competitive markets provide incentive for companies to continu-
ously work toward better and more efficient ways to meet our nation’s
energy needs. Thar incentive drives our success.

Energy markers that are open 1o competition are working.
Competition has done what it is supposed to do—it has improved effi-
ciency and lowered costs. Power plants are operating more efficiently in
competitive markets, and wholesale power price increases are consistently
lower than increases in fuel prices—a clear sign there is downward pres-
sure on costs in the marketplace.

Iv’s a trend that I believe will only grow. As a leading advocate’and
the No. 1 provider of electricity in competitive markets, we'll continue
to speak out in Washingron, D.C., and in states that have opened their
markets to competition or are dealing with deregulation issues.

Other important energy matters—the cost of energy, the global
events thar conrrol supply and demand, the need for more clean energy,
and the growing strain on the existing energy infrastructure—are becom-
ing the topic of frank discussions in households and starehouses across
North America. More than ever before, people are becoming aware of
the importance of energy 1o everything arcund them—and are thinking
strategically about energy solutions.

Most of us can agree on the elements of our nation’s energy future:
greater conservation and enctgy management programs; 4 commitment
to reducing greenhouse gases and making greater use of renewable
energy; and a more constructive partnership between energy suppliers,
customers, regulators, and lawmakers.

For the second consecutive year, the Dow Jones Sustainability North
America Index has included Constellation Energy on its list of companies
that operate in a socially responsible and sustainable way. Customers turn
10 our energy supply companies for renewable energy oprions. We're also
an industry leader in providing emission-free nuclear power, and we've
established effective waste recycling and pollution prevention programs.
As aleader in corporate responsibility, we believe a solution must be devel-
oped to slow, then stop, and eventually reverse greenhouse gas emissions.

The pathway to a greener, more cost-effective energy future is com-
petition and a vibrant energy marketplace. A retreat to the old way of
doing things would be a disastrous setback. As a nation and as an industry,
we need to get this right. We simply cannort afford to move backward.

CONTINUING TO DO WHAT WE DO BEST

Our business model has proven sustainable, and our management team
has demonstrated the ability o execure successfully in a wide range of
market conditions. We believe there is more to come. We expect to deliver
compound annual earnings growth of 22 percent to 26 percent from
2005 o 2008,

value /

energy policy

-We'll achieve this growth by continuing to do what we do best.
We'll deploy capital wisely and identify and execute on opportuniries thac
can drive long-term growth. We'll leverage the scale and capabilities of
our competitive platform by further integrating our merchant erganiza-
tion. And we'll continue to identify and empower the best and brightest
minds in our induscry.

In 2007, a major element of our growth story is investment. We're
spending more to carn more. In the years ahead, we'll invest more in
BGE, more in our gas portfolio, and considerably more to upgrade our
Maryland plants 1o meet the requirements of the state’s healthy air act.
Qur generation fleet is among the cleanest in the industry, and were
fully commirted to maintaining and broadening the scope of our envi-
ronmenral efforts. Over the next three years, we're planning to invest
approximately $1.1 billion te produce cleaner energy. We'll also continue
to invest in the option for new nuclear power through UniScar Nuclear,
our joint enterprise with AREVA.

THE BEST IN THE BUSINESS

One of our best stories in 2006 was our people. During our Unired
Way pledge drive, our employees responded by doing even more w help
the communities we serve. We boosted our pledge total by 20 percent
and raised close to $5 million-making us the No. 1 centributor in
Central Maryland and a leading contributor in other markets where we
do business.

This speaks to the type of employees we have ar Constellation
Energy. We're committed to delivering value to our shareholders—and
we're committed to every community we serve.

1 feel very confident about our future. We're the established leader
in the competitive energy sector and a respected nuclear fleet operator.
BGE continues to be a wp-performing uiility. Our emerging businesses
in the Unired States and abroad are performing well. We just completed
our fifth consecurive year of record growth. And the forecase for 2007
and beyond is promising.

Constellation Energy has distinguished itself as a remarkable com-
pany with a very bright future. Thank you for being part of i1,

g/ -

Mayo A. Shattuck [11
Chairman, President, and CEQ

March 26, 2007
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“Our energy programs are integral to our business performance. Every dollar

we spend for energy requires 10 times that in revenue.”

LINDIA SHAW = Mission Center Mauager. Ravtheon Integrated Diefense Systems headquarters, wich

PIAVIEY CHAMBERLAIN = Ravtheon Principai Energy Engineer

In 2000, Raviheon's CEO isoed « challenge o dw company’s 80,000 employees—lower energy usage by
19 percent. Linda Shaw and David Clamberlain weee part of aeam etfort that helped dhe Tnsegraced

[Fefense Systems business redisee s consumprion by more than 12 pereent. The company-wide program
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ENERGY MATTERS

PROVIDING CUSTOMERS WITH

COMPETITIVE

ENERGY ADVANTAGES

Customers seek the competitive advantage thar results from effectively managing energy and

energy-related risk. Our superior capabilities—broad scale, extensive industry knowledge, éxceprional

customer service, and disciplined risk management—help customers gain thar advantage. -

PROVIDING INNOVATIVE ENERGY SOLUTIONS

. Managing energy costs and usage, and the associated risks, is chal-
lenging. Done well, it can provide a company with a significant
comperitive advantage. Cur innovative solutions and superior risk
management help customers effectively manage their unique energy
needs so they can focus on what matters most to them—running their
businesses successfully.

We serve as an intermediary berween suppliers and consumers
of energy. We help producers manage the risk associated with sellmg
their output, and we help businesses manage the price risk associ-
ated with buying it. Qur pricing is competitive, and our specialized
energy-management products, services, and resources help customers
achieve cost-effective solutions.

We've built Norch America’s leading retail and wholesale com-
petitive encrgy businesses by being the best au what we do. Qur
broad scale, extensive industry knowledge, superior customer service,
and disciplined risk management make us the provider of choice for
intensive energy users.

SERVING THE WORLD’S LEADING COM.PANIES

Our customers include more than two-thirds of the FORTUNE 100,
as well as many of the world’s most respected brands, including
Harley-Davidson, Kimberly-Clark, Lowe’s, Raytheon, and others.

Since 2001, we've provided Raytheon with energy and energy-
related services at its facilities in Maryland and Massachuserts. Energy
is central ro its core business—developing some of the most advanced
defense technologies in the world. Using those technologies is the
DDG 1000 (pictured left), the country’s newest naval destroyer,
Raytheon’s Integrated Defense Systems business is designing the
electronic and combat systems for this revolutionary warship, which
is scheduled to be delivered to the U.S. Navy in 2012.

By going beyond excellent customer care, we become a true
extension of our customers’ energy procurement funcrions. According
to a recent independent study, 94 percent of our commercial and
industrial customers said they were happy they chose us and would
choose us again, and 93 percent said they would rccommend us o

> others. That tells us we're doing it right.
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ENERGY MATTERS
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KEVIN HADLOCK
Vice Presidens, Investor Relations

DELIVERING

VALUE

FOR OUR SHAREHOLDERS

We've achieved a five-year record of success by executing our growth plan and making smart
business decisions. Our total return to shareholders has outpaced other comparable investments,

" and we continue to take the right steps to support our future growth.

EXECUTING OUR PLAN AS PROMISED

We're proud of the value we create for our shareholders. In 2006, our
adjusted earnings per share were a record $3.61—a 25 percent increase
over 2005, Including stock price appreciation and dividends, our
total sharcholder return for 2006 was nearly 23 percent.

A $100 investment made in our company on December 31,2001,
with dividends reinvested, was worth $299.56 on December 31, 2006.
Over the same time, a $100 investment in the S&P 500 was worth
$135.02, and a $100 investment in the S&P 500 Eleccric Utilities
Index was worth $193.06. .

We've achieved this success by remaining sharply focused on
delivering results and consistently executing our business plan. We've
gained market share, increased productivity, made wise investments,
and improved return on invested capiral.

Our successful track record makes us optimistic abour our
future-we believe our compound annual earnings growth will range
from 22 percent to 26 percent from 2005 to 2008,

MANAGING OUR BUSINESS WITH DISCIPLINE

We're taking the right steps to support our future growth. The profit-
able sale of our gas-fired generation plants has enabled us to further
strengthen our already strong balance sheer. We used a portion of the
proceeds to repay approximately $700 million of debt that marmred
in early 2007. The remaining proceeds give us available capital to
redeploy in smart investments in competitive supply, power gencra-
tion, and cransmission and distribution.

We also continue 1o focus on implementing producrivity iniriatives
that result in permanent savings. Since we began our productivity push
in 2003, we've achieved pre-tax cost savings that add $97 million
annually to our bottom line. The productivity gains resulted from
streamlining our processes and increasing the output of our generat-
ing plants. During 2006, we optimized our nuclear workforce and
increased our generating capacity by 17 percent at our R.E. Ginna
Nuclear Power Plang, laying the groundwork to achieve our 2007
productivity target.




ENERGY MATTERS

DRIVING OUR

FUTURE SUCCESS

WITH THE RIGHT STRATEGIES
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LEVERAGING WHAT WE'VE BUILT

Over the last five years, we've built one of the industry’s top-performing
wholesale and retail energy supply, risk management, and generation
businesses. We did itby honing our core capabilities, focusing on strong
customer relationships, and improving productivity.

Now we're realigning these successful businesses to further inte-
grate our merchant organization, enabling us to better leverage our
scale, expertise, and technology. This realignment provides us with
opportunities to improve our operating efficiency and drive long-
term growth, and we're going after both.

We're also applying our experience and industry knowledge ro
grow our natural gas business. In 2006, we completed a successful
IPO of Constellation Energy Partners LLC, a company focused on
the acquisition, development, and exploitation of oil and natural gas
properties. The proceeds from the IPO provide us with capiral to
invest in natural gas production when we see attractive opportunities
that fic with our strategy.

Leveraging our scale to invest in high-quality generation assets
and managing them to achieve optimal returns are things we've done
well and will continue to do.

anr A &

Success takes careful planning, precise execution, and a thorough
understanding of energy markets. We're implementing the right strategies

today to ensure our continued success tomorrow.

" customer rel:

fuel diw
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Pictured left to right: Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station. Pinedale Anticline gas producing property.
and Soda Lake Geothermal Power Plant

POWERING THE FUTURE

Through UniStar Nuclear—our joint enterprise with AREVA-we're
at the forefront of nexr-generation nuclear power. UniStar provides a
business framework for the development and deployment of advanced,
standardized nuclear power plants. With the cost benefits and proven
safe performance that come from having a standardized design, this
approach can help meet our narion’s growing demand for electricity
with emission-free power.

We're also exploring innovative ways to expand our use of green
energy options to meet our customers growing demands for clean
powet. More than 60 percent of our generating output is comprised
of sources that produce zero emissions, including hydro, geothermal,
nuclear, and solar. Over the next few years, we'll be looking at adding
wind and other renewable sources to our portfolio,

At BGE, were implementing demand response and advanced
metering technology pilot programs that could eventually provide our
1.2 million electric and 640,000 natural gas customers with information
to better manage when and how they use energy. This is an important
step in encouraging energy conservation, helping customers deal with
rising power costs, and improving our service (o customers.

renewable
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clean water

staying warm

energy assistance

emiston-contro

At the 2006 Constellation Energy Classic, children of
our employees sotd snowballs to raise more chan §1,200

for Special Olympics Maryland.

ENERGY MATTERS

WE CARE

ABOUT WHAT MATTERS MOST

We succeed in business by first having a goal and then a strategy and plan to get us there.

We've received recognition as a leader in corporate responsibility by bringing the same focus and

discipline to our charitable giving and community support.

ENABLING CHANGE FOR THE BETTER

In 2006, we donated nearly $12 million to organizations working to
improve the quality of life in our communities. Buc our goal is to do
more than contribute financially. Our strategy is to drive meaningful,
long-term change for the better.

We make it a priority o give of ourselves. Our leaders serve on
charitable and educational beards and foundations. Qur employees
volunteer through our company-wide Power of Caring program, and
also serve as coaches, mentors, and leaders for more than 300 non-
profit organizations. We constantly measure the progress and effec-
tiveness of our community programs and support. As a community
leader—and as a leader in business—we must constantly innovate and
drive for results.

To achieve maximum results, we concentrate on four key seg-

ments related to the energy business and the needs of the communi-

ties we serve. These include education, the environment, economic
development, and energy assistance for those less fortunate.

Each month, through our sponsorship of the bédstudents Foundation,
a group of high school students from the Baltimore City Public
School system visits our headquarters as part of a long-term mentor-
ing program with our employees. We're very proud of our ongoing
sponsorship of this effort because it illustrates the philosophy behind
our support of innovative education programs, which also includes
the CollegeBound Foundation, Fund for Educational Excellence,
Junior Achievement, Maryland Mentoring Partnership, and Teach
for America. Our efforts encourage students to graduate from high

school and college to prepare for their future.
)

IMPROVING THE QUALITY OF LIFE FOR ALL

Our efforts center on enhancing the quality of life for all. Our sup-
port for the environment includes substantial investment in the lat-
est environmental equipment at our plants and ongoing support for
leading ecological preservation and restoration organizations.

We support economic-development related organizatdions, and
we're the title sponsor for the Constellation Energy Classic. In addi-
tion to raising $2.2 million for Maryland-based non-profits, this
PGA TOUR Champions Tour golf tournament has generated a sig-
nificant economic impact for Maryland.

While our community involvement touches the lives of people
from many walks of life, a significant focus is helping disadvantaged
youth realize their potential and achieve their dreams. We accomplish
this through our support of the Living Classrooms Foundation, Big
Brothers Big Sisters, and other well respected organizations.

We know that che rising cost of energy creates a serious strain for
many families we serve and have committed $26 million to provide
the neediest with financial support and energy conservation pro-
grams. The BGE Crisis Assistance Fund makes grants available to the
Fuel Fund of Maryland, the Salvation Army, and other non-profit
organizations. Our goal is to help meet immediate energy assistance
needs and promote self-reliance.

Qur company has a 190-year tradition of substantial community
support, and it’s a responsibility we take very seriously. We're proud
of the generosity shown by our nearly 9,700 employees. As a com-
pany and as individuals, we're determined to do what’s right and to
keep our collective focus on what marcters most.
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“We provide employees with a safe and rewarding work
environinent that offers a healthy work-life balance along
with opportunities to learn and grow. Employees are our
most valned diet—in our business and in our communities.” |

JOANNE ASHTON-Human Resources Ditector, at home with her family—daughter Octavia,
sun Otds, and husband Otis "




CONSTELLATION ENERGY AT A GLANCE

We're North Americas largest competitive provider of power to wholesale, commercial, industrial,
and governmental customers, one of the top five gas marketers, and a leading supplier of coal to
customers around the world. QOur customers include more than two-thirds of the FORTUNE 100
companies, as well as some of the worlds largest producers and consumers of power, natural gas,
oil, and coal. We own a diverse fleet of power plants, and we deliver electricity and natural gas to

customers in Central Maryland through our regulated utility, Baltimore Gas and Electric.

OUR VISION
To be the first-choice provider for customers seeking
energy solutions in the complex and changing

energy marketplace,

Social & Environmental Responsibility

OUR FOUNDATIONAL VALUES
These values guide our actions:
Integricy

Teamwork

Cusromer Focus

OUR PERFORMANCE VALUES
These values measure our results:
Speed
Accountability
Passion for Excellence
Creation of Value

Corporate Social Responsibiliry

OUR YEAR'S ACCOMPLISHMENTS

+ Named one of America’s Most Admired Energy Companies by
FORTUNE magarine

+ Ranked No. 37 on the BusinessWeek 50 Top Performers list

* Moved up to No. 125 on the FORTUNE 500 list

+ Advanced to No. 370 on the FORTUNE Global 500 list

* Ranked as a Placs Top 250 Global Energy Company, earning a
position as the No. 2 independent power producer worldwide

» Named to the Dow Jones Sustainability North America Index
for the second consecutive year

= Ranked the largest corporate philanthropist in Baltimore by
Baltimore Business Journal

* Inducted invo the EPA WasteWi$e Program Hall of Fame for

our waste preventton and recycling cfforts

Received the Ametican Red Cross LifeBoard Recruitment Committes

of the Year Award for the most successful blood drive program in

Ceneral Maryland

Received a 2006 EPA C*P? Environmental Achievement Award for reducing
greenhouse gas emissions through the beneficial use of coal ash from our
Baltimore plants

Earned a 2006 Tree Line USA designation from che National Arbor Day
Foundation for BGE's efforts to protect and enhance America’s urban forests
Received a 2006 People Loving and Nurturing Trees (PLANT) Award from
the Maryland Deparrment of Natural Resources for BGE's tree planting and
tree care cfforts

Named 1o Training Magazine’s Top 125 list for our outstanding Learning 8¢

Organizational Development program

Coal, Gas & Qil - 35%

el — Renewable & Alternative - 4%

Nuclear - 61% ®

OPERATING A STRATEGIC GENERATION FLEET
(Excludes gas-fired plants sold in 2006}

Our generating facilities are strategically located and use a variety of fuels.

More than 60 percent of our generaring output is from sources that

produce zero emissions.




OUR BROAD SCALE

COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL SERVICE AREAS
W Served with Elec
B Scrved with Natarad

M Served with Elecuiviey & Natural Gas

GENERNATTON ASSETS
@ Baltimore Plants (Coal & Odhers)
A Biomass

® Coal

b CGeothermal
* Hydro

* Nuclear

® Solar

¥ Wiste Coal

* Fuel Processing

G Cas

UPSTREAM GAS
W Panfolio Propertics

4 Canstellation Energy Partners LLC

OUR BUSINESSES

OUR FOCUS

OUR CUSTOMERS

CONSTELLATION ENERGY
COMMODITIES GROUP
A wholesale marketing, risk mznagemens, and porefolio

managernent and trading operation

Serving as an intermediary managing price and supply risk
berween producers and consumers of electricity, coal, natural
pas, and eil... helping producers manage the risk associated
with selling their outpur and helping consumers manage the
price risk associated with buying i1...managing the outpuc
and fuels for our generation fleer and selling that power

Encrgy producers and intensive encrgy users worldwide

CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY
A retail electricity supply business providing energy
products and services

Meeting our customers’ energy and risk management needs
through innavative products and ourstacding service....
becoming an extension of our customers’ energy procure-
ment functions... helping customers effectively manage

energy costs and usage

More than 14,000 commercial, industrial, and public
sectar arganizacions, including aver cwo-chirds of the
FORTUNE 100 companies

CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY-GAS DIVISION
A nawwral gas supply and transporzation-related
services operation

Offering customers unparalleled service and expertise by
providing reliable 2nd cconomical supplies of natural gas

More than 6,000 commercial, industrial, municipal, and
local gas distribution and power peneration Facilities in
competitive markets chroughout North America

CONSTELLATION ENERGY GENERATION GROUP

A power generation aperation

Owning and operating—safely, efficiently, and reliably—

a diversified fleer of fossil, nuclear, and rencwable energy
generaving facilities.... pursuing new nuclear encrgy through
UniStar Nuclear, our joint enterprise with AREVA

Wholesale customers in competitive energy markets across

North America

BALTIMORE GAS AND ELECTRIC
A regulared utiticy delivering power and nacural gas

Safely and reliably delivering eleccricity and natural gas 10
our customers...becoming a recognized industry leader...
improving the reliabilicy of our distribution system, reduc-

ing interruptions, and improving our response to outages

More than 1.2 million electric and 640,000 nztural
gas residential, commercial, and induszrial customers
in Baltimore and in all, or part of, 10 counties in
Central Maryland

FELLON-MCCORD & ASSOCIATES
A leading provider of energy consulting and

tnanzgement services

Offering clients energy consulting and management
expertise in the physical, financial, regulatory, and legislative
aspects of energy markets

Serving large commercial, industrial, municipal, and
institutional encrgy users, as well as pmducers, generators,
aggregators, third party marketers, uilities, storage owners,

and eperators

CONSTELLATION ENERGY I'ROJECTS
& SERVICES GROUP
A full-service energy company

Providing customized solutions—including central energy
plants, on-site power generation, mechanical-electrical
upgrades, and renewable energy products—te increase energy
cfticiency, reliability, and cost effectiveness

Commercial, industrial, and governmental facifities through-
out North America, including Heinz Field in Pittsburgh
and municipal and commercial facilities in downtown

Nashville, Tennessee

BGE HOME
A competitive provider of energy-retated produces

znd scrvices

Providing customer-centric, energy-focused solucions for
heating, air conditioning, plumbing, electrical, and indoor
air qualicy needs, as weil as window replacements and the
sale of natural gas to the residential market

Residential and small commercial customers in Maryland




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MAYO A. SHATTUCK 111 YVES C. DE BALMANN DOUGLAS L. BECKER
Chairman, President, and CEQ Co-Chairman Chairman and CEQ
Constellation Energy Bregal Investments LP Laureate Educarion, Inc.
Ditector since 1999 Director since 2003 Director since 1998
Age 52 Age 60 Age 41

JAMES T. BRADY EDWARD A, CROOKE JAMES R. CURTISS, ESQ.
Managing Director, Mid-Atlantic Retired Vice Chairman Partner
Ballanerae Internacional, Led. Constcllation Energy Winston & Strawn LLP
Director since 1999 Director since 1988 Direccar since 1994
Age 66 Age 68 Age 53

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We are an industry leader in corporate governance. We conduct our business honestly, with respect for our professional
obligations. and with regard for legal and regulasary requitements. The independence of our Board of Directors is important
to us—10 of our 11 directors are independent according to New York Stock Exchange listing standards. Michael D. Sullivan,

one of our independent directors, serves as lead directar,

Copies of the charters of zach of the committees of the Board of Directors, as well as copies of our Corporate Governance
Guidelines, Principles of Business Insegrity, Corporate Compliance Program, Insider Trading Policy. and Policy and Procedures
with Respect to Related Person Transactions are available on our Web site at www.constellation.com.

INTERESTS ALIGNED WITH SHAREHOLDERS .

We maintain sharc ownership guidelines ro further align che interests of our directors with the interests of our shareholders,
The guidelines require directors to acquire and maintain holdings of Constellation Energy stock equal to ar least
five times the annual cash rerainer,




DR. FREEMAN A. HRABOWSKI 11

President .
University of Maryland, Baltimore County
Director since 1994
Age 56

LYNN M. MARTIN

President
The Martin Hall Group LLC
Director since 2003
Age 67

Executive Committee
Mayo A. Shattuck HI, Chairman
Edward A. Crooke
Robert ]. Lawless

Audit Committee
James T. Brady, Chairtnan
Yves C. de Balmann
Edward A. Crooke

All ¢ i bers are audit ¢
financial experrs as defincd by SEC rules.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

NANCY LAMPTON
Chatrman and CEQ

American Life and Accident Ensurance
Company of Kentucky and Hardscuflle, Inc,

Director since 1994

Age 64

ROBERT J. LAWLESS

Chairman and CEQ
McCormick 8 Company, Inc.
Director since 2002
Age 60

MICHAEL D. SULLIVAN

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Compensation Commirtee
Robert J. I_alwlcss, Chairman
Douglas L. Becker
D, Freeman A, Hrabowski IEH
Lynn M. Martin
Michael D. Sullivan

Commirttee on Nuclear Power
James R. Curtiss, Chairman
Edward A, Crooke
Nancy Lampron
Lynn M. Marin

Chairman

Age 67

Life Source, Inc. and
ADVANCARE HealthCare, L1.C
Direcror since 1992

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
Michael D. Sullivan, Chairman
Douglas L. Becker
Dr. Freeman A. Hrabowski 111
Robert |. Lawless
Lynn M. Martin




MAYO A. SHATTUCK 11

Chairman, Presidens, and CEQ
Mayo, 52, is the Chairman, Presidens, and Chicf Exevutive Officer
of Constellation Encrgy. Prior to joining Constellation Energy, he
was Chairman of the Board at Deutsche Banc Alex. Brown, He ake
served as Global Head of Investment Banking and Global Head of
Private Banking at Deutsche Bank, Vice Chairman ac Bankers Trust,

and President at Alex. Brown & Sons.

E. FOLLIN SMITH

Executive Vice Prosident, Chief Financial Officer,
and Chicf Admsniserative Gfficer
Follin, 47, is responsible for finznee, information technology, human

tesources, legal, audit, risk e investor relations. and
business performance improvernent. Prior o joining C llacion

EXECUTIVE TEAM

THOMAS E BRADY

Exevutive Vice Presidens

Tom, 57, is respansible for Censcellation NewEncrgy and che cetail

b

as well a3 corp strategy, mergers and acyuisitions,

corporate communications, branding, and government affais. He
is also Chairman of Bakimere Gas and Electric. Tom has served
as Chief Accounting Officer ar Baltimare Gas and Electric, as well as

in a variety of executive and management positions.

THOMAS V. BROOKS

Execurive Vice President
Tom, 44, heads the merchant organization. He is respensible
for our retail and wholesale competitive encrgy companies and
non-nuclear power geacration, as well as for the scraegy and
execution of merchant acquisitions and divestitures and the devel-
opment of non-nuclear assets. Previously, Tom was President and
CEO of Constellation Encrgy Commodities Group. Prior to joining
Constellation Energy, he worked in the Fixed [ncome and Com-
maodities Division at Goldman, Sachs & Co.

, MICHAEL J. WALLACE

Exccutive Vice President
President and CEO, Constellation Energy Generation Group
Mike, 59, is responsible for our nuclear power generation business.

Prior 1o joining Constellation Energy. he was Co-Founder and
Managing Director of Barringson Energy Partners, LLC. Mike also

Encrgy, Follin was Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
of Armstrong, Holdings, Inc. She also has served in various Bnancial
exccutive positions at Genera! Motors Corp.

was Chicf Nuclear Officer and served in various executive positions
ac Unicom/ComEd.

PROVEN LEADERSHIP

IRVING B. YOSKOWITZ

Exrcutive Vice President and General Counsel
Irv, 61, is responsible for corporate governance and compliance,

mergers and acquisitions, litigation, and business unic legal services.
Prior to joining Consellation Energy, he served as Senior Partner
of Glohal Technology Partners, LLC, Senior Counsel at Crowell &
Moring, LLC, and Senior Consultanc at Charles River Assuciates.
Lrv also was Executive Vice President and General Counsel at United
Technotogies Corp. and held a variety of posicions at IBM.

Our mission is to be the nation’s leading energy manager and campetitive supplier, generating and delivering power
B P

and natural gas safely and reliably to our customers, while acting in the interests of our communities, employees,

shareholders, and the environment.

Our executive team provides the proven leadership, strategic vision, skilled marker analysis,

and agile decision-making thar help us achieve that mission.

INTERESTS ALIGNED WITH SHAREHOLDERS

We maintain ownership guidelines to further align the interests of our executives with the interests of our sharcholders.
The guidelines require our executives to acquire and maintain holdings of Constellation Encrgy stock ranging from three times
base salary for senior vice presidents to seven times base salary for our CEQ.




PAUL J. ALLEN

Senior Viee Presidens, Corporate Affairs
Paul, 35, is responsible for external affairs, governmens and
regulatory relations, and environmental policy. Prior o joining
Conatellation Encrgy, Paul was Senior Vice President and Group
Head ar Ogilvy Public Relacions. He also was a senios safl mem-
ber at the Natural Resources Defense Council, Press Secrerary for
Senator Christopher Dodd {ID-Cern.), and Foreign News Editor
and Editor of Morning Edition at National Public Radic.

KENNETH W. DEFONTES, ]R.

Seniar Vice Presidens
Presidens and CECQ, Baltitmore Gas and Elecrric
Ken, 56, is responsible for our regulated eleceric and natral gas
distribution utility in Central Maryland. Previously, Ken was Vice
President, Electric Transmisston and Distribution, and alsa has
served in varivus executive and management positions ar Baltimore

Gas and Iecrric,

EXECUTIVE TEAM

JOHN R. COLLINS

Senior Vice President and Chief Risk Offtcer
John, 49, is responsible foa sssessing, and managing tisk. He also serves
on the Baard of Managers of Constellation Energy Partners LLC,
Previously. he was Managing Directar of Finance and Treasuser of
Canstellation Power Source Holdings and Constellation Energy
Commodities Group. He alse bas served in various Yeadership posi-

tions ar Constcllation Energy Cor Group and Halii

Gas and Electrie. Prior 1o juining Baltimore Gas and Electsic,
he held various financial management positions at Bell Adantic
Corparation and Perdue Farms, Inc.

FELIX ). DAWSON
Seniar Viee Presiden:
Co-President and Co-Chief Exeenzive Officer,
Consieliation Energy G ditier Group
Felix, 39, is responsible far wholesale energy, cammodity services,

and risk management for electricity, coal, narural gas, and relaced
commeditics. He also serves as President and CEO of Considlation
Energy Partners LLC. Previously, he was Co-Chief Commercial
Officer, Constellation Energy Commeodities Group and served in
various leadership positions in origination and portfulic management.
He also has held a variety of positions 2t Goldman, Sachs & Co.

BETH $. PERLMAN

Senior Vice President and Chief Infarmation Officer
Beth, 46. is responsible for information technology initiatives chat
support business transformation and enable growth. Prier (o joining
Constellation Energy, she was Vice President of Wheleale Trading
Technology and served in various other technology and operations
management positions a1 Enrun. She also held varicus financial
and technalugy management positions ar Lehman Brothers, Inc.,
Kidder, Peabody & Co.. and [PMargan.

MARC L. UGOL

Semior Vice President, Humn Resources
ible for staffing, organi
relations, compensation, and benefits. Prios wo joining Constellacion

Marc, 48, is ion effectivenss, labor

Energy, he was Senior Vice President of Human Resources at

Tellabs. [nc. Fe also served it human resources management posi-

tions ar Placinum Technalagy, Inc.. System Soltware Associates, Inc.,
and Amoco Corporation.

GEORGE E. PERSKY

Senior Vice President
Co-President and Co-Chief Executive Officer,
Constellarion Energy Ce fisies Group

bnlecal

Georpe, 37. is responsible for ENCTRY, C

diry services,

and sk management for dectricity, coal. natural gas, and zelated
commodities. Previously, he was Co-Chief' Commercial Officer,
Constellation Energy Commodities Group and served in various
leadership positions in origination and portfolio management. He
also has held a varicry of positions ac Goldman, Sachs & Co.




UNDERSTANDING QUR FORM 10-K

One of our priorities at Constellation Energy is to provide you with clear, easy-to-read,
and easy-to-understand information about our company. We want you to know what
we do, how we do it, and how we’re doing,.

This special section is intended to be a guide, describing and summarizing some
of the information contained in our Form 10-K and providing page numbers where

more details can be found. Our complete Form 10-K follows this special section.

BREAKING DOWN OUR FORM 10-K
, Qur Form 10-K has four parts:

PART 1

In-depth descriptions of our businesses

PART I1

Our financial performance, the information in which investors are usually most interested

PART 111
Directs readers to other filings made with the Securities and Exchange Commission for
derails about our Board of Direcrors, executive compensation, auditor fees,

stock ownership information, and other marrers

- PART IV

A listing of financial statement schedules and exhibits

Over the next several pages, we provide descriptions and summaries

of some of the major topics included in Pares { and 1L




UNDERSTANDING Our FORM 10-K

PART I: OUR BUSINESSES

Part I of our Form 10-K provides details about our businesses:

Our merchant energy business

Our regulated utility—Baltimore Gas and Electric Company

Our other nonregulated businesses

Also included is information about environmental matters, employees, properties, and executive officers.

HERE'S WHERE YOU LOOK IN PART |

HIGHLIGHTS OF WHAT YOU'LL FIND

PAGES ITEM SECTION
2 1. Business Overview We have a merchant energy business and a regulated udilicy.
2-3 Operating Segments Our reportable operating segments are merchant energy, regulated electric, and regulated gas.
We also have certain other nonregulated business activities.
39 Merchant Energy Qur business
Business We provide energy products and services to distribution utilities, power generators, and other
wholesale customers...electricity and natural gas supply and services to commercial, industrial,
and governmental customers...global coal sourcing and freight activiries... natural gas services...
we generate electricity...and we engage in portfolio management and trading activities.
®
Fuel sources
Our electricity generated by fuel type in 2006: nuclear—52 percent, coal-30 percent,
narural gas—15 percent, renewable and alternative—3 percent.
Our competition
We encounter competition from companies of various sizes with varying levels of
experience and financial and human resources and differing strategies.
Merchant energy business operating statistics for the last five years
The steady increases in revenues reflect the strong growth of our merchant energy business.
10-15 Baltimore Gas and Our business
Electric Company We're an electric transmission and distribution utility and a natural gas distriburion udilicy
with a service eerritory that includes the Ciry of Baltimore and parts of Central Maryland.
Elecuric and gas operating statistics for the last five years
Revenues by type, distribution volumes to our customers, and the number of our customers.
15 Other Nonregulated We offer energy solutions to restdential, commercial, industtial, and governmental customers.
Businesses )
15 Consolidated Capital Qur total capital requirements for 2006 were $1.1 billion, and we expect them to be
Requirements $1.9 billion in 2007,

15-17 Environmental Matters We are subject to regulations concerning air qualicy, water qualiry, and disposal of hazardous
substances. Over the next three years, our estimated capital requirements for environmental
matters are $1.1 billion.

17 Employees We had approximarely 9,645 employees at year-end 2006.
18-22 1A. Risk Factors There are a number of risks related to our businesses and the industries in which we operate

that could adversely affect our financial results.

NOTE: This special section is inteaded to be 2 guide. You can find more details about all these ivems in our Form [0-K, which follows this special section.
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HERE'S WHERE YOU LOOK IN PART I

UNDERSTANDING QUR FORM 10-K

PART 1: OUR BUSINESSES

(continued)

HIGHLIGHTS OF WHAT YOU'LL FIND

PAGES ITEM SECTION
22-24 2. Properties Our offices
Our corporate offices ate in Baltimore, Maryland. We have marketing offices throughout
North America, and we also lease space internationally.
Our energy-producing properties
We own approximately 8,700 megawarts of electric generating capacity ar plants diversified
by fuel type and tocared strategically throughout che United States.
24 4, Submission of At our annual meeting in December 2006, our sharcholders re-elected directors
Matters to Vore of Douglas L. Becker, Edward A. Crooke, Mayo A, Shattuck 111, and Michael D. Sullivan;
Security Holders ratified PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent registered public accounting
firm for 2006; and approved a shareholder proposal to declassify our Board of Directors.
25-26 Executive Officers Our executive officers have a diverse mix of energy, financial, and other experience in

of the Registrant

competitive and regulated markets.

PART II: OUR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Part IT contains management’s discussion and analysis of our tesults of operations and financial condition,

and our audited financial statements. It compares our results from 2006 with those from 2005, and our
results from 2005 with those from 2004, The sections in Part I include:

Introductory ltems—THE BASICS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis— THE CONTEXT

Financial Statements— THE NUMBERS

Notes to the Financial Statements—THE DETAILS

INTRODUCTORY ITEMS

THE BASICS. Includes information about our common stock prices and dividends, and historical financial data.

HERE'S WHERE YOU LOOK IN PART II

HIGHLIGHTS OF WHAT YOU'LL FIND

PAGES ITEM SECTION
27 5. Market for
Registrant’s Common
Equity and Related

Qut dividend information

$1.74 per share in January 2007.

Shareholder Matters
Our stock price
The price of our common stock—based on New York Stock Exchange Composite
Transactions—ranged frem $50.55 to $70.20 in 2006.
28-29 6. Selected Summary of our and BGE’s operations and financial condition and our financial statistics for

Financial Data

the last five years.

NOTE: This special section is intended to be a puide. You can find more details about all these items in our Form 10-K, which follows this special secion.
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We declared dividends of $1.51 per share in 2006 and increased out annual dividend to




UNDERSTANDING OuUR FORM 10-K

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THE CONTEXT. Our managemenc discusses in detail the financial results and

condition of our company and the way we manage our business.

HERE'S WHERE YOU LOOK IN PART 11

HIGHLIGHTS OF WHAT YOU'LL FIND

PAGES ITEM SECTION

30 7. Management's Introduction
Discussion and Analysis and Overview

We summarize how we have organized our discussion and analysis.

30-31 Strategy

We are pursuing a strategy to provide energy and energy-related services through our com-
petitive supply activities and our regulated Maryland utility.

31.34 Business Environment

Energy markets continue to be volatile with significant changes in natural gas and power
prices. We continue to be subject to extensive federal and state regulation.

34-37 Critical Accounting

Policies

These are the accounting policies that require difficult, subjective, or complex judgment and
which are most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations.

37-38 Significant Events

2006 significant events include:
* The termination of our proposed merger with FPL Group
* Volatile commodity prices
* Legislation enacted by the Maryland General Assembly
* The sale of six of our gas-fired generating plants
* The partial phase-ourt of synchetic fuel tax credits
* Workforce restructuring at our nuclear facilities
* Acquisition of working interests in gas and oil producing fields
» An initial public offering of common stock in Constellation Energy Partners LLC (CEP)
» Approval of operating license extensions for Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station
* An increase in generating capacity at R.E. Ginna Nuclear Power Plant
* Our dividend increase

39-52 Results of Operations

The detailed discussion of our earnings
Our overall net income for 2006 was $936.4 million, an increase of $313.3 millioen from
2005, driven mostly by higher earnings from our merchant energy business, higher income
from discontinued operations, gains from the sale of gas-fired generating facilities, 2nd the
gain on the initial public offering of CER

QOur merchant energy income from continuing operations was $580.1 millien in 2006,
an increase of $220.7 million from 2005.

Qur regulated electric net income for 2006 was $120.2 million, a decrease of $29.2 miltion
from 2005. Qur rcgulated natural gas net income for 2006 was $37.0 million, an increase
of $10.3 miliion from 2005.

53-55 Financial Condition

Cash flow
Cash provided by our operations was $525.3 million in 2006.

Security ratings
All of our security racings ar¢ investment-grade.

55-58 Capital Resources

We're estimating that we'll need $1.9 billion in capital for 2007 and $1.7 billion in 2008 to
fund existing and anticipated projects.

58-63 Market Risk

We are exposed 1o various risks. Our risk management program uses an effective system of
internal controls, and the audit committee of our Board of Directors periodically reviews
compliance with our risk parameters, limits, and trading guidelines.

NOTE: This special section is intended to be 2 guide. You can find more details about all these items in our Form 10-K, which follows this special section,
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UNDERSTANDING QUR FORM 10-K

@

OQUR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THE NUMBERS. We provide separate financial statements for Constellation Energy and BGE. This section also includes our

management’s and auditor’s reports on our financial information and the effectiveness of our internal controls.

HERE'S WHERE YOU LOOK IN PART 11

HIGHLIGHTS OF WHAT YOU'LL FIND

PAGES ITEM SECTION
64 8. Financial Report of Management Our management accepts responsibility for the information and representations in our
Statements and financial statements and concludes that our internal control over financial reporting was
Supplementary Data effective as of December 31, 2006.
64-66 Report of Independent PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP states its opinien that our consolidated financial statements
Registered Public present fairly, in all material respects, the financial condition of our company and that we
Accounting Firm maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting at
December 31, 2006.
67 ® Consolidated Statements Our net income for 2006 was $936.4 million.
of Income
&
68-69 Consolidated Balance Qur total assets were $21.8 billion at December 31, 2006.
Sheets ‘
70 Consclidated Statements Our cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2006, were $2.3 billion, an increase of
of Cash Flows $1.5 billion from a year earlier.
71 Consolidated Statements We discuss the composition of and changes in our commen shareholders’ equiry.
of Common Shareholders’ In 2006, we declared $272.6 million in dividends.
Equity and
Comprehensive Income
72.73 Consolidated Statements At December 31, 2006, our total capitalization was $9.1 billion—$4.2 billion in long-term
of Capitalization debt, $94.5 million in minority interests, $190.0 million in preference stock, and $4.6 billion
in commeon shareholders’ equity.
74-77 BGE Financial We include financia! statements for BGE because it is a separate registrant required to file
Statements teports with the SEC.

NOTES TO OUR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THE DETAILS. We explain the processes, events, actions, projects, issues, and specifics that

produce the amounts reflected in our financial statements.

HERE'S WHERE YOU LOOK IN PART II

HIGHLIGHTS OF WHAT YOU'LL FIND

PAGES ITEM SECTION

78-88 Note 1: Significant Accaunting methods that we use and how they'te applied throughout our businesses,
Accounting Palicies along with the new accounting standards issued and adopred.

8991 Note 2: Other Events Other events added $351.5 million to our pre-tax earnings, reflecting $295.5 million in income

from discontinued operations associated with the sale of our High Desert plant, $73.8 million
in income from the gain on the sale of the five other gas-fired plants, and $28.7 million in
income from a gain on our initial public offering of CEP...offset by $28.2 million in work-
force reduction costs and $18.3 million in merger-related costs.

NOTE: This special section is intended to be 3 guide. You can find more details about all these isems in our Form 10-K, which follows chis special section.

22




UNDERSTANDING OQOUR FORM 10-K

NOTES TO OUR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HERE'S WHERE YOU LOOK IN PART II

(continued)

HIGHLIGHTS OF WHAT YOU'LL FIND

SECTION

PAGES
92-93 Note 3: Information by Our revenues, net income, and other financial information broken out by operating segment
i Operating Segment show the growth of our merchant energy business.
94-96 Note 4: Investments Our investments are mainly financial investments related 1o our nuclear decommissioning
trust funds.
97 Note 5: Intangible Assets At December 31, 2006, out carrying amount of goodwill was $157.6 million, and our total
net intangible assets were $304.7 million.
98-99 Note 6: Regulatory At December 31, 2006, out total regulatory assets (net) were $451.5 million, which included
Assets (net) $326.9 million deferred for future collection under the rate stabilization plan provided for in
Maryland legislation,
99-102 Note 7: Pension, Postre- We provide details-obligations, assets, assumption derails, and company contributions—
tirement, Other Postem- about our employee benefit plans.
ployment, and Emplnyee
Savings Plan Benefits
103 Note 8: Credit Facilities Our short-term borrowings {debt that matures within one year from the date it’s issued) may
and Short-Term include bank [oans, commercial paper, and bank lines of credit.
Borrowings
103-105 Note 9: Long-Term Debt We provide details about our long-term debr {debt that matures a year or more from the
and Preference Stock date it’s issued) and about our preference stock.
106-108 Note 10: Taxes Our income tax expense for 2006 was $351.0 million, which reflected a net $75.9 million
faverable impact from synthetic fuel tax credits after estimated phase-out.
108 Note 11: Leases ‘We provide details about the capital and operating leases in which we enter.
108-113 Note 12: Commitments, We provide details about our commitments and financial guarantees, environmental marters,
Guarantees, and legal proceedings involving us, and our insurance coverage.
Contingencies
113-114 Note 13: Hedging We explain how we manage commodity price fluctuations and interest rate exposure, and we
Activities and Fair Value disclose the fair value of our financial instruments.
of Financial Instruments
1i5-116 Note 14: Stock-Based We provide stock-based compensation in the form of stock options, restricred stock,
Compensation performance-based units, and equity to employees.
117 Note 15: Merger and We agreed to terminate our proposed merger with FPL Group, and we also acquired
Acquisitions working interests in gas and oil producing properties,
117-118 Note 16: Related Party Our merchant energy business provides BGE with a portion of the energy it needs, we
Transactions—BGE provide BGE with the services of certain corporate functions, and BGE participates in our
benefit plans.
118-120 Note 17: Quartetly Finan- We break out our financial results—and those of BGE~by quarter for the last two years.
cial Data (Unaudited)

NOTE: This special scction is intended 1o be a guide. You can find more details abour all these jtems in our Form 10-K, which follows this special section,
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GLOSSARY

AGGREGATOR-a company, intermediary, or agent that combines the
energy needs of multiple customers and then buys or provides the energy

and services needed

BRITISH THERMAL UNIT (BTU)—a basic unit used to measure natu-
ral gas; the amount of natural gas needed to raise the temperature of one
pound of water by one degree Fahrenheit

COMPETITIVE SUPPLY BUSINESS—the portion of our business thac
provides energy and related value-added services ro wholesale and rerail

customers in competitive markets

DEKATHERM (DTH)-a standard measurement of natural gas; ten therms
or one million BTUs

DEREGULATION—in the industry, the process by which regulared mar-
kets become competitive markets, giving customers the opporrunity to

choose their energy supplier

DISTRIBUTION-the delivery of energy to locarions where customers
use it—including homes, businesses, and industrial facilitics

ESTIMATED PROVED RESERVES—estimated quantities of crude oil,
nasural gas, and natural gas liquids which geological and engineering data
show with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from

known reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions

FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION (FERC)—the LS.
agency that regulates interstate energy activities

FULL REQUIREMENTS SERVICE—a product offering that handles all
of a customer’s energy needs through a combined service that may include
generating or buying energy, managing load and power purchase agree-
ments, scheduling delivery, managing risk, settling accounts, and other

related activities

GENERATING CAPACITY —the amount of electricity that can be pro-
duced by a specific generating facility

GENERATION —the process of transforming other forms of energy—coal,
natural gas, uranium, oil, wind, water, or sun—into electricity

HEDGING—entering into transactions to manage vatious types of risk,
such as commodity price risk

INDEPENDENT SYSTEM OPERATOR-a federally regulated organi-

zation that manages regional transmission lines to deliver electricicy

LOAD-SERVING—the process of providing customers with the energy
they need

MARK-TO-MARKET —the valuation of a securiry, commodity, or finan-

cial inscrument to reflect current marker values

MARYLAND PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION—the agency respon-
sible for regulating public utiliries doing business in Maryland

MEGAWATT (MW)—one million watts of electricity, enough electricity
to light 10,000 10¢-wat light bulbs for one hour

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION (NRC)-the U.S. agency
that regulates commercial nuckear power plants and the civilian use of

nuclear materials

ORIGINATION—the initiation of wholesale energy purchases and sales
that may include value-added services along with the energy

PEAK LOAD-a measure of the maximum amount of electricity delivered
ata point in time

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT AND TRADING-using energy and
energy-related commodiries to manage our portfolio of purchases and
sales to customers through structured transactions, and trading energy
and energy-related commodities to deploy risk capiral in order to earn

additional returns
“

REGIONAL TRANSMISSION ORGANIZATION (RTO}-a group of
companies with responsibility for the planning and use of power trans-
mission lines in a geographic region

REGULATED BUSINESS-the portion of our business whose primary
operations and prices are set and concrolted by the rules and acrivities of

a state utility commission

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (SEC)—the U.S. agency
charged with protecting investors, maintining fair, orderly and efficient

markets, and facilitating capital formation

STANDARD OFFER SERVICE—in Maryland, the obligation of a urilicy—
such as Baltimore Gas and Electric—to supply electricity to residential
customers and to serve as the provider of last resort (POLR) for those

customers who have not chosen an alternate supplier

TOLLING CONTRACT -an agreement where a buyer pays a plant owner
a fixed amount per month 1o have the right to convert fuel provided by
the buyer into electric energy

TRANSMISSION—the sending of electricity at high voltage, usually on
lines running along high towers, from generaring plants to substations,
where it is then reduced to a lower voltage that is delivered to homes,

businesses, and industrial facilities

UNIT CONTINGENT POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT —a contract
with a power planr operator whete the buyer receives the specified output
from the plant unless the plant is not operaring

VALUE AT RISK-a statistical measure that helps evaluate risk by show-
ing how much the value of the mark-to-marker energy assets or liabilities

may change under various circumsrances
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Forward Looking Statements

We make statements in this report that are considered
forward looking statements within the meaning of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Sometimes these
statements will conrain words such as “believes,”
“anticipates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” and other
similar words, We also disclose non-historical
information that represents management's expectations,
which are based on numerous assumptions. These
statements and projections are not guarantees of our
future performance and are subjecr to risks,
uncertainties, and other important factors that could
cause our actual performance ar achievements to be
materially different from those we projecr. These risks,
uncertainties, and factors include, but are nor limited to:

4 the riming and extent of changes in commodity
prices and volatilities for energy and energy
related products including coal, natural gas, oil,
electricity, nuclear fuel, freight, and emission
allowances, :

¢ the liquidity and competitiveness of wholesale
markets for energy commodities,

# the effect of wearher and general economic and
business conditions on energy supply, demand,
and prices,

# the ability w actract and retain customers in our

" competitive supply activities and to adequately
forecast their energy usage,

# the timing and extent of deregulation of, and
competition in, the energy markets, and the
rules and regulations adopted on a transitional
basis in those markets,

¢ uncertainties associated with estimating natural
gas reserves, developing properties, and
extracring natural gas,

- @ regulatory or legislative developments that affect
deregulation, ransmission or distribution rates
and revenues, demand for energy, or increases in
costs, including costs related 1o nuclear power
plants, safety, or environmenral compliance,

* & the inability of Baltimore Gas and Electric
Company {BGE) 10 recover all its costs
associared with providing customers service,

¢ the conditions of the capical markets, interest
rates, availability of credit, liquidity, and general
economic conditions, as well as Constellation
Energy Group’s (Constellation Energy) and
BGE's ability to mainrain their current credit
ratings,

# the effectiveness of Constellation Energy’s and
BGE's risk management policies and procedures
and the ability and willingness of our
counterparties to satisfy their financial and
performance commitments,

# operational facrors affecting commercial
operations of our generating facilities (including
nuclear faciliries) and BGE’s rransmission and
distribution facilities, including carastrophic
weather-related damages, unscheduled outages
or repairs, unanticipated changes in fuel costs or
availability, unavailability of coal or gas
transportation or electric transmission services,
workforce issues, terrorism, liabilities associated
with catastrophic events, and other events
beyond our control,

¢ the actual outcome of uncertainties associated
with assumptions and estimates using judgment
when applying critical accounting policies and
preparing financial statements, including factors
that are estimated in determining the fair value
of energy contracts, such as the ability to obtain
market prices and, in the absence of verifiable
market prices, the appropriateness of models
and model inputs (including, but nor limited to,
estimated contractual load obligartions, unit
availability, forward commodiry prices, interest
rates, correlation and volarilicty factors),

# changes in accounting principles or practices,

# losses on the sale or write down of assets due to
impairment events or changes in management
intent with regard to either holding or selling
certain assets,

¢ the ability o successfully identify and complete
acquisitions and sales of businesses and assets,
and

¢ cost and other effects of legal and administrative
proceedings that may not be covered by
insurance, including environmental liabilities.

Given these uncertainties, you should not place

undue reliance on these forward looking statements.
Please see the other sections of this report and our other
petiodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) for more information on these
factors. These forward looking statements represent our
estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this
report, -

Changes may occur after that dare, and neither

Constellation Energy nor BGE assume responsibility to
update these forward looking statements.




PART |

Item 1. Business

Overview

Constellation Energy is an energy company thar
includes a merchant energy business and BGE, a
regulated electric and gas public utility in central
Maryland.

Constellation Energy was incorporared in
Maryland on September 25, 1995. On April 30, 1999,
Constellation Energy became the holding company for
BGE and its subsidiaries. References in this report to
“we” and “our” are to Constellation Energy and its
subsidiaries, collectively. References in this report to the
“regulared business(es)” are to BGE,

Our merchant energy business is a competitive
provider of energy solutions for a variety of customers. It
has electric generation assets located in various regions
of the United States and provides energy solutions to

. meet customers’ needs. Qur merchant energy business
focuses on serving the energy and capacity requirements
(load-serving) of, and providing other energy products
and risk management services, for various customers.

Qur merchant energy business includes:

# a generation operation that owns, operates, and
maintains fossil, nuclear, and hydroelectric
generating facilicdes and holds interests in
qualifying facilities, fuel processing facilides and
power projects in the United Stares,

4 a wholesale marketing, risk management, and

trading operation that primarily provides energy -

products and services to distriburion utilities,
power generators, and other wholesale
customers,

# an clecrric and natural gas rerail operation that
provides energy products and services to
commercial, industrial, and governmental
‘customers, and

# a generation operations and maintenance
services operation.

BGE is a regulated electric transmission and
distribution utility company and a regulated gas
distribution utility company with a service territory that
covers the City of Baltimore and all or part of ten
counties in central Maryland. BGE was incorporated in
Maryland in 1906.

Our other nonregulated businesses:

¢ design, construct, and operate heating, cooling,
and cogeneration facilities, and provide various
energy-telated services, including energy
consulting, for commercial, industrial, and
governmental customers throughout North
America, and

¢ provide home improvements, service heating,
air conditioning, plumbing, electrical, and
indoor air qualiry systems, and provide natural
gas to residential customers in central Maryland.

On Ocrober 24, 2006, Constellation Energy and
FPL Group, Inc. (FPL Group) agreed to rerminate the
Agreement and Plan of Merger the parties entered into
on December 18, 2005. For additional information
related to the merger termination, see Note 15 to
Consolidated Financial Statements. For a discussion of
other recent events that have impacted us, our strategy,
and the seasonality of our business, please refer to frem 7.
Management's Discussion and Analysis section,

Constellation Energy maintains a website at
constellation.com where copies of our annual reports on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q3, current
reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments may be
obtained free of charge. These reports are posted on our
website the same day they are filed with the SEC. The
SEC mainrains a website (sec.gov), where copies of our
filings may be obtained free of charge. The website
address for BGE is bge.com. These website addresses are
inactive textual references, and the contents of these
websites are not part of this Form 10-K.

In addition, the website for Constellation Energy
includes copies of our Corporate Governance
Guidelines, Principles of Business Integrity, Corporate
Compliance Program and Insider Trading Policy, and
the charters of the Audit, Compensation and
Nominating, and Corporate Governance Committees of
the Board of Directors. Copies of each of these
documents may be printed from our website or may be
obtained from Constellation Energy upon written
request to the Corporare Secretary.

The Principles of Business Integrity is a code of
ethics that applies to all of our directors, officers, and
employees, including the chief executive officer, chief
financial officer, and chief accounting officer. We will
post any amendments to, or waivers from, the Principles
of Business Integricy applicable to our chief executive
officer, chief financial officer, or chief accounting officer
on our website.

Operating Segments

The percentages of tevenues, net income, and assets
attriburable to our operating segments are shown in the
tables below. We present information about our "¢
operating segments, including certain ‘other itémis in ™"
Note 3 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Unaffiliated Revenues
Merchant Regulated Regulated Other

Energy  Electric Gas Nonregulated
" 2006 83% 11% 5% 1%
2005 81 12 6 1
2004 76 16 6 2

Net Income

Merchant Regulated Regulated Other
Energy  Electric Gas  Nonregulated
2006 77% 16% 5% 2%
2005 67 28 5° —
2004 72 26 5 (3}




: Total Assets
Merchant Regulated Regulated Other

Energy _ Electric Gas Nontegulated
2006 75% 17% 7 6% 2%
2005 77 16 6 1
2004 71 20 7 2

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to

conform with the current year’s presentation.

(1} Excludes income from discontinued operations in
2006, 2005 and 2004 and cumulative effects of
changes in accounting principles in 2005 as discussed
in more detail in Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data,

Merchant Energy Business

Introduction

Cwur merchant energy business integrares electric
generation assets with the marketing and risk
management of energy and energy-related commodities,
allowing us o manage energy price risk over geographic
regions and time.

Constellation Energy Commodities Group, our
wholesale marketing, risk management, and trading
operation, dispatches the energy from our generating
facilities and from some facilities with which we have
power purchase agreements, manages the risks associated
with seiling the cutpur and purchasing non-nuclear
fuels, and enters into transactions to meet customers’
energy and risk management requirements. This
operation also trades energy and energy-related
commodirties and deploys risk capital in the
management of our portfolio in order to earn additional
returns. Constellation NewEnergy, our electric and gas
retail operation, provides electricity, natural gas,
transportation, and other energy services to commercial,
industrial, and governmental customers.

Constellation Generation Group, our merchant
generation operation, oversees the ownership,
operations, maintenance, and petformance of our fossil,
nuclear and renewable generation and fuel processing
faciliries. Our generation capacity supports our
wholesale and retail operations by providing a source of
reliable power supply. Constellation Generation Group
also owns and operates a generation operations and
maintenance services organization.. ~-  «., ¢ .

Our merchant energy business:

# provided approximately 34,650 megawarts
{MW) of peak load in the aggregate to
distribution ucilities, municipalities,
commercial, industrial, and governmental
custormners during 2006,

# provided approximately 355,000 million British
Thermal Units (mmBTUSs) of natural gas to
commercial, industrial, and governmental
customers during 2006,

# delivered 26.0 million rons of ceal ro
international and domestic third-party
customers and to our own fleer during 2006,
and

¢ managed approximately 8,680 MW of
generation capacity as of December 31, 2006.

We analyze the results of our merchant energy

business as follows:

4 Mid-Atlantic Region—our fossil, nuclear, and
hydroelectric generating facilities and
load-serving activities in the PJM
Interconnection (PJM) region. This also
includes active portfolio management of
generating assers and other physical and
financial concractual arrangements, as well as
other PIM competitive supply activities. In
addition, due to the expiration of its power
purchase agreement, beginning in June 2006
until its sale in December 2006, the results of
our University Park generating faciliry are
included with the Mid-Atlantic Region.
University Park was previously included in
Plants with Power Purchase Agreements.

¢ Plants with Power Purchase Agreements—our
generating facilities outside the Mid-Atlantic
Region with long-term power purchase
agreements. As discussed in Nore 2 1o
Consolidated Financial Statements, the sale of the
High Desert facility resulted in a reclassification
of its results to discontinued operations.

¢ Wholesale Competitive Supply—our
marketing, risk management, and trading
operation thar provides energy products and
services primarily to distribution utilities, power
generators, and other wholesale customers. We
also provide global energy and related services
and upstream and downstream natural gas
services.

# Rerail Competitive Supply—our operation that
provides electric and natural gas energy products
and services to commercial, industrial, and
governmental customers.

¢ Other—our investments in qualifying facilities
and domestic power projects and our generation
operations and maintenance services.

In December 2006, we completed the sale of the

following gas-fired plants owned by our merchant.
energy business: R

: Capacity
Facili (M) Unit Type Location
High Desert. . . 830 Combined Cycle California
Rio Nogales. . . 800 Combined Cycle Texas
Holland. .. ... 665  Combined Cycle  Illinois
University Park 300 Peaking Winois
Big Sandy . . .. 300 Peaking West Virginia
Wolf Hills. . .. 250 Peaking Virginia




We discuss the sale of these gas-fired generating
facilities in Note 2 to Consolidated Financial Statements.
We present details about our generating properties
in ftem 2. Properties.

Mid-Atlantlc Region

We own 6,305 MW of fossil, nuclear, and hydroelectric
generation capacity in the Mid-Adantic Region. The
ourtpur of these plants is managed by our wholesale
marketing, risk management, and trading operation and
is hedged through a combination of power sales to
wholesale and retail marker participants. Qur merchant
energy business meets the load-serving requirements of
various contracts using the ourput from the
Mid-Adantic Region and from purchases in the
wholesale market. -

BGE rransferred all of these facilities to our
merchant energy generarion subsidiaries on July 1, 2000
as a result of the implementation of electric customer
choice and comperition among suppliers in Maryland,
except for the Handsome Lake facility that commenced
operations in mid-2001, The assets transferred from
BGE are subject to the lien of BGE's mortgage.

Our merchant energy business supplies BGE with
a portion of its market-based standard offer service
obligation. For 2006, the peak load supplied to BGE
was approximarely 3,490 MW.

i

Plants with Power Purchase Agreements

We own 2,134 MW of nuclear generation capacity with
power purchase agreements for a significant portion of
their output. Qur facilities with power purchase
agreements are the Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station
(Nine Mile Point) and the R.E. Ginna Nuclear Plant
(Ginna).

We own 100% of Nine Mile Point Unir )

(620 M) and 82% of Unic 2 {933 MW). The
remaining interest in Nine Mile Point Unit 2 is owned
by the Long Island Power Authority. Unit 1 entered
service in 1969 and Unit 2 in 1988. Nine Mile Point is
located within the New York Independent System
Operator (NYISO} region.

We sell 90% of our share of Nine Mile Point’s
output to the former owners of the plant at an average
price of nearly $35 per megawatt-hour (MWH) under
agreements that terminate between 2009 and 2011. The
agreements are unit contingent (if the output is not
available because the plant is not operating, there is no
requirement to provide output from other sources). The
remaining 10% of Nine Mile Point’s output is managed
by our wholesale marketing, risk management, and
trading operation and sold into the wholesale market.

After termination of the power purchase
agreements, a revenue sharing agreement with the
former owners of the plant will begin and continue
through 2021. Under this agreement, which applies
only to our ownership percentage of Unir 2, a

predetermined price is compared to the marker price for

electricity. If the marker price exceeds the strike price,

then 809 of this excess amount is shared with the
former owners of the plant. The average strike price for
the first year of the revenue sharing agreement is $40.75
per MWH. The strike price increases two percent
annually beginning in the second year of the revenue
sharing agreement. The revenue sharing agreement is
unit contingent and is based on the operation of the

unit. ' .
We exclusively operate Unit 2 under an operaring
agreement with the Long Island Power Authority. The
Long Island Power Authority is responsible for 18% of
the operating costs {and decommissioning costs) of Unic
2 and has representation on the Nine Mile Point Unit 2
management committee which provides certain
oversight and review functions.

In October 2006, we received Nuclear Regulatory
Commission (NRC) approval for license extension for
both units at our Nine Mile Point nuclear facility. With
the renewed licenses, we can continue to operate Unit 1
until 2029 and Unir 2 undl 2046.

We own 100% of the Ginna nuclear faciliry.
Ginna consists of a 581 MW reactor that entered service
in 1970 and is licensed to operate until 2029. We sell up
to 90% of the plant’s output and capacity to the former
owners for 10 years atc an average price of $44.00 per
MWH under a long term unit contingent power
purchase agreement. The remaining output is managed
by our wholesale marketing, risk management, and
trading operation and sold into the wholesale marker.
During rhe fourth quarter of 2006, we completed a
planned outage at our Ginna nuclear faciliry, which
included increasing the capaciry of the plant from 498
MW to the current 581 MW. Based on the new
capacity, beginning in 2007, we will sell approximately
80% of Ginna's output to the former owners,

Competitive Supply

We are a leading supplier of energy products and

services 1o wholesale customers and retail commercial,
industrial, and governmental customers. In 2006, our
wholesale markerting, risk management, and trading
operation provided approximately 17:950 peak MWs of -
wholesale full requircments load-serving producrs.
During 2006, our retail competitive supply activiries
served approximately 16,700 MW of peak load and
approximately 355,000 mmBTUs of natural gas.

Wholesale and Retail Load-Serving Activities

Our wholesale marketing, risk management, and trading
operation structures transactions that serve the full
energy and capacity requirements of vartous customers
ourside the PJM region such as distribucion usilities,
municipalities, cooperatives, and retail aggregarors that
do not own sufficient generating capacity or in-house
supply functions to meet their own load requirements.




Our retail competitive supply operation structures
transactions to supply full energy and capacity
requirements and provide natural gas, transportation,
and other energy products and services to retail,
commercial, industrial, and governmenual customers.

Contracts with these customers generally extend

from one to ten years, but some can be longer. To meet
our customers’ load-serving requirements, our merchant
energy business obtains energy from various sources,
including:

# bilateral power and natural gas purchase
agreements with third parties;

¢ unit contingent purchases from generation
companies,

4 our generation assets,

4 regional power pools,

# wolling contracts with generation companies,
which provide us the right, but nor the
obligation, to purchase power at a price linked
to the variable cost of production, including
fuel, with terms thar generally extend from
several months to several years, but can be
longer, and

¢ cxchange traded electriciry and natural gas
contracts.

Portfolio Management and Trading )
We continue to identify and pursue opportunities which
can generate additional returns through pordolio
management and trading acrivities within our business.
These opportunities have increased due to the
significant growth in scale of our competitive supply
operations. In"managing our portfolio, we may
rerminate, restructure, or acquire contracts. Such
transactions are within the normal course of managing
our portfolio and may materially impact the timing of
our recognition of revenues, fuel and purchased energy
expenses, and cash flows.

Our wholesale marketing, risk management, and
trading operation actively uses energy and energy-related
commodities in order to manage our portfolic of energy
purchases and sales to customers through structured
transactions. We use both derivative and nonderivative

contracts'in managing ourportfolio of energy sales and

purchase contracts. Generally, we expect to use both
derivative and nonderivative contracts to hedge a
majority of our portfolio over a three-year period in
order o reduce volatility in our results. Although a
substantial portion of our portfolio is hedged, we are
able to identify opportunities to deploy risk capiral to
increase the vatue of our accrual positions, which we
characterize as portfolio management. :

We trade energy and energy-related commodities
and deploy risk capital in the management of our
portfolio in order w earn additional returns. These
activities are managed through daily value ar risk and
stop loss limits and liquidity guidelines, and could have

a material impact on our financial results. We discuss
the impact of our trading activities and value at risk in
more detail in frem 7. Management's Discussion and
Analys‘i:.'

These acrivities invalve the use of a variety of

instruments, including:.

# forward contracts (which commit us to purchase
or sell energy commodities in the furure),

4 swap agreements {which require payments to or
from counterparties based upon the difference
between two prices for a predetermined
contractual {notional) quantity),

# option contracts (which convey the right to buy
or sell a commodity, financial instrument, or
index at a predetermined price), and

# furures conrracts (which are exchange traded
standardized comimirments to purchase or sell a
commodity or financial instrument, or make a
cash settlenient, ar a specified price and future
date). )

Active portfolio management allows our wholesale

marketing, risk management, and trading operation to:

+ manage and hedge its fixed-price energy
purchase and sale commirments,

4 provide fixed-price energy commitments to
customers and suppliers,

# reduce exposure to the volatility of market
prices, and;

# hedge fuel requirements at our non-nuclear -
generation facilities.

Coal and International Services

Our wholesale marketing, risk management, and trading
operation participates in global coal sourcing activiries
by providing coal and coal-related logisrical services, for
the variable or fixed supply needs of global customers. In
2006, we delivered 26.0 million tons of coal to global
customers and to our own fleet. Additionally, we
entered into power, natural gas, freight, and emisstons
transactions outside of the United States. We also
include in our coal services the results from our
synthetic fuel processing facility in South Carolina.

We will continue to evaluate new international
opportunities, including expanding our coal sourcing, .
freight, and power, natural gas and emissions activities
outside of the United States.

Narural Gas Services

Our wholesale marketing, risk management, and trading
operation includes upstream (exploration and
production) and downstream (transportation and
storage) natural gas operations. Our upstream activities
include the acquisition, development, and exploeitation
of natural gas properties. Qur downstream activities
include providing natural gas to various customers,
including large utilities, industrial customers, power
generators, wholesale marketers, and retail aggregators.




In 2006 and 2005, we acquired working interests
in gas producing fields. We discuss these acquisitions in
more detail in Note 15 ro Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In November 2006, we completed the initial
public offering of Constellation Energy Partners LLC
{CEP), a limited liability company that we formed. CEP
is principally engaged in the acquisition, development,
and exploitation of natural gas properties. CEP’s existing
property is located in the Robinson’s Bend Field in the
Black Warrior Basin of Alabama. We continue to own
5494 of CEP and as a result, we continue to consolidare
CEP. We discuss the impact of this initial public
offering on our financial results in more detail in Note 2
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other
We hold up to a 50% voting interest in 24 operating
energy projects that consist of electric generation
{primarily relying on alternative fuel sources), fuel
processing, or fuel handling facilidies. These generating
projects are considered qualifying facilities under the
Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978. Each |
electric generating plant sells its output to a local utility
under long-term contracis.

We also provide operation and maintenance
services, including testing and start-up, to owners of
electric generating facilicies.

UniStar Nuclear

In 2005, we formed UniStar Nuclear, LLC (UniSrar), a
joint encerprise with AREVA NP, Inc., to develop the
business model for a standardized fleet of nuclear power
plants based on an advanced design called the U.S.
Evolutionary Power Reactor (U.5. EPR). UniStar
provides the framework through which we can work
with AREVA NP, Inc. to obtain design certification and
all necessary approvals from the NRC to license,
construct, own, and operate U.S. EPR plants.

UniStar also offers the business framewark thar
could enable the development of future joint ventures
with Constellation Energy, othet energy compantes, and
interested parties. Those future joint ventures, in turn,
would license, construct, own, and operate nuclear”
power plants as part of a standardized fleer. However,
prior to identifying specific projects or committing to
ordering new nuclear power plants, our financial
commitment will be limited to the formation of the
business platform and business development activities,
including licensing and permit activities and securing
access to long-lead materials such as heavy forgings
needed for reactor pressure vessels and steam generarors
or turbine and generator parts.

Fuel Sources

Our power plants use diverse fuel sources. Our fuel mix
based on capacity owned ar December 31, 2006 and our
generation based on actual output by fuel rype in 2006
were as follows:

Fuel Capacity Owned  Generation”

Nuclear.......... 45% 52%

Coal ............ 32 30

Narural Gas ...... 7 15

Oil ............. 8 —

Renewable and

Alternative ™ ... 5 3

Duadl®.......... 3 — .

* Includes output from gas-fired plants until sale in
December 2006,

(1) Includes solar, geothermal, hydro, waste coal and
biomass.

(2)  Switches berween natural gas and oil.

We discuss our risks associated with fuel in more
detail in ftem 7. Management's Discussion and
Analysi—Marker Risk.

Nuclear

The outpu at our nuclear facilities over the past five
years {including periods prior to our acquisition of
Ginna in June 2004) is presented in the following table:

Calvert Cliffs  Nine Mile Point Ginna
Capacity Capacity Capacity
MWH Factor MWH* Factor MWH Factor
(MWH in millions}

2006 13.8 90% 12.8 93% 4.1 93%
2005 14.7 97 127 93 4.0 93
2004 14.5 96 12.1 89 4.3 100
2003 13.7 93 12.2 90 3.9 90
2002 12.1 82 11.7 87 3.8 89

* represents our proportionate ownership interest

The supply of fuel for nuclear generating stations
includes the:
# purchase of uranium (concentrates and uranium
hexafluoride),
# conversion of uranium concentrates to uranium
hexafluoride,
" # enrichment of iraniuf hexaflioride, and”
¢ fabrication of nuclear fuel assemblies.

R ICTERTRT SIS

We have commitments for sufficient
quantities of uranium (concentrates
and uranium hexafluoride) to meet
100% of our total requirements
through 2010. Additionally, we have
commitments covering approximately
95% of our requirements in 2011.

Uranium and
Conversion




Enrichment We have commitments thar provide
100% of our uranium enrichment
requirements through 2010 and 75%
of these requirements in 2011 and
2012. We have commitments that
provide 50% of our uranium
enrichment requirements from 2013 -
- through 2020. '
Fuel Assembly We have commirments for the
Fabrication fabrication of fuel assemblies for
reloads required through 2013 for
Nine Mile Point and Calvert Cliffs
Nuclear Power Plant, Inc. (Calvert

Cliffs), and through 2017 for Ginna.

The nuclear fuel markets are competitive, and
although prices for uranium and conversion are
increasing, we do not anticipate any significane
problems in meeting our future requirements.

torage of Spent Nuclear Fyel-—Federal Facilitie
One of the issues associated with the operation and
decommissioning of nuclear generating facilicies is
disposal of spent nuclear fuel. There are no facilities for
the reprocessing or permanent disposal of spent nuclear
fuel currently in operarion in the United States, and the
NRC has not licensed any such facilides. The Nuclear
Waste Policy Act of 1982 (NWPA) required the federal
government, through the Department of Energy
{DOE), 1o develop a repository for the disposal of spent
nuclear fuel and high-level radioactive waste,

As required by the NWPA, we are a party to
contracts with the DOE to provide for disposal of spent
nuclear fuel from our nuclear generating plants. The
INWPA and our contracts with the DOE require
payments to the DOE of one tenth of one cent (one
mill) per kilowace hour on nuclear electricity generated
and sold ro pay for the cost of long-term nuclear fuel
storage and disposal. We continue to pay those fees into
the DOE’s Nuclear Waste Fund for our Calvert Cliffs,
Ginna, and Nine Mile Point facilities. The NWPA and
our contracts with the DOE required the DOE to begin
taking possession of spent nuclear fuel generated by
nuclear generaring units no later than Januvary 31, 1998,

The DOE has stated that it may not meet that
obligation until 2017 at the carliest. This delay has
required that we undertake additional actions o provide
on-site fuel storage at Calvert Cliffs, Ginna, and Nine
Mile Point, including the installation of on-site dry fuel
storage capacity at Calvert Cliffs, as described in more
detail below. [n 2004, complaints were filed against the
federal government in the United States Court of
Federal Claims seeking to recover damages caused by the
DOE’s failure to meet its contractual obligation to begin
disposing of spent nuclear fuel by January 31, 1998.
These cases are currently stayed, pending lirigation in
other related cases. '

In connection with our purchase of Ginna, all of
the formet owner's rights and obligations related to
recovery of damages for DOE's failure to meet its
contraétual obligations were assigned to us. However,
we have an obligation to reimburse the former owner for
up to $10 million of any recovered damages for such
claims.

Storage of Spent Nuclear Fuel—On-Site Facilities

Calvert Cliffs has a license from the NRC to operate an
on-site independent spent fuel storage installation that
expires in 2012, We have storage capacity at Calvert
Cliffs that will accommodate spent fue! from operations
through 2011. In addition, we can expand our
temporary storage capacity at Calvert Cliffs to meet
future requirements until approximately 2025, Nine
Mile Point and Ginna are beginning initial planning
studies for the potential development of independent
spent fuel storage capacity. Nine Mile Poinc’s Unir 1 has
sufficient storage capacity within the plane unril 2011,
Nine Mile Poinc’s Unit 2 has sufficient storage capacity
within the plant until 2012. Ginna has sufficient storage
capacity within the plant undil 2010.

Cost for Decommissioning Uranium Envichment Facilities

The Energy Policy Act of 1992 requires domestic
nuclear utilities to contribute to a fund for
decommissioning and decontaminating uranium
enrichment facilides thar had been operated by DOE.
These contributions are generally payable over a 15-year
period with escalation for inflation and are based upon
the amount of uranium enriched by DOE for each
utility through 1992, The 1992 Act provides that these
costs are recoverable through utility service rates. BGE is
solely responsible for these costs as they relate ro Calvert
Cliffs and made the last payment in 2006. The sellers of
the Nine Mile Point planr and the Long Island Power
Authoricy are responsible for the costs relating to the
Nine Mile Point plant. The seller of Ginna is
responsible for the costs related o that facility.

Cost for Decommissiont ng

We are obligated to decommission our nuclear plants at
the time these plants cease operation. Every two years,
the NRC requires us to demonstrate reasonable
assurance that funds will be available te decommission
the sites. When BGE transferred all of its nuclear
generating assets to our merchant energy business, it also
transferred the trust fund established to pay for
decommissioning Calvert Cliffs. At December 31, 2006,
the Calvert Cliffs trust fund assets were $420.6 million.

Under the Maryland Public Service Commission’s
{Maryland PSC) order regarding the deregulation of
electric generation, BGE ratepayers must pay a toral of
$520 million, in 1993 dollars adjusted for inflation, to
decommission Calvert Cliffs through fixed annual
collections. In 2006, BGE received approval from the
Maryland PSC o continue annual customer collections
of approximately $18.7 million through December 31,
2016. BGE will be required to submit 2 filing o
determine the level of customer coneributions after
December 31, 2016.




BGE is collecting this amount on behalf of Calvert
Cliffs. Any costs 1o decommission Calvert Cliffs in
excess of this $520 million must be paid by Calvert
Cliffs. If BGE ratepayers have paid more than this
amount at the time of decommissioning, Calvert Cliffs
must refund the excess. If the cost to decommission
Calvert Cliffs is less than the $520 million BGE's
ratepayers are obligated to pay, Calvert Cliffs may keep
the difference.

As discussed in Baltimore Gas and Electric
Company—Provider of Last Resort section, Senate Bill 1,
which was enacred in June 2006, requires BGE ro
provide credits to residential electric customers equal to’
the amount collected for decommissioning annually for
10 years beginning January 1, 2007, Under the
provisions of Senate Bill 1 we are required to apply the
collection of the nuclear decommissioning trust funds
over the ten year peried beginning January 1, 2007
toward the fulfillment of the decommissioning
obligations of BGE ratepayers.

The sellers of Nine Mile Point transferred a
$441.7 million decommissioning trust fund to us at the
time of sale. In return, we assumed all liability for the
costs to decommission Unit 1 and 82% of the costs to
decommission Unit 2. We believe that this amount is
adequate 1o cover our responsibility for
decommissioning Nine Mile Point to a greenfield starus
(restoration of the site so that it substancially marches
the natural state of the surrounding properties and the
site’s intended use). At December 31, 2006, the Nine
Mile Poinr trust fund assets were $572.8 million.

The seller of Ginna transferred $200.8 million in
decommissioning funds to us. In return, we assumed all
liability for the costs to decommission the unit. We
believe that this amount will be sufficient to cover our
responsibility for decommissioning Ginna to a
greenfield starus. At December 31, 2006, the Ginna
trust fund assets were $246.7 million.

Coal :

We purchise the majotity of our coal for electric
generation under supply contracts with mining
operatots, and we acquire the remainder in the spot or
forward coal markers. We believe that we will be able ro
renew supply contracts as they expire or enter into
contracts with other coal suppliers. Our primary coal
burning facilities have the following requirements:

Approximate

Annual Coal

Requirement Special Coal
(tons) Restrictions

3,500,000 Sulfur conrenr less
than 1.20 lbs per

Brandon Shores
Units 1 and 2

{combined) mmBTU
C.P. Crane 850,000 Low ash melting
Units 1 and 2 temperature
(combined)
H. A. Wagner 1,100,000 Sulfur contént no

Units 2 and 3 more than 1%

(combined)

Coal deliveries to these facilities are made by rail
and barge. Over the past few years, we expanded our
coal sources including restructuring our rail contracs,
increasing the range of coals we can consume, adding
synthetic fuel as an alternate source, and finding
potential other coal supply sources including shipments
from various international sources. While we primarily
use coal produced from mines located in central and
northern Appalachia, we are capable of switching to
imported coals to manage our coal supply. The timely
delivery of coal together with the maintenance of
appropriate levels of inventory is necessary to allow for
continued, reliable generation from these facilittes.

All of the Conemaugh and Keystone plants’ annual
coal requirements are purchased by the plant operators
from regional suppliers on the open marker. The sulfur
restrictions on coal are approximately 2.3% for the
Kevstone plant and approximately 5.3% for the
Conemaugh plant.

The annual coal requirements for the ACE,
Jasmin, and Poso plants, which are located in California,
are supplied under contracts with mining operators. The
Jasmin and Poso plants are restricted to coal with sulfur
content less than 4.0% and ACE is restricted to less than
2.0%.

All of our coal requirements reflect historical levels.
The actual fuel quantities required can vary substantially

from historical levels depending upon the relationship

between energy prices and fuel costs, weather
conditions, and operating requirements,

Gas

We purchase natural gas, storage capacity, and
transportation, as necessary, for electric generation at
certain plants. Some of our gas-fired units can use
residual fuel oil or distillates instead of gas. Gas is
purchased under contracts with suppliers on the spot
market and forward markets, including financial
exchanges and bilateral agreements. The actual fuel
quantities required can vary substantially from year to
year depending upon the relationship berween energy
prices and fuel costs, weather conditions, and operating
requirements. However, we believe that we will be able
to obtain adequate quantiries of gas to meet our
requirements. S

Ol

Under normal burn practices, our requirements for
residual fuel il (No. 6} amount to approximately

1.5 million to 2.0 million barrels of low-sulfur oil per
year. Deliveries of residual fuel oil are made from the
suppliers’ Baltimore Harbor and Philadelphia marine
terminals for distribution to the various generating plant
locarions. Also, based on normal burn practices, we
require approximately 8.0 million to 11.0 million
gallons of distillates (No. 2 oil and kerosene) annually,
but these requirements can vary substantiaily from year




to year depending upon the relacionship between energy
prices and fuel costs, weather condirions, and operating
requirements. Distillates are purchased from the
suppliers’ Baltimore rruck terminals for distribution to
the various generating plant locations. We have
contracts with various suppliers to purchase oil ar spot
prices, and for future delivery, to meet our
requirements.

Competition

Market developments over the past several years have
changed the nature of competition in the merchant
energy business. Certain companies within the merchant
energy sector have cureailed their activites or withdrawn
completely from the business. However, new
competitors {e.g., financial investors, banks and
investment banks) have entered the marker. We
encounter competition from companies of various sizes,
having varying levels of experience, financial and human
resources, and differing strategies.

We face competition in the market for energy,
capacity, and ancillary services. In our merchant energy
bustness, we compete with international, national, and
regional full service energy providers, merchants, and
producers to obtain compertitively priced supplies from a
variety of sources and locations, and ro urilize efficient
transmission, transportation, or storage. We principally
compete on the basis of price, customer service,
reliability, and availability of our products.

With respect to power generation, we compete in
the operation of energy-producing projects, and our
competitors in this business are boch domestic and
international organizations, including various utilities,
industrial companies and independent power producers
(including affiliates of uilities, financial investors, banks
and investment banks), some of which have greater
financial resources.

Stares are considering different types of regulatory
iniriarives concerning comperition in the power
industry, which makes a competitive assessment
difficult. Increased competition that resulted from some
of these initiatives in several states contributed in some
instances to a reduction in electricity prices and put
pressure on eleceric utilities to lower their costs,
including the cost of purchased electricity. While many
states continue to support retail competition and
industry restructuring, other states that were considering
deregulation have slowed their plans or postponed
consideration of deregulation. In addition, other states
are reconsidering deregulation.

We believe there is adequate growth potential in
the current deregulared market and that further market
changes could provide additional opportunities for our
merchant energy business. In addition, our wholesale
marketing, risk management, and trading operation
parricipates in global coal sourcing activities by
providing coal for the variable or fixed supply needs of
Norch American and internacional power generators. In
addition, our wholesale marketing, risk management,
and trading operation includes upstream (exploitation
and production) and downstream (transportation and
storage) natural gas operations.

As the market for commercial, industrial, and
governmental supply continues to grow, we have
experienced increased competition on a regional basis in
our retail competirive supply activities. The increase in
retail competition and the impact of wholesale power
prices compared to the rates charged by local utilities
has, in certain circumsrances, reduced the margins that
we realize from our customers. However, we believe that
our experience and expertise in assessing and managing
risk and our strong focus on customer service will help
us to remain competitive during volatile or otherwise
adverse marker circumstances,

Merchant Energy Operating Statistics

2005 2004 2003 2002

Revenues (In millions)

Mid-Atantic Region $ 2,813.5 § 2,283.9 § 19256 $1,696.2 $1,415.1

Plants with Power Purchase Agreements 650.5 665.9 555.3 463.3 433.2

Competitive Supply—Rerail 8,014.7 6,942.3 . 4,280.0 2.567.7 312.7

Coempetitive Supply—Wholesale 5,612.7 4,672.3 3,353.8 2,703.9 540.7

Other 74.8 58.0 73.6 451 - 56.4
Toral Revenues $17,166.2 $14,6224 $10,1883 $7,476.2 $2,758.1
Generation (fn millions)—MWH?* . 59.1 60.2 55.3 51.6 44.7

* Includes output from gas-fired plants until sale in December 2006,

Operazing statistics do not reflect the elimination of intercompany transactions.

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current years presentation. The reclassifications
primarily refate 1o operations ihat have been reflected as discontinued in the current year.




Baltimore Gas and Electric Company
BGE is an electric eransmission and distribution urility
company and 2 gas distribution utility company with a
service territory that covers the Ciry of Balimore and
all or parr of ten counties in central Maryland, BGE is
regulated by the Maryland PSC and Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC) with respect to rates
and other aspects of its business.

BGE’s electric service territory includes an area of
approximately 2,300 square miles. There are no
municipal or cooperative wholesale customers within
BGE's service territory. BGE’s gas service territory -
includes an area of approximarely 800 square miles.

BGE's elecrric and gas revenues come from many
customers—residential, commercial, and industrial.

Electric Business
Electric Regulatory Matters and Competition

Deregulation
Effective July 1, 2000, electric customer choice and

competition among electric suppliers was implemented
in Maryland. As a result of the deregulation of electric
generation, all customers can choose their electric
energy supplier. While BGE does nor sell electric
commeodity to all customers in its service territory,
BGE continues to deliver electricity to all customers
and provides meter reading, billing, emergency
response, and regular maintenance.

Standard Offer Service
BGE provided fixed-price standard offer service to

commercial and industrial customets through either
June 30, 2002 or June 30, 2004, depending on
customer type, and for tesidential customers through
June 30, 2006.

Upon the expiration of fixed-price standard offer .

service, customers that continue to receive their
electric supply from BGE are charged market-based
standard offer service rates (Provider of Last Resort
rates). We discuss Provider of Last Resort (POLR})
rates in mote detail below.

Provider of Last Resort
BGE is obligated to provide marker-based standard
offer service to all of its electric customers for varying
periods. The POLR rates charged recover BGE’s
wholesale power supply costs and include an
administrative fee. The administrative fee includes a
shareholder return compenent and an incremental cost
component. As a result of Senate Bill 1, beginning
January 1, 2007, the shareholder return component of
the administrative charge for residential POLR service
was suspended. We discuss Senate Bill 1 in detail in
the Residential Customers secrion.

Bidding to supply BGE’s market-based standard
offer service will occur from time to time through a
competitive bidding process appraved by the
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Maryland PSC. Successful bidders, which may include
subsidiaries of Constellation Energy, will execute
contracts with BGE for varying terms.

Commercial and Indiistrial Customers

BGE is obligated to provide market-based standard
offer service to commercial and industrial customers
for varying periods beyond June 30, 2004, depending
on customer load.

In August 2006, the Maryland PSC issued an
order indefinitely extending the obligation of
Maryland utilities to provide POLR service for those
commercial and industrial customers for which
market-based standard offer service was scheduled to
expire at the end of May 2007, The extended service
will be provided on substantially the same terms as
under the existing service, except that wholesale
bidding for service to some customers will be
conducted more frequently.

BGE’s obligation to provide market-based
standard offer service to its largest commercial and
industrial customers expired on May 31, 2005. BGE
continues to provide an hourly-priced market-based
standard offer service to those customers,

Residential Customers
As a result of the November 1999 Maryland PSC
order regarding the deregulation of electric generation
in Maryland, BGE'’s residential electric base rates were
frozen until July 2006. Subsequent orders of the
Maryland PSC specified that BGE would procure the
power to serve residential customers beginning
July 2006 via auctions to be conducted in late 2005
and early 2006. The procured power costs of these
auctions would have resulted in an average electric
residential customer bill increase of 72%. In
June 2006, Senate Bill 1 was enacted, which, among
other things: .
¢ imposes rate stabilization measures that (i) cap
rate increases by BGE for residential POLR
service at 15% from July 1, 2006 to May 31,
2007, (ii} give residential POLR customers the
option from June 1, 2007 until December 31,
2007 of paying a full marker rate or choosing a
shorr rerm rate stabilization plan in order to
provide a smooth transition to market rates -
without adversely affecting the
creditworthiness of BGE, and (iii) provide for
full market rates for residential POLR service
starting January 1, 2008;
¢ allows BGE to recover the costs deferred from
July 1, 2006 to May 31, 2007 from its
customers over a period not to exceed
10 years, on terms and conditions 1o be
determined by the Maryland PSC, including
through the issuance of rate stabilization
bands that securitize the deferred costs;




¢ directs the Maryland PSC to investigate
measures to mitigate the impact of residential
rate increases on BGE customers, including by
investigating the prior determination of and
allowances for stranded costs that occurred
when BGE transferred assets to its affiliates in
2000 and by requiring the Maryland PSC to
provide funds to residendal customers of BGE
for midgarion of BGE's rare increases,
including any adjuscment in favor of BGE’s
customers to allowances for such stranded
costs; and

¢ requires BGE to reduce residential electric

rates by approximately $39 million per year
for 10 years, beginning January 1, 2007,
through suspension of the collection of the
residential return component of the
administrative charge for POLR service and a
credit equal o the amount collected from
BGE ratepayers for the nuclear
decommissioning trust for Calvert Cliffs. We
provide further details in the Cost for
Decommissioning section,

In August 2006, the Maryland PSC began its
investigation into the general regulatory structure,
agreements, orders, and other prior actions of the
Maryland PSC under the Electric Customer Choice
and Competition Act of 1999, including the
determination of and allowances for stranded costs.
We cannot predicr the outcome of the investigation,
but it could have a material adverse effect on our, or
BGE's, financial results.

In December 2006, the Maryland PSC issued an
order that allows BGE to securitize its costs relating to
the residential rate deferral through the issuance of
bonds in an aggregate principal amouny of
approximately $630 million, subject to adjustment.

Also in December 2006, in connecrion with
implementing the $39 million in annual residential
electric rate reductions discussed above, BGE and
Calvert Cliffs notified the Maryland PSC that they had
entered into a standstill agreement with the Artorney
General of the State of Maryland with respect to
potential challenges to the provisions of Senate Bill 1
relating to the reductions.

In January 2007, BGE filed a proposed plan with
the Maryland PSC that would allow residential electric
customers to defer the transition to full market rates
from June 1, 2007 to December 31, 2007. Under the
proposed plan, electric rates for residential customers
who elect this extended deferral would increase on
June 1, 2007 by one-half of the total increase
remaining to reach full market rates on January 1,
2008. We estimate thart electric rates for residential
electric customers under this plan will be
approximartely 20-25% higher on June 1, 2007
compared to current residential electric rates. This
estimate may differ from the actual increase on June 1,
2007 basied on BGE's actual procured power cost,
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which will be determined in April 2007 via auctions.
Customers who choose to defer would cepay the
defetred amounts over a two-year period statting
January 1, 2008, ar which time these customers would
transition to full market rates. The proposed plan
remains subject to Maryland PSC approval.

Because Senate Bill 1 requires additional
decisions and proceedings by the Maryland PSC and
other governmental authorities 1o implement and
interprer many of its provisions, we cannot predict the
ultimate impacr of the legislation on us, BGE, or the
energy market in Maryland, The new legislation and
its implementation through applicable regulatory
proceedings could have a material adverse effect on
our, or BGE's, financial results. In addirion, one or
more parties may challenge in court ane or more
provisions of Senate Bill 1. The outcome of any
challenges and the uncertainty that could result cannot
be predicted.

We discuss other aspects of Senate Bill 1 in
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis—Business
Environment—Senate Bill [ section. We discuss the

‘market risk of our regulated electric business in more

detail in ftem 7. Management's Discussion and
Analysis—Marker Risk section.

Electric Load Management

BGE has implemented various programs for use when
system-operating conditions or market economics
indicate that a reduction in load would be beneficial.
We refer to these programs as active load management
programs. These programs include:

4 two options for commercial and industrial
customers to voluntarily reduce their electric
loads,

4 air conditioning control for residential and
commercial customers, and

# residential water heater control.

These programs generally take effect on summer
days when demand and/or wholesale prices are
relacively high and had the capability during the 2006
summer to reduce load up to approximately 233 MW,

Transmission and Distribution Facilities
BGE maintains approximately 250 substations and
1,300 circuit miles of transmission lines throughout
central Maryland. BGE also maintains approximately
23,900 circuit miles of distribution lines. The
transmission facilities are connected to those of
neighboring utility systems as part of PJM. Under the
PJM Tariff and various agreements, BGE and other
market participants can use regional transmission
facilities for energy, capacirty, and ancillary services
transactions including emergency assistance.

We discuss various FERC initiatives relating to
wholesale electric markets in more detail in ftem 7.
Management s Discussion and Analysis—-Federal
Regulation section.




Electric Operating Statistics

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Revenues (Tn millions)
Residential $1,092.1 $1,066.6 $1,0158 $ 959.0 $ 946.6
Commercial
Excluding Delivery Service Only 733.4 722.1 708.9 694.2 776.0
Delivery Service Only 149.4 i07.5 78.6 66.1 33.5
Industrial )
Excluding Delivery Service Only 46.8 52.8 92.3 137.0 158.7
Delivery Service Only 26.2 28.0 21.3 18.2 10.9
System Sales and Deliveries 2,047.9 1,977.0 1,916.9 1,874.5 1,925.7
QOther (A) 68.0 59.5 50.8 47.1 40.3
Total . $2,115.9  $2,036.5 $1967.7 $1921.6  $1,966.0
Distribution Volumes {fn thousands)—MWH :
Residential 12,886 13,762 13,313 12,754 12,652
Commercial ) ‘ -
Excluding Delivery Service Only 6,325 7,847 9,286 9,937 11,840
Delivery Service Only 9,392 7,967 5,767 4,982 2,762
Induserial
Exctuding Delivery Service Only 467 614 1,429 2,356 3,478
Delivery Service Only 2,988 3,122 2,562 1,780 997
Toral ) 32,058 33,312 32,357 32,009 31,729
Customers {/n thousands)
Residentia! 1,093.3 1,084.1 1,072.1 1,061.7 1,052.3
Commercial 115.5 114.7 113.6 112.1 110.8
Industrial 5.2 50 4.8 4.9 4.9
Total 1,214.0 ' 1,203.8 1,190.5 1,178.7 1,168.0

(A} Primarily includes network integration transmission service revenues, late payment charges, miscellaneous service

fees, and tower leasing revenues.

Operating statistics do not reflect the elimination of intercompany sransactions.
““Delivery service anly” refers to BGE's delivery of commodity that was purchased by the customer from an alternate supplier.
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Gas Business

The wholesale price of natural gas as a commeodity is not
subject ro regulation. All BGE gas customers have the
option 10 purchase gas from alternative suppliers,
including subsidiaries of Constellation Enetgy. BGE
continues to deliver gas to all customers within its
service territory. This delivery service is regulared by the
Maryland PSC.

BGE also provides customers with meter reading,
billing, emergency response, regular maintenance, and
balancing services.

Approximately 30% of the gas delivered on BGE’s
distribution system is for customers that purchase gas
from alternative suppliers. These customers are charged
fees to recover the costs BGE incurs to deliver the
customers’ gas through our distribution system.

In December 2005, the Maryland PSC issued an
order granting BGE a $35.6 million annual increase in
its gas base rates. In December 2006, the Baltimore City
Circuit Court upheld the rate order. However, certain
parties have filed an appeal with the Court of Special
Appeals. We cannot provide assurance that the
Maryland PSC’s order will not be reversed in whole or
in part or that certain issues will not be remanded to the
Maryland PSC for reconsideration.

For customers that buy their gas from BGE, there
is 2 marker-based rates incentive mechanism. Under this
market-based rates incentive mechanism, our actual cost
of gas is cornpared to 2 market index (a measure of the
market price of gas in a given period). The difference
berween our acrual cost and the market index is shared
equally beeween shareholders and customers. BGE must
secure fixed-price contracts for at least 10%, bur not
more than 20%, of forecasted system supply
requirements for the November through March period.
These fixed-price contracts are not subject to sharing
under the market-based rates incentive mechanism,
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BGE purchases the natural gas it resells 1o
customers directly from many producers and marketers.
BGE has transporration and storage agreements thar
expire fram 2007 to 2028.

BGE’s current pipeline firm transportation
entitlements 1o serve BGE's firm loads are 313,033
dekatherms (DTH) per day. .-

" BGE’s current maximum storage entitlements are
235,080 DTH per day. To supplement its gas supply at
times of heavy winter demands and to be available in
temporary emergencies affecting gas supply, BGE has:

¢ a liquefied natural gas facility for the

liquefaction and storage of natural gas with a
total storage capacity of 1,092,977 DTH and a
daily capacity of 311,500 DTH, and

¢ a propane air facility with a mined cavern with a

total storage capacity equivalent ro 564,200
DTH and a daily capacity of 85,000 DTH.

BGE has under conerace sufficient volumes of
propane for the operation of the propane ait facility and
is capable of liquefying sufficient volumes of nawral gas
during the summer months for operations of its
liquefied natural gas facility during peak winter periods.

BGE historically has been able to arrange short-
tetm contracts ot exchange agreements with other gas
companies in the event of short-term disruptions to gas
supplies or to meet additional demand.

BGE also participates in the interstate markets by
releasing pipeline capacity or bundling pipeline capacity
with gas for off-system sales. Off-system gas sales are
low-margin direct sales of gas to wholesale suppliers of
natural gas. Earnings from these activities are shared
between shareholders and customers. BGE makes these
sales as parc of a program to balance our supply of, and
cost of, natural gas.




Gas Operating Statistics

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Revenues (n millions)
Residential ' : \
Excluding Delivery Service Only $ 4902 $ 5585 478.0 4445 § 3421
Delivery Service Only 20.6 232 14.2 13.6 16.5
Commercial
Excluding Delivery Service Only 148.9 174.4 135.4 128.6 89.4
Delivery Service Only 35.9 31.9 28.0 24.6 29.2
Industrial
Excluding Delivery Service Only 7.5 10.5 9.4 11.5 2.3
Delivery Service Only 19.3 12.4 7.8 11.4 13.9
System Sales and Deliveries 722.4 810.9 672.8 634.2 500.4
Off-System Sales 168.6 154.7 77.2 84.8 74.8
Other 8.5 7.2 7.0 7.0 6.1
Toral $ 8995 § 97238 757.0 7260 % 5813
Distribution Volumes (In thousands)—DTH ’
Residential
Excluding Delivery Service Only 33,019 39,107 39,080 40,894 35,364
Delivery Service Only : 3,948 5,423 6,053 6,640 6,404
Commercial ‘
Excluding Delivery Service Only 11,683 14,133 13,248 13,895 11,583
Delivery Service Only 25,695 28,993 34,120 29,138 28,429
Industrial
Excluding Delivery Service Only 604 921 865 1,143 1,207
Delivery Service Only 20,325 19,357 14,310 18,399 23,689
System Sales and Deliveries 95,274 107,934 107,676 110,109 106,676
Of-System Sales 19,738 17,209 - 9,914 12,859 18,551
Total 115,012 125,143 117,590 122,968 125,227
Customers (In thousands)
Residential 597.1 590.9 582.0 575.2 567.3
Commercial 42.3 42.0 41.6 41.1 40.7
Industrial ] 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3
Total 640.6 634.1 624.8 617.5 609.3

Operating statistics do not reflect the elimination of intercompany transactions.
“Delivery service only” refers 1o BGE's delivery of commaodity that was purchased by the customer from an alternate supplier.
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Franchises
BGE has nonexclusive electric and gas franchises to use
streets and other highways that are adequate and
suffictent to permit them to engage in their present
business. Conditions of the franchises are satisfacrory.
Other Nonregulated Businesses
Energy Projects and Services
We offer energy projects and services designed primarily
to provide energy solutions to large commercial and
industrial and governmenral customers. These energy
products and services include:
# designing, construcring, and operating heating,
cooling, and cogeneration facilities,
~ & energy savings projects and performance
| contracting,
¢ energy consulting and procurement services ,
# services to enhance the reliability of individual
electric supply systems, and
4 customized financing alternatives.

Home Products and Gas Retail Marketing
We offer services to customers in Maryland including:

+ home improvements,

# the service of hearing, air conditioning,
plumbing, electrical, and indoor air quality
systems, and

¢ the sale of natural gas to residential customers.

Consolidated Capital Requirements
Qur total capital requirements for 2006 were
$1,149 million. Of this amount, $789 million was used
in our nonregulated businesses and $360 million was
used in our regulated business. We estimare our total
capital requirements will be $1,915 million in 2007.
We continuonsly review and change our capital
expenditure programs, so actual expenditures may vary
from the estimate above. We discuss our capital
requirements further in Jiem 7. Management’s Discussion
and Analysis—Capital Resources section,

Environmental Matters

The development (involving site SC!CCUOH,
environmental assessments, and perrrumng),
construction, acquisition, and operation of electric
generating and distribution facilities are subject to
extensive federal, state, and local environmental and
land use laws and regulations. From the begmmng
phases of development to the ongomg operation of
existing or new electric generating and distribution
facilities, our activities involve compliance with diverse
laws and regulations thar address emissions and impacts
o air and water, protection of natural and cultural
‘resources, and chemical and waste'handling

and disposal. o
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We continuously monitor federal, state, and local
environmental initiatives to determine potential impacts
on our financial results. As new laws or regulations are
promulgated, we assess their applicability and
implement the necessary modifications to our facilities
or their operation to maintain ongoing compliance. Our
capital expenditures were approximately $100 millien
during the five-year period 2002-2006 wo comply with
existing environmental standards and regulations. Our
estimated environmental capital requirements for the
next three years are approximately $335 million in
2007, $495 million in 2008, and $305 million in 2009.

Air Quality

Federal

The Clean Air Act crcated the basic framework for che
federal and state regulation of air pollution.

National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAA Qs)
The NAAQS are federal air quality standards authorized

under the Clean Air Act thar establish maximum
ambient air concentrations for the following specific
pollutants: ozone (smog), carbon monoxide, lead,
particulates, sulfur dioxides (S0O,), and nitrogen dioxides
{NO,). N

In order for states to achieve compliance with the
NAAQS, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
adopted the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) in -
March 2005 to further reduce ozone and fine particulate
pollution by addressing the interstate transport of SO,
and nitrogen oxide (NO ) emissions from fossil fuel-
fired generating facilities located primarily in the
Eastern Unired States.

In May 2005, the EPA adopted a stricrer NAAQS
for ozone and rescinded a requirement to impose fees on
emissions sources in certain areas, including certain of
our generating facilities, for failure to achieve the
previous ozone standard. Seates will be required o
submit plans to the EPA to meet the new standard by
2007, at which time the standard will take effect. We
are unable to determine the impact that complying with
the stricter NAAQS for ozone will have on our financial
results until the states in which our generating facilities
are located adopt plans to meet the new standard.

In December 2006, the United States Court of
Appeats for the District of Columbia Circuir ruled that
the requirement to impose fees on emissions sources
based on the previous ozone standard remained
applicable retroactive to November 2005 and remanded
the issue to the EPA for reconsideration. At chis time,
we cannot predict what action the EPA will take in
response to the Court's decision and whether the fees
will be retroactively assessed. The exact mechod of
computing these fees has not been established and will
depend in part on state implementation regulations that
have not been finalized. Consequently,'we are unable to
estimate the ultimate financial impact of che fees in light
of the uncertainty surrounding the methodology that




will be used in calcularing the fees. However, any fees
that are ultimarely assessed could have a material adverse
affect on our financial results. )

In Seprember 2006, the EPA adopted a stricter
NAAQS for particulate matter, We are unable to
determine the impact that complying with the stricter
NAAQS for particulate marrer will have on our financial
results until the states in which our generating facilities
are located adopr plans to meet the new standard.

Hazardous Air Emissions

In March 2005, the EPA finalized the Clean Air
Mercury Rule (CAMR) to reduce the emissions of
mercury from coal-fired facilities through a
market-based cap and trade program. CAMR will affect
all coal or waste coal fired boilers at our generating
facilities.

New Source Review
In connection with its enforcement of the Clean Air
Act’s new source review requirements, in 2000, the EPA
requested information relating o modifications made to
our Brandon Shores, Crane, and Wagner plants located
in Maryland. The EPA also sent similar, but narrower,
information requests to two of our newer Pennsylvania
waste-coal burning plants in which we have an
ownership interest. We responded to the EPA in 2001,
and as of the date of this report the EPA has taken no
further action.

Based on the level of emissions conerol that the
EPA and states are secking in these new source review
enforcement actions, we believe thar marterial additional
costs and penalties could be incurred, and planned
capital expenditures could be accelerated, if the EPA was
successful in any future actions regarding our facilities.

In March 2006, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the
District of Columbia annulled the equipment
replacement rule adopted by the EPA in August 2003,
which established a threshold for determining when
major new source review requirements are triggered. We
believe the Court decision, which was anticipated,
should have minimal effect on us as it maintains the
existing rules for equipment replacement. However, we
anticipate thart the EPA will continue to examine the
existing equipment replacement rules and may again
propose new rules. In addition, the U.S. Supreme Court
has agreed to hear a case, not invelving us, relating to
the new soutce review requirements. We cannor predict
the timing or outcome of any future EPA regulatory
action or the outcome of the U.S. Supreme Court
proceeding, or their possible effect on our financial
results. -
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State

Maryland has adopted the Healthy Air Act (HAA} and
the Clean Power Rule (CPR), which establish annual
SO,, NO,, and mercury emission caps for specific coal-
fired units in Maryland, including units located ar chree
of our facilities. The requirements of the' HAA and the
CPR for SO, NO, and mercury emissions are more
stringent and apply sooner than those under CAIR and
CAMR. -

In addition, Pennsylvania has adopted regulations
requiring coal-fired generating facilities located in
Pennsylvania to reduce mercury emissions sooner and 1o
a greater extent than required under CAMR.

Severzl other states in the northeastern U.S.
continue to consider more stringent and earlier SO,
NO,, and mercury emissions reductions than those
required under CAIR or CAMR.

Capital Expenditure Estimates

We expect to incur additional environmental capital
spending as a resulc of complying with the air quality
laws and regulations discussed above. Based on the
information currently available to us abour CAIR,
CAMBR, HAA, and CPR, we will install additional air
emission control equipment at our coal-fired generating
facilities in Maryland and act our co-owned coal-fired
facilities in Pennsylvania o meet air quality standards.
We include in our estimated environmental capiral
requirements capital spending for these projects, which
we expect will be approximately $320 million in 2007,
$470 million in 2008, $290 million in 2009 and

$40 million from 2010-2011.

Our estimates are subject to significant
uncertainties including the timing of any additienal
federal and/or state regulations or legislation, the
implementation timetables for such regulation or
legislation, and the specific amount of emissions
reductions that will be required at our facilities. As a
result, we cannot predict our capital spending or the
scope or timing of these projects with certainty, and the
actual expenditures, scope and timing could differ
significantly from our estimates. In addirion, CAMR is
subject to legal challenges filed by the states and
industry and environmental groups. We cannot predict
the timing or outcome of these challenges, or their
possible effect on our financial results.

We believe that the additional air emission control
equipment we plan to install will meet the emission
reduction requirements under CAIR, CAMR, HAA,
and CPR. If additional emission reductions sall are
required, we will assess our various compliance
alternatives and their related costs, and although we
cannot yer estimate the additional costs we may incur,
such costs could be marerial.




Global Climaie Change

Although uncerrainty remains as to the nature and
timing of greenhouse gas emissions regulation, there is
an increasing likelihood that such regulation will occur
at the federal andfor state level. In the event that
greenhouse gas emissions reduction legislation or
regulations are enacted, we will assess our various
compliance alternatives, which may include instailation
of additional environmental conrrols, modification of
operating schedules or the closure of one or more of our
coal-fired generating facilities, Any compliance costs we
incur could have a material impact en our financial
results. .

The HAA requires that Maryland become a full
participant in the Northeast Regional Greenhouse Gas
Initiacive (RGGI) by June 2007. Under RGGI, it is
expected that affected plants would participate in an
auction to obtain sufficient CO, allowances to support
the level of emissions that result from plant operations.

In addition, California has adopted regularions
requiring our generating facilides in California to
submit greenhouse gas emissions daca to the state, which
the state intends te use to develop a plan to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions.

We continue to evaluate the potential impacr of
the HAA and California CO, emissions requirements
and RGGI participation on our financial results;
however, our compliance costs could be marerial.

Warer Quality

The Clean Warter Act established the basic framework
for federal and state regulation of water pollution
control and requires factliries that discharge waste or
storm warer into the warters of the United States to
obtain permits.

Water Intake Regulations '

In July 2004, the EPA publlshed final rules under the
Clean Water Act that require cooling water intake
structures to reflect the best technology available for
minimizing adverse environmental impacts. We
currently have six facilities affected by the regulation,
The rule allows for a number of compliance options that
will be assessed through 2007, following which we will
determine whether any action is required and whart our
most viable options aré if any action is required. Until
we determine our most viable option under the final
rules, we cannor estimate our complianee costs.
However, the costs associated with the final rules could
be material.

In Janwary 2007, the United States Court of
Appeals for the Second Circuit ruled thar the EPA’s
tule did not properly implement the Clean Water Act
requirements in a number of areas and remanded the
rule to the EPA for reconsideration. At this time, we
cannot predict the timing or outcome of any EPA
regulatory action taken in response to the court’s

decision. However, any such action could impact our
compliance approach, which could have a material effect
on our.financial results,

)

Hazardous and Sofid Waste

We discuss proceedings relating to compliance with the
Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act in Note 12 10
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our coal-fired generating faciliries produce
approximately two and a half million tons of
combustion by-products (“ash”) each year. The EPA has
announced its intention to develop national standards,
cursently scheduled to be proposed in May 2007, to
regulate this material as a non-hazardous waste, and is
developing regulations governing the placement of ash
in landfills, surface impoundments, and sand/gravel
surface mines.

The EPA is also developing regulations for ash
placement in coal mines, which are expected to be
proposed in October 2007. Federal regulation has the
potential to result in additional requirements,
Depending on the scope of any final requirements, our
compliance costs could be material.

As a result of these regulatory proposals, the
remaining ash placement capacity at our current mine
reclamarion site and our current ash generation
projections, we are exploring our options for the
placement of ash, including construcrion of an ash
placement facility. Over the next five years, we estimate
that our capiral expenditures for this project will be
approximately $75 million. Our estimates are subject to
significant uncertainties including the timing of any
regulatory change, its implementation timetable, and
the scope of the final requirements. As a result, we
cannot predict our capital spending or the scope and
timing of this project with cerainty, and the acrual
cxpendltures, scope and timing could differ sngmﬁcamly
from our estimates.

Employees

Constellation Energy and its subsidiaries had
approximarely 9,645 employees at December 31, 2006.
At the Nine Mile Point facility, approximately 515
employees are represented by the International
Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local 97. The labor
contract with this union expires in June 2011, We
believe that our relationship with this union is
satisfacrory, but there can be no assurances thar this will
continue to be the case.




Hem 1A. Risk Factors

You should consider carefully the following risks, along
with the other information contained in this Form 10-K.
The risks and uncersainties described below are not the only
ones that may affect us. Additional risks and uncertainties
also may adversely affect our business and operations
including those discussed in Item 7. Management's
Discussion and Analysis. If any of the following events
actually occur, our business and financial results could be
materially adversely affected.

Our merchant energy business may incur
substantlal costs and liabilities and be exposed
to price volatility and counterparty performance
risk as a result of its participation in the
wholesale energy markets.

We purchase and sell power and fuel in markets exposed
to significant risks, including price volatility for
elecrricity and fuel and the credit risks of counterparties
with which we enter into trades.

We use various hedging strategies in an effort to
mitigate many of these risks. However, hedging
transactions do not guard against all risks and are not
always effecrive, as they are based upon predictions
about future market conditions. The inability or failure
to effectively hedge assets or fuel or power positions
against changes in commodity prices, interest rates,
councerparty credit risk or other risk measures could
significandy impair furure financial results.

Exposure to electricity price volatility. We buy and
sell electricity in both the wholesale bilateral markets
and spot markets, which exposes us to the risks of rising
and falling prices in those markets, and our cash flows
may vary accordingly. At any given time, the wholesale
spot market price of electricity for each hour is generally
determined by the cost of supplying the next unit of
electricity to the market during that hour. This is highly
dependent on the regional generation market. In many
cases, the next unit of electricity supplied would be
supplied from generating stations fueled by fossil fuels,
primarily coal, natural gas and oil. Consequently, the
open marker wholesale price of electricity may reflect

- the cost of coal, natural gas or oil plus the cost to
convert the fuel to electricity and an appropriate return
on capital. Therefore, changes in the supply and cost of
coal, natural gas and oil may impact the open market
wholesale price of electricity.

A portion of our power generation facilities
operates wholly or partially without long-term power
purchase agreements. As a result, power from these
facilities is sold on the spot market or on a short-term -
contractual basis, which if not fully hedged may affect
the volatility of our financial results.

Exposure to fuel cost volarility.  Currently, our
power generation facilities purchase a portion of their
fuel through short-term contracts or on the spot market.
Fuel prices can be volatile, and the price that can be
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obrained for power produced from such fuel may not
change at the same rate as fuel costs. As a result, fuel
price increases may adversely affect our financial results.

Exposure to counterparty performance.  Our
merchant energy business enters into trades and hedging
transactions with numerous third parties (commonly
referred to as “counterparties”). In such arrangements,
we are exposed to the credit risks of our counterparties
and the risk that one or more counterparties may fail to
perform their obligations to make payments or deliver
fuel or power. These risks are enhanced during periods
of commodity price fluctuations, such as is currently
being experienced in the United States. Defaults by
suppliers and other counterparties may adversely affect
our financial results.

The operation of power generation facilities,
including nuclear facilities, involves significant
risks that could adversely affect our financial
results.

We own and operate a number of power generation
facilities. The operation of power generation facilides
involves many risks, including start up risks, breakdown
ot failure of equipment, transmission lines, substations
ot pipelines, use of new technology, the dependence on
a specific fuel source, including the transporeation of
fuel, or the impact of unusual or adverse weather
conditions (including natural disasters such as
hurricanes) or environmental compliance, as well as the
risk of performance below expected or contracted levels :
of ourpur or efficiency. This could resulc in lost ‘
revenues and/or increased expenses. Insurance,
warranties, or performance guarantees may not cover
any or all of the lost revenues or increased expenses,
including the cost of replacement power. A portion of
our generation facilities were constructed many years
ago. Older generating equipment may require
significant capiral expenditures to keep it operating at
peak efficiency. This equipment is also likely 1o require
periodic upgrading and improvement. Breakdown or
failute of one of our operating facilities may prevent the
facility from performing under applicable power sales
agreements which, in certain situations, could result in
termination of the agreement or incurring a liabiliry for
liquidated damages. :

We are subject to numerous environmental laws
and regulations that require capital expenditures,
increase our cost of operations and may expose
us to environmental liabilities.

We.are subject to extensive federal, state, and local
environmental statutes, rules and regulations relaring to
air quality, water quality, waste management, wildlife
protection, the management of natural resources, and
the protection of human health and safety that could,
among other things, require additional pollution control
equipment, limit the use of certain fuels, restrict the




output of certain facilities, or otherwise increase costs.
Significant capital expenditures, operating and other
costs are associated with compliance with environmental
requirements, and these expenditures and costs could
become even more significant in the future as a result of
regulatory changes.

For example, the State of Maryland has enacted
the Healthy Air Act and the Clean Power Rule, which
will require, among other things, more rapid emission
reductions by Maryland power generation facilities
(including those owned and operated by us) than is
required by current federal laws and regulations,

We are subject to lability under environmental
laws for the costs of remediating environmental
contamination. Remediation activities include the
cleanup of current facilities and former properties,
including manufactured gas plant operations and offsite
waste disposal facilities. The remediation costs could be
significantly higher than the liabilities recorded by us.
Also, our subsidiaries are currently involved in
proceedings relating ta sites where hazardous substances
have been released and may be subject te additional
proceedings in the future.

We are subject to legal proceedings by individuals
alleging injury from exposure to hazardous substances
and could incur liabilities that may be marerial to our
financial results, Additional proceedings could be filed
against us in the furure.

We may also be required to assume environmenral
liabilities in connection with future acquisitions. As a
result, we may be lable for significant environmental
remediation costs and other liabilities arising from the
operation of acquired facilities, which may adversely
affect our financial results.

Our generation business may incur substantial
costs and liabilitles due to its ownership and
operation of nuclear generating faclilities.

We own and operate nuclear.power plants. Ownership
and operation of these plants exposes us to risks in
addition to those that result from owning and operating
non-nuclear power generation facilities. These risks
include normal operating risks for a nuclear facility and
the risks of 2 nuclear accidenr.

Nuclear Operating Risks,  The ownership and
operation of nuclear generating facilities involve routine
operating risks, including:

# mechanical or structural problems;

¢ inadequacy or lapses in maintenance protocols;

# impairment of reactor operation and safety
systems due to human or mechanical error;

# costs of storage, handling and disposal of
nuclear materials, including the avatlability or
unavailability of a permanent repository for
spent nuclear fuel;

19

# regulatory actions, including shut down of units
because of public safety concerns, whéther at
our plants or other nuclear operarors;

# limitations on the amounts and types of
insurance coverage commercially available;

¢ uncerratnuies regarding both technological and
financial aspects of decommissioning nuclear
generating facilities; and

# cnvironmental risks, including risks associated
with changes in environmental legal
requirements.

Nuclear Accident Risks.  In the event of a nuclear
accident, the cost of property damage and other
expenses incurred may exceed our insurance coverage
available from both private sources and an indusery
retrospective payment plan, In addicion, in the event of
an accident at one of our or another participating
insured party’s nuclear plants, we could be assessed
retrospective insurance premiums (because all nuclear
plant operators contribute to a nationwide catastrophic
insurance fund). Uninsured logses or the payment of
retrospective insurance premiums could each have a
material adverse effect on our financial results.

We often rely on single suppliers and at times on
single customers, exposing us to slgnificant
financial risks If either should fail to perform
their obligations. .

We often rely on a single supplier for the provision of
fuel, warter, and other services required for operation of a
facility, and at times, we rely on a single customer or a
few customers 1o purchase all or a significant portion of
a facility’s ourpur, in some cases under long-term
agreements that provide the support for any project debrt
used 1o finance the facility. The failure of any one
customer or supplier to fulfill its concractual obligations
could negatively impacr our financial results.
Consequently, our financial performance depends on
the continued performance by customers and suppliers
of their obligations under these long-term agreements.

Reduced liquidity In the markets in which we
operate could impair our ability to appropriately
manage the risks of our operations.

We are an active participant in energy markets through
our competitive cnergy businesses. The liquidity of
regional energy markets is an important factor in our
ability to manage risks in these operations. Over the past
several years, several merchant energy businesses have
ended or significantly reduced their activities as a resule
of several factors including government investigations,
changes in market design and deteriorating credit
quality. As a result, several regional energy markers
experienced a significant decline in liquidity. While
there have been recent improvements in liquidity, future
reductions in liquidity may restrict our ability to

manage our risks, and could impact our financial resulis.




We may not fully hedge our generation assets,
competitive supply or other market positions
against changes in commodity prices, and our
hedging procedures may not work as planned.
To lower our financial exposure related o commodity
price fluctuations, we routinely enter into contracts to
hedge a portion of our purchase and sale commitments,
weather positions, fuel requirements, inventories of
natural gas, coal and other commodities, and
competitive supply. As part of this strategy, we routinely
utilize fixed-price forward physical purchase and sales
contraces, futures, financial swaps, and option contracts
traded in the over-the-counter markets ot on exchanges.
However, we may net cover the entire exposure of our
assets or positions to market price volatility and the
coverage will vary over time. Fluctuating commodity

prices may negatively impact our financial results to the

extent we have unhedged positions.

In addition, daily value at risk and stop loss limits
and liquidity guidelines are based on historical price
movements. If prices significantly or persistently deviate
from historical prices, the limits may not prorect us
from significant losses.

Our risk management policies and procedures may
not always work as planned. As a result of these and
other facrors, we cannot predict with precision the
impact that risk management decisions may have on our
financial results.

The use of derivative contracts by us in the
normal course of business could result in
financial losses that negatively impact our
financial results. -

We use derivative instruments, such as swaps, options,
fucures and forwards, to manage our commodiry and
financial market risks and to engage in trading activities.
We could recognize financial losses as a result of
volarility in the market values of these contracts or if a
counterparty fails to perform.

In the absence of actively quoted market prices
and pricing information from external sources, the
valuation of these derivative instruments involves
management’s judgment or use of estimates. As a result,
changes in the underlying assumptions or use of
alternative valuation methods could affect the reported
fair value of these contracts.

We operate in deregulated segments of the
electric and gas industries created by federal

and state restructuring initiatives. If competitive
restructuring of the electric or gas Industries is
reversed, discontinued, restricted or delayed, our
business prospects and financial results could be
materially adversely affected.

The regulatory environment applicable to the electric
and nacural gas industries has undergone substantial
changes as a result of restructuring initiatives at both the
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'state and federal levels. These iniciatives have had a

significant impact on the nature of the electric and
natural gas industries and the manner in which their

" parricipants conduct their businesses. We have targeted

the competitive segments of the electric and natural gas
industries created by these initiatives.

Due to recent events in the energy markets, energy
companies have been under increased scrutiny by stace
legtslatures, regulatory bodies, capital markets and credit
rating agencies. This increased scrutiny could lead ro
substantial changes in laws and regulations affecting us,
including modifications to the auction processes in
competitive markets and new accounting standards that
could change the way we are required to record
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities. The Maryland
energy legislation enacted in June 2006 is one example
of how these laws can change. We cannot predict the
future development of regulation in these markets or the
ultimate effect thar this changing regulatory
environment will have on our business.

If competitive restructuring of the electric and
natural gas markets is reversed, discontinued, restriceed
or delayed, or if the recently enacted Maryland energy
legislation is implemented or inrerpreted in 2 manner
adverse to us, our business prospects and financial
results could be negatively impacted.

Qur financial results may be harmed if
transportation and transmission availability is
limited or unreliable.

We have business operations throughout the

United Scates and internationally. As a resule, we
depend on transportation and transmission facilities
owned and operated by utilities and other energy
companies to deliver the electricity, coal, and natural gas
we sell to the wholesale and retail markers, as well as the
natural gas and coal we purchase to supply some of our
generaring facilittes. If transportation or transmission is
disrupred, or transportation or transmission capacity is
inadequate, our abiliry to sell and deliver products may
be hindered. Such disruptions could also hinder our
ability to provide elecericity or natural gas to our retail
electric and gas customers and may materially advcrscly
affect our financial results. - o

Our merchant energy business has contractual
obligations to certain customers to provide full
requirements service, which makes it difficult to
predict and plan for load requirements and may
result in Increased operating costs to our
business.

Qur merchant energy business has contractual
obligations to certain customers o supply full
requirements service to such cuscomers to satisfy all or a
portion of their energy requirements. The uncertainty
regarding the amount of load that our merchant energy
business must be prepared to supply to customers may




increase our operating costs. A significant under- or
over-estimation of load requirements could result in our
merchant energy business not having enough or having
too much power to cover its load obligation, in which
case it would be required to buy or sell power from or to
third parties at prevailing market prices. Those prices
may not be favorable and thus could increase our
operaring costs.

Our financial results may fluctuate on a seasonal
and quarterly basis or as a result of severe
weather. -

Qur business is affected by weather conditions. Gur
overall operating results may fluctuate substantially on a
seasonal basis, and the pattern of this fluctuation may
change depending on the nature and location of any
facility we acquire and the terms of any contracr to
which we become a party. Weather conditions directly
influence the demand for electricity and natural gas and
affect che price of energy commodiries.

Generally, demand for electricity peaks in winter
and summer and demand for gas peaks in the winter.
Typically, when winters are warmer than expected and
summers are cooler than expected, demand for energy is
lower, resulting in less electric and gas consumption
than forecasted. Depending on prevailing markert prices
for electricity and gas, these and other unexpected
conditions may reduce our revenues and results of
operations. First and third quarter financial results, in
particular, are substantially dependent on weather
conditions, and may make period comparisons less
relevant. Severe weather can affect our results of
operation. 3

Severe weather can be destructive, causing outages
and/or property damage. This could require us to incur
additional costs. Catastrophic weather, such as
hurricanes, could impact our or our customers’
operating facilities, communication systems and
technology. Unfavorable weather conditions may have a
material adverse effect on our financial results.

A downgrade in our credit ratings could
negatively affect our abllity to access capital
and/or operate our wholesale and retall
competitive supply businesses.

We rely on access to capiral markets as a source of
liquidiry for capital requirements not satisfied by
operating cash flows. If any of our credit ratings were to
be downgraded, especially below investment grade, our
ability to raise capital on favorable terms, including the
commercial paper markets, could be hindered, and our
borrowing costs would increase. Additionally, the
business prospects of our wholesale and rerail

competitive supply businesses, which in many cases rely

on the creditworthiness of Constellation Energy, would
be negatively impacted. Some of the factors that affect
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credit ratings are cash flows, liquidiry, and the amount
of debt as a component of total capiralization.

In addirion, the ability of BGE to recover its costs
of providing service and timing of BGE's recovery could
have a material adverse effect on the credit ratings of

BGE and us.

We, and BGE in particular, are subject to
extensive state and federal regulation that could
affect our operations and costs.

We are subject to regulation by federal and state
governmental entities, including the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission, the Nuclear Regulatory
Commission, the Maryland PSC and the uciliry
commissions of other states in which we have
operations. In addition, changing governmental policies
and regulatory actions can have a significant impacr on
us. Regularions can affect, for example, allowed rates of
return, requirements for plant operations, recovery of
costs, limitations on dividend payments and the
regulation or re-regulation of wholesale and retail
competition {including bur not limired 1o retail choice
and transmission costs). :

BGE's distribution rates are subject to regulation
by the Maryland PSC, and such rates are effective until
new rates are approved. In addition, limited categories
of costs are recovered through adjustment charges that
are periodically reset to reflect current and projected
costs. Inability to recover material costs not included in
rates or adjustment clauses, including increases in
uncollectible customer accounts that may result from
higher gas or electric costs, could have an adverse effect
on our, or BGE’s, cash flow and financial position.

Energy legislation enacted in Maryland in
June 2006 mandates rate stabilization that requires BGE
to defer the recovery of a portion of its purchased power
costs and to phase in the recovery of these costs over a
period of years. In additon, the legislation mandates
that the Maryland PSC conducr a comprehensive review
of Maryland’s deregulared electticity market. Because
this energy legislation is still in the process of being
implemented and interpreted, we do not know the final
impact such legislation will have on ‘our, or BGE’s,
business. .

The regulatory process may restrict our ability to
grow earnings in certain parts of our business, cause
delays in or affect business planning and eransactions
and increase our, or BGE’s, costs.

Poor market performance will affect our bhenefit
ptan and nuclear decommissioning trust asset
values, which may adversely affect our liquidity
and financlal resuits.

Qur qualified pension obligations have exceeded the fair
value of our plan assets since 2001. At December 31,
20006, our qualified pension obligations were
approximately $405 million greater than the fair value




of our plan assets. The performance of the capital
markets will affect the value of the assets that are held in
trust to satisfy our future obligations under our qualified
pension plans. A decline in the market value of those
assets may increase our funding requirements for these
obligations, which may adversely affect our liquidity and
financial results.

We are required to maintain funded trusts to
satisfy our future obligations to decommission our
nuclear power plants. A decline in the market vatue of
those assets due ro poor investment performance or
other factors may increase our funding requirements for
these obligations, which may have an adverse effect on
our liquidity and financial results.

War and threats of terrorism and catastrophic
events that could result from terrorism may
impact our results of operations in unpredictable
ways.

We cannot predict the impact that any future terrorist
artacks may have on the energy industry in general and
on our business in particular. In addition, any
retaliatory military strikes or sustained military
campaign may affect our operations in unpredicrable
ways, such as changes in insurance markets and
disruptions of fuel supplies and markets, particularly oil.
The possibility alone that infrastructure facilities, such
as electric generation, electric and gas transmission and
distriburion facilities, would be direct targets of, or
indirect casualties of, an act of terror may affect our
opetations.

Such activity may have an adverse effect on the
United States economy in general. A lower level of
economic activity might result in a decline in energy
consumption, which may adversely affect our financial
results or restrict our future growth. Instability in the
financial markets as a resulr of terrorism or war may
affect our stack price and our ability to raise capital.

We are subject to employee workforce factors
‘that could affect our businesses and finahcial
results.

We are subject to employee workforce factors, including
loss or retirement of key executives or other employees,
availability of qualified personnel, collective bargaining
agreements with union employees, and work

stoppage that could affect our financial results. In
particular, our competitive energy businesses are
dependent, in part, on recruiting and retaining
personnel with experience in sophisticated energy
transactions and the functioning of complex wholesale
markets.
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Our ability to successfully identity, complete and
integrate acquisitions is subject to significant
risks, including the effect of increased
competition.

We are likely to encounter significant competition for
acquisition opportunities that may become available. In
addition, we may be unable to identify attractive
acquisition opportunities at favorable prices and to
successfully and timely complete and integrate them.

ltem 2. Properties

Constellation Energy’s corporate offices occupy
approximately 106,000 square feet of leased office space
in Baltimore, Maryland. The corporate offices for most
of our merchant energy business occupy approximately .
268,000 square feet of leased office space in another
building in Baltimore, Maryland. We describe our
electric generation properties on the next page. We also
have leases for other offices and services located in the
Baltimore metropolitan region, and for various real
property and facilities relating to our generation
projects.

BGE owns its principal headquarters building
located in downtown Baltimore. In addition, BGE owns
propane air and liquefied natural gas facilities as
discussed in ftem 1. Business—Guas Business section.

BGE also has rights-of-way to maintain 26-inch
natural gas mains across certain Baltimore City-owned
property (principally parks) which expired in 2004.
BGE is in the process of renewing the rights-of-way
with Baltimere City for an additional 25 years. The
expiration of the rights-of-way does nor affect BGE's
ability to use the rights-of-way during the renewal
PI'OCCSS.

BGE has electric transmission and electric and gas
distribution lines locared:

¢ in public streets and highways pursuant ro

franchises, and

# on rights-of-way secured for the most pare by

grants from owners of the properry.

All of BGE’s property is subject to the lien of
BGE's mortgage securing its mortgage bonds. The
generation facilities transferred to our subsidiaries by
BGE on July 1, 2000, along with the stock we own in
certain of our subsidiaries, are subject to the lien of
BGE'’s mortgage.

We believe we have satisfactory title to our power
project facilities in accordance with standards generally
accepted in the energy industry, subject to exceptions,
which in our opinion, would not have a material adverse
effect on the use or value of the facilities.

Our merchant energy business owns several
natural gas producing properties. We also lease office
space throughout North America, and in the United
Kingdom and Australia to support our merchant energy
business.




.

The following table describes our generating faciliies:

e % Capacity
Plant Location Capacity (MW) QOwned Owned (MW) Primary Fuel
(at December 31, 2006)

Mid-Alansic Region
Calvert Cliffs Calvert Co., MD 1,735 100.0 1,735 Nuclear
Brandon Shores Anne Arundel Co., MD 1,286 100.0 1,286 Coal
H. A, Wagner Anne Arundel Co., MD 963 100.0 963 Coal/Oil/Gas
C. P. Crane Baltimore Co., MD 399 100.0 399 Qil/Coal
Keystone Armstrong and Indiana Cos., PA 1,706 21.0 358 {A) Coal
Conemaugh Indiana Co., PA 1,714 10.6 181 {A) Coal
Perryman Harford Co., MD 355 100.0 355 Qil/Gas
Riverside Baltimore Co., MD 200 100.0 200 OiliGas
Handsome Lake Rockland Twp, PA 250 100.0 - 250 Gas
Notch CIliff Baltimore Co., MD 120 100.0 120 Gas
Westport Baltimore City, MD 116 100.0 116 Gas
Philadelphia Road Balimore City, MD 64 100.0 64 il

. Safe Harbor Safe Harbor, PA 417 66.7 278 Hydro

Total Mid-Atlantic Region 9,325 6,305

Planis with Power Purchase Agreements
Nine Mile Peint Unit | Scriba, NY 620 100.0 620 Nuclear
Nine Mile Point Unit 2 Scriba, NY 1,138 82.0 933 Nuclear
R.E. Ginna Ontario, NY 581 100.0 581 Nuclear

Total Planss with Power Purchase Agreements 2,339 m

Orher
Panther Creck Nesquchoning, PA 80 50.0 40 Waste Coal
Colver Colver Township, PA 104 25.0 26 Waste Coal
Sunnyside Sunnyside, UT 52 50.0 26 Waste Coal
ACE Trona, CA 102 31.1 32 Coal
Jasmin Kern Co., CA 34 50.0 17 Coal
POSO Kern Co., CA 34 500 17 Coal
Mammoth Lakes G-1 Mammoth Lakes, CA 6 50.0 3 Geothermal
Mammoth Lakes G-2 Mammorth Lakes, CA 12 50.0 G Geothermal
Mammoth Lakes G-3 Mammoth Lakes, CA 12 50.0 6 Geothermal
Soda Lake 1 Fallon, NV 4 50.0 2 Geothermal
Soda Lake I1 Fallon, NV 10 50.0 5 Geothermal
Rocklin Placer Co., CA 24 50.0 12 Biomass
Fresno Fresno, CA 24 50.0 12 Biomass
Chinese Station Jamestown, CA 22 45.0 10 Biomass
Malacha Muck valley, CA 32 50.0 16 Hydro
SEGS IV Kramer Junction, CA- 33 12.2 4 Solar
SEGS V Kratner Junc[ion, CA 24 4.2 1 Solar

- SEGS VI Kramer Junction, CA 34 - 88, e 3 * Solar

Total Other 643 238

Total Generating Facilities 12,307 8_,6% .

(A} Reflects our proportonate intetest in and entitlement to capacity from Keystone and Conemaugh, which include

2 MW of diesel capacity for Keystone and 1 MW of diesel capacity for Conemaugh.




The following table describes our processing facilities:

: % : Primary
Plant Location Owned Fuel
AIC Fuels Hazelton, PA 50.0 Waste Coal Processing
Gary PCI Gaty, IN 24.5 Coal Processing
Low Country Cross, 5C 99.0 Synfuel Processing
PC Synfuel VA1 Nerton, VA 16.7 Synfuel Processing
PC Synfuel WV | Chelyan, WV 16.7 Synfuel Processing
PC Synfuel WV 11 Mount Storm, WV 16.7 Synfuel Processing
PC Synfuel WV 111 Chester, VA 16.7 Synfuel Processing

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
We discuss our legal proceedings in Note 12 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders .
On December 8, 2006, we held our annual meeting of shareholders. At that meeting, the following matters were voted
upon:

1. Class [ Directors nominated by Constellation Energy were elected to serve for a term to expire in 2009 and until
their successors are duly elected and qualified as follows:

COMMON SHARES CAST:

. For Withheld
Douglas L. Becker 119,241,432 14,048,574
Edward A. Crocke 122,520,333 10,769,673
Mayo A. Shattuck 111 128,640,389 4,649,617

Michzel D. Sullivan _ 119,327,025 13,962,981

All other directors whaose term of office continued after the date of this meeting are:

James T. Brady Freeman A. Hrabowski, 111
James R, Curtiss Nancy Lampton

Yves C. de Balmann ' Robert ]. Lawless
' Lynn M. Martin

2. The ratification of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as independent registered public accounting firm for 2006 was
approved. With respect to holders of common stock, the number of affirmative votes cast was 130,005,402, the
number of votes cast against was 1,846,861, and the number of abstentions was 1,437,743.

3.  The shareholder proposal requesting Constellation Energy to declassify the Board of Directors was approved.
With respect to holders of commaon stock, the number of affirmative votes cast was 76,259,034, the number of
" votes cast against was 7,688,559, the number of abstentions was 26,748,840, and the number of broker non-votes
was 22,593,573,
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

Other Offices or Positions Held

Name EIE * Present Office During Past Five Years
Mayo A. Shattuck 111 52 Chairman of the Board of None. -

Constellation Energy (since

July 2002), President and Chief
Executive Officer of Constellation
Energy (since November 2001); and
Chairman of the Board of BGE

(since July 2002)
E. Follin Smith 47 Executive Vice President {since Senior Vice President—Constellation
January 2004), Chief Financial Energy.

Officer (since June 2001) and Chief
Administrative Officer (since
January 2004) of Constellation
Energy; and Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer of
Baltimore Gas and Electric
Company {(since January 2002)

Thomas V. Brooks 44 Chairman of Constellacion Energy President and Chief Executive Qfficer—
Commodities Group, Inc. (since Constellation Energy Commodities
August 2005); and Vice Chairman Group, Inc.

(since August 2005) and Execurive
Vice President {since January 2004)
of Constellation Energy

Michael J, Wallace 59  President (since January 2002) and None.
) Chief Execurive Officer (since
May 2005) of Consteflation
Generation Group, LLC; and
Executive Vice President of
Constellation Energy (since

January 2004)
Thomas-F. Brady 57 - Executive Vice President, Corporate Senior Vice President, Corporate Strategy
Strategy and Retail Competitive and Development—Constellation
Supply of Constellation Energy Energy; and Vice President, Corporate
{since January 2004) Strategy and Development—
Constellation Energy. ,
Irving B. Yoskowirz Gl Execurtive Vice President and General Senior Counsel—Crowell 8 Moring (law
; Counsel of Consteilation Energy firm); and Sentor Partner—Global
s 4. Lfsince June 2005) 0o Technology Partners, LLC {investment
' banking and consulting firm).
Felix J. Dawson 39 Senior Vice President of Constellation  Co-Chief Commercial Officer-—
Energy (since October 2006); and Constellarion Energy Commodities
Co-President and Co-Chief Group, [nc; and Managing
Executive Officer of Constellacion Director—Constellation Energy
Energy Commodities Group, Inc. Commodities Group, Inc.
(since August 2005); President and
Chief Executive Officer of
Constellation Energy Pareners LLC
{since May 2006)
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Name

George E. Persky

Kenneth W.
DeFontes, Jr.

Paul J. Allen

John R. Collins

Beth S. Perlman

Mare L. Ugol

56

55

49

46

48

Present Office

Senior Vice President of Constellation
Energy (since Qctober 2006); and
Co-President and Co-Chief
Executive Officer of Constellation
Energy Commodities Group, Inc.

{since Augusc 2005)

President and Chief Executive Officer
of Baltimore Gas and Electric
Company and Senior Vice President
of Constellation Energy {since

Qcrober 2004)

Senior Vice President, Corporate
Affairs of Constellation Energy

(since January 2004)

Senior Vice President (since

January 2004) and Chief Risk
Officer of Constellation Energy -
(since December 2001); and
member of Board of Managers of
Constellation Energy Partners LLC

(since September 2006)

Senior Vice President (since

January 2004) and Chi
Information Officer of

Constellation Energy (since

April 2002)

Senior Vice President, Human
Resources of Constellation Energy

(since January 2004)

ef

Other Offices or Positions Held
During Past Five Years

Co-Chief Commercial Officer—
Constellation Energy Commodities
Group, Inc; and Managing
Director—Constellation Energy
Commodities Group, Inc.

Vice President, Electric Transmission and
Distribution—BGE.

Vice President, Corporate Affairs—
Constellation Energy.

Vice President—Constellation Energy.

Vice Prestdent—Constellation Energy;
and Vice President, Technology—
Enron Corporation.

Vice President, Human Resources—
Consrellarion Energy; and Senior Vice
President, Human Resources and
Administration—Tellabs, Inc.

Officers are elected by, and hold office at the will of, the Board of Directors and do not serve a “term of office” as
such. There is no arrangement or understanding between any director or officer and any other person pursuant 1o
which the director or officer was selected.
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PART

Htem 5. Market for Registrant’s Comman Equity ar(nd Related Shareholder Matters

Stock Trading
Constellation Energy’s common stock is traded under
the ticker symbol CEG. It is listed on the New York and
Chicago stock exchanges.

As of January 31, 2007, there were 41,680
common sharcholders of record.

Dividend Policy

Constellation Energy pays dividends on its common
stock after irs Board of Directors declares them. There
are no contractual limitations on Constellation Energy
paying common stock dividends.

Dividends have been paid continuously since 1910
on the common stock of Constellation Energy, BGE,
and their predecessors. Future dividends depend upen
future earningg, our financial condition, and other
facrors.

In January 2007, we announced an increase in our
quarterly dividend from $0.3775 to $0.435 per share

payable April 2, 2007 to holders of record on March 12,
2007. This is equivalent to an annual rate of $1.74 per
share.

Quarterly dividends were declared on our
common stock during 2006 and 2005 in the amounts
set forth below.

BGE pays dividends on its common stock after its
Board of Directors declares them. There are no
contractual limitations on BGE paying common stock
dividends unless:

¢ BGE elects to defer interest payments on the

6.20% Deferrable Interest Subordinated
Debentures due 2043, and any deferred interest
remains unpaid; or

# any dividends (and any redemption payments)

due on BGE's preference stock have not been
paid.

Common Stock Dividends and Price Ranges

2006 2005

Dividend Price Dividend Price

Declared High Low Declared High Low
First Quarter. ...............ociiian. _$0.3775  $60.55 $54.01 $0.335  $53.55  $43.01
Second Quaster ... ... ... .o .. 0.3775 55.68 50.55 0.335 57.91 50.36
Third Quarter ............... ... . ... 0.3775 60.79 53.70 0.335 62.09 56.50
Fourch Quarter. .. ....................... 0.3775 70.20 59.00 0.335 62.60 50.40
Total. o oo $ 151 $1.340

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
The following table presents shares surrendered by employees to exercise stock options and ro satisfy tax withholding
obligarions on vested restricted stock and stock option exercises.

Total Number
of Shares Maximum Number
Purchased as of Shares that
Part of Publicly May Yet Be
Total Number Announced Purchased Under
of Shares Average Price Plans or the Plans and
Period Purchased Paid for Shares Programs Programs
Ocrober 1 — October 31, 2006 565 $60.43 — —
November 1 — November 30, 2006 — — — —
December 1 — December 31, 2006 2,483 68.61 — —
Total 3,048 $67.09 — —

27




Item 6. Selected Financlal Data
Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

) 2006 12005 2004 2003 2002"
(In millions, except per share amounts)
Summary of Operations
Total Revenues $19,284.9 $16,968.3 $12,127.2 $ 9,342.8 $ 4,771.6
Total Expenses 18,025.2 16,023.8 11,209.1 8,395.5 3,711.5
Gain on Sale of Gas-Fired Plants 73.8 — — — —
Income From Operations 1,333.5 944.5 918.1 947.3 1,060.1
Gain on Initial Public Offering of CEP LLC 28.7 — — f— —
Other Income 66.1 , 65.5 25.5 20.6 33.8
Fixed Charges 328.7 310.2 320.8 336.3 277.3
Income Before Income Taxes 1,099.6 699.8 616.8 631.6 816.6
Income Taxes 351.0 163.9 118.4 222.2 301.2
Income from Conrinuing Operations and Before
Cumularive Effects of Changes in Accounting )
Principles’ 748.6 535.9 498.4 409.4 515.4
Income from Discontinued Operations, Net of
Income Taxes . 187.8 944 . 41.3 66.3 10.2
Cumulative Effects of Changes in Accounting
Principles, Net of Income Taxes — (7.2) — {198.4) —
Net Income $ 936.4 $  623.1 $ 5397 $ 2773 $ 5256
Earnings Per Common Share from Continuing :
Operations and Before Cumulative Effects of
Changes in Accounting Principles Assuming
Dilution $ 4.12 $ 2.98 $ 2.88 3 2.45 $ 3,14
Income from Discontinued Operations ' 1.04 0.53 0.24 0.40 0.06
Cumulative Effects of Changes in Accounting
Principles — (0.04) — (1.19) —
Earnings Per Common Share Assuming Dilution $ 5.16 3 3.47 $ 3.12 $ 1.66 $ 3.20
Dividends Declared Per Common Share $ 1.51 5 1.34 3 1.14 $ 1.04 $ 096
Summary of Financial Condition ‘ ; . :
Total Assets —_— $21,801.6 $21,473.9 $17,347.1 $15,593.0 $14,943.3
Current Porrion of Long-Term Debt $ 8788 $ 4913 $ 480.4 3 3432 $ 4262
Capitalization :
Long-Term Debt ) $ 4,222.3 $ 43693 $ 4,813.2 $ 5,039.2 $ 46139
Minority Intetests 94.5 22.4 90.9 113.4 105.3
Preference Stock Not Subject o Mandatory .
Redemption 190.0 190.0 190.0 190.0 150.0
Common Shareholders’ Equiry 4,609.3 4,915.5 4,726.9 4,140.5 3,862.3
Toral Capitalization $ 9,116.1 $ 9,497.2 $ 9,821.0 $ 9,483.1 $ 8,771.5
Financial Statistics at Year End °
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 4.05 3.04 271 2.69 3.31
Book Value Per Share of Common Stock $ 2554 $ 2757 $ 26381 $ .24.68 $ 2344

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified 1o conform with the current year’s presentation.

(1) Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002 include $255.5 million of gains recognized on the sale of our outstanding shares

of Orion Power Holdings, Inc.

We discuss items that affect comparability berween years, including acquisitions and dispositions, accounting changes and other

items, in Jtem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis.
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Baltimore Gas and Electric Compa'ny'and Subsidiaries

2002

2006 2005 2004 2003
\ ' {In millions)
Summary of Operations .
Tortal Revenues $3,015.4 $3,009.3 $2,724.7 $2.,647.6 $2,547.3
Total Expenses 2,646.3 2,612.8 2,353.3 2,262.6 - 2,181.0
Income From Operations 369.1 396.5 371.4 385.0 366.3
Other lncome {Expense) 6.0 5.9 {6.4) (5.4) 10.7
Fixed Charges 102.6 93.5 96.2 111.2 140.6
Income Before Income Taxes 2725 308.9 268.8 268.4 236.4
Income Taxes 102.2 119.9 102.5 105.2 93.3
Net Income 170.3 189.0 166.3 163.2 143.1
Preference Stock Dividends 13.2 13.2 - 132 13.2 13.2
Earnings Applicable to Common Stock $ 157.1 $ 1758 $ 153.1 $§ 1500 § 1299
Summary of Financial Condition
Toral Assets _ $5,140.7 $4,742.1 $4,662.9 $4,706.6 $4,779.9
Current Portion of Long-Term Debr $ 258.3 $ 469.6 $ 165.9 $ 330.6 $ 420.7
Capiralization
Eong-Term Debt $1,480.5 $1,015.1 $1,359.5 $1.343.7 $1,499.1
Minority Interest 16.7 18.3 18.7 18.9 19.4
Preference Stock Not Subject to Mandartory )
Redemption 190.0 190.0 190.0 190.0 “190.0
Common Shareholder’s Equiry 1,651.5 1,622.5 1,566.0 1,487.7 1,461.7
Total Capitalization $3,338.7 $7,845.9 $3,134.2 $3,040.3 $3,170.2
Financial Statistics at Year End
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 3.60 4.22 3.75 3.36 2.66
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred .
and Preference Stock Dividends 2.99 3.45 3.08 2.82 2.31
1
Vo P et : a - ISR
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ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Introduction and Overview

Constellation Energy Group, Inc. (Constellation Energy} is an

energy company that conducts its business through various

subsidiaries including 2 merchant energy business and Baltimore

Gas and Electric Company (BGE). We describe our operating

segments in Note 3.

This report is a combined report of Constellation Energy
and BGE. References in this report ta “we” and “our” are to
Constellation Energy and its subsidiaries, collectively. References
in this report to the “regulated business(es)” are to BGE. We
discuss our business in more detail in ftem 1. Buséness section and
the risk factors affecring our business in Jrem 1A. Risk Factors
section.

In this discussion and analysis, we will explain the general
financial condition and the results of operations for
Constellation Energy and BGE including:

¢ factors which affect our businesses,

# our earnings and costs in the periods presented,

¢ changes in earnings and costs becween periods,

# sources of earnings,

¢ impact of these factors on our overall financial
condition,

¢ expected future expenditures for capital projects, and

¢ expected sources of cash for future capital expenditures.

As you read this discussion and analysis, refer to our
Consolidated Statements of Income, which present the results of
our operarions for 2006, 2005, and 2004. We analyze and
explain the differences between periods in the specific line items
of our Censolidated Statements of Income.

We have organized our discussion and analysis as follows:

# First, we discuss our strategy.

& We then describe the business environment in which we
operate including how regulation, weather, and other
factors affect our business.

# Next, we discuss our critical accounting policies. These
are the accounting policies that are most important o
both the portrayal of our financial condition and resules
of operations and require management’s most difficult,
subjective or complex judgment.

¢ We highlight significant events that are important to
understanding our results of operations and financial
condition.

| ¢ We then review our results ofopcrauons beginning with
an overview of our total company results, followed by a
more detailed review of those results by operaring
segment.

# We review our financial condidon addressing our sources
and uses of cash, security ratings, capital resources,
capiral requirements, commitments, and off-balance
sheet arrangements.

# We conclude with a discussion of our exposure to
various marker risks.

Strategy

We are pursuing a strategy of providing energy and energy
relared services through our competitive supply activities and
BGE, our regulared utility located in Maryland. Our merchant
energy business focuses on short-term and long-term purchases
and sales of energy, capacity, and related produects to various
customers, including distribution utilities, municipalities,
cooperatives, and industrial, commercial, and governmental
customers.

We obtain this energy through both owned and contracted
supply resources. Qur generation fleet is strategically located in
deregulated markets and includes various fuel types, such as
nuclear, coal, gas, oil, and renewable sources. In addirion o
owning generating facilities, we contrace for power from other
metchant providers, typically through power purchase
agreements. We intend to remain diversified berween regulated
transmission and distribution and competitive supply. We will
use both our owned gcncration and our contracted generation to
support our competmve supply operations.

We are a leading national competitive supplier of energy. In
our wholesale and commercial and industrial rerail markering
activities we are leveraging our recognized expertise in providing
full requirements energy and energy-related services to enter
markets, capture market share, and organically grow these
businesses. Through the application of technology, intellectual
capital, process improvement, and increased scale, we are seeking
to reduce the cost of delivering full requirements energy and
energy related services and managing risk.

We are also responding proactively to customer needs by
expanding the vatiety of products we offer. Our wholesale
competitive supply activities include a growing operation that
markets physical energy products and risk management and
logistics services to generators, distributors, producers of coal,
natural gas and fuel oil, and other consumers.

We trade energy and energy-related commodiries and
deploy risk capiral in the management of our portfolio in order
to earn additional returns. These activities are managed through
daily value at risk and stop loss limits and liquidity guidelines.

Within our rerail competitive supply activities, we are
marketing a broader array of products and expanding our
markets. Over time, we may consider integrating the sale of
electricity and natural gas to provide one energy. procuremeitt
solution for our customers. -

Collectively, the i mtcgrat:on of owned and contracted
electric generation assers with origination,-fuel procurement, and
risk management expertise, allows our merchant energy business
to carn incremental margin and more effectively manage energy
and commodiry price risk over geographic regions and over time.
Our focus is en providing solutions to customers’ energy needs,
and our wholesale marketing, risk management, and trading
operation adds value to our owned and contracted generation
assets by providing national market access, market infrastructure,
real-time marker intelligence, risk managemenc and arbitrage
opportunities, and transmission and transportation expertise.
Generation capacity supports our wholesale marketing, risk
management, and trading operation by providing a source of
reliable power supply.




To achieve our strategic objectives, we expect to continue

to pursue opportunities that expand our access to customers and |

to support our wholesale marketing, risk management, and
trading operation with generation assets that have diversified
geographic, fuel, and dispatch characteristics. We also expect to
grow through buying and selling a greater number of physical
energy products and services to large energy customers. We
expect to achieve operating efficiencies within our competitive
supply operation and our generation fleet by selling more
products through our existing sales force, benefiting from
efficiencies of scale, adding to the capacity of existing plants, and
making our business processes more efficient.

We expect BGE and our other retail energy service
businesses to grow through focused and disciplined expansion
primarily from new customers. At BGE, we are also focused on
enhancing reliabilicy and customer satisfaction.

Customer choice, regulatory change, and energy market
conditions significantly impact our business. In response, we
regularly evaluate our strategies with these goals in mind: to
improve our competitive position, to anticipate and adapr to the
business environment and regulatory changes, and o maintain a
strong balance sheer and investment-grade credit quality.

We are constantly reevaluaring our strategies and might
constder: _

+ acquiring or developing additional generating facilities
and gas properties to support our merchant energy
business,

¢ mergers or acquisitions of wility or nen-utility businesses
or assets, and '

# sale of assets or one or more businesses.

Business Environment

With the evolving regulatory environment surrounding custormer
choice, increasing competition, and the growth of our merchant
energy business, various factors affect our financial results. We
discuss some of these factors in more detatl in the ftem 1.
Business—Campetition section. We also discuss these various
factors in the Forward Looking Statements and Iltem 1A. Risk
Factors sections. '

Over the last several years, the energy markerts have been
highly volatile with significanc changes in natural gas, power, oil,
coal, and emission allowance prices. The volatility of the energy
markers impacts our credit portfolio, and we continue to actively
manage our credit portfolie to attempt to reduce the impact of a
potentizl counterparty default. We discuss our customer
{counterparty) credit and other risks in more detail in the Market
Risk section. '

In addition, the volatility of the energy markets impacts our
liquidity and collateral requirements. We discuss our liquidity in
the Financial Condition section.

Competition
We face competition in the sale of electricity, natural gas, and
coal in wholesale energy markets and to retail customers.
Various states have moved to restructure their electricity
markets. The pace of deregulation in these states varies based on
historical moves to competition and responses to recent market
events. While many states continue to support retail competition
and industry restructuring, other states that were considering

31

deregulation have slowed their plans or postponed consideration.
In addition, other states are reconsidering deregulation.

All BGE electricity and gas customers have the option to
purchase electricity and gas from alternate suppliers.

We discuss merchant competition in more detail in ftem 1.
Business—Competition section.

The impacts of electric deregulation on BGE in Maryland
are discussed in ftem 1. Business—Electric Regulatory Matters and
Competition section,

Regulation— Senate Bill 1

In June 2006, Senate Bill 1 was enacted, which, among other
things: , :
¢ directs the Maryland PSC 1o conduct a comprehensive
review of Maryland's deregulated electricity marker,
including the implications of requiring or allowing
uuilicies to construct, acquire, or lease power generarting
facilicies and alternative approaches to power
procurement;

expands the authority of the Maryland PSC to review
acquisitions, dispositions, and financings by public
service companies operating in Maryland; and

directs Maryland’s taxing authority to consider whether
property tax valuation methodologies applied 1o power
plants located in Maryland should be revised in light of
the values of those properties in a restructured electric
industry.

Because Senate Bill 1 requires additional decisions and
proceedings by the Maryland PSC and other governmental
authorities to implement and interpret many of its provisions, we
cannot predict the ultimate impact of the legislation on us, BGE,
or the energy marker in Maryland. The new legislation and irs
implementation through applicable regulatory proceedings could
have a material adverse effect on our, or BGE’s, financial results.
In addition, one or more parties may challenge in court one or
more provisions of Senate Bill 1. The outcome of any challenges
and the uncertainty that could result cannot be predicted.

We discuss the provisions of Senate Bill 1 relating to
residential electric customer rates in frem 1. Business—=Electric
Regulatory Matters and Competition section,

Regulation by the Maryland PSC
In addition to electric restructuring, which is discussed in Jeem 1.
Business—FElectric Regulatory Matters and Comperition section,
regulation by the Maryland PSC significancly influences BGE's
businesses. The Maryland PSC determines the rates that BGE
can charge customers of its electric distribution and gas
businesses. The Maryland PSC incorporates into BGE’s standard
offer service rates the transmission rates derermined by the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission {FERC). BGE's electric
rates are unbundled in cuscomer billings to show separate
components for delivery service {i.¢. base rates), electric supply
{commediry charge), transmission, a universal service surcharge,
and certain taxes. The rates for BGE's regulated gas business
continue to consist of a delivery charge (base rate) and a
commodity charge.
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Base Rates

Base rates are the rates the Maryland PSC allows BGE to charge
its customers for the cost of providing them delivery service, plus
a profit. BGE has both electric base rates and gas base rates.
Higher electric base rates apply during the summer when che
demand for clectricity is higher. Gas base rates are not affected by
seasonal changes. .

BGE may ask the Maryland PP'SC to increase base rates fro
time to time. The Maryland PSC historically has allowed BGE to
increase base rates to recover its udlity plant investment and
operating costs, plus a profit. Generally, rate increases improve
the earnings of our regulated business because they allow us to
collect more revenue. However, rate increases are normally
granted based on historical data and those increases may not
always keep pace with increasing costs. Other parties may
petition the Maryland PSC to decrease base rates.

In December 2003, the Maryland PSC issued an order
granting BGE a $35.6 million annual increase in its gas base
rates. In December 2006, the Baltimore City Circuit Court
upheld the rate order. However, certain parties have filed an
appeal with the Courrt of Special Appeals. We cannot provide
assurance that the Maryland PSC’s order will not be reversed in
whole or part or that certain issues will not be remanded to the
Maryland PSC for reconsideration.

Electric Commodity and Transmission Charges

BGE electric commeodity and transmission charges (standard
offer service), including the enactment of Senare Bill 1 in
Maryland, are discussed in Jterm 1. Business—Electric Regulatory
Matters and Competition section.

Gas Commodity Charge

BGE charges its gas customers separately for the natural gas they
purchase. The price BGE charges for the natural gas is based on a
market-based rates incentive mechanism approved by the
Maryland PSC. We discuss market-based rates in more derail in
the Regulated Gas Business—Gas Cost Adjustments section and in
Noze 6,

Federal Regulation

FERC - .

The FERC has jurisdiction over various aspects of our business,
including electric transmission and wholesale natural gas and
electricity sales. We believe that FERC’s continued commitment
to fair and efficient wholesale energy markets should continue to
result in improvements to competitive markets across various
regions.

Since 1997, aperation of BGE’s transmission system has
been under the authority of PJM Interconnection (PJM), the
Regional Transmission Organization (RTO) for the Mid-
Atlantic region, pursuant to FERC oversight. As the transmission
operator, PJM operates the energy markets and conducts day-to-
day operations of the bulk power system. The liabilicy of
transmission owners, including BGE, and power gencrato}s is
limited to those damages caused by the gross negligence of such
entities. g :

In addition to PJM, RTOs exist in other regions of the
country such as the Midwest, New York, and New England. In
addition to operation of the transmission system and
responsibility for transmission system reliability, these RTOs also
operate energy markets for their region pursuant to FERC's

oversight. Our merchant energy business participates in these
regional energy markets. These markets are continuing to
develop, and revisions to market structure are subject to review
and approval by FERC. We cannot predict the outcome of any
reviews at this time. However, changes to the structure of these
markets could have a material effect on our financial results.

Ongoing initiatives at FERC have included a review of its
methodology for the granting of market-based rate authority to
sellers of electricity. FERC has announced interim tests that will
be used to determine the extent w which companies may have
market power in certain regions. Where market power is found
to exist, FERC may require companies to implement measures to
mirigate the market power in order to maintain marker-based
rate authority. In addition, FERC is reviewing other aspects of its
granting of market-based rate authority, including horizontal and
vertical market power, affiliate abuse, and barriers to entry. We
cannot derermine the eventual outcome of FERC's efforts in this
regard and their impact on our financial results ac this time.

In November 2004, FERC eliminared through and our
transmission rates between the Midwest Independent System
Operator (MISO) and PJM and put in place Seams Elimination
Charge/Cost Adjustment/Assignment (SECA) transition rates,
which are paid by the transmission customers of MISO and PIM
and allocated among the various transmission owners in PJM
and MISO. The SECA transition rates were in effect from
December 1, 2004 through March 31, 2006. FERC ser for
hearing the various compliance filings that established the level
of the SECA rates and has indicated that the SECA rates are
being recovered from the MISO and PJM transmission
customers subject to refund by the MiSO and PJM transmission
owners.

In addition, FERC provided transmission customers that
are charged the SECA rates with an opportunity to demonstrate
that such charges should be shifted to their wholesale power
suppliers. We are a recipient of SECA payments, payer of SECA
charges, and supplier to whom such charges may be shifted.
Administrative hearings regarding the SECA charges concluded
in May 2006, and an inidal decision from the FERC
adminiscrative law judge (ALJ) was issued in August 2006. The
decision of the ALJ generally found in favor of reducing the
overall SECA Hability. The deciston, if upheld, is expected to
significantly reduce the overall SECA liability at issue in this
proceeding, However, the ALJ also allowed SECA charges to be
shifted to upstream suppliers, subject to certain adjustments.
Therefore, certain charges could be shifted to our whalesale
marketing, risk management, and trading operation. This
decision will be reviewed by FERC. We are unable to predice the
timing or final outcome of FERC’s SECA rate proceeding.
However, as the amounts collected under the SECA rates are
subject to refund and the ultimate outcome of the proceeding
establishing SECA rates is uncertain, the result of this proceeding
may have a material effect on our financial results.

In April 2006, FERC issued an initial order approving
PJM’s proposal to restructure its capacity market. Sucha -
restructuring would change how we are paid for generating plane
capacity available to PJM. However, FERC found that certain
elements of the proposal needed further development before
FERC could issue 2 final order and encouraged the parties to the
proceeding, including Constellation Energy, to continue to seek
a negotiated resolution of the remaining issues, Subsequently,




settlement discussions were conducted among the parties that
resulted in a setdlement being approved by FERC in

December 2006, subject to requests for rehearing and potential
furcher judicial review. Currentdly, we cannot predict with
certainty the capacity prices that will result from the
restructuring, given thar rules must still be developed, or the
possible effect such prices will have on our, or BGE's, financial
results.

In February 2007, FERC adopted Order No. 890, which
reforms the open-access transmission regulatory framework. We
are in the process of evaluating this rule and its possible effect on
our, or BGE’s, financial resulis.

Other market changes are routinely proposed and
considered on an ongoing basis. Such changes will be subject to
FERC's review and approval. We cannot predict the outcome of
these proceedings or the possible effect on our, or BGE's,
financial results at this time.

Federal Energy Legisfation
The Energy Policy Act of 2005 (EPACT 2005) was enacted in
August 2005, The legislation encourages investments in energy
production and delivery infrastrucrure, including further
development of competitive wholesale energy markets, and
promotes the use of a diverse mix of fuels and renewable
technologies to generate electricity, including federal support and
tax incentives for clean coal, nuclear, and renewable power
generation, Effective February 2006, the legislation repealed the
Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 {(PUHCA 1935}
In addition, EPACT 2005 significantly tncreased FERC’s
enforcement authority. There have been a number of FERC
rulemaking proceedings that relate to the implementation of
EPACT 2005 including proceedings relating to FERC's new
respensibilities following the repeal of PUHCA 19335, its revised
merger authority, its new authority over electric grid reliability,
and its new authority with respect to addressing electric and gas
market manipulation. FERC has moved expeditiously to
implement its new authority under EPACT 2005 and has
completed many of its rulemaking proceedings under EPACT
2005. Addirional rulemaking remains to be completed, which
could have a2 material impact on our, or BGE’s, financial results.
There are also rulemakings required fram ather federal
agencies, the outcome ofwl:lich could affect our financial results,
but we cannot at this time predict such outcome or the actual
effect en our financial results.

Weather

Merchanr Energy Business

Weather conditions in the different regions of North America
influence the financial resules of our merchant energy business..
Woeather conditions can affect the supply of and demand for
electricity, gas, and fuels. Changes in energy supply and demand
may impact the price of these energy commaodities in both the
spot market and the forward market, which may aftect our
results in any given period. Typically, demand for electriciry and
its price are higher in the summer and the winter, when weather
is more extreme. The demand for and price of natural gas and oil
are higher in the winrer. However, all regions of North America
typically do not experience extreme weather conditions at the
same time, thus we are not typically exposed to the effects of
extreme weather in all parts of our business at once.

33

BGE :

Weather affects the demand for electricity and gas for our
regulated businesses. Very hot summers and very cold wineers
increase demand. Mild weather reduces demand. Weather affects
residential sales more than commercial and industrial sales,
which are mostly affected by business needs for electricity and
gas. The Maryland PSC approved a revenue decoupling
mechanism which allows BGE to record 2 monthly adjustment
to our regulated gas business revenues to eliminate the effect of
abnormal weather parterns. We discuss this further in the
Regulated Gas Business—Revenue Decoupling section.

Other Factors

A number of other factors significantly influence the level and
volatility of prices for energy commeodities and related derivative
products for cur merchant energy business. These factors
include:

# scasonal, daily, and hourly changes in demand,

# number of market participants,

¢ cxtreme peak demands,

¢ available supply resources,

4 transporation and transmission availability and

reliability within and between regions,

# location of our generating facilities relative to the

location of our load-serving obligations,

¢ implementation of new market rules governing

operations of regional power pools,

# procedures used to maintain the integrity of the physical

electricity system during extreme conditions,

# changes in the nature and extent of federal and state

regulations, and

¢ international supply and demand.

These factors can affect energy commodity and derivative
prices in different ways and to different degrees. These effects
may vary throughout the country as a result of regional
differences in:

# weather conditions,

¢ marker liquidity,

¢ capability and reliability of the physical electricity and

gas systems,

¢ local transportation systems, and

4 the nature and extent of electricity dereguladion.

Other factors also impact the demand for electricity and gas
in our regulared businesses. These factors include the number of
customers and usage per customer during a given period. We use
these terms later in our discussions of regulated electric and gas
opetations. In those sections, we discuss how these and other
factors affected electric and gas sales during, the periods
presented.

The number of customers in a given period is affected by
new home and apartment construction and by the number of
businesses in our service territory.

Usage per customer refers to all other items impacring
customer saltes that cannot be measured separately. These factors
include the strength of the economy in our service territory.
When the economy is healthy and expanding, customers tend to
consume more electricity and gas. Conversely, during an
economic downturn, our customers tend 1o consume less
electricity and gas.




Environmental Matters and Legal Proceedings

We discuss details of our environmental matters in Note 12 and
Frem 1. Busines—Environmental Marters section. We discuss
derails of our legal proceedings in Note 12, Some of this
information is about costs that may be material o our financial
results,

Accounting Standards Adopted and Issued
We discuss recently adopted and issued accounting standards in
Note 1.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of
operations is based on our consolidated financial statements chac
were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Management makes
estimares and assumptions when preparing financial statemenus.
These estimates and assumptions affect various matters,
including;

# our reported amounts of revenues and expenses in our

Consolidated Statements of Income,
# our reported amounts of assets and liabilities in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets, and

# our disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.

These estimates involve judgments with respect to
numerous factors that are difficule 1o predict and are beyond
management’s contrel. As a result, actual amounts could
marerially differ from these estimates.

Management believes the following accounting policies
represent critical accounting policies as defined by the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC). The SEC defines critical
accounting policies as those that are both most important to the
portrayal of a company’s financial condition and results of
operations and require management’s most difficult, subjective,
or complex judgment, ofien as a result of the need to make
estimates abour the effect of marters that are inherently uncerrain
and may change in subsequent periods. We discuss our
significant accounting policies, including chose thar do not
require management to make difficult, subjective, or complex
judgments or estimates, in Note /.

Accounting for Derivatives
Qur merchant energy business ariginates and acquires contracts
for energy, other energy-related commaodities, and related
derivatives. We record merchant energy business revenues using
two methods of accounting;: accrual accounting and mark-to-
marker accounting. The accounting requirements for derivatives
are governed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
(SFAS) No. 133, Accounting for Derivarive Instruments and
Hedging Activities, as amended, and applying those requiremenits
involves the exercise of judgment in evaluating these provisions,
as well as related implementation guidance and applying those
requirements to complex contracts in a variety of commodities
and markets. 3
Many fundamental customer contracts in our business,
such as those associated with our load-serving activities, must be -
accounted for on an accrual basis. We may economically hedge
these contracts with derivatives and elect cash-flow hedge
accounting or apply the normal purchase and normal sale
exception in order to march more closely the timing of the

recognition of earnings from these transactions. We make these
elections because we believe thar accrual accounting provides the
most transparent presencation to our shareholders of these
business acrivities. If our commercial transactions or related
hedges meet the definition of a derivative, we must comply with
the provisions of SFAS No. 133 in order to use cash-flow hedge
accounting or the normal purchase and normal sale exception.
Qualifying for either of these accounting treatments requires
ongoing compliance with speciftc, detailed documentation and
other requirements that may be unrelated to the economics of
the transactions ot how the associated risks are managed. While
we believe we have appropriate controls in place to comply with
these requirements, the failure to meet all of those requirements,
even inadvertently, may result in disqualifying the use of these
accounting treatments for those transactions for any affected
period uncil all such requirements are sarisfied.

The exercise of management’s judgment in using cash-flow
hedge accounting or electing the normal purchase and sale
exceprion versus mark-to-market accounting, including
compliance with all of the associated qualification and
documentation requirements, materially impacts our financial
results with respecrt to timing of the recognition of earnings. In
addition, interpretations of SFAS No. 133 could continue to
evolve. If there is a future change in interpretation or a failure to
meet the qualification and documentation requirements,
contracts that currently are excluded from the provisions of SFAS
No. 133 under the normal purchase and normal sale exception
or for which changes in fair value are recorded in other
comprehensive income under cash-flow hedge aceounting could
be deemed to no longer qualify for those accounting treatments.
If chat were to occur, normal purchase and normal sale contracts
could be required to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair
value with changes in value recorded in the income starement,
and changes in value of derivatives previously designated as cash-
flow hedges could be required o be recorded in the income
statement rather than in other comprehensive income.

We record revenues and fuel and purchased energy
expenses from the sale or purchase of energy, energy-related
products, and energy services under the accrual method of
accounting in the period when we deliver or receive energy
commodities, products, and services, or settle contracts. We use
accrual accounting for our merchant energy and other
nonregulated business transactions, including the generation or
purchase and sale of electricity, gas, and coal as part of our
physical delivery activities and for power, gas, and coal sales
contracts that are not subject to mark-to-market accounting,
Contracts thar are eligible for accrual accounting include non-
derivative transactions and derivatives that qualify for and are
designated as normal purchases and normal sales of commodiries
that will be physically delivered.

The use of accrual accounting requires us to analyze
contracis to determine whether they are non-derivatives or, if
they are derivatives, whether they meet the requirements for
designation as normal purchases and normal sales. For those
derivative contracts that do not meet these criteria, we may also
analyze whether they qualify for hedge accounting, including
performing an evaluation of historical market price information
to determine whether such’ contracts are expected to be highly
effective in offsetting changes in cash flows from the risk being
hedged. We record the fair value of derivatives for which we have




elected hedge accounting in “Risk management assets and
hiabilities.”

We use the mark-to-market method of accounting for
derivarive contracts for which we do not elect to use accrual

accounting or hedge accounting, These mark-to-market activities

include derivative contracts for energy and other energy-related

commodities. Under the mark-to-market method of accounting,

we record the fair value of these derivatives as mark-to-market

energy assets and liabilities at the time of contract execucion. We
record the changes in mark-to-market energy assets and liabilities

in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Mark-to-marker energy assets and liabilities consist of a
combination of energy and energy-relared derivarive conrracts.
While some of these contracts represent commodities or

instruments for which prices are available from external sources,

other commodities and certain contracts are not actively traded

and are valued using modeling techniques to determine expected

future market prices, contract quantities, or both. The market
prices and quantities used to determine fair value reflect
management's best estimate considering various factors.
However, future market ptices and actual quantities will vary
from those used in recording mark-to-market energy assets and
liabilities, and it is possible that such variacdions could be
material.

We record valuation adjustments to reflect uncertainties

associated with certain estimates inherent in the determination of
the fair value of mark-to-market energy assets and liabilities. The

effect of these uncertainties is not incorporated in market price
information or other market-based estimates used to determine

fair value of our mark-to-market energy contracts. To the extent
possible, we utilize market-based dara rogether with quantitative

methods for both measuring the uncertainties for which we
record valuarion adjustments and determining the level of such
adjustments and changes in those levels.

We describe below the main types of valuarion adjustments

we record and the process for establishing each. Generally,
increases in valuation adjustments reduce our earnings, and
decreases in valuation adjustments increase our earnings.

However, all or a portion of the effect on earnings of changes in .

valuation adjustments may be offset by changes in the value of
the underlying positions.

# Close-our adjustment—represents the estimated cost to
close out or sell to a third-party open mark-to-market
positions. This valuation adjustmenc has the effecr of
valuing “long” positions (the purchase of a commaodity)
ar the bid price and “short” positions (the sale of 2
commodity) at the offer price: We compute this
adjustment using a market-based estimate of the
bid/offer spread for each commodity and option price
and the absolute quantity of our net open positions for
each year. The level of toral close-out valuation
adjustments increases as we have larger unhedged
positions, bid-offer spreads increase, or market
information is not available, and it decreases as we
reduce our unhedged positions, bid-offer spreads
decrease, or market information becomes available. To
the exrent that we are not able to obtain cbservable
market information for similar contracts, the close-out
adjustment is equivalent to the initial contract margin,
thereby resulting in no gain or loss at inception. In the
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absence of observable market information, there is a
presumption that the transaction price is equal 1o the
market value of the contract, and therefore we do not
‘l;ccognizc a gain or loss at inception. We recognize such
gains or losses in earnings as we realize cash flows under
the contract or when observable market data becomes
available.

# Credit-spread adjustment—for risk management
purposes, we compute the value of our mark-ro-market
enetgy assets and liabilities using a risk-free discount rate.
In order to compute fair value for financial reporting
purposes, we adjust the value of our mark-to-market
energy assets to reflect the credit-worthiness of each
counterparty based upon either published credir ratings,
or equivalent internal credit ratings and associared
default probability percentages. We compute this
adjustment by applying a default probability percentage
to our outstanding credit exposure, net of collateral, for
each counterparty. The level of this adjustment increases
as our credit exposure to counterparties increases, the
maturity terms of our transactions increase, or the credit
ratings of our counterparties deteriorate, and it decreases
when our credit exposure to counterparties decreases, the
maturity terms of our transactions decrease, or the credit
ratings of our counterparties improve.

Market prices for energy and energy-related commodities
vary based upon a number of factors, and changes in market
prices affect both the recorded fair value of our mark-to-market
energy contracts and the level of future revenues and costs
associated with accrual-basis activities. Changes in the value of
our mark-to-market energy contracts will affect our earnings in
the period of the change, while changes in forward marker prices
related 1o accrual-basis revenues and costs will affect our earnings
in furure periods to the extent those prices are realized. We
cannot predict whether, or to whar exeent, the factors affecting
market prices may change, but those changes could be material
and could affect us eicher favorably or unfavorably. We discuss
our market risk in more detail in the Marker Risk section.

The impact of derivative contracts on our revenues and
costs is material and is affected by many factors, including:

+ our ability to continue to designate and qualify derivative
contracts for normal purchase and normal sale
accounting or hedge accounting under the requirements
of SFAS No. 133, as amended and as interpreted in
supplemental guidance,

# potential volarility in earnings from ineffectiveness
associated with derivatives subject to hedge accounting,

# potential volariliry in earnings from derivative contracts
that serve as econemic hedges but do not meet the
accounting requirements to qualify for normal purchase
and normal sale accounting or hedge accounting,
our abiliry to enter into new mark-to-market derivartive
originarion transactions, and
sufficient liquidity and transparency in the energy
markets to permit us to record gains at inception of new
derivarive contracts because fair value is evidenced by
quoted market prices, current market transacttons, or
other observable market information.




As discussed in Note 1, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 157, Fuir Value Measurements,
which is effective January 1, 2008 and will affect our accounting
for dertvatives. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures for
fair value measurements.

Evaluation of Assets for Impalrment and Other Than
Temporary Decline in Value '

Leng-Lived Assets .

We are required to evaluate certain assets that have long lives (for
example, generating property and equipment and real estate) to
determine if they are impaired when certain conditions exisr.
SFAS No. 144, Accouning for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assers, provides the accounting requirements for
impairments of long-lived assets. We are required to test our
long-lived assets for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Examples of such events or changes are:

# asignificant decrease in the market price of a long-lived

. asset,

# asignificanc adverse change in the manner an asset is
being used or its physical condition,

# an adverse action by a regulator or legislature or an
adverse change in the business climare,

4 an accumulation of costs significantly in excess of the
amount originally expected for the construction or
acquisition of an asser,

# a current-period loss combined with a history of losses or
the projection of future losses, or

# a change in our intent about an asset from an intent to
hold to a greater than 50% likelihood that an asset will
be sold or disposed of before the end of its previously
estimated useful life.

For long-lived assets that are expecred to be held and used,
SFAS No. 144 provides that an impairment loss shall only be
recognized if the carrying amount of an asset is not recoverable
and exceeds its fair value. The carrying amount of an asset is not
recoverable under SFAS No. 144 if the carrying amount exceeds
the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result
from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. Therefore,
when we believe an impairment condidon may have occurred,
we are required to estimate the undiscounted future cash flows
associated with a long-lived asset or group of long-lived assets at
the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities. This
necessarily requires us to estimate uncereain future cash flows.

In order to estimate future cash flows, we consider
historical cash flows and changes in the market environment and
other factors that may affect future cash flows. To the extent
applicable, the assumprions we use are consistent with forecasts
that we are otherwise requ:red to make {for example, in
preparing our other earnmgs forecasts). If we are considering
alternative courses of action to recover the carrying amount of a
long-lived asset (such as the potential sale of an asset), we
probability-weight the alternative courses of action to estimate
the cash flows.

We use our best estimates in making these evaluations and
consider various facrors, including forward price curves for
energy, fuel costs, and operating costs. However, actual furure

market prices and project costs could vary from the assumptions
used in our estimates, and the impact of such variations could be
material,

For long-lived assets that can be ¢lassified as assets held for
sale under SFAS No. 144, an impairment loss is recognized to
the extent their carrying amount exceeds their fair value less costs
to sell.

If we determine chac the undiscounted cash flows from an
asser to be held and used are less than the carrying amount of the
asset, or if we have classified an asset as held for sale, we must
estimate fair value to determine the amount of any impairment
loss. The estimarion of fair value under SFAS No. 144, whether
in conjunction with an asset to be held and used or with an asset
held for sale, also invelves judgment. We consider quoted market
prices in active markets to the extent they are available. In the
absence of such information, we may consider prices of similar
assets, consult with brokers, or employ other valuation
techniques. Often, we will discount the estimated furure cash
flows associated with the asset using a single interest rate that is
commensurate with the risk involved with such an investment or
employ an expected present value method that
probability-weights a range of possible outcomes. The use of
these methods involves the same inherent uncereainty of future
cash flows as discussed above with respect to undiscounted cash
flows. Actual future market prices and project costs could vary
from those used in our estimates, and the impact of such
variations could be material.

We are also required to evaluate our equity-method and
cost-method investments (for example, in partnerships that own
power projects) to determine whether or not they are impaired.
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 18, The Equity
Method of Accounting for Investmenis in Common Stock, provides
the accounting requirements for these investments. The standard
for determining whether an impairment must be recorded under
APB No. 18 is whether the investment has experienced a loss in

. value thar is considered an “other than a temporary” decline in

value,

The evaluation and measurement of impairments under the
APB No. 18 standard involves the same uncerrainties as
described above for Jong-lived assets that we own directly and
account for in accordance with SFAS No. 144. Similarly, the
estimates that we make with respect to our equity and cost-
method investments are subject to variation, and the impact of
such variations could be marerial. Additionally, if the projects in
which we hold these investments recognize an impairment under
the provisions of SFAS No. 144, we would record our
proportionate share of that impairment loss and would evaluate
our investment for an other than temporary decline in value -
under APB No, 18.

Gas Properties

We evaluate unproved property at least annually to determine if
it is impaired under SFAS No. 19, Financial Accounting and
Reporing by Oil and Gas Producing Properties, Impairment for
unproved property occurs if there are no firm plans to continue
drilling, [ease expiration is at risk, or historical experience
necessitates a valuation allowance.




Debt and Equity Securities

Our investments in debr and equity securities, primarily our
nuclear decommissioning trust fund assets, are subject 1o
impairment evaluations under FASB Seaff Position SFAS 115-1
and SFAS 124-1 (FSP 115-1 and 124-1), T!JeMeamng of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to
Certain Investments. FSP 115-1 and 124-1 requires us to
determine whether a decline in fair value of an investment
below the amortized cost basis is other than temporary. If we
determine thar the decline in fair value is judged to be other
than temporary, the cost basis of the investment must bc
written down to fair value as a new cost basis.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price of an acquired
business over the fair value of the net assets acquired. We
account for goodwill and other intangibles under the provisions
of SFAS No. 142, Gosdwill and Other Intangible Assets. We do
not amortize goodwill. SFAS No. 142 requires us to evaluate
goodwill for impairment at least annually or more frequendy if
events and circumstances indicare the business might be
impaired. Goodwill is impaired if the carrying value of the
business exceeds fair value. Annually, we estimate the fair value
of the businesses we have acquired using techniques similar to
those used to estimate future cash flows for long-lived assets as
discussed on the previous page, which involves judgment. If the
estimated fair value of the business is less than its carrying
value, an impairment loss is required to be recognized to the
extent that the carrying value of goodwill is greater than its fair
value.

Asset Retirement Obligations

We incur legal obligations associated wich the retirement of
certain long-lived assets. SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations, provides the accounting for legal
obligations assaciated with the retirement of long-lived assets.
We incur such legal obligations as a result of envitonmencal
and other government regulations, contracrual agreements, and
other factors. The application of this standard requires
significant judgment due o the large number and diverse
nature of the assets in our various businesses 2nd the estimation
of future cash flows required to measure legal obligattons
associated with the retirement of specific assers. FASB
Interpretation (FIN) 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retiremens Obligations—an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 143, clarifies that obligations that are conditional upon a
future event are subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 143,

SFAS No. 143 requires the use of an expected present
value methodology in measuring asset retirement obligarions
thar involves judgment surrounding the inherent uncertainty of
the probability, amount and timing of payments to seule these
obligations, and the appropriate interest rates to discount
future cash flows. We use our best estimates in identifying and
measuring our asset retirement obligations in accordance with
SFAS No. 143.

Our nuclear decommissioning costs represent our largest
asset retirement obligation. This obligation primarily results
from the requirement to decommission and decontaminate our
nuclear generaring facilities in connection with their future
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retirement. We utilize site-specific decommissioning cost
estimates to determine our nuclear asset retirement obligations.
However, given the magnitude of the amounts involved,
compl:cated and ever-changing technical and regulatory
requirements, and the very long time horizons involved, the
actual obligation could vary from the assumptions used in our
estimates, and the impacr of such vartations could be material.

Significant Events

Termination of Merger Agreement with FPL Group, Inc.
On October 24, 2006, Constellation Energy and FPL

Group, Inc. (FPL Group) agreed to terminate the Agreement
and Plan of Merger the parties had entered into on

December 18, 2005. We discuss the merger termination
agreement in more detail in Note 15,

Commodity Prices
During 2006, we continued 1o experience significant changes
in commadity prices. This volatile commodity price
environment continues to impact our results of operations and
financial conditions. This volatility contributed to the
following changes in our financial statements:
¢ total mark-to-marker assets decreased $510.3 million
and total mark-to-marker liabilities decreased
$796.9 millien since December 31, 2005,
¢ total risk management assets decreased
$1,282.9 million and total risk management liabilities
increased $528.3 million since December 31, 2005,
# net cash collateral requirements increased $630.6
million since December 31, 2005,
4 accumulated other comprehensive loss increased
$1,088.1 million since December 31, 2005,
¢ total revenues increased $2,316.6 million during 2006
compared to 2005, and
4 total fuel and purchased energy expenses increased
$1,691.1 million during 2006 compared to 2005.
We discuss the impact of commodiry prices on our
financial condition and results of operations in more derail in
the following sections:
# Merchant Energy Results,
¢ Financial Condition,
# Contractual Payment Obligations and Committed
Amounts, and
& Marker Risk.

Residential Electric Rates

We discuss Senate Bill 1 enacted by the Maryland General
Assembly in more derail in the Jtem 1. Busines—Flectric

Regulatory Matters and Competition and Regulation sections.

Gas-Fired Plants

In December 2006, we completed the sale of several gas-fired
plants for $1.6 billion in cash, and recognized a pre-tax gain on
the sale of $259.0 million, or $163.8 million after-tax. We
discuss the sale in more detail in Note 2.




Synthetic Fuel Facilities

Qur merchant energy business has investments in facilities that
manufacture solid synthetic fuel produced from coal as defined
under the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) for which we can
claim tax credits on our Federal income tax return through
2007. The IRC provides for a phase-out of syathetic fuel tax
credits if average annual wellhead oil prices increase above
certain levels. For 2006, we estimate the tax credit reduction
would begin if the reference price exceeds approximarely $55
per barrel and would be fully phased-out if the reference price
exceeds approximately $68 per barrel. We discuss how we
determine the amount of phase-out in more detail in Note /0.

Based on monthly EIA published wellhead oil prices for
the ten months ended October 31, 2006 and November and
December NYMEX prices for light, sweet, crude oil (adjusted
for the 2006 difference between EIA and NYMEX prices}, we
estimate a 38% tax credit phase-out in 2006. We recorded the
effect of this phase-out estimate as a reduction in tax credits of
$44.3 million during 2006.

For 2007, we estimate the tax credit reduction would
begin if the reference price exceeds approximately $56 per
barrel and would be fully phased-out if the reference price
exceeds approximately $70 per barrel. Based on forward market
prices and volatilities as of February 22, 2007, we estimare a
21% tax credit phase-out in 2007. However, the uliimate
amount of tax credits phased-out for 2007 is subject to change
based on the acrual reference price and production levels for the
entire year. [n addition, our ability to claim synthetic fuel tax
credits and the potential phase-our of these credits could be
materially impacted by any future legislative changes to the
Internal Revenue Code.

We actively monitor and manage our exposure
synthetic fuel tax credit phase-out as part of our ongoing
hedging activities. In addition, we continue to monitor various
options related to our South Carolina facility, including the

suspension or cessation of synthetic fuel production depending -

on our expectation of the level of tax credit phase-out.

We will continue to monitor the level of synthetic fuel tax
credit phase-out based on forward market prices and volatilities
and perform impairment analyses as warranted. A significant
increase in synthetic fuel tax credit phase-our could result in an
impairment. At December 31, 2006, the book value of our
investment in synthetic fuel facilities is approximarely $14
million, substantially all of which is relared to our South
Carolina facility.
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Workforce Reduction Costs

During the quarter ended March 31, 2006, we incurred costs
associated with a planned workforce restructuring at our

R. E. Ginna Nuclear Power Plant (Ginna). In July 20006, we
announced 2 planned workforee restructuring at our Nine Mile
Point Nuclear Station {(Nine Mile Point). We also initiated a_
restructuring of the workforce ac our Catvert Cliffs nuclear
facility during the third quarter of 2006.

In addition, during 2006, we recorded a settlement charge
in our Consolidated Statements of Income for one of our
qualified plans under SFAS No. 88, Employers’ Accounting for
Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans
and for Termination Benefits.

We discuss these restructurings and the scttlcment charge
in more derail in Note 2.

Acquisitions

During 2006, we acquired working interests in gas and oil
producing fields. We dlscuss this acquisition in more detail in
the Note I5.

Initlal Public Offering of Constellation Energy Partners
LLC .
In November 2006, Constellation Energy Partners LLC (CEP),
a limited liability company formed by Constellation Energy,
completed its initial public offering of common units. CEP is
principally engaged in the acquisition, deve]opmcm, and
exploitation of natural gas properties. CEP’s existing property is
located in the Robinson’s Bcnd Field in the Black Warrior
Basin of Alabama.

We discuss the impact OFthls initial public offering on
our financial results in more detail in Noze 2.

Nine Mile Point License Extension

In October 2006, we received Nuclear Regulatory Commission
approval for license extenston for both units ar our Nine Mile
Point nuclear facility. With the renewed licenses, we can
continue to operate Unit 1 until 2029 and Unit 2 until 2046.

Ginna Uprate

During the fourth quarter of 2006, we completed a plzmned
outage at our Ginna nuclear faciliry, which included an uprate
of the plant from 498 megawatts to 381 megawarts. We expect
that the increase in capacity of the facilicy will result in higher
revenues in future years due to higher generarion.

"Dividend Increase
In January 2007, we announced an increase in our quarcerly
dividend to $0.435 per share on our common stock. This is
equivalent to an annual rate of $1.74 per share. Previously, our
quarterly dividend on our common stock was $0.3775 per
share, equivalent to an annual rate of $1.51 per share.




Results of Operations

In this section, we discuss our earnings and the factors affecting
them. We begin with a general overview, and then separately
discuss earnings for our operating segments..Significant changes
in other income and expense, fixed charges, and income taxes
are discussed in the aggregate for all segments in the
Consolidared Nonoperaring Income and Expenses section.

Overview
Results
2006 2005 2004 .
{In millions, afer-tax)

Merchant energy $580.1  $359.4  $3580
Regulated electric 120.2 149.4 1311
Regulated gas 370 26.7 222
Other nonregulated 113 04 {12.9)
Income from continuing operations and -

before cumulative effects of changes

in accounting principles 748.6 535.9 498.4

Income from discontinued operations  187.8 94.4 41.3

Cumulative effects of changes in

accounting principles . — (7.2) —

Net Income $936.4  $623.1 $539.7
Orther Irems Included in Operations: ’

Gain on sale of gas-fired plants $471 5 — & —

Non-qualifying hedges 39.2 (24.9) 0.2

Workforce reduction costs (17.0) (2.6) (5.9

Merger-related costs (5.7) {15.6) —

Recognition of 2003 syntheric fuel :

tax credits — — 35.9

Total Other ltems $ 63.6 ${43.1) § 302

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation.

2006

Our rotal net income for 2006 increased $313.3 million, or
£1.69 per share, compared to 2005 mostly because of the
following;

+ We had higher earnings of approximately $144 million
after-tax at our merchant energy business due 1o higher
gross margin from the Mid-Atlantic Region. We
discuss this increase in gross margin in more detail in
the Mid-Atlaniic Region section.

¢ We had higher earnings from discontinued operations
of $93.4 million after-tax mostly due o the gain on
sale of our ngh Desert facility. In addition, we had .
higher earnings of $47.1 million rcsultmg from the
recognition of a gain on sale of five other gas-fired
generating facilities. We discuss the sale of these plants
in more detail in Note 2.

¢ We had higher wholesale competirive supply gross
margin of approximately $105 million after-tax. This
increase was partially offset by approximately
%68 million afrer-tax of higher operating expenses
mostly because of higher labor and benefic costs due ro
the growth of our wholesale competitive supply
operation. We discuss our mark-to-market and
wholesaie accrual results in more detatl in the
Competitive Supply section.
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¢ We had higher ezrnings of $67.7 million after-tax at
our retail competitive supply operation primartly due
to an increase in gross margin, partially offset by higher

. operatmg expenses to support the growth of this

"“dperacion. We discuss our retail gross margin in more
detail in cthe Compezitive Supply—Retail section.

¢ We had higher earnings of approximately $18 million
after-tax due to the gain on the CEP initial public
offering. This gain was partially offset by cash-flow
hedge losses of approximately $10 million after-tax
reclassified from “Accumulated other comprehensive
income” to revenues as a result of the initial public
offering. We discuss the CEP transaction in more
detail in Noze 2.

¢ We had higher carnings of $10.3 million aftcr -tax from’
our regulated gas business primarily due to the
favorable impact of the increase in gas base rates that
was approved in December 2005, :

These increases were partially offset by the following:

¢ We had lower earnings of $30.1 million after-tax at our
synthetic fuel facilities mostly due to the expected
phase-out of tax credics as a result of the high price of
oil. We discuss the phase-our of tax credits in more
detail in the Significant Events section.

¢ We had lower earnings of $29.2 million after-tax from
our regulated electric business primarily due to higher
operations and maintenance expenses and lower
revenues less electricity purchased for resale expenses.

¢ We had lower earnings of $14.4 million after-tax due
o workforce reduction costs associated with workforce
restructurings at our nuclear generating facilities. We
discuss these costs in more detail in the Note 2.

4 We had lower carnings of approximarely $11 miliion
after-tax due to higher fixed charges and lower other
income. We discuss these items in more detail in the
Consolidared Nonoperating Income and Expenses section.

2008 ,

Qur rotal net income for 2005 increased $83.4 million, or
$0.35 per share, compared o 2004 mosty because of the
following;

¢ We had higher earnings of approxtmately $58 million
at our wholesale marketing, risk management, and
trading operation. This increase is primarily due to the
realization of higher gross margin, which included the
termination or restructuring of several energy concracts
and higher mark to-market results in earnings: We'" -
discuss these terminations, restrucrurings, and mark-to-
market results in more detail in the Competitive Supply
section. This increase in earnings was pardially offset by
higher load-serving costs resulting from extreme
weather and volatile commodity prices and higher
operating expenses.

# We recorded higher income from discontinued
operations of $53.1 million after-tax. This increase is
primarily due to a loss of $49.1 million after tax in
2004 related 1o the sale of our Hawaiian geothermal
facility which had a negarive impact in that peried. We
discuss discontinued operations in more detail in
Note 2.




¢ We had higher earnings of approximately $34 million
after-tax primarily due to higher interest and .
investment income due to a higher cash balance, and
higher decommissioning trust asset earnings, and lower
interest expense resulting from the marturicy of
$300.0 million in long-term debt in 2005 and the
favorable impacr of floating-rate swaps.

¢ We had higher earnings of $29.1 million afrer-tax at
our Nine Mile Point and Ginna facilides primarily due
to productivity improvements and cost saving
initiatives pardally offset by inflationary cost increases
and costs associated with the planned refueling outage
at Ginna.

¢ We had higher earnings of $22.8 million after-tax at
our regulated businesses primarily due to favorable
weather during 2005 compared o 2004.

# We had higher earnings of approximately $17 million
after-tax due to the absence of coal delivery issues that
were experienced in 2004 that had a negative impacr in
that period.

# We had higher earnings from our other nonregulated
businesses of $13.3 million after-tax, including higher
gains from the continued liquidation of our non-core
investments and the results of Cogenex, which was
acquired in April 2005. We discuss the acquisition of
Cogenex in more detail in Nese 15,

# We had higher earnings at our South Carolina
synthetic fuel facility of $7.6 million after-tax due o a
higher level of production in 2005 compared 1o 2004,

These increases were partially offset by the following:

4 Our merchant energy business recognized
$35.9 million of 2003 synthetic fuel tax credits in 2004
which had a positive impacr in thar period.

# We had lower earnings at our retail competitive supply
operation of $25.1 million after-rax primarily due to
higher costs to serve our load obligations in Texas and
the absence of bankruptcy settlements that had a
favorable impact in 2004.

4 We had lower earnings of $25.1 million after-tax
related to losses associated with cerain economic
hedges that do not qualify for cash-flow hedge
accounting treatment. We discuss these economic
hedges in more detail in the Mark-to-Market section.

4 We had lower earnings of $15.6 million after-tax due
10 external costs associated with the execution of our
merger agreement with FPL Group. )

-- ¢ We had lower earnings of $20.0 million after-tax due
to lower competitive transition charge (CTC) revenues
at our merchant energy business.

# We had lower earnings of $8.5 million after-tax related
to the impact of expensing stock options during the
fourth quarter of 2005.

# We had lower earnings of $7.2 million afrer-tax due to
the cumularive effect of adopting FIN 47 and SFAS
No. 123 Revised (SFAS No. 123R), Share-Buased
Payment. We discuss the adoption of these standards in
detail in Note 1.

Earnings per share was impacted by additional dilution,

including the issuance of 6.0 million shares of common stock
on July 1, 2004,
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Merchant Energy Business

Background

Qur merchant energy business is a competitive provider of
energy solutions for various customers. We discuss the impact
of deregulation on our merchant energy business in Jeem 1.
Business—Competition section.

Qur merchant energy business focuses on delivery of
physical, customer-oriented products to producers and
consumers, manages the risk and optimizes the value of our
owned generation assets, and uses our portfolio management
and trading capabilities both to manage risk and to deploy risk
capital to generate additional returns, We continue to identify
and pursue opportuniries which can generate additional returns
through portfolio management and trading activities within
our business. These opportunities have increased due to the
significant growth in scale of our competitive supply
Opcratlons.

We record merchant energy revenues and expenses in our
financial results in different periods depending upon which
pottion of cur business they affect. We discuss our revenue
recognition policies in the Critical Accounting Policies section
and in Note 1. We summarize our revenue and expense
recognition policies as follows:

# We record revenues as they are earned and fuel and
purchased energy expenses as they are incurred for
contracts and activities subject to accrual accounting,
including certain load-serving acriviries.

4 Prior 1o the settlement of the forecasted transaction

‘being hedged, we record changes in the fair value of
contracts designated as cash-flow hedges in other
comprehensive income to the extent that the hedges are
effective. We record the effective pordon of the
changes in fair value of hedges in earnings in the period
the settlement of the hedged transaction occurs. We
record the ineffective portion of the changes in fair
value of hedges, if any, in earnings in the period in
which the change occurs.

# We record changes in the fair value of contraces that

. are subject to mark-to-market accounting in revenues
or fuel and purchased energy expenses in the period in
which the change occurs.

Mark-to-market accounting requires us ro make estimates
and assumptions using judgment in determining the fair value
of certain contracts and in recording revenues from those
contracts. We discuss the effects of mark-to-market accounting
on our results in the Competitive Supply-~-Mark-to-Marker
section. We discuss iriark-to-market accounting and the
accounting policies for the merchant energy business further in
the Critical Accounting Policies section and in Noze 1.

Qur wholesale marketing, risk management, and trading
operation actively transacts in energy and energy-related
commodities in order to manage our portfolio of energy
purchases and sales to customers through structured -
transacrions. As part of these activities we trade energy and
energy-related commodities and deploy risk capital in the
management of our portfolic in order to earn additional
rerurns. These activities are managed through daily value ar risk
and stop loss limits and liquidity guidelines, and may have a
material impact on our financial results. We discuss the impact
of our trading activities and value at risk in more dezail in the
Competitive Supply—Mark-to-Market and Market Risk sections.




Results
2006 2005 2004
(In millions)
Revenues $ 17,166.2 5_714,622.4 $10,188.3
Fuel and purchased energy -
expenses (14,256.3) (12,301.8) (8,118.1)
Operating expenses (1,549.4)  (1,346.1) (L,149.9)
Workforce reduction costs (28.2) 4.4) 9.7)
Merger-related transaction costs (13.1) {11,2) —
Depreciation, depletion, and
amortization {258.7) (250.4) {221.9)
Accretion of asset retirement
obligations (67.6) (62.0) (53.1)
Taxes other than income taxes (120.0) (106.7) (83.3)
Gain on sale of gas-fired plants 73.8 _— —
Income from Operations $ 9467 $ 5398 § 5523
Tncome from continuing
operations and before
cumulative effects of changes
‘in accounting principles
{after-tax} $ 5801 § 3594 § 3980
Income from discontinued
operations (after-tax) 186.9 73.8 319
Cumulative effects of changes
in accounting principles
(afrer-tax) — (7.4) —
Net Income $ 7670 $ 4258 $ 3899
Other Items Included in Operations
(after-tax) .
Gain on sale of gas-fired plants  $ 47.1 § — § —
Non-qualifying hedges 39.2 (24.9) 0.2
Merger-related costs (4.3} {10.4) —
Workforce reduction costs (17.0) (2.6) (5.9)
Recognition of 2003 syntheric
fuel tax credits — — 359
Tatal Other ltems $ 650 § (37.9) $ 30.2

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation. Abave amounts include
imtercompany transactions eliminated in our Consolidated
Financial Statements. Note 3 provides a reconciliation of operating
results by segment to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenues and Fuef and Purchased Energy Expenses

Our merchant energy business manages the revenues we realize
from the sale of energy to our customers and our costs of
procuring fuel and energy. As previously discussed, our
merchant energy business uses either accrual or mark-to-market
accounting to record our revenues and expenses. Mark-to-
marker resules reflect the net impact of amounts recorded in
either revenues or fuel and purchased energy expenses to
recognize changes in fair value of derivarive contracts subject to
mark-to-market accounting during the reporting period.

The difference berween revenues and fuel and purchased
energy expenses, including all direct expenses, is the gross
margin of our merchant energy business, and this measure is a
useful tool fer assessing the profirability of our merchant energy
business. Accordingly, we believe it is appropriate to discuss the
operating results of our merchant energy business by analyzing
the changes in gross margin between periods. In managing our
portfolio, we may terminate, restructure, or acquire contracts.
Such transacrions are within the normal course of managing-
our portfolio and may materially impact the timing of our
recognition of revenues, fuel and purchased energy expenses,
and cash flows.
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We analyze our merchant energy gross margin in the
following categories because of the risk profile of each category,
differences in the revenue sources, and the nature of fuel and
purchased energy expenses. With the exception of a portion of
our competitive supply activities that we are required to
account for using the mark-to-market methed of accounting,
all of these activities are accounted for on an accrual basis.

- # Mid-Atlantic Region—our fossil, nuclear, and
hydroelectric generating facilities and load-serving
activiries in the PJM Interconnecrion (P]M) region.
This also includes active portfolic management of the
generating assets and other physical and financial
contractual arrangements, as well as other PJM
competitive supply activities. In addition, due to the
expiration of its power purchase agreement, beginning
in June 2006 until its sale in December 2006, the
resules of our University Park generating facility are
included with the Mid-Atlantic Region. University
Park was previously included in Plants with Power
Purchase Agreements.

4 Plants with Power Purchase Agreements—our
generating facilities outside the Mid-Adantic Region
with long-term power purchase agreements. As
discussed in Nose 2, the sale of the High Desere faciliy
resulted in a reclassification of its results of operations
to discontinued operations.

4 Wholesale Comperitive Supply—our marketing, risk
management, and trading operation thar provides
energy products and services primarily to diseribution
utilities, power generators, and other wholesale
customers. We also provide global energy and related
services and upstream and downstream natural gas
services,

# Retail Competitive Supply—our operarion that
provides electric and gas energy products and services
o commercial, industrial, and governmental
customers,

# Other—our invesiments in qualifying facilities and
domestic power projects and our generation operations
and maintenance services.

In December 2006, we completed the sale of these gas-

fired plants:

tapaciry 7

Faciliy - (MW Unit Type . Location
High Deserr 830 Combined Cycle California
Rio Nogales 800 Combined Cycle Texas
Holland 665 Combined Cycle illinois
University '

Park 300 Peaking [llinots
Big Sandy 300 Peaking West Virginia
Wolf Hills 250 Peaking Virginia

We discuss the sale of these gas-fired generating facilities
in Note 2.




We provide a summary of our revenues, fuel and
purchased energy expenses, and gross margin as follows:

2006 2005 2004
(Dollar amounts in millions)
Revenues:
Mid-Atlantic Region  $ 2,813.5 § 2,283% 31,9156
Plancs with Power
Purchase
Agrecments 650.5 6659 555.3
Campetitive Supply
Retail 8,014.7 6,942.3 4,280.0
Wholesale 5,612.7 4,672.3 3,353.8
Other 74.8 58.0 73.6
Toral $ 17,166.2 $ 14,6224 $10,188.3
Fuel and purchased ’
energy exponwcs:
Mid-Arlantic Region  $ (1,727.6) $ (1.436.5) 3 (946.9)
Plants with Power
Purchase .
Agreements (67.9) (72.9) (46.4)
Competitive Supply
Rewil | {7,570.2) (6.568.2} (4.011.4)
Wholesale {4,890.6) (4,124.6) (3,113.4)
Other — — —
Total $(14,256.3) $(12,301.8} $ (8.118.1)
% of % aof % of
Gross margin: .
Mid-Atlantic Region $1,0859 37% § 8474 o § 9787 47%
Plants with Power
Purchase
Agreements 582.6 20 5934 25 508.9 25
Competitive Supply
Rerail 444.5 15 274.1 12 268.6 13
Wholesale 722.1 25 547.7 24 240.4 12
Other 74.8 3 58.0 3 73.6 3
Total $2,909.9 100% £ 2,320.6 100% $ 2,070.2 100%

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified 1o conform with
the current year’s presentation.

Mid-Arlantic Region

2006 2005 2004
(In millions)
Revenues $ 2,813.5 § 22839 §$1.9256
Fuel and purchased energy
expenses . (1,727.6) (1,436.5) {946.9)
Gross margin $1,0859 % 8474 $ 978.7

The increase of $238.5 million in gross margin in 2006
compared to 2005 is primarily due to approximartely $340
million in higher gross margin mostly fram favorable portfolio.
management, including higher margins on existing contracts
and new contracts that began in 20006,

Our wholesale marketing, risk management, and rrading
operation was awarded contracts in 2006 to supply a
subsrantial portion of BGE’s standard offer service obligation to
residential customers beginning July 1, 2006 through May 31,
2007. The increase in gross margin included higher revenues
from BGE of approximately $256 million mostly from these
new contracts during 2006 compared to 2005. This increase in
gross margin was partially offset by the negative impact of
higher expenses from serving the original BGE standard offer
service obligation during the first six months of 2006 as
variable costs, including emissions and coal, continued o
increase. We discuss the expiration of the BGE residential rate
freeze in more detail in the frem |.—DBusiness—Electric
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Deregulation and Competition section. Our wholesale
markerting, risk management, and trading operation served
fixed-price standard offer service obligations to BGE residential
customers during the period from July 1, 2000 unail July 1,
2006.

These increases in gross margin were partially offset by:

4 lower CTC revenues of approximately $64 million due
to customers that completed their obligation and the
continued decline in the CTC rate, and

¢ lower generation at Calvert Cliffs, which resulted in
lower gross margin of approximately $37 million,
mostly because of a longer planned 2006 refueling
ourage that included replacement of the reactor vessel
head. .

The decrease in Mid-Atlantic Region gross margin in
2005 compared to 2004 is primarily due to rising commodicy
prices and hotter than normal weather during che third quarrer
of 2003, which resulted in higher load-serving costs. In
addiden, CTC revenues were $33.1 miltion lower during 2005
compared to 2004, These decreases in gross margin were '
partially offset by the absence of coal delivery issues that we
experienced in 2004 that had a negative impact in char period.

Plants with Power Purchase Agreements

2006 2005 2004
(I miillions}
Revenues $ 6505 $ G659 $ 5553
Fuel and purchased encrgy
expenses (67.9) (72.5) (46.4)
Gross margin $ 5826 3 5934 3§ -5089

Gross margin from our Plants with Power Purchase
Agreements decreased slightly in 2006 compared to the same
periods of 2005. This was mostly due to approximarely $14
million in lower gross margin from the University Park facility.
As discussed in the Revenues and Fuel and Purchased Energy
FExpenses section, the University Park power purchase agreement
expired in May 2006. As a result, beginning in June 2006 until
its sale in December 2006, the resules of University Park are
included in the Mid-Atlantic Region. '

The increase in gross margin from our Plants with Power
Purchase Agreements in 2005 compared to 2004 was primarily
due to: :

# higher gross margin of $71.5 million from Ginna,
which wisacquired in June 2004. This increase in
gross margin at Ginna includes an increase in revenues
of $76.9 million, and

¢ higher gross margin of $39.0 million at our Nine Mile
Point facility that benefited from higher generation
primarily due to fewer refueling ourage days, the
absence of an unplanned outage that occurred in
January 2004, and higher prices on the portion of our
output sold into the wholesale marker,

These increases in gross margin were partially offser by
$26.0 million primarily related to changes in commodity prices
that had a negative impact on realized hedging activities related
to the portion of these facilities sold into the wholesale marker.




Comperitive Supply

We analyze our rerail accrual, wholesale acerual, and mark-to-
marker competitive supply activities below.

Retail
2006 2005 2004
(In millions)
Accrual revenues $ 80006 § 69442 5 42810
Fuel and purchased energy
expenses {7,577.0) (6,688.4) (4,011.4)
Retail accrual activities 423.6 255.8 269.6
Mark-to-market activities 20.9 18.3 {1.0)
Gross margin $ 4445 $ 2741 3 2686

The increase in accrual gross margin of $167.8 million from
our retail activittes during 2006 compared to 2005 is primarily
due to:
+ approximately $158 million in higher margins
primarily due to higher electric rates and lower costs
related to our fixed-price load-serving obligations as a
result of milder weather in 2006 compared to the prior
year, and
¢ approximartely $13 m1]l|on in higher gross margin due
to higher volumes, including 3.6 million more
megawartt hours of electricity and 55 billion cubic feet
more of natural gas served to retail customers during
the year ended December 31, 2006 compared ra 2005.
The decrease in gross margin from our retail competitive
supply accrual actividies in 2005 compared te 2004 is primarily
due to:
¢ a combination of higher marker prices for elecrricity,
price volatility, and increased customer usage primarily
in Texas resulting mostly from extreme summer
weather, which increased our cost to serve our fixed- .
price load-serving obligations,
¢ the expiration of higher margin contracts, and
¢ the absence of favorable bankruprcy settlements, which
had a posttive impact in 2004,
These decreases were partially offset by serving
approximately 20 million more megawart hours in 2005
compared to 2004 mostly due to the growth of this operation.

Wholesale
2006 . 2005 2004
P e e . (Inmillions) .,
Accrual reventies $5232.7 $42818 § 32537
Fuel and purchased energy
expenses (4,890.6) (4,124.6) (3,113.4)
Wholesale accrual acrivities 342.1 157.2 140.3
Mark-to-market activities ~  380.0 390.5 100.1
Gross margin $ 7221 % 5477 5 2404

Our wholesale marketing, risk management, and trading
operation had $184.9 million of higher gross margin from
accrual activities during 2006 compared ro 2005 due to:
¢ an increase of approximately $145 million primarily
due 1o new contracts entered into during 2006 and
higher realized gross margin on existing contracts, and
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¢ an increase of approximately $85 million primarily
related to the growth in our coal and natural gas
acriviries.

These increases in gross margin were partially offset by the

following:

# 1 decrease of $24.8 million as a resulr of the inital
public offering of CED and the sale of our gas-fired
plants. As a result of these transactions, forecasted
transactions associated with cash-flow hedges were
determined 1o be probable of not occurring, and the
associated amounts previously recorded in
“Accumulated other comprehensive loss” were
reclassified irto earnings, and

¢ a decrease of approximately $20 million from contract
restructurings related to unit contingent power
purchase agreements during the year ended
December 2006 compared to 2005, The termination
and sale of these contracs has allowed us to eliminate
our exposure to performance risk under these contracts.

Our wholesale marketing, risk management, and trading

operation’s accrual gross margin was $16.9 million higher in
2005 compared to 2004 primarily due to newly originated and
realized business in power, gas, and coal in 2003, including
several contract terminations and restructurings. During 2005,
we terminated or restructured several in-the-money contracts in
exchange for upfront cash payments and a reduction or
cancellation of future performance obligations. The
termination or restructuring of two contracts allowed us ro
lower our exposure to performance risk under these contracts,
and resulted in the realization of $77.0 million of pre-tax
earnings in 2005 that would have been recognized over the life
of these contracts. These increases were partially offset by lower
gross margins of approximately $60 million mostly due 1o the
absence of several favorable irems, including settlements, power
prices, and contracts that had a positive impact in 2004.

Mark-to-Market

Mark-to-market results include net gains and losses from
origination, trading, and risk management activities for which
we use the mark-to-market method of accounting. We discuss
these activities and the mark-to-market method of accounting
in more detail in the Critical Accounting Policies section and in
Note 1.

As a result of the nature of our operations and the use of
mark!to-marker acéounting for certain activities; mark-to- -
market earnings will fluctuate. We cannot predicr these
fluctuations, but the impact on our earnings could be material.
We discuss our market risk in more detail in the Marker Risk
section. The primary factors that cause fluctuations in our
matk-to-marker results are:

+ the number, size, and profitability of new transactions
incfuding rerminations or restructuring of existing
contracts,

¢ the number and size of our open derivative paositions,
and ‘

¢ changes in the level and volatility of forward
commodity prices and interest rates.




Mark-to-market results were as follows:

2006 2005 2004
(Fnn millions)
Unrealized mark-to-market results
Origination gains $ 135 § 616 $197
Risk management and trading—
mark-ro-market
Unrealized changes in fair value 387.4 347.2 79.4
Changes in valuation techniques — — —
Reclassification of settled P
concracts to realized (372.1) (257.7} (85.4)
Total risk management and
trading—mark-ro-market 15.3 89.5 (6.0)
Total unrealized mark-ro-market* 28.8 151.1 13.7
Realized mark-to-market 372.1 257.7 85.4
Total mark-to-market results $ 4009 $ 4088 $ 99.1

* Total unrealized mark-so-market is the sum of origination transactions and
total risk management and trading—mark-to-market.

Origination gains arise primarily from contracts that our
wholesale marketing, risk management, and trading operation
structures to meet the risk management needs of our customers
ot relate to our trading activities. Transactions that result in
origination gains may be unique and provide the potential for
individually significant gains from a single transaction.

Origination gains represent the initial fair value
recognized on these structured transactions. The recognition of
origination gains is dependent on the existence of observable
market data thar validates the initial fair value of the contrace.
Origination gains arose primarily from:

¢ 3 wransactions completed in 2006, of which no

transaction contributed in excess of $10 million pre-
tax,

# G transactions completed in 2005, one of which

contributed approximarely $35 million pre-tax, and

# 7 transactions completed in 2004, of which no

transaction contributed in excess of $10 million pre-
tax.

As noted above, the recognition of origination gains is
dependent on sufficient observable marker dara thar validates
the initial fair value of the contracr. Liquidicy and marker
conditions impact our ability to identify sufficient, objective
market-price information to permit recognition of origination
gains. As a result, while our strategy and competitive position
provide the opportunity to continue to originate such
transactions, the level of origination gains we are able to
recognize may vary from year to year asa result of the number,
size, and market-price transparency of the individual
transactions executed in any period.

Risk management and trading—-mark-ro-market
represents both realized and unrealized gains and losses from
changes in the value of our portfolio, including the recognition
of gains associated with decreases in the close-out adjustment”
when we are able 1o obtain sufficient marker price informarion,
In addition, we use derivative contracts subject to mark-to-
market accounting to manage our expasute to changes in
market prices primarily as a result of our gas transportation and
storage activities, while in general the underlying physical
transactions related to our gas activities are accounted for on an
accrual basis. We discuss the changes in mark-to-market results
below. We show the relationship between our mark-to-market
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results and the change in our net mark-te-marker energy asset
on the next page.

Total mark-to-market results decreased $7.9 million in
2006 compared to 2003 because of a decrease in origination
gains of $48.1 million, mostly offset by an increase in
unrealized changes in fair value of $40.2 million. Unrealized
changes in fair value increased primarily due to higher pre-tax
gains of approximately $105 million related ro the positive
impact of certain economic hedges primarily related to gas
transportation and storage contracts that do not qualify for or
are not designared as cash-flow hedges. These mark-to-market
results will be offset as we realize the related accrual load-serving
positions in cash.’

This increase in unrealized changes in fair value was
partially offset by:

¢ 2 lower level of gains from risk management and
trading—mark-to-market activities of approximately
$45 million, and ‘

# the absence of a $19.5 million favorable impact related
to changes in the close-out adjustment in 2006
compared to 2005. The close-out adjustments are
determined by the change in open positions, new
transactions where we did not have observable marker
price information, and existing transactions where we
have now observed sufficient market price information
and/for we realized cash flows since the transactions’
inception. We discuss the close-out adjustment in more
deail in the Critical Accounting Policies section.

Total mark-to-market results increased $309.7 million in

2005 compared to 2004 due to:

# approximately $260 million primarily related to a
higher level of risk management and trading acrivides,
Increases in our gas and coal activities, higher
commodiry price volatility, and greater market
liquidity resulted in more opportunities to deploy risk
capital and to earn additional rerurns in 2005
compared to 2004. These items resulted in an
increased number of transactions that were entered into
and realized during 2005 and a higher level of open
positions that resulted in increased gains in 2005
compated to 2004. During 2005, slightly more than
half of the mark-to-market results were derived from
power, approximately one-third from gas, and the
remainder from other transactions.

¢ $41.9 million related to a higher level of origination
gains as discussed above, and

+ $49.9 million related 1o the decrease in the close-out
adjustment during 2005 compared to the prior year for
transactions that we have now observed sufficient
market price information and/or we realized cash flows
since the transactions’ inception.

These increases in mark-to-market results were parnal]y
offset by the impact of $41.5 million of higher mark-to-marker
losses on certain economic hedges that did not qualify for cash-
flow hedge accounting treatment, Changing forward prices
resulr in shifting value between accrual contracts and the
associated mark-to-marker positions of certain contracts in
New England that contain fuel adjustment clauses and gas
transportation contract hedges, producing a timing difference
in the recognition of earnings on these transactions. These




mark-to-market hedges are economically effective; however,
they do not qualify for cash-flow hedge accounting under SFAS
No. 133. As a result, we recorded $41.2 million ofpre tax
losses in 2005 and $0.3 million of pre-tax gams in 2004, These
matk-to-market gains and losses will be offset’as we realize the
related accrual load-serving positions in cash.

Mark-to-Marker Energy Assets and Liabilities
Our mark-to-markert energy assets and liabilities are comprised
of derivative contracts. While some of our mark-to-market
contracts represent commodities or instruments for which
prices are available from external sources, other commodities
and certain contracts are not actively traded and are valued
using other pricing sources and modeling techniques ro
determine expecred future marker prices, contract quanrities, or
both. We discuss our modeling techniques later in chis section.
Mark-to-market energy assets and liabilities consisted of
the following;

2005

At December 31, 2006
; (In millions)

Current Assets $1,294.8  §$1,339.2
Noncurrent Assets 623.4 1,089.3
Total Assets 1,918.2 2,428.5
Current Liabilities 1,071.7 1,348.7
Noncurrent Liabilities 392.4 912.3
Toual Liabilities 1,464.1 2,261.0
Net mark-to-market energy asset $ 454.1 § 167.5

The following are the primary sources of the change in
net mark-to-market energy asset during 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005

(In millions)

Fair value bcginning ofycar $167.5 $ 52.4
Changes in fair value recorded in
earnings
Origination gains
Unrealized changes in fair
value
Changes in valuation
techniques
Reclassification of settled

contracts to realized

$ 135 § 6lo

387.4 347.2

(372.1) (257.7)
Total changes in fair value |
recorded in earnings . .,

Changes in value of

. \ TR -
..i 288, o ., 1511

ee b

exchange-listed futures and

op[ions 277.8 {1199
Net change in premiums on

options (29.8) 79.7
Contracts acquired — 17.4
Other changes in fair value 9.8 (13.2)
Fair value at end of year $454.1 $ 167.5
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Changes in the ner mark-to-market energy asset that
affected earnings were as follows:

4 Origination gains represent the initial unrealized fair

. valuc at the time these contracts are executed to the
extent permiceed by applicable accounding rules,

4 Unrealized changes in fair value represent unrealized
changes in commodity prices, the volatility of options
on commodities, the time value of options, and other
valuation adjustments.

4 Changes in valuation techniques represent
improvements in estimarion techniques, including
modeling and other statistical enhancements used 1o
value our portfolio to reflect more accurately the
economic value of our contracts.

# Reclassification of settled contracts to realized
represents the portion of previously unrealized amounts
settled during the period and recorded as realized
tevenues. :

The net mark-ro-market energy asset also changed due to
the following items recorded in accounts other than in our
Consolidated Statements of Income:

# Changes in value of exchange-listed futures and
options are adjustments to remove unrealized revenue
from exchange-traded contracts thavare included in
risk management revenues. The fair value of these
contracts is recorded in “Accounts receivable” rather |
than “Mark-to-market energy assets” in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets because these amounts are
settled through our margin account with a third-parry
broker.

+ Nex changes in premlums on opuons refleces the
accounting for premiums on options purchased as an
increase in the net mark-to-market energy asset and
premiums on oprions sold as a decrease in the net
mark-to-market energy asset.

4 Contracts acquired represents the initial fair value of
acquired derivative contracts recorded in
“Mark-to-market energy assets.”
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The settlement terms of our nec mark-to-market energy asset and sources of fair value as of December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Settlernent Term

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter  Fair Value
\ {In millions)
Prices provided by external sources (1) $192.7 $2055 $61 $270 $54 $87 $34 $448.8
Prices based on models 304 0 (0.9 (.0)  (136) (6.9 (5.3) 2.6 5.3
Total net mark-to-market energy asset $223.1 $204.6 $51 $ 134 3(.3) $34 $6.0 $454.1

(1) Includes contracts actively quoted and concracts valued from other external sources.

We manage our mark-to-market risk on a portfolio basis
based upon the delivery period of our contracts and the
individual components of the risks within each contract.
Accordingly, we record and manage the energy purchase and
sale obligations under our contracts in separate components
based upon the commodiry (e.g., electricity or gas), the product
(e.g., electricity for delivery during peak or off-peak hours), the
delivery location (e.g., by region), the risk profile (e.g., forward
or option), and the delivery petiod {e.g., by month and year).
Consistent with our risk management practices, we have
presented the information in the rable above based upon the
ability to obtain reliable prices for components of the risks in
our contracts from external sources rather than on a contract-
by-contract basis. Thus, the portion of long-term contracts that
is valued using external price sources is presented under the
caption “prices provided by external sources.” This is consistent
with how we manage our risk, and we believe it provides the
best indication of the basis for the valuation of our portfolio.
Since we manage our risk on a portfolio basis rather than
contract-by-contract, it is not practicable to determine
separately the portion of long-term contracts that is included in
each valuation category. We describe the commodities,
products, and delivery periods included in each valuarion
category in desail below.
The amounts for which fair value is determined using
« prices provided by external sources represent the portion of
forward, swap, and option contracts for which price quotations
are available through brokers or over-the-counter transactions.
The term for which such price information is available varies by
commodiry, region, and product. The fair values included in
this category are the following portions of our conrracts:
¢ forward purchases and sales of electricity during peak
and off-peak hours for delivery terms primarily through
2010, but up to 2012, depending upon the region,

¢ options for the purchase and sale of electricity during
peak hours for delivery terms through 2008, depending
upon the region,

¢ forward purchases and sales of electric capacity for

delivery terms primarily through 2007, bur up to 2008,
depending on the region,

# forward purchases and sales of natural gas, coal, and ol

for delivery terms through 2011, and

4 options for the purchase and sale of natural gas, coal,

and oil for delivery terms through 2008,

The remainder of the net mark-to-market energy asset is
valued using models. The portion of contracts for which such
techniques are used includes standard products for which

_external prices are not available and customized producrs that
are valued using modeling techniques to determine expected
future marker prices, contract quantities, or both.

.
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Modeling techniques include estimating the present value
of cash flows based upon underlying contractual terms and
incorporate, where appropriate, option pricing models and
statistical and simulation procedures. Inputs 1o the models
include: . -

# observable market prices, "

& estimared market prices in the absence of quoted

market prices,

¢ the risk-free market discount rate,

¢ volatility factors,

# estimated correlation of energy commodity prices, and

4 expected generation profiles of specific regions.

Additionally, we incorporate counterparty-specific credit
quality and factors for market price and volatility uncerainty
and other risks in our valuation. The inputs and factors used to
determine fair value reflect management’s best estimates.

The electricity, fuel, and other energy contracts we hold
have varying terms to maturiry, ranging from contracts for
delivery the next hour to contracts with terms of ten years or
more. Because an active, liquid electricity futures market
comparable to that for other commodiries has not developed,
the majority of contracts used in the wholesale marketing, risk
management, and trading operation are direct contracts
between markert participants and are not exchange-traded or
financially settling contracts that can be readily liquidated in
their entirety through an exchange or other market mechanism.
Consequently, we and other market participants generally
realize the value of these contracts as cash flows become due or
payable under the terms of the contracts rather than through
selling or liquidating the contracts themselves.

Consistent with our risk management practices, the
amounts-shown in the table above as being valued using prices
from cxternal sources include the portion of long-term
contracts for which we can obtain reliable prices from external
sources. The remaining portions of these long-term contracts |
are shown in-the table ds being valued using models. In order
realize the entire value of a long-term contract in a single
transaction, we would need o sell or assign the entire contract.
IF we were to sell or assign any of our long-term contracts in
their entirety, we may realize an amount different from the
value reflected in the table. However, based upon the nature of
the wholesale marketing, risk management, and trading
operation, we generally expect to realize the value of these
contracts, as well as any contracts we may enter into in the
future to manage our risk, over time as the contracts and
related hedges sertle in accordance with their terms. In general,
we do not expect to realize the value of these contraces and
related hedges by selling or assigning the contracts themselves
in total.
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The fair values in the rable represent expected future cash
flows based on the level of forward prices and volatility factors
as of December 31, 2006 and could change significantly as a
result of future changes in these factors. Additionally, because
the depth and liquidity of the power markets'vary substantially
between regions and time periods, the prices used to determine
fair value could be affected significantly by the volume of
transactions executed.

Management uses its best estimates to determine the fair
value of commodiry and derivative contracts it holds and sells.
These estimates consider various factors including closing
exchange and over-the-counter price quotarions, time value,
volatility factors, and credit exposure. However, future market
prices and actual quantities will vary from those used in
recording mark-to-market energy assces and liabilities, and it is
possible thar such variations could be marerial.

Risk Management Assets and Liabifities

We record derivatives that qualify for designation as hedges
under SFAS No. 133 in “Risk management assets and
liabilities” in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Qur risk
management assets and liabilities consisted of the following:

At December 34, - 2006 2005
(In millions)

Current Assets $ 2617 $1,2443

Noncurrent Assets 325.7 626.0

Total Assets 587.4 1,870.3

Current Liabilities 1,340.0 483.5

- Noncurrent Liabilities 707.3 1,035.5

Total Liabilities 2,047.3 1,519.0
Net risk management (liabiliry)

asset $(1,459.9) $ 351.3

The decrease in our net risk management asset of $1.8
billion since December 31, 2005 was due primarily to decreases
in power prices that reduced the fair vatue of our cash-flow
hedgé pasitions and the setdement of cash-flow hedges during
2006. A decrease in the fair value of our cash-flow hedges
indicates an increase in value of the accrual positions to which
these hedges are relared.

!2!'!28?’
2006 2005 2004
In millions)
Revenues $74.8 $58.0 $73.6

Qur merchant energy business holds up to a 50% voting
interest in 24 operating domestic energy projects that consist of
electric generation, fuel processing, or fuel handling facilities.
Of these 24 projects, 17 are “qualifying Facilicies” that receive
certain exemptions based on the facilities’ energy source or the
use of a cogeneration process. Earnings from our investments
were $13.8 million in 2006, $3.6 million in 2005, and

$18.0 million in 2004.

]
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Our investment in qualifying facilities and domestic
power projects consisted of the following:

Book Value at December 31, 2006 2005
T (In millions)

Project Type
Coal $125.7 %1278
Hydroelectric - 55.1 55.9
Geothermal 40.5 43.7
Biomass 46.6 48.0
Fuel Processing 33.7 23.8
Solar 7.0 7.0

Total $308.6 $306.2

We believe the current market conditions for our
equity-method investments that own geothermal, coal,
hydroelectric, and fuel processing projects provide sufficient
positive cash flows to recover our investments, We
continuously monitor issues that potentially could impact
future profitability of these investments, including
environmental and legislative initiatives. We discuss certain
risks and uncertainties in more detail in our Forward Looking

Statements and ltem 1A. Risk Factors secions. However, should

future events cause these investments to become uneconomic,
our investments in these projects could become impaired under
the provisions of APB No. 18.

The ability to recover our equity- and cost-method
investments that own biomass and solar projects is partially
dependent upon subsidies from the State of California. Under
the California Public Utility Act, subsidies currently exist in
that the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC)
requires load-serving entities to identify a separate rate
component to be collected from customers to fund the
development of renewable resources technologies, including
solar, biomass, and wind facilities. In addition, legislation in
California requires that each load-serving entity increase its
total procurement of eligible renewable energy resources by ar
least one percent per year so that 20% of its rertail sales are
procured from eligible renewable energy resources by 2017.
The legislation also requires the California Energy Commission
10 award supplemental energy payments to load-serving entities
to cover above-market costs of renewable energy.

Given the need for electric power and the desire for
renewable resource technologies, we believe California will
continue to subsidize the use of renewable energy to make these
projects economical to operate. However, should the Califoenia
legislarion fail to adequately support the renewable energy
initiatives, our equity-method investments in these types of
projects could become impaired under the provisions of APB
No. 18, and any losses recognized could be material.

Operaring Expenses
Our merchant energy business operating expenses increased
$203.3 million in 2006 compared to 2005 mostly due to the
following:
# an increase of $139.2 million at our competitive supply
operations primarily related to higher labor and benefit
costs and the impact of inflation on other costs,




# an increase of $22.7 million at our upstream gas
operations, primarily due to acquisitions made in
June 2005, and

# an increase of approximately $18 million at our
generating facilities, which includes higher expenses
associated with longer planned ourages, offser in part
by lower expenses that resulted from our productivicy
initiatives. ‘

Qur merchant energy business operating expenses
increased $196.2 million in 2005 compared to 2004 mostly
due to the following: .

# an increase of $101.8 million at our wholesale
marketing, risk management, and trading operation
due to an increase in compensation and benefit costs
including our expanding gas and coal operations,

# an increase of $81.5 million from Ginna, which was
acquired in June 2004,

# an increase of $26.5 million at our retail operation
primarily related to a $10.8 million increase in
uncollectible expenses and a $8.7 million increase in
aggregaror fees,

¢ an increase of $17.3 million at our gas-fired generating .
facilities primarily due tw increased corporate overhead
expenses, and

¢ an increase of $13.0 million at Calvert Cliffs primarily
due to an increase in corporate overhead expenses,
partially offset by fewer employees and a shorter
refueling outage in 2005.

These increases in expense were partially offser by lower
operating expenses of $56.5 million at Nine Mile Point
primarily due to lower refueling outage expenses and a lower
number of employees and contractors.

Workforce Reduction Costs

Our merchant energy business recognized expenses assaciated
with our workforce reduction efforts as discussed in more detail
in Note 2.

Merger-Related Costs
We discuss costs relared to the merger with FPL Group, which
has been terminated, in Note 15,

Depreciation, Depletion, and Amortization Expense
Merchant energy depreciation, depletion, and amortization °
expenses increased $28.5 million in 2005 compared to 2004
mostly due to:
# $10.2 million related to our South Carolina synthetic
fuel faciliry,
+ $8.8 million related ro Ginna, which was acquired in
June 2004, and
¢ $6.0 million increase related to our 2005 investments
in gas producing facitities.

Accretion of Asset Retirement Obligations

The increase in accretion expense of $8.9 million in 2005
compared to 2004 is primarily due to Ginna which was
acquired in June 2004 and the impact of normal
compounding,

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes ‘

Merchant energy raxes other than income taxes increased
$13.3 million in 2006 compared to 2005 mostly due to

$5.3 million relared to higher gross receipts taxes at our retail

- competitive supply operation and $3.1 million related to our
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working interests in gas producing properties.

Merchant energy taxes other than income taxes increased
$23.4 million in 2005 compared to 2004 mostly due to
$19.6 million related to higher gross receipts taxes at our retail
electric operation and $4.0 million related to property taxes for
Ginna. ' :

Regulated Electric Business .
Our regulated electric business is discussed in detail in ftem 1.
Business— Electric Business section,

Results
2006 2005 2004
(In millions)

Revenues $ 2,1159 §$ 2,0365 $ 1,967.7
Electricity purchased

for resale expenses  (1,167.8)  (1,068.9) (1,034.0)
Operarions and

maintenance

expenses (351.3) (318.4) (304.2)
Merger-related costs (3.3) (4.0 —
Depreciarion and

amortization (181.5) (185.8) (194.2)
Taxes other than

income taxes (134.9) {135.3) (132.8)
[ncome from

Operations $ 2771 % 3241 $ 3025
Net Income $ 1202 $ 1494 § 131.1
Other Items Included in Operations (afier-tax)

Merger-related costs  $ {0.8) $ (3.7) § —

Above amounts include intercompany transactions eliminated in our
Consolidated Financial Statements. Note 3 provides a reconciliation
of operating results by segment to our Consolidated Financial
Statements,

Net income from the regulated electric business decreased
$29.2 million in 2006 compared to 2005 mostly because of the
following:

¢ increased operations and maintenance expenses of

" $19.9 million after-tax mostly due ro higher labor and
benefit costs and- incremental costs associated with
2006 storms, and

# decreased revenues less electricity purchased for resale

expenses of $11.8 million afrer-tax.

Net income from the regulated electric business increased
$18.3 million in 2005 compared to 2004 mostly because of the
following: '

4 increased revenues less electricity purchased for resale

expenses of $20.7 million after-rax,

# decreased depreciation and amortization expense of

$5.1 millicn after-tax, and

¢ increased other income primarily due to gains on the

sales of land of $3.6 million after-tax.




PR
e e . L
. ..1‘1\:‘; g A et Ly

These favorable results were partially offser by the

following:

# increased operations and maintenance expenses of
$8.7 million after-tax mostly due to higher labor and
benefit costs and the impact of inflation on other costs,
and

& merger-related transaction costs of $3.7 ‘million afier-
rax.

Electric Revenues
The changes in electric revenues in 2006 and 2005 compared
to che respective prior year were caused by:

2006 2005
(In millions)
Distribution volumes $ (40.9) 521.3
Standard offer service 433.7 38.8
Rate stabilization credits (321.9) —
Total change in electric revenues from
electric system sales 70.9 60.1
Other 8.5 8.7
Toral change in electric revenues $ 794 §$68.8

Disrribution Volumes
Distnibution volumes are the amount of electricity that BGE
delivers to customers in its service territory.

The percentage changes in our electric system distribution
volumes, by type of customer, in 2006 and 2005 compared to
the respective prior year were:

2006 2005
Residential (6.4)% 3.4%
Commercial (0.6) 5.1
Industrial (7.5) (6.4)

In 2006, we distribured less electricity to residential
customers mostly due to milder weather and decreased usage
per castomer, partially offset by an increased number of
customers. We distributed less electricity to commercial
customers mostly due to milder weather, partially offset by an
increased number of customers and increased usage per
customer. We distribured less electricity to industrial cuscomers
mostly due to decreased usage per customer.

In 2005, we distributed more electricity to residential
customers compared to 2004 mostly due to warmer summer
weather and an increased number of customers. We distribured
more electricity to commercial customers mostly due to
increased usage per customer, an increased number of
customers, and warmer summer weather. We distributed less
electricity to industrial customers mostly due to decreased usage
per customer.

Standard Qffer Service

BGE provides standard offer service for customers that do not
select an alternative supplier. We discuss the provisions of
Maryland’s Senate Bill 1 related to residential electric rates in
the Jtem 1. Busines— Electric Regulatory Matters and
Competition section.

Standard offer service revenues were higher in 2006
compared to 2005 mosily due to an increase to market prices in
the standard offer service rates due to the expiration of the
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residential rate freeze in July 20006, partially offset by lower
standard offer service volumes.
Standard offer service revenues increased in 2005

compared to 2004 mostly because of increased standard offer
service volumes to residential customers and increased standard
ofter service rates for all customers partially offser by lower
standard ' 6ffer service volumes associated with those
commercial and industrial customers thar elected alternative
suppliers beginning July 1, 2004,

Rate Stabilization Credits

As a resule of Senate Bill 1, we are required to defer a portion of
the full marker rate increase during the eleven month pericd
from July 1, 2006 unil May 31, 2007 for recovery in the
future. Therefore, the increase in standard offer service
revenues is partially offset by rate stabilization credits in order
to reduce rates for residential customers from market price to
the approved increase of 15% in Senate Bill 1.

Electricicy Purchased for Resale Expenses

Electricity purchased for resale expenses include the cost of
electricity purchased for resale o our standard offer setvice
customers, These costs do not include the cost of electricity
purchased by delivery service only customers. The following
rable summarizes our regulated electricity purchased for resale
expenses:

2006 2005 2004
v (In millions)
Actual costs - $1,48%.7 $1,0689 $1,034.0
Deferrai under rare :
stabilization plan (321.9) — —
Electricity purchased
for resale expenses $1,167.8 $1,0689 $1,034.0

Actual Costs

BGE’s actual costs for electricity purchased for resale increased
$420.8 million in 2006 compared to 2005 due to higher
conerace prices to purchase electricity resulting from the
expiration of contracts that were executed in 2000 as part of the
implementation of electric deregulation in Maryland, partally
offset by lower standard offer service volumes.

BGE’s actual costs for electricity purchased for resale
increased $34.9 million in 2005 compared to 2004 mostly
because of increased standard offer service volumes to
residential customers and higher costs to serve all standard offer
service customets, partially offset by lower electricity purchased
for resale expenses associated with commercial and industrial

customers thar elected alternative suppliers beginning July 1,
2004.

Deferral under Rate Stabilization Plan

We defer the difference between our acrual costs of elecrricity
purchased for resale and what we are allowed o bill customers
under Senate Bill 1. In 2006, we deferred $321.9 million in
electricity purchased for resale expenses. These deferred
expenses, plus carrying charges, are included in “Regulatory
Assets (ner)” in our, and BGE’s, Consolidated Balance Sheets.
We discuss the provisions of Senate Bill 1 related to residential




electric rates in the frem 1. Business—Electric Regulatory Marers
and Competition section.

Electric Operations and Maintenance Expenses
Regulated electric operations and maintenance expenses
increased $32.9 million in 2006 compared to 2005 mostly due
to higher labor and benefit costs and the impact of inflation on
other costs and $13.1 million of incremental distribution
service restoration expenses associated with 2006 storms.
Regulated electric operations and maintenance expenses
increased $14.2 million in 2005 compared to 2004 mostly due
to higher labor and benefit costs and the impact of inflation on
other costs.

Merger-Related Transaction Costs
We discuss costs related to the merger with FPL Group, which
has been terminaced, in Vote 15.

Electric Depreciation and Amortization Expensc

Regulared electric depreciation and amortization expense
decreased $4.3 million in 2006 compared to 2005 mostly
because of the absence of $6.9 million amortization expense
associated with certain software, partially offset by $3.0 million
related to additienal property placed in service.

Regulated electric depreciation and amortization expense
decreased $8.4 million in 2005 compared to 2004 mostly
because of the absence of $12.6 million of accelerated
amortization expense associated with certain information
technology assets replaced in 2004, partially offset by
$4.2 million related to additional property placed in service.

Regulated Gas Business
Qur regulated gas business is discussed in detail in frem 1.
Business—Gas Business section.

Resules
2006 2005 2004
(I millions)
Revenues $ 899.5 §$9728 §757.0
Gas purchased for resale o
expenses (581.5), (687.5)  (484.3)
Operations and
maintenance expenses (144,8) (131.8) (123.6) -
Merger-related costs (1.4) (1.4) —
Depreciation and
" amortization *(46.0) (46.6) (48.1)
Taxes other than income ’
taxes (33.8) (33.1) (32.1)
Income from Operations $ 920 § 724 % 689
Ner Income $ 370 $ 267 § 222
Other ftems Included in Operations (after-tax)
Merger-related costs $ (04 $ (13 § —

Above amounts include intercompany trarisactions eliminated in
aur Consolidated Financial Statements. Note 3 provides a
reconciliation of operating results by segment to our Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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Net income from the regulated gas business increased
%10.3 million in 2006 compared o 2005 mostly due ro
increased revenues less gas purchased for resale expenses of
$19.8 million after-tax, which was primarily due to the increase
in gas base rates that was approved by the Maryland PSC in
December 2005, This increase was parrially offset by higher
operations and maintenance expenses of $7.9 million after-tax.
Net income from our regulated gas business was about the
same in 2005 compared 10 2004.

Gas Revenues
The changes in gas revenues in 2006 and 2005 compared to
the respective prior year were caused by:

2006 2005
(In millions)
Diseribution volumes $ (38.0) $.39
Base rates 33.4 2.6
Revenue decoupling 28.4 2.5
Gas cost adjustments (112.3) 129.1
Total change in gas revenues from gas
system sales | (885) 138.1
Off-system sales 13.9 77.5

Qther 1.3 0.2
Total change in gas revenues $ (73.3) $215.8

The percentage changes in our distribution volumes, by type of
customer, in 2006 and 2005 compared to the respective prior

year were: .

2006 2005
Residential (17.0)% (1.3)%
Commaercial (13.3)  (9.0)
Industrial 3.2 33.6

In 2006, we distributed less gas to residential and
commercial customers compared to 2005 mosty due to milder
weather and decreased usage per cuscomer, pardally offser by an
increased number of customers. We distributed more gas to
industrial customers mostly due to increased usage per
customer.

In 2005, we distributed less gas to residental and
commercial customers compared to 2004 mostly due to
decreased usage per customer partially offset by colder winter
weather and an increased number of customers. We distributed
more gas to industrial customers mostly due ro increased usage
per customer.

Base Rates

In December 2003, the Maryland PSC issued an order granting
BGE 2 $35.6 million annual increase in its gas base rates. In
December 2006, the Baltimore City Circuit Court upheld the
rate order. However, certain parties have filed an appeal with
the Court of Special Appeals. We cannot provide assurance that
the Maryland PSC’s order will not be reversed in whole or in
part or that certain issues will not be remanded to the
Maryland PSC for reconsideration.




Revenye Decoupling
The Maryland PSC allows us to record a monthly adjustment

to our gas distribution revenues to eliminate the effect of
abnormal weather patterns on our gas distriburion volumes.
This means our monthly gas distribution reventes are based on
weather that is considered “normal” for the month and,
therefore, are not affected by actual wearher conditions.

Gas Cost Adjustrments

We charge our gas customers for the narural gas they purchase

from us using gas cost adjustment clauses set by the Maryland
PSC as described in Nore 1. However, under the market-based
rates mechanism approved by the Maryland PSC, our actual
cost of gas is compared to a market index (a measure of the
marker price of gas in a given period). The difference between
our actual cost and the market index is shared equally between
shareholders and customers. ,

Customets who do not purchase gas from BGE are not
subject to the gas cost adjustment clauses because we are not
selling gas ro them. However, these customers are charged base
rates to tecover the costs BGE incurs to deliver cheir gas
through our distribution system, and are included in the gas
distriburion volume revenues.

Gas cost adjustment revenues decreased in 2006
compared to 2005 because we sold less gas at lower prices.

(as cost adjustment revenues increased in 2005 compared
to 2004 because we sold more gas at higher prices.

Off System Sales

Off-gystem gas sales are low-margin direcr sales of gas to
wholesale suppliers of natural gas. Off-system gas sales, which
occur after BGE has satisfied its customers’ demand, are not
subject to gas cost adjustments. The Maryland PSC approved
an arrangement for pare of the margin from off-system sales wo
benefit customers (through reduced costs) and the remainder to
be retained by BGE (which benefits shareholders). Changes in
off-system sales do not significantly impact earnings.

Revenues from off-system gas sales increased in 2006
compared to 2005 because we sold more gas, partially offsec by
lower prices.

Revenues from off-system gas sales increased in 2005
compared to 2004 because we sold more gas ar higher prices,

Gas Purchased For Resale Expenses
- Gas purchased for resale expenses include the cost of gas
purchased for resale to our customers and for off-system sales,
These costs do not include the cost of gas purchased by
delivery service only customers.

Gas purchased for resale expenses decreased
$106.0 million in 2006 compared to 2005 because we
purchased less gas at lower prices.

Gas purchased for resale expenses increased in 2005
compared to 2004 because we purchased more gas at higher
PrlCCS.

Gas Operations and Maintenance Expenses

Reguiated gas operations and maintenance expenses
increased $13.0 millien in 2006 compared to 2005 mostdy
due to higher labor and benefit costs and the impact of
inflation on other costs.
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Regulated gas operations and maintenance expenses
increased $8.2 million in 2005 compared to 2004 mostly due
to higher compensation and benefir costs and the impact of
inflarion en other costs.

Merger-Related Transaction Costs
We discuss costs related ro the merger with FPL Group, which
has been terminated, in Nezte 15.

Other Nonregulated Businesses

Results
2006 2005 2004
(Tn millions)

Revenues $ 231.0 % 207.0 $ 2011
Operating expenses (173.1)  (156.2) (180.0)
Merger-related costs (0.5} {0.4) —
Depreciation and

amortization (37.7) (40.2) (24.2)
Taxes other than income

taxes (2.0} {2.0) (2.4)
Income (Loss) from :

Operations - $ 177§ 82 § (55)

Income (Loss} from
continuing operations
and before cumulative
effects of changes in
accounting principles

(after-tax) . $ 113 $§ 04 % (129
Income from
discontinued )
operations (after-tax) 0.9 20.6 9.4
Cumulative effects of
changes in accounting
principles (after-tax) — 0.2 —
Net Income {Loss) $ 122 % 212 % (3.5)
Orher Items Included In Operations (after-tax)
Merger-related costs $ 02 § (0.2 § —

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation. Above amounts include
intereompany transactions eliminated in our Consolidated
Financial Statemenss. Note 3 provides a reconciliation of operating
results by segment to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Net income from our other nonregulared businesses decreased
$9.0 million in 2006 compared to 2005 primarily due 1o a
$19.7 million decrease in income from discontinued
operations, partially offset by a $10.7 million increase in net
income from our remaining other nonregulated businesses,
including an increase in net income from our continued
liquidation of our real estite investménts.

Net income from our other nonregulated businesses
increased $24.7 million in 2005 compared to 2004 primarily
due to:

¢ 2 $16.1 million after-tax gain on sale of Constellation

Power International Investments, Ltd., which held our
other nonregulated internarional investments, in
Ocrober 2005, and

4 2 $13.2 million after-tax increase in net income from

the continued liquidation of our financial investments.




These increases were partially offset by $4.9 million lower
net income from our other nonregulated international
investments due to their sale in October 2005. We discuss the
sale of our other nonregulated international investments in
more detail in Note 2,

In 2001, we decided to sell certain non-core assets and
accelerate the exit strategies on other assets that we continued
to hold and own. While our inctent is to dispose of these
remaining non-core assets, market condirions and other events
beyond our control may affect the actual sale of these assets. In
addition, a future decline in the fair value of these assets could
resulr in losses that could have a material impact on our
financial results.

Consolidated Nonoperating Income and Expenses

Gain ont Initial Public Offering of CEP LLC

In November 2006, CEP, a limited liability company formed
by Constellation Energy, completed an initial public offering of
5.2 million common units at $21 per unit. As a result of the
initial public offering of CEP, we recognized a pre-tax gain of
$28.7 million, or $17.9 million after recording deferred raxes
on the gain. We discuss the initial public offering of CEP in
more dertail in Note 2.

Other Income
Other income increased $40.0 million in 2005 compared to
2004 primarily because of higher interest and investment
income due to a higher cash balance and higher
decommissioning trust asset earnings and gains on the sales of
land at BGE.

Total other income at BGE increased $12.3 million in
2005 compared to 2004 primarily due to approximately
$7 million of gains on the sales of land.

Fixed Charges

Toral fixed charges increased $18.5 million mostly because of a
higher level of debt outstanding, including commercial paper
borrowings, and higher interest rates in 2006 compared to
2005.

Total fixed charges decreased $16.6 million in 2005
compared to 2004 mostly because of the benefit of lower
interest rates due to interest rate swaps entered into during the
third quarter of 2004 and a lower level of debt outstanding, We
discuss the interest rate swaps in more detail in Noze 13.
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Total fixed charges for BGE increased $9.1 million in
2006 compared to 2005 mostly because of a higher level of
debt outstanding. Toral fixed charges for BGE decreased
$2.7 million in 2005 compared to 2004 mostly because of a
lower level of debt outstanding,

Income Taxes

The differences in income taxes result from a combination of -
the changes in income and the impact of the fecognition of rax
credits on the effective tax rate. We include an analysis of the
changes in the effective tax rate in Note 10.

Total income taxes increased $187.1 milion in 2006
compared to 2005 primarily due ro a higher level of pre-tax
income, including the gain on sale of gas-fired plants and the
gain on initial public offering of CEP, as well as a decrease in
synthetic fuel tax credits. We discuss all of these events in the
Significant Events section.

Total income taxes increased $45.5 million in 2005
compared to 2004 primarily due to the recognition of $35.9
million in synthetic fuel tax credits in 2004 related to 2003
production.

Total income taxes for BGE decreased $17.7 million in
2006 compared to 2005 mostly due to lower pre-tax income,

Total income taxes for BGE increased $17.4 million in
2005 compared to 2004 mostly due to higher pre-tax income.

Defined Benefir Obligations
We expect to contribute $125 million to our pension plans in
2007. .

At December 31, 2006, we recorded a net after-tax charge
to “Accumulated other comprehensive income™ of $93.9
million, This ner after-tax charge was a result of the following:

4 reducing our additional minimum pension liability,

which resulted in an increase to “Accumulated other
comprehensive income” of $75.6 million, and

# the adoprion of SFAS No. 158, Emplayers’ Accounsing

for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 106
and 132(R), which resulted in a decrease to
“Accumulated other comprehensive income” of $169.5
million.

SFAS No. 158, discussed in Note 1, creates the potential
for additional volatility in accumularted other comprehensive
income. We discuss our defined benefit obligations in more
detail in Nose 7.
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Financial Condition

Cash Flows ‘
The following table summarizes our 2006 cash flows by business segment, as well as our consolidated cash flows for 2006, 2005,
and 2004, .
2006 Segment Cash Flows Consolidated Cash Flows
Merchant  Regulated  Other 2006 2005 2004
" B {In millions)
Operating Activities
Net income $ 767.0 $157.2 $ 122 % 9364 $ 6231 $ 5397
Non-cash adjustmencs to net income 160.3 13.9 21.2 195.4 746.0 905.3
Changes in working capiral (858.0) 108.4 77.7 (671.9) (775.3) (319.6)
Defined benefit obligations* 40.5 3.4 (13.6)
“Other (0.8) {30.1) 55.8 24.9 30.0 {25.0}
Net cash provided by operating activities 68.5 249.4 166.9 525.3 627.2 1,086.8
Investing Activities
Investments in property, plant and equipment (613.4)  (332.5) (17.0) (962.9) (760.0) (703.6)
Asser acquisitions and business combinations, net of cash
acquired (137.6) — — (137.6) (237.2) (457.3)
Investment in nuclear decommissioning trust fund
securities (394.6) — — (394.6) (370.8) (424.2)
Proceeds from nuclear decommissioning trust fund '
securities 385.8 — — 385.8 353.2 402.2
Net proceeds from sale of gas-fired plants and
discontinued operations 1,630.7 — —  1,630.7 289.4 727
Issuances of loans receivable {65.4) — — (65.4) (82.8) —
Sale of investments and other assets 23.4 — 205 43.9 14.4 36.1
Contract and portfolio acquisitions (2.3) — — (2.3) (336.2) _
Other investments 57.0 10.3 {(4.8) 62.5 (44.0) (78.6)
Net cash provided by {used in) investing activities 883.6 {322.2) (1.3) 560.1  (1,174.0) _(1,152.7)
Cash flows from operating activities less cash Rows from
investing activities $ 9521 § (72.8) $165.6 1,085.4 (546.8) (65.9)
Financing Activities* . o
Net issuance (repayment) of debt '242.2 (339.6) (152.8)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 84.4 96.9 293.9
Common stock dividends paid (264.0) (228.8) (189.7)
Proceeds frem initial public offering of CEP LLC 101.3 — -—
Proceeds from contract and portfolio acquisitions 2213 1,026.9 117.5
Orther 3.5 98.1 {18.0)
Net cash provided by financing activities 1390.7 653.5 50.9
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $1,476.1 $ 1067 $. (15.0)

* Items are not allocated to the business segments because they are managed for the company as a whole.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash provided by operating activities was $525.3 million in
2006 compared to $627.2 million in 2005. This
$101.9 million decrease was primarily due to a decrease in non-
cash adjustments to net income in 2006, partially offset by
favorable changes in net income and working capiral.

Non-cash adjustments to net income decreased by
$550.6 million in 2006 compared to 2005 primarily due to the
change in deferred fuel costs of $336.6 million related mostly
to the deferred recovery of electricity purchased for resale under
the BGE rate stabilization plan. We discuss the rate
stabilization plan in more detail in the Jtem 1.—Business—
Eleceric Regularory Matters and Competition section and Nore 1.
In addition, our gains on the sale of gas-fired plants and
discontinued operations increased $177.6 million in 2006
compared to 2005. We discuss this in more deail in Noze 2.

Changes in working capital had a negative impact of
$671.9 million on cash flow from opetations in 2006
compared to a negative impact of $775.3 million in 2005. The
negative impact of $671.9 million related to working capital
was primarily due to the commodity price environment and
increased risk management and trading activities that resulted
in an increase of approximarely $630 million in net cash
collateral requirements, primarily for requirements on
exchange-sertled transactions. This increase in cash collateral
requirements was accompanied by a decrease in our letters of
credit requirements.

Cash provided by operating activities was $627.2 million
in 2005 compared to $1,086.8 million in 2004. Net income
was higher by $83.4 millicn in 2005 compared to 2004, Non-
cash adjustments to net income were $159.3 million lower in
2005 compared to 2004. The decrease in non-cash adjustments
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to net income was primarily due to the reclassification of
$72.6 million of proceeds from derivative power sales contracts
as financing activities under SFAS No. 149, Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 133 on Devivative and Hedging Activities
and $63.9 million related to the impact of discontinued
operations.

Changes in working capital had a negative impact of
$775.3 million on cash flow from operadons in 2005
compared to a negative impact of $319.6 million in 2004. The
decrease of $455.7 million was due to a $598 million
unfavorable change in working capital primarily related to our
accounts receivable, accounts payable, and fuel stocks mostly
due to higher commodity prices, increased value of emissions
credits, and business growth. This was partially offset by an
increase of $142 million of net cash collateral received, which
was alse due to higher commodity prices.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash provided by investing activities was $560.1 million in
2006 compared to cash used in investing activities

$1,174.0 million in 2005. The $1,734.1 million favorable
change in 2006 compared to 2005 was primarily due to the
increase in proceeds from sale of gas-fired plants and
discontinued operations of $1,341.3 million and a decrease of
$333.9 million in cash paid for contract and portfolio
acquisitions. We discuss contract and portfolio acquisitions in
more detail below.

Cash used in investing activities was $1,174.0 million in
2005 compared to $1,152.7 million in 2004, The slight
increase in cash used in investing activiries was mostly due ro
$336.2 million of cash paid for contract and portfolio
acquisitions and $82.8 million in issuances of loans receivable
related primarily to a customer contracr restructuring. We
discuss contract and portfolio acquisitions in more detail
below, and the customer contract restructuring is discussed in
more detail in Note 4. These increases in cash used in 2005
compared to 2004 were partially offset by less cash paid for
asset acquisitions and business combinations of $220.1 millien
in 2005 compared to 2004 and an increase in cash proceeds
from the sale of discontinued operations of $216.7 million,
primarily due to the sale of Oleander and our other
nonregulated international investments in 2005 as discussed in
more detail in Note 2.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Cash provided by financing actividies was $390.7 million in
2006 compared to $653.5 million in 2005. The decrease of
$262.8 million in cash provided in 2006 compared to 2005
was primarily due to 2 decrease in proceeds from acquired
contracts of $805.6 million, a decrease in other financing
activities of $92.6 million, and a $35.2 million increase in our
dividends paid in 2006 compared to 2005, We discuss the
proceeds from acquired contracts below. These decreases were
partially offser by a net increase in cash related o changes in
short-term borrowings and long-term debrt of $581.8 milfion
and $101.3 million in proceeds from the initial public offering
of CEP.

Cash provided by financing activities was $653.5 million
in 2005 compared to $50.9 million in 2004. The increase in
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2005 compared to 2004 was mostly due to an increase in
proceeds from contract and portfolio acquisitions of
$909.4 million. We discuss proceeds from contract and
portfolio acquisitions in more detail below. This increase in
cash provided by financing activities was partially offset by a
reduction in proceeds from issuances of commen stock, an
increase in cash used for repayments of debe, and higher
dividend payments in 2005 compared to 2004,

Contract and Portfolio Acquisitions

During 2006, 2005, and 2004, our merchant energy business
acquired several pre-existing energy purchase and sale
agreements, which generated significant cash flows ar the
inception of the contracts. These agreements had contract
prices that differed from market prices at closing, which
resulted in cash payments from the counterparty at the
acquisition of the contract. We received net cash of

$219.0 million in 2006, $690.7 million in 2003, and $117.5
million in 2004 for various contract and porefolio acquisitions.
We reflect the underlying contracts on a gross basis as assets or
liabilities in our Consclidated Balance Sheets depending on
whether they were at above- or below-marker prices at closing;
therefore, we have also reflected them on a gross basis in cash
flows from investing and financing acrivities in our
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows as follows:

2006 2004

Year ended December 31, 2005

{In millions)

Financing activities—proceeds
from contract and portfolio
acquisitions

Investing activities—contract
and portfolio acquisitions

Cash flows from contract and
pottfolio acquisitions

$221.3 $1,0269 $117.5

(2.3) (336.2)

$219.0 % 690.7 $117.5

We record the proceeds we receive to acquire energy
purchase and sale agreements as a financing cash inflow because
it constitutes a prepayment for a portion of the market price of
energy, which we will buy or sell over the term of the
agreements and does not represent a cash inflow from current
period operating activities. For those acquired contracts that are
derivacives, we record the ongoing cash flows related ro the
contract with the counterparties as financing cash inflows in
accordance with SFAS No. 149. ]

We discuss certain of these coneract and portfolio
acquisitions in more detail in Note 4 and Note 5.

Security Ratings
Independent credit-rating agencies rate Constellation Energy’s
and BGE’s fixed-income securities. The ratings indicate the
agencies’ assessment of each company’s ability to pay interest,
distributions, dividends, and principal on these securities.
These ratings affect how much it will cost each company to sell
these securities. Generally, the berter the rating, the lower the
cost of the securities to each company when they sell them.
The factors that credit rating agencies consider in
establishing Constellation Energy’s and BGE's credit ratings
include, buc are not limited to, cash flows, liquidity, business




risk profile, and the amount of debt as a component of total
capitalization.

At the date of this report, our credir ratings were as
follows:

RO

Standard

& Poors  Moody’s
\ . Rating Investors Fitch-
Group Service Ratings
Constellation Energy
Commercial Paper A-2 P-2 F-2
Senior Unsecured Debt BBB+ Baal BBB+
BGE B
Commercial Paper A-2 P-2 F-2
Mortgage Bonds A Baal A
Sentor Unsecured Debt BBB+ Baa2 A-
Trust Preferred Securities BBB- Baa3 BBB+
Preference Stock BBB- Bal BBB+

Available Sources of Funding

We continuously monitor our liquidity rcqulrcmcms and
believe that our credit facilities and access to the capital markets
provide sufficient liquidity to meet our business requirements.
We discuss our available sources of funding in more detail
below.

Constellation Energy
In addition to our cash balance, we have a commercial paper
program under which we can issue short-term notes to fund
our subsidiaries. At December 31, 2006, we had approximarely
$4,550 million of credit under several facilities. These facilities
include:
4 2 $1.0 billion 364-day credir facility expiring
October 2007,

# 2 $200.0 million 364-day credit facility expiring
December 2007,

¢ a $1.5 billion five-year revolving credit facility that
expires in March 2010,

+ 2 31.1 billion five-year revolving credit faciliry that

expires in November 2010, and

# 2 $750.0 million five-year revolving credic facility thar

expires in November 2010.

We enter into these facilities to ensure adequate liquidiry
to support our operations, Currently, we use the facilities to
issue lerters of credit primarily for our merchant energy
business. Additionally, we can borrow dlrectiy from the banks
or use the facilities to allow the issuance of commercial paper
with the exception of the $1.0 billion 364-day facility, which
only supports $500.0 million of letters of credit and the $200.0
million 364-day facility, which only supports letters of credit.

These tevolving credit facilities allow the issuance of
letters of credit up to $4,050 million. Ac December 31, 2006,
letters of credit that rotaled $1,648 million were issued under
all of our facilities, which results in approximately $2.9 billion
of unused credit facilities,

We expect 1o fund future acquisitions with an overall goal
of maintaining a strong investment grade credit profile.

Merchant Energy

In November 2006, we completed the tnittal public offering of
CEP and received $101.3 million of net cash proceeds. We
discuss the initial public offering in more detail in Note 2. We
may obeaih addirional cash by completing sales of our other
natural gas properties. Qur ability to complete these sales will
depend on market conditions, and we cannot give assurances that
these sales could be completed.

On Qctober 31, 2006, CEP entered into 2 $200.0 million
secured revolving credir facility. The credit facility will mature
on Cctober 31, 2010. We discuss this long-term facility in
more detail in Nose 9.

In December 2006, we completed the sale of our gas-fired
plants and received $1.6 billion in cash, The proceeds from the
sale are expecred to be applied to reduce debt and invest in our
business or repurchase equity. We discuss this sale in more
derail in Nore 2.

BGE

BGE currently maintains a $400.0 million five-year revolving
credit facilicy expiring in 201 1. BGE can botrow directly from
the banks or use the facilities to allow commercial paper to be
issued. As of December 31, 2006, BGE had no outstanding
commercial paper, which results in $400.0 million in unused
credit facilities.

Pursuant to Senae Bill 1, BGE is pcrmmed to recover
deferred costs associated with the residential electric rare:
deferral by issuing rate stabilization bonds after January 1, 2007
that securitize the deferred costs. In December 20006, the
Maryland PSC issued an order, which allows BGE ro issue
bonds in an aggregate principal amount of approximately $630
million, subject to adjustment. We currently intend to issue
such bonds in 2007. We discuss Senate Bill 1 in more derail in
Ttem 1. Business—Electric Regulatory Matters and Competition
section.

Other Nonregulated Businesses

1f we can get a reasonable value for our remaining real estate
projects and other investments, additional cash may be
obtained by selling them. Our ability vo sell or liquidate assets
will depend on marker conditions, and we cannot give
assurances that these sales or liquidations could be made.

Capital Resources

* Qur actual consolidated capital requirements for the years 2004
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through 2006, along with thé’estimated annual amount for
2007, are shown in the table on the next page.

We will continue to have cash requirements for:

¢ working capital needs,

# payments of interest, distributions, and dividends,

¢ capital expendiwures, and

4 the retitement of debt and redemption of preference

stock.

Capiral requirements for 2007 and 2008 include estimates
of spending for existing and anticipated projects. We
contintuously review and modify those estimates. Acrual
requirements may vary from the estimates included in the able
on the next page because of a number of factors including;

¢ regulation, legislation, and competition,

¢ BGE load requirements,




# environmental protection standards,
¢ the type and number of projects selected for
construction or acquisition, .

# the effect of market conditions on those projects,

# the cost and availability of capital,

# the availability of cash from operations, and

4 business decisions to invest in capital projects.

Our estimates are also subject to additional facters. Please
see the Forward Looking Statements and Item 1A. Risk Factors
sections.

2004 2005 2006 2007
(In millions)

Nonregulated Capital
Requirements:
Merchant energy (excludes
acquisitions}

Generation plants $182 $ 182 $ 235 § 235

MNuclear fuel 133 130 137 150

Environmental controls — 1 ‘17 330

Portfolio '

acquisitions/investments 11 231 227 550

Technologylother 129 165 152 200
Total metchant energy

capital requirements . 455 709 768 1,465
Other nonregulated capiral

requirements 42 32 21 10
Total nonregulated capiral

requirements 497 741 789 1,475

Regulated Capital

Requirements: ‘
Regulared electric 209 241 297 380
Repulated gas 56 50 63 60
Total regulated capital

requirements 265 291 360 440

Total capital requirements $762 $1,032 $1,149 $1,915

The table above does not include amounts related to pre-
acquisition capital requirements but does include post-acquisition
capital requirements. We discuss our acquisitions in more detail in
Note 15, ‘

As of the darte of this report, we have not completed our
2008 capital budgeting process, but expect our 2008 capital
requirements to be approximarely $1.7 billion.

Our environmental controls capital requirements are
affected by new rules or regulations thar require modifications
to our facilities. Based on informarion currently available to us

regarding recently issuéd regulations; we will install additional ™

air emission control equipment at certain of our coal-fired
generating facilities in Maryland and at co-owned coal-fired
generating facilities in Pennsylvania. We estimate another
$800 million of capital spending from 2008-2011 for
environmental controls. We discuss environmental matters in
more detail in frem 1. Business—Environmental Matters.

Capital Requirements
Merchant Encrgy Business
Cur merchant energy business’ capital requirements consist of
its continuing requirements, including expenditures for:
‘4 improvements to generating plants,
# nuclear fuel costs,
# upstream gas investments,
# portfolio acquisitions and other investments,

# costs of complying with the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA), Maryland, and Pennsylvania
environmental regulations and legislation, and

4 enhancements to our informarion technology
infrastructure.

Regulated Electric and Gas

Regulated electric and gas construcrion expenditures primarily
include new business construction needs and improvements to
existing facilities, including projects to improve reliability.

Funding for Capital Requirements
Merchanr Energy Business '
Funding for our merchant energy business is expected from
internally generated funds. If internally generated funds are not
sufficient to meer funding requirements, we have available
sources from commercial paper issuances, issuances of long-
term debt and equiry, leases, and other financing activities.

The projects that our merchant energy business develops
typically require substantial capiral investment. Many of the
qualifying facilities and independent power projects thar we
have an interest in are financed pritharily with non-recourse
debr that is repaid from the project’s cash flows. This debr is
collateralized by interests in the physical assets, major project
contracts and agreements, cash accounts and, in some cases, the
ownership interest in that project.

We expecr to fund acquisitions with a mixture of debe
and equity with an overall goal of maintaining a strong
investment grade credit profile.

Regulated Electric and Gas

Funding for regulated electric and gas capiral expenditures is
expected from internally generared funds. If internally
generated funds are not sufficient to meet funding
requirements, we have available sources from commercial
paper issuances, available capacity under credit facilities, the
issuance of long-term debe, rrust preferred securities, or
preference stock, and/or from time to time equity contributions
from Constellation Energy. We discuss BGE’s planned issuance
of rate stabilization bonds in the Available Sources of Funding
section. BGE also participates in a cash pool administered by
Constellation Energy as discussed in Nose /6.

Other Nonregulated Businesses

Funding for our other nonregulated businesses is expected from
internally generated funds. If internally generared funds are not
sufficient to meet' funding requirements, We have available '
sources from commercial paper issuances, issuances of long-
term debrt of Constellation Energy, sales of securities and assets,
and/or from time to time equity contributions from
Constellation Energy.

Qur ability o sell or liquidate securities and non-core
assets will depend on markert conditions, and we cannot give
assurances that these sales or liquidations could be made. We
discuss our remaining non-core assets and marker conditions in
the Results of Operations—Other Nonregulated Businesses section.

:
Contractual Payment Obligations and
Committed Amounts
We enter into various agreements that result in contractual
payment obligations in connection with our business activities.
These obligations primarily retate to our financing
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arrangements (such as long-term debt, preference stock, and
operating leases}, purchases of capacity and energy to support
the growth in our merchant energy business acrivities, and
purchases of fuel and transporaation to sarisfy the fuel
requirements of our power generating facilities.

Our toral contractual payment obligations as of
December 31, 2006, increased $2.4 billion compared to 2005 -
primarily due to an increase in fuel and rransportation
obligations and long-term debt. Our fuel and transportation
obligations increased mostly due to new coal contracts related
o our merchant energy business. Our long-term debt increased
mostly due to the issuance of BGE Notes, offset in part by
repayments made during the year. We detail our contracrual
payment obligations as of December 31, 2006 in the following:
tble:

Paym:nu
2008-  2010- ;
2007 2009 2011 Thereafter Tatal
(In millions}
Contractual Paymens Obligations
Long-term debe:'
Nonregulated
Pringipal $ 6205 § 5077 § 588 $2.2033 § 33903
Interest 183.9 333.6 286.9 1,276.1 2,080.5
Totwal 8044 8413 345.7 34794 54708
BGE
Principal 121.4 306.1 22,0 1,267.2 1,716.7
Interest 97.3 162.6 155.7 1,408.7 1,824.3
Total 2187 468.7 177.7 2,675.9 3.541.0
BGE preference )
" sock - — — 190.0 1900
Operating leases’ 186.0 2223 153.4 WL 953.3
Purchase
obligations:’
Parchased capacity
and cncrgy‘ 367.1 755.5 1718 526.0 1,920.4
Fuel and
transportation 2.866.5 1,867.3 475.9 894.4 6,104.1
Other 103.2 68.0 9.6 20.1 206.9
Other nencurrent .
liabilities: N -
Pension benefirs’ 128.8 715 144.0 — 344.3
Postretirement
and post
employment
benefits* 35.2 81.1 91.5 290.7 498.5
Toral contracrual
~__payment obligations  $4,709.9 34,3757 $1.669.6 $8474.1 $19,229.3

1 Amounts in long-tesm debt reflecs the original masurisy dase. Invessors may require us
to repay $384.3 million early through put aptions and remarketing features. Interest on
variable rate debt is included based on the December 31, 2006 forward curve for
interess rates.

2 Our operating lease commisments include future payment obligations under eertain
power purchase agreements as discussed fiirther in Note 11,

3 Consracts 1o purchase goods or services thas specify all significans terms, Amounts
related to ceviain purchase obligations are based on future purchase expectations which, »
may differ from actual purchases.

4 Our convractual obligations for purchased capacity and energy are shoun on a gross
basis for certain transactions, including both the fixed payment portions of tolling
contraces and estimated variable payments under unit-contingent power purchase
agreements.

5 Amounts related to pension benefiss reflect our current 5-year forecast for conrributions
Jor eur qualified pension plans and participans payments for our nonqualified pension
plans. Refer ve Note 7 for more detail on sur pension plans.

6 Amounss related o postretivement and postemployment benefiss are for unfunded plans
and reflect present value amounts consistent with the determinasion of the relased
liabilities recorded in our Consolidated Balance Sheets as diseussed in Note 7,

Termination of Merger with FPL Group, Inc.

In connection with the termination of the merger agreement
with FPL Group, there are contingencies relating to certain
types of transactions entered into prior to September 30, 2007,
We discuss these contingencies in Note /3.
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Liguidity Provisions’
In many cases, customers of our merchant energy bustness rely
on the credicoworthiness of Constellation Energy. A decline
below investment grade by Constellation Energy would
negatively impact the business prospects of thar operation.

We regularly review our liquidicy needs ro ensure that we
have adequate facilities available to meer collateral
requirements. This includes having liquidity available to meet
margin requirements for our wholesale marketing, risk
management, and trading operation and our retail competitive
supply activities.

We have certain agreements that contain provisions that
would require additional collateral upon credit rating decreases
in the senior unsecured debt of Constellation Energy.
Decreases in Constellation Energy’s credit ratings would not
trigger an early payment on any of our credit facilities.

Under counterparty contracts related to our wholesale
marketing, risk management, and rrading operation, we are
obligated to post collateral if Constellation Energy’s senior
unsecured credit ratings declined below established contractual
levels. Based on contractual provisions at December 31, 2006,
we estimate that if Constellation Energy’s senier unsecured
debt were downgraded we would have the following additional
collateral obligations:

Level
Below Cumulative
Credit Ravings Current Incremental Incremental
Downgraded to Rating Obligations Obligations
(In millions)
BBB/BaaZ 1 $495 3 495
BBRB-/Baa3 2 246 741
Below investment '
grade 3 547 1,288

Based on marker conditions and contractual obligations at
the time of 2 downgrade, we could be required to post
collateral in an amount that could exceed the amounts specified
above, which could be marerial. We discuss our credit ratings
in the Security Ratings section and our credit faciliies in the
Available Sources of Funding section.

The credit facilides of Constellation Energy and BGE
have limited material adverse change clauses that only consider
a material change in financial condition and are not directly
affected by decreases in credit ratings. If these clauses are
invoked, the lending institutions can decline to make new
advances or issue new letters of credit, but cannot accelerate the
payment of existing amounts outstanding. The long-term debt
indentures of Constellation Energy and BGE do not contain
material adverse change clauses or financial covenants.

Cermain credit facilities of Constellation Energy contain a
provision requiring Constellation Energy to maintain a ratio of
debrt to capitalization equal to or less than 65%. Ar
December 31, 2006, the debt 10 capiralization ratios as defined
in the credit agreements were no greater than 48%. The credit
agreement of BGE conains a provision requiring BGE to
maintain a ratio of debt to capitalization equal 1o or less than
65%. At December 31, 2006, the debt to capitalization ratio
for BGE as defined in this credit agreement was 49%. At
December 31, 2006, no amount was outstanding under this
agreement.

-3




Failure by Constellation Energy, or BGE, to comply with
these provisions could result in the acceleration of the maturity
of the debr outstanding under these facilities. The credir facilities
of Constellation Energy contain usual and customary
cross-default provisions that apply to defaults on debt by
Constellation Energy and certain subsidiaries over a specified
threshold.

The BGE credit facility also contains usual and customary
cross-default provisions that apply to defaults on debt by BGE
over a specified threshold. The indenture pursuant to which
BGE has issued and ourstanding mortgage bonds provides thar a
default under any debt instrument issued under the indenture
may cause a default of all debt outstanding under such indenture.

Constellation Energy also provides credit support 1o
Calvert Cliffs, Nine Mile Point, and Ginna to ensure these plants
have funds to meet expenses and obligations to safely operate and
maintain the plants.

Pursuant to Senate Bill 1.and an order issued by the
Maryland PSC, BGE is permitted to recover deferred costs
associated with the residential electric rate deferral after
January 1, 2007, including through the issuance of rate
stabilization bonds thar securitize the deferred costs. We discuss
Senate Bill 1 in more detail in ftem: |.—Business—Electric
Regulatory Matters and Competition section and the rate
stabilization bonds in Available Sources of Funding section.

We discuss our short-term credit facilities in Nore 8, long-
term debt in Note 9, lease requirements in Note 11, and
commitments and guarantees in Note 12.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
For financing and other business purposes, we utilize certain off-
balance sheer arrangements that are not reflected in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Such arrangements do not
represent a significant parc of our activities or a significant
ongoing source of financing.

We use these arrangements when they enable us to obtain
financing or execute commercial transactions on favorable terms.

As of December 31, 2006, we have no material off-balance sheet
arrangements including:
# guarantees with third-parties that are subject 1o the
initial recognition and measurement requirements of
FASB Interpretation No. 45, Guaranter’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness to Others,

# rerained interests in assets transferred 1o unconsolidated
entities, ,

# derivarive instruments indexed to our common stack,

and classified as equiry, or

# variable interests in unconsolidated entities that provide

financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support, or
engage in leasing, hedging or research and development
services.

At December 31, 2006, Constellation Energy had a total of
$11,277.3 million in guarantees outstanding, of which
$10,001.8 million related ro our competitive supply activities.
These 2mounts do not represent incremental consolidated
Constellation Energy obligations; rather, they primarily represent
parental guarantees of certain subsidiary obligations to third
parties. These guarantees are put into place in order to allow our
subsidiaries the flexibility needed to conduct business with
counterparties without having to post other forms of collateral.
While the stated limit of these guarantees is $10,001.8 million,
our calculated fair value of obligations for commercial
transactions covered by these guarantees was $2,190.6 million at
December 31, 2006. If the parent company was required to fund
these subsidiary obligations, the total amount based on
December 31, 2006 market prices would be $2,190.6 million.
For those guarantees related to our mark-to-market energy or
risk management liabilities, the fair value of the obligation is
recorded in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We believe it is
unlikely that we would be required to perform or incur any losses
associated with guarantees of our subsidiaries” obligations.

We discuss our other guarantees in Noe 12 and our
significant variable interests in Note 4.

Market Risk :

We are exposed 1o various risks, including, but not limited to,
energy commodity price and volatility risk, credit risk, interest
rate risk, equity price risk, foreign exchange risk, and operations
risk. Our risk management program is based on established
policies and procedures to manage these key business risks with a
strong focus on the physical nature of our business. This
program is predicated on a strong risk management culture
combined with an effective system of internal controls.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
periodically reviews compliance with our risk parameters, limits
and trading guidelines, and our Board of Directors has
established a value at risk limir. We have a Risk Management
Division that is responsible for monitoring the key business risks,
enforcing compliance with risk management policies and risk .
limits, as well as managing credit risk. The Risk Management
Division reports to the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) who provides
regular risk management updates to the Audit Committee and
the Board of Directors.
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We have a Risk Management Committee (RMC) that is
responsible for establishing risk management policies, reviewing
proccdurcs for the identification, assessment, measurement and
management of risks, and the monitoring and reporting of risk
exposures, The RMC meets on a regular basis and is chaired by
the Vice Chairman of Constellation Energy & Chairman of
Constellation Energy Commodities Group, and consists of our
Chief Executive Officer, our Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Administrative Officer, our Executive Vice President of
Corporate Strategy and Retail Competitive Supply, the
Co-Presidents & Chief Executive Officers of Constellation
Energy Commodities Group, the President of Constellation
Generation Group and the Chief Risk Officer. In addition, the
CRO coordinates with the risk management commiuees at the
major operating subsidiaries thar meet regularly to identify,
assess, and quantify material risk issues and to develop strategies
to manage these risks.




Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to changes in interest rates as a result of
financing through our issuance of variable-rate and fixed-rate
debt and cerrain related interest rare swaps. We may use
derivative instruments to manage our interest rate risks.

In December 20006, in order to manage the exposure to
fluctuarions in interest rates on variable rate debr, CEP entered
into a pay fixed and receive floating interest rate swap relating to
$16.5 million of its outstanding debt.

In July 2004, to optimize the mix of fixed and floating-rate
debt, we entered into interest rate swaps relating to

$450.0 million of our long-term debt. These fair value hedges
effectively convert our current fixed-rate debt to a floating-rate
instrument tied to the three month London Inter-Bank Offered
Rate. Includmg the $450.0 million in interest rate swaps,
approximately 14% of our long-term debr is floating-rate.

We discuss our use of derivative instruments to manage our
interest rare risk in more detail in Note 13.

The following table provides information about our debt
obligations that are sensitive to interest rate changes:

Principal Payments and Interest Rate Detail by Contractual Maturity Date

/

Fair value at
December 31,
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Tatal 2006
(Dollars in millions)
Long-term debt
Variable-rate debt 5§ — $ — 5} — $ 55 $£36.0 $ 6817 $ 7232 $ 7232
Average interest rate —9% —Y% —%  663%  3.55% 5.50% 5.52%
Fixed-rate debt $741.HA) $301.1 $512.7 $16.8 $22.5 $2,788.8 $4,383.8 $4,513.8
Average interest rate T 6.47% 6.09% G.13% 6.60% 6.63% 6.41% 6.55%

(A} Amount excludes $384.3 million of long-terin debt that contains certain put options under which lenders could potentially require us to
repay the debt prior to maturity of which $136.9 million is classified as current portion of long-term debt in our Consolidared Balance

Sheets and in our Consolidated Statements of Capitalization.

Commodity Risk .

We are exposed to the impact of market fluctuations in the price
and transporeation costs of electricity, natural gas, coal, and other
commodities. These risks arise from our ownership and
operation of power plants, the load-serving activities of BGE and
our competitive supply operations, and our origination, risk
management, and trading activities. We discuss these risks
separately for our merchant energy and our regulated businesses
below.

Merchant Energy Business

Qur merchant energy business is exposed to various risks in the
competitive marketplace thar may materially impact its financial
results and affect our earnings. These risks include changes in
commodity prices, lmbalances in supply and demand, and

operatlons l'lSk
F

Qorr':r'nadig Prices
Commodity price risk arises from:
¢ the potential for changes in the price of, and
transportation costs for, electricity, natural gas, coal, and
othet commodiries,

# the volatility of commodity prices, and

# changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

A number of factors associated with the structure and
operation of the energy markers significantly influence the level
and volatility of prices for energy commodities and relared
derivative products. We use such comodities and contracts in
our merchant energy business, and if we do not properly hedge
the associated financial exposure, this commodity price volatility
could affect our earnings. These factors include:

+ scasonal, daily, and hourly changes in demand,
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# cxtreme peak demands due ro weather conditions,

# available supply resources,

# ransportation availabiliry and reliability within and

between regions,

# location of our generating facilicies relative to the

location of our load- -serving obligations,

¢ procedures used to maintain the integrity of the phy51ca|

electrlcnty System durlng ex{reme Coﬂdltlons,

# changes in the nature and extent of federal and state

regulations, and

4 geopolirical concerns affecting global supply of oil and

natural gas.

These factors can affect energy commodity and derivative
prices in different ways and to differenc degrees. These effects
may vary throughout the country as a result of regional
differences in:

# weather conditions, C

¢ .market liquidiry,

# capability and reliability of the phy51ca] electricicy and

gas systems, and

¢ the nature and extent of electricity deregulation.

Additionally, we have fuel requirements that are subjecr to
future changes in coal, natural gas, and oil prices. Cur power
generation facilities purchase fuel under contracts or in the spot
market. Fuel prices may be volatile, and the price that can be
obtained from power sales may not change at the same rate or in
the same direction as changes in fuel costs. This could have a
material adverse impact on our financial results.

Supply and Demand Risk

We are exposed to the risk thar available sources of supply may
differ from the amount of power demanded by our customers




under fixed-price load-serving contracts, During periods of high
demand, our power supplies may be insufficient to serve our
customers’ needs and could require us to purchase additional
energy at higher prices. Ahernatively, during periods of low
demand, our power supplies may exceed our customers’ needs
and could result in us selling that excess energy at lower prices.
Either of those circumstances could have a negative impact on
our financial results. )

We are also exposed to variations in the prices and required
volumes of natural gas, oil, and coal we burn ar our power plants
to generate electricity. During periods of high demand on our
generation assets, our fuel supplies may be insufficient and could
require us to procure additional fuel at higher prices.
Alternatively, during periods of low demand on our generation
assets, our fuel supplies may exceed our needs, and could result
in us selling the excess fuels at lower prices. Either of these
circumstances will have a negative impact on our financial
results.

Operations Risk

Operations risk is the risk that a generating plant will not be
available to produce energy and the risks relared to physical
delivery of energy to meer our customers’ needs. If one or more
of our generating facilities is not able o produce electricity when
required due to operational factors, we may have to forego sales
opportunities or fulfill fixed-price sales commitments through
the operation of other more costly generating facilities or
through the purchase of energy in the wholesale marker at higher
prices. We purchase power from generating facilities we do not
own. If one or more of those generating facilities were unable to
produce electricity due to operational factors, we may be forced
to purchase electricity in the wholesale market at higher prices.
This could have a material adverse impact on our financial
results. .

Qur nuclear plants produce electricity at a relatively low
marginal cost. The Nine Mile Point facility sells 90% of its
output under unit-contingent power purchase agreements (we
have no obligation to provide power if the units are nor
available) to the previous owners. Based on its new capaciry,
beginning in 2007, we will sell approximately 80% of Ginna’s
outpur under a unit-contingent power purchase agreement to the
former owners. However, if an unplanned outage were to occur
at Calvert Cliffs during periods when demand was high, we may

‘have to purchase replacement power at potentially higher prices
to meet our obligations, which could have a marterial adverse e

impact on our financial results,

Risk Management and Trading
As part of our overall portfolio, we manage the commodity price
risk of our competitive supply activities and our electric
generation facilities, including power sales, fuel and energy
purchases, emission credits, interest rate and foreign currency
risks, weather risk, and the market risk of outages. In order to
manage these risks, we may enter into fixed-price derivative or
non-derivative contracts to hedge the variability in future cash
flows from forecasted sales and purchases of energy, including;
4 forward contraces, which commit us to purchase or sell
energy commodities in the furure;
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# fucures contracts, which are exchange-traded
standardized commitments to purchase or sell a
commodity or financial instrument, or to make a cash
settlement, at a specific price and future date;

# swap agreements, which require payments to or from
counterparties based upon the differendial berween two
prices for a predetermined contractual (notional)
quantity; and

¢ option contracts, which convey the right to buy or seli a
commodity, financial instrument, or index at a
predetermined price.

The objectives for entering into such hedges include:

¢ fixing the price for a portion of anticipared future
clectricity sales at a level that provides an acceprable
return on our electric generation operations, :

¢ fixing the price of a portion of anticipated fuel purchases
for the operation of our power plants,

¢ fixing the price for a portion of andicipated energy
purchases to supply our load-serving customers, and

¢ managing our exposure to interest rate risk and foreign

, currency exchange risks.

The portion of forecasted transactions hedged may vary
based upon management’s assessment of market, weather,
operational, and other factors.

While some of the contracts we use to manage risk
represent commodities or instruments for which prices are
available from external sources, other commedities and certain
contracts are not actively traded and are valued using other
pricing sources and modeling techniques to determine expected
future marker prices, contract quantities, or both. We use our
best estimates to determine the fair value of commodity and
derivative contracts we hold and sell. These estimates consider
various factors including closing exchange and over-the-counter
price quorations, time value, volatility factors, and credit
exposure. However, it is likely that future market prices could
vary from those used in recording mark-to-market energy assets
and lizbilities, and such variations could be material.

We measure the sensitivity of our wholesale marketing and
risk management mark-to-market energy contracts to potential
changes in market prices using value ac risk. Value at risk is a
statistical model that actempts to predict risk of loss based on
historical market price volatility. We calculare value at risk using
a historical variance/covariance technique that models option
positions using a linear approximation of their value.
Additionally, we estimate variances and correlation using
historical commodity price changes over the most recent rolling
three-month period. Qur value at risk calculation includes all
wholesale markering and risk management mark-to-market
energy assets and liabilites, including contracts for energy
commodities and derivatives that result in physical sectlement
and contracts that require cash settlement.

The value at risk calculation does not include marker risks
associated with activities that are subject to accrual accounting,
primarily our generating facilities and our competitive supply
load-serving activities. We manage these risks by monitoring our
fuel and energy purchase requirements and our estimared
contract sales volumes compared to associated supply
arrangements. We also engage in hedging activities 1o manage
these risks. We describe those risks and our hedging activities
earlier in this section.
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The value at risk-amounts below represent the potenttal
pre-tax loss in the fair value of our wholesale marketing and risk
management mark-to-market energy assets and liabilities over
one and ten-day holding periods.

Total Whelesale Value ar Risk

For the year ended December 31, w 2006 . 2005
(I raillions)
99% Confidence Level, One-Day Holding
Period
Year end $13.4 3$10.0
Average 16.7 6.1
High 280 145
Low 2.6 2.4
95% Confidence Level, One-Day Holding
Period ’ -
Year end $102 $ 7.6
Average 12.7 4.7
High 213 110
Low 7.3 1.8
95% Confidence Level, Ten-Day Holding
Period
Year end $32.3 $24.1
Average 40,2 14.7
High 67.4 34.9
Low 23.0 5.8

Based on 2 99% confidence interval, we would expect a
one-day change in the fair value of the portfolio greater than or
equal to the daily value ac risk approximately once in every
100 days. In 2006, we did not experience any instance where the
actuyal daily mark-to-marker change in portfolio value exceeded
the predicted value at risk. However, published marker studies
conclude that exceeding daily value ac risk less than seven times
in a one-year period is considered consistent with a 99%
confidence interval.

The table above is the value at risk associated with our
wholesale marketing, risk management,‘and trading operation’s
mark-to-market energy assets and liabilities, including both
trading and non-trading acrivities. We experienced higher value
at risk for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2005, primarily due to a higher
number of economic hedges of accrual positions and an increase
in our trading activites discussed below. We discuss our mark-
to-marker results in more detait in the Competitive Supply
section, _—t B
The followmg table details our va]ue at risk for the tradmg
portion of our wholesale marketing and risk management mark-
to-markert energy assets and liabilities over a one-day holding’
period at a 99% confidence level for 2006 and 2005:

et v e

Wholesale Trading Value at Risk

For the year ended December 31, 2006 2005
(In millions)

Average $11.2 § 5.5

High 17.6 13.3

We experienced higher value ac risk for the year ended
December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31,

y‘wﬂa&.m o

egiardd

ete, * ay i:"il‘
SRR
.

2003, for the trading portion of our wholesale trading portfolio
due 10 increased commodity prices, volarility, and trading
activity. Our trading positions can be used to manage the
commodity price risk of our competitive supply activities and
our generation facilities. We also engage in trading activiries for
profit. These activities are managed through daily value ar risk
and stopjlé's_s:‘limits and liquidity guidelines.

Due to the inherent limitations of statistical measures such
as value at risk and the seasonality of changes in marker prices,
the value ar risk calculation may not reflect the full extent of our
commodity price risk exposure. Additionally, actual changes in
the value of options may differ from the value at risk calculated |
using a linear approximation inherent in our calcularion method.
As a result, actual changes in the fair value of mark-to-market
energy assets and liabilities could differ from the calculated value
at risk, and such changes could have a material impact on our
financial resules.

Regulated Electric Business

BGE's residential base rares were {rozen for the six-year period
ended June 30, 2006, and its commercial and industrial base
rates were frozen for a four-year period that ended June 30,
2004. The commaodity and transmission components of rates
were frozen for different rime periods depending on the customer
type and service options selected by customers.

Our wholesale marketing, risk management, and trading
operation provided BGE 100% of the energy and capacity to
meet its residential standard offer service obligations through
June 30, 2006. Bidding to supply BGE's standard offer service to
all customers will occur from time to time through a competitive
bidding process approved by the Maryland PSC. Our wholesale
marketing, risk management, and trading operation is supplying
a portion of BGE's standard offer service obligation to all.
customers. We discuss standard offer service and the impacr on
base rates in more detail in ftem 1. Business—Electric Business
sectiol. )

BGE may receive performance assurance collareral from
suppliers to mitigate suppliers’ credit risks in certain
circumnstances. Performance assurance collateral is designed 1o
protect BGE’s potential exposure over the term of the supply
contracts and will fluctuate w reflect changes in markert prices. In
addition to the collateral provisions, there are supplier. “step-up”
provisions, where other suppliers can step in if the early

- termination of a Fuil-Requirements Service Agreement with a

61

supplier.should occur, as well as specific mechanisms for BGE to
otherwise replace defaulted supplier contracts. All costs incurred
by BGE to replace the supply contrace are to be recovered from
the defaulting supplier or from customers through rates. Finally,
BGE’s exposure to uncollectible expense or credit risk from
customers for the commodity portion of the bill is covered by the_
administrative fee included in Provider of Last Resort rates.

Our regulated electric business may enter into electric
futures, options, and swaps to hedge its price. We discuss this
further in Note 13. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, our
exposure to commodity price risk for our regulared electric
business was not material.




Regufated Gas Business

Our regulared gas business may enter into gas futures, options,
and swaps to hedge its price risk under our marker-based rate
incentive mechanism and our off-system gas sales program. We
discuss this further in Note /3. At December 31, 2006 and 2005,
our exposure to commodity price risk for our regulared gas
business was not material.

Credit Risk

We are exposed ro credit risk, primarily through our merchant
energy business. Credir risk is the loss that may result from
counterparties’ nonperformance. We evaluate the credit risk of
our wholesale marketing, risk management, and trading
operation and our retail competitive supply activities separately
as discussed below.

Wholesale Credir Risk :
We measure wholesale credir risk as the replacement cost for
open energy commodity and derivative transactions (both mark-
to-marker and accrual) adjusted for amounts owed to or due
from counterparties for settled transactions. The replacement
cost of open positions represents unrealized gains, net of any
unrealized losses, where we have a legally enforceable righe of
setoff. We monitor and manage the credit risk of our wholesale
marketing, risk management, and wading operarion through
credit policies and procedures which include an established credic
approval process, daily monitoring of counterparty credit limits,
the use of credit mitigation measures such as margin, collateral,
ar prepayment arrangements, and the use of master netting
agreements. '

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the credit portfolio of
our wholesale marketing, risk management, and trading
operation had the following public credit ratings:

At December 31, 2006 2005
Rating
Investment Grade' 61% 53%
Non-Investment Grade 3 7
Not Rated 36 40

Includes counterparties with an investment grade rating by at
least one of the major credit rating agencies. If split rating exists,
the lower rating is used.

Our exposure to “Not Rated” counterparties was
$1.1 billion at December 31, 2006 compared o $i.4 billion ar
December 31, 2005. This decrease was mostly due to a decrease
in our credit portfolio related to natural gas and international
coal customers that do not have public credit ratings. Although
not rated, a majority of these counterparties are considered
investment grade equivalent based on our internal credit ratings.
We utilize internal credir ratings to evaluate the creditworthiness
of our wholesale customers, including those companies that do
not have public credit ratings. Based on inrernal credit ratings,
approximarely $643.8 million or 39% of the exposure to unrated
counterparties was rated investment grade equivalent at
December 31, 2006 and approximately $915.7 million or 68%
was rated investment grade equivalent ar December 31, 2005.
The following table provides the breakdown of the credit quality
of our wholesale credir portfolio based on our internal credit
ratings.

At December 31, 2006 2005
Investment Grade Equivalent 82% 80%
Non-Investment Grade 18 20

A portion of our rotal wholesale credit risk is related to
transactions that are recorded in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets. These transactions primarily consist of open positions
from our wholesale markering, risk management, and trading
operation thar are accounted for using mark-to-market
accounting, as well as amounts owed by wholesale counterparties
for transactions that sectled but have not yet been paid. The
following rable highlights the credit quality and exposures relared
to these activities:

Number of Net
Total Counterparties  Exposure of
Exposure Greater Counterparties
Before than 10% Greater than
Credit Credit Net of Net 10% of Net
Rating Collateral Collaternl Exposure  Exposure Exposurc
{Dollars in millions)
Investment grade $1,268 $130 51138 — $—
Split rating 34 5 29 - —
Non-investment grade 81 44 37 — —
Internally raced—
investment grade 511 71 440 _ —_
Internally rated—
non-investment
grade i 229 55 174 — —
Total $2.123 $ 305 $1,818 — $—

Due to the possibility of extreme volatility in the pricesof... . ...

"' energy commodities and derivacives, the market value of

contraccual positions with individual counterparties could exceed
established credir limits or collateral provided by those
counterparties. If such a counterparty were then to fail to
perform its obligations under its contract (for example, fail to
deliver the electricity our wholesale marketing, risk management,
and trading operation had contracted for), we could incur a loss
that could have a marerial impact on our financial results.

Additionally, if a counterparty were to default and we were
1o liquidate all contracts with that entity, our credit loss would
include the loss in value of mark-to-market contracrs, the
amount owed for settled transactions, and additional payments,
if any, that we would have to make 1o settle unrealized losses on
accrual contracts.
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Retail Credit Risk ]

We are exposed to retail credit risk through our competitive
cleciricity and natural gas supply activities which serve
commercial and industrial companies. Retail credit risk results
when customers default on their contractual obligations, This
risk represents the loss that may be incurred due o the
nonpayment of a customer’s accounts receivable balance, as well
as the loss from the resale of energy previously committed 1o
serve the customer.

Retail credit risk is managed through established credit
policies, monitoring customer exposures, and the use of credit
mitigation measures such as letters of credit or prepayment
arrangements,

Our retail credit portfolio is well diversified with no
significant company or industry concentrations. During 2000,
we did not experience a material change in the credit quality of
our retail credit portfolio compared to 2005, Retail credit quality
is dependent on the economy and the ability of our customers to
manage through unfavorable economic cycles and other market
changes. If the business environment were to be negatively
affected by changes in economic or other marker conditions, our
retail credir risk may be adversely impacted.

Foreign Cuirency Risk

Our merchant energy business is exposed to the impact of
foreign exchange rate fluctuations. This foreign currency risk
arises from our acrivities in countries where we transact in

currencies other than the U.S. dollar. In 2006, our exposure to
foreign currency risk was not material. However, we expect our
foreign currency exposure to grow due to our Canadian
operationf, global power, coal, freight, and natural gas
operations, and our UniStar venture. We manage our exposure
to foreign currency exchange rate risk using a comprehensive
foreign currency hedging program. While we cannot predict
currency fluctuations, the impact of foreign currency exchange
rate risk could be material.

Equity Price Risk

We are exposed to price fluctuarions in equity markets primarily
through our pension plan assets, our nuclear decommissioning
trust funds, and trust assets securing certain executive benefits.
We are requited by the NRC to maintain externally funded
trusts for the costs of decommissioning our nuclear power plants.
We discuss our nuclear decommissioning trust funds in more
derail in Note'f.

A hypothetical 10% decrease in equity prices would resule
in an approximate $130 million reduction in the fair value of our
financial investments that are classified as trading or available-

-for-sale securities. In 2006, our actual return on pension plan
assers was $141.1 million due to advances in the markets in
which plan assets are invested. We describe our financial
investments in more deail in Note 4, and our pension plans in

Note 7.

Item 7A. Guantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
The information required by this item with respect to market risk is set forth in ftem 7 of Part I1 of this Form 10-K under the heading

Marker Risk.




Item 8. Financlal Statements and Supplementary Data

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

Financial Statements

The management of Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and
Baltimore Gas and Electric Company (the “Companies”) is
responsible for the information and representations in the
Companies’ financial statements. The Companies prepare the
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America based upon
available facts and circumstances and management's best
estimates and judgments of known conditions.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered
public accounting firm, has audited the financial statements
and expressed their opinion on them. They performed their
audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States).

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which
corisists of three independent Directors, meets periodically with
management, internal auditors, and PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP to review the activities of each in discharging cheir
responsibilities. The internal audic scaff and ‘
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have free access to the Audit
Commirtee.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting
The management of Constellation Energy Group, Inec.
(“Constellation Energy”™), under the direction of its principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, is responsible
for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control aver
financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f).
Constellation Energy’s system of internal control over
financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance
to Constellation Energy’s management and Board of Directors
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of fimancial statements for external purposes in

‘ i
REPORTS OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM )

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Constellation Energy Group, Inc.

We have completed integrated audits of Constellation Energy
Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ consolidated financial statements
and of its internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006 in accordance with the standards of the
Public Cempany Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Qur opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financlal statements and financial
statement schedule ]

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stacements listed in
the index appearing under [rem 15(a) (1) present fairly, in all
marterial respects, the financial position of Constellation Energy
Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Company) at December 31,
2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States of America.

The management of Constellation Energy conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of Constellation Energy's
internal control over financial reporting using the framework in
Internal Control—Iintegrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). As noted in the COSO framework, an
internal control system, no matter how well conceived and
operated, can provide only reasonable-not absolute-assurance to
management and the Board of Directors regarding achievement
of an entity’s financial reporting objectives. Based upon the
evaluation under this framework, management concluded that
Constellation Energy's internal control over financial reporting
was effective as of December 31, 2006.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered
public accounting firm, has audited management’s assessment
of the effectiveness of Constellation Energy’s internal control
over financial reporting at December 31, 2006, as stated in
their report set forth below.

As discussed in frem 9A. Controls and Procedures, the
managemenc of Baltimore Gas & Electric Company ("BGE”")
has not assessed the effectiveness of BGE’s internal control over
financial reperting on a standalone basis because it is not yer
required to do so by applicable federal securities laws and
regulations.

T e

Mayo A. Shattuck III E. Follin Smith

Chairman of the Board, Executive Vice-President,
President and Chief Chief Financial Officer, and
Executive Officer Chief Administrative Officer

December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepred in the United States of America. In addition,
in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the
index appearing under ltem 15{a) (2} presents fairly, in all,
material respects, the information set forth therein when read
in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
staternenss and financial statement schedule based on our
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obrain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial sratements are free of
material misstatement. An audic of financial statements
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
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amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significanc estimates made
by management, and evaluating the overall financial starement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Nore 1 to the consolidared financial
statements, in 2006 the Company changed its method of
accounting for defined benefit pension and other
postretirement plans. As discussed in Noge { 1o the consolidated
financial statements, in 2005 the Company changed its method
of accounting for conditional asser retirement obligations and the
accounting for stock based compensation.

We have also previously audited, in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{Unirted States), the consolidated balance sheets and statements
of capitalization of Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, and
the related consolidated statements of income, cash flows, and
common shareholders” equity and comprehensive income for
the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 (none of which
are presented herein); and we expressed unqualified opinions
on those consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the
information set forth in the Summary of Operations and
Summary of Financial Condition of Constellation Energy
Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries included in the Selected Financial
Data for each of the five years in the period ended
December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements from which it
has been derived.

Internal control over financlal reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting appearing under Item 8, that the Company
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in fnternal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSQ), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those
criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on
criteria cstablished in fnternal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is
10 express opinions on management’s assessment and on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducred our audit of
internal control aver financial reporting in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Qversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit o obrain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was .
maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control
over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of
interna] control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
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such other procedures as we consider necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit pravides a reasenable
basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a

" process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
thar (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (i) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial starements in accordance
with generally accepred accounting principles, and thar receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and direcrors of
the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely derection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projecrions of any evaluation of effectiveness to fuwure
periods are subject 1o the risk thar controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or thar the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorare.

PM-M.—:.C.F: wue
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Balumore, Maryland
February 26, 2007

To Beard of Directors and Sharebolder of Baltimore Gas and
Eleciric Company

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in
the index appearing under Item 15(z) (1) present faitly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Baltimore Gas and
Electric Company and Subsidiaries (the Company) at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and che results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement
schedule listed in the index appearing under ltem

15(a) (2) presents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein when read in conjunction with
the related consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements and financial statement schedule based on our
audits. We conducted our audirs of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United Stares). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the




financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimares made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have also previously audited, in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
" (Unired Stares), the consolidated balance sheets of Baltimore

Gas and Electric Company and Subsidiaries as of

December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and the relared
consolidated statements of income, cash flows, and
comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2003
and 2002 (none of which are presented herein); and we
expressed unqualified opinions on those consolidated financial
staternents. In our opinion, the information set forth in the
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Summary of Operations and Summary of Financial Condition
of Baltimore Gas and Eleceric Company and Subsidiaries
included in the Selected Financial Dara for each of the five
years in the period ended December 31, 2006, is fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial
statements from which it has been derived.

I4 M;&wa“u-tard s
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
February 26, 2007




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Consteliation Energy Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31, : 2006 2005 2004
(In millions, except per share amounts)
Revenues s .
Nontegulated revenues $ 16,2790 $13,970.1 $ 9.404.5
Regulated electric revenues 2,115.9 2,036.5 1,967.6
Regulated gas revenues 890.0 901.7 755.1
Total revenues ) ‘ 19,284.9 16,968.3 12,127.2
Expenses
Fuel and purchased energy expenses 14,930.7 13,2396 8.693.2
Operarting expenses 2,165.8 1,900.7 1,714.0
Workforce reduction costs 28.2 4.4 9.7
Merger-related costs 18.3 17.0 —
Depreciation, depletion, and amertization 523.9 523.0 . 488.4
Accretion of asser retirement obligations 67.6 62.0 53.1
Taxes other than income taxes 290.7 277.1 250.7
Total expenses 18,025.2 16,023.8 11,209.1
Gain on Sale of Gas-Fired Plants 73.8 — —
Income from Operations 1,333.5 944.5 218.1
Gain on Initial Public Offering of CEP LLC 28.7 — —
Other Income 66.1 65.5 255
Fixed Charges .
Interest expense 329.2 306.9 324.4
Interest capiralized and allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (13.7) (9.9) {10.8)
BGE preference stock dividends : . 13.2 13.2 13.2
Total fixed charges . 328.7 310.2 326.8
Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes 1,099.6 699.8 616.8
Income Tax Expense -351.0 163.9 118.4
Income from Continuing Operations and Before Cumulative Effects of
Changes in Accounting Principles 748.6 535.9 498.4
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes of $107.7, $61.6,
$27.3, respectively 187.8 94.4 41.3
Cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles, net of income raxes of )
3(4.7) — 7.2) —
Net Income $  936.4 $ 6231 5 5397
Earnings Applicable to Common Stock $ 9364 $ 6231 $ 5397
Average Shares of Common Stock Qutstanding—Basic 179.4 © 1775 172.1
Average Shares of Common Stock Quistanding—Diluted 181.4 179.7 173.1
Earnings Per Common Share from Continuing Operations and Before
Cumulative Effects of Changes in Accounting Principles—Basic $ 4.17 R 3.02 $ 2.90
Income from discontinued operations 1.05 0.53 0.24
Cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles — (0.04) —
Earni%s_[’er Common Share—Basic $ 522 3 3.51 $ 3.14
Earnings Per Common Share from Continuing Operations and Before
Cumilative Effects of Changes in Accounting Principles—Diluted $ 4.12 $ 2.98 $ 2.88
income from discontinued operacions 1.04 0.53 0.24
Cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles — {0.04) —
Earnings Per Common Share—Diluted 3 5.16 $ 3.47 $ 3.12
Diividends Declared Per Common Share 5 1.51 $ 1.34 3 1.14

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current years presentation.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries .

At December 31, 2006 2005
(Tn millions)
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,289.1 3 8130
Accounts receivable {net of allowance for uncollectibles of $48.9 and $47.4,
respectively) , 3,248.3 2,727.9
Fuel stocks 599.5 489.5
Materials and supplies 200.2 197.0
Mark-to-market energy assets 1,294.8 1,339.2
Risk management assets 261.7 1,244.3
Unamortized energy contract assets 35.2 55.6
Deferred income taxes 674.3 —
Other 497.0 555.3
Total current assets 9,100.1 7.421.8
Investments and Other Assets
Nuclear decommissioning trust funds 1,240.1 1,110.7
Investments in qualifying facilities and power projects 308.6 306.2
Regulatory assets (ner) 389.0 154.3
Goodwill 157.6 147.1
Mark-to-market energy assets 623.4 1,089.3
Risk management assets 325.7 626.0,
Unamortized energy contracr assets 123.6 141.2
Qther 311.4 410.6
Total investments and other assets 3,479.4 3,985.4
Property, Plasit and Equipment
Nanregulated property, plant and equipment 7,587.6 8,580.8
Regulated property, plant and equipment 5,752.9 5,520.5
Nuclear fuel {net of amorrization} 339.9 302.0
Accumulated depreciation (4,458.3) (4,336.6)
Net properry, plant and equipment 9,222.1 10,066.7
Total Assets $21,801.6 $21,473.9

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Constellation Energy Group, inc. and Subsidiaries

At December 31, : 2006 . 2005
. (In millions)
Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities .

Short-term borrowings . $ — 3 0.7
Current portion of long-term debt ‘ 878.8 491.3
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,137.2 1,667.9
Customer deposits and collateral ’ 347.2 ' 458.9
Mark-to-market energy liabilities h 1,071.7 1,348.7
Risk management liabilicies : ' 1,340.0 483.5
Unamortized energy contract liabilities 378.3 : 489.5
Deferred income taxes _ — 1514
Accrued expenses and other ) 969.5 780.4
Toral current liabiliries . '7,122.7 5,872.3

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities

Deferred income taxes 1,435.8 1,180.8
Asser retirement obligarions 974.8 908.0
Mark-to-market energy liabilities 392.4 1 912.3
Risk management liabilities 707.3 1,035.5
Unamortized energy contract liabilities 958.0 ’ 1,118.7
Defined benefir obligarions 928.3 784.0
Deferred investment tax credits i 57.2 ’ 64.1
Other ) : 109.0 : 101.0
Total deferred credits and other liabilities 5,562.8 6,104.4

Capitalization {See Consolidated Statements of Capitalization)

Long-term debt 4,222.3 4,369.3
Minority inrerests 94.5 22.4
BGE preference stock not subject to mandatory redemption 190.0 | 190.0
Common shareholders’ equity 4,609.3 . 4,915.5
Total capiralization 92,116.1 . 9,497.2

Commitments, Guarantees, and Contingencies (see Note 12)

Total Liabilities and Equity . $21,801.6 $21,473.9

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. -




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
(fn mitlions) .
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Nert income $ 936.4 $ 6231 $ 5397
Adjustments 0 reconcile to net cash provided by operating activities 4
{Gain} loss on sales of gas-fired plants and discontinued operations (191.4) (13.8) 50.1
Cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles — 7.2 —
Deprectation, depletion, and amortization 545.1 606.5 650.3
Accretion of asset retirement obligations 67.6 62.1 53.2
Deferred income taxes 128.0 136.9 123.4
Investment tax credic adjustments (6.9) (7.1} 7.2)
Deferred fuel costs {348.5) (11.9) 6.0
Defined benefit obligarion expense 129.7 94,2 81.1
Defined benefir obligation payments (89.2) (90.8) (94.7)
Gain on initia! public offering of CEP LLC (28.7) — —
Equity in earnings of affiliates less than dividends received 27.6 387 29.5
Proceeds from derivative power sales contracts classified as financing acrivities
under SFAS No. 149 2.6 (72.6) —
Changes in
Accounts receivable { (653.7) (961.2) (397.4)
- Mark-to-market energy assets and liabilities (275.9) - (B8.4) (27.2)
Risk management assets and liabilities (4.4) (27.5) (39.7)
Marerials, supplies, and fuel'stocks (267.2) (250.3) oo (112.1)
Other current assets . 240.6 277.1) . 5.3
Accounts payable and accrued lizbilities 380.5 282.8 . 2602
Other current liabilives (91.8) 546.4 o (8.7)
Other 24.9 30.0 g (25.0
Net cash provided by operating activities 525.3 627.2 1,086.8
Cash Flows From Investing Activities I
Investments in property, plant and equipment (962.9) (760.0} (703.6)
Asser acquisitions and business combinations, ner of cash acquired {137.6) (237.2) o (457.3)
Investments in nuclear decommissioning trust fund securities (394.6) (370.8) o (424.2)
Proceeds from nuclear decommissioning trust fund securiries 385.8 353.2 . 402.2
Net proceeds from sale of gas-fired plants and discontinued operations 1,630.7 289.4 i 72.7
Issuances of loans receivable (65.4) (82.8) —
Sale of investments and other assets 43.9 14.4 36.1
Contract and portfolio acquisitions (2.3) (336.2) —
Other investments 62.5 (44.0) (78.6}
Ner cash provided by {used in) investing acrivities 560.1 (1,174.0) (1,152.7)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
" Net (maturity) issuance of short-term borrowings (0.7) 10.7 (9.6)
Proceeds from issuance of
Common stock 84.4 96.9 2939
Long-term debe 852.0 12.0 100.0
Proceeds from initial public offering of Consteltation Enetgy Partners LLC 101.3 — -
Common stock dividends paid (264.0) (228.8} (189.7)
Proceeds from contract and porfolio acquisitions 2213 1,026.9 117.5
Repayment of long-term debe (609.1) (362.3) (243.2)
Proceeds from derivative power sales contracts classified as financing activities
under SFAS No. 149 (2.6) 72.6 —
QOther 8.1 25.5 (18.0)
Net cash provided by financing activities 390.7 653.5 50.9
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,476.1 106.7 (15.0)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 813.0 706.3 721.3
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $2,289.1 $ 813.0 $ 7063
Other Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest {net of amounts capirtalized) $ 304.7 $ 3013 $ 3279
[ncome taxes $ 1093 § 1153 § 2039

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Certain prior-year amonnts have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Accumulated

. . Other
. Common Stock Retained Comprehensive Total
Year Ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 Shares  Amount  Earnings Loss Amount

{Dollar amosunts in millions, number of shares in thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2003 167,819 $2,179.8 $2,081.9 $ (121.2) § 4,140.5
Comprehensive Income ]
Net tncome 539.7 539.7
Other comprehensive income
Hedging instruments:
Reclassification of net gains on hedging instruments from
QOCI to ner income, net of taxes of $169.0 (270.8) (270.8)
Net unrealized gain on hedging instruments, net of taxes of
31247 - ' 196.8 196.8
Available-for-sale securities;
Reclassification of net loss on securities from OCI o net
income, net of taxes of $1.4 . 2.2 2.2
Net unrealized gain on securities, net of taxes of $22.2 33.7 33.7
Minimum pension liability, net of taxes of $27.9 (42.6) (42.6)
Net unrealized gain on foreign currency translation 0.4 0.4
Total Comprehensive Income 539.7 (80.3) 459.4
Common stock dividend declared ($1.14 per share) (196.3) {196.3)
Common stock issued 8,514 322.7 3227
Other 0.6 0.6
Balance at December 31, 2004 176,333 2,502.5 2,4259 (201.5) 4,726.9
Comprehensive Income
Net tncome 623.1 623.1
Other comprehensive income
Hedging instruments:
Reclassification of net gains on hedging instruments from . e
OCI to net income, net of raxes of $492.2 (794.6) 7 (794.6)
Ner unrealized gain on hedging instruments, net of taxes of -
$335.9 534.7 534.7
Available-for-sale securities:
Redlassification of net gains on securities from OCI o net
income, net of raxes of $1.2 (1.8) (1.8)
Net unrealized gain on securities, net of taxes of $15.7 23.8 23.8
Minimum pension liability, net of taxes of $50.4 {77.1) 77.1)
Net unrealized gain on foreign currency translation 1.0 1.0
Total Comprehensive Income 623.1 (314.0) 309.1
Common stock dividend declared ($1.34 per share) (238.4) (238.4)
Common srock issued 1,968 118.3 . 118.3
Other (0.4) (0.4)
Balance at December 31, 2005 178,301  2,620.8 2,810.2 (515.5) 4,915.5
Comprehensive Income
Nert income 936.4 936.4
Orther comprehensive income
Hedging instruments:
Reclassification of net losses on hedging instruments from )
QOCI to net income, net of taxes of $375.6 620.8 620.8
Net unrealized loss on hedging instruments, net of taxes of
$1,025.8 (1,683.4) ~ (1,683.4)
Available-for-sale securities:
Reclassification of net gains on securities from OCI to net
income, net of taxes of $0.1 (0.2} (0.2)
Net unrealized gain on securities, net of taxes of $45.5 69.7 69.7
Minimum pension liability, net of taxes of $49.6 75.6 75.6
Net unrealized loss on foreign currency translation . (L (1.1)
Total Comprehensive Income 936.4 (918.6) 17.8
Effect of adoption of SFAS No. 158, net of taxes of $111.3 (169.5) (169.5)
Common stock dividend declared ($1.51 per share) (272.6) (272.6)
Common stock issued 2,218 117.8 . 117.8
Other : 0.3 0.3
Balance at December 31, 2006 $ 4,609.3

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION

Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

At December 31, ) 2006 2005
(In millions)

Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt of Constellation Energy

6.35% Fixed-Rate Notes, due April 1, 2007 $ 600.0 $ 600.0
6.125% Fixed-Rate Notes, due September 1, 2009 500.0 500.0
7.00% Fixed-Rate Notes, due April 1, 2012 700.0 700.0
4.55% Fixed-Rate Notes, due June 15, 2015 550.0 550.0
7.60% Fixed-Rate Notes, due April 1, 2032 700.0 700.0
Fair Value of Interest Rate Swaps . (7.1) (0.9)
Toral long-term debt of Constellarion Energy 3,042.9 3,049.1

Long-term debt of nonregulated businesses
Tax-exempt debt transferred from BGE effective July 1, 2000

Pollution control toan, due July 1, 2011 36.0 36.0
Porr facilittes loan, due June 1, 2013 48.0 48.0
4.10% Pollution control loan, due July 1, 2014 20.0 200
5.55% Pollurion control revenue refunding loan, due July 15, 2014 .- 47.0
Economic development loan, due December 1, 2018 35.0 35.0
6.00% Pollution control revenue refunding loan, due April 1, 2024 — . 75.0
Floating-rate pollution control loan, due June 1, 2027 ) 8.8 8.8
Tax-exempt variable rate notes, due April 1, 2024 75.0 —
Tax-exempt variable rate notes, due December 1, 2025 47.0 —
District Cooling facilities loan, due December 1, 2031 25.0 '25.0
CEP credit facility loan, due Ocrober 31, 2010 22.0 —_
4,875% Inflarion protection loan due February 15, 2012 — 12.0
5.00% Mortgage note, due July 5,2010  ° 7.5 12.8
4.25% Mortgage note, due March 15, 2009 1.3 1.9
7.3% Fixed Rate Note, due June 1, 2012 1.8 —
South Carolina synthetic fuel facility loan, due January 15, 2008 (imputed interest rate of :
3.47%) : 20.0 36.0
Total long-term debt of nonregulated businesses 347.4 357.5
First Refunding Mortgage Bonds of BGE
Remarketed floating-rate series, due September 1, 2006 - — 97.4
7 2% Series, due January 13, 2007 . 121.4 122.0
6 %% Series, due March 15, 2008 ' 123.1 1234
Total First Refunding Mortpage Bonds of BGE 244.5 342.8
Other long-term debe of BGE
5.25% Notes, due December 15, 2006 — 300.0
5.90% Nores, due Ocrober 1, 2016 300.0 —
5.20% Notes, due June 15, 2033 200.0 200.0
6.35% Notes, due QOctober 1, 2036 400.0 p—
Medium-term notes, Series B — 12.0
Medium-term notes, Series D — 10.0
Medium-term notes, Series E 174.5 199.5
Medium-term notes, Series G 140.0 140.0
Total other long-term debt of BGE 1,214.5 861.5
6.20% deferrable interest subordinared debentures due October 15, 2043 1o BGE wholly
owned BGE Capiral Trust II relating to trust preferred securities 257.7 . 2577
Unamortized discount and premium 5.9 (8.0}
Current portion of long-term debt ‘ (878.8) (491.3)
Total long-term debt $4,222.3 $4.369.3

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
. continued on next page
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION

Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Ar December 31, C o 2006 ] 2005

(Tn millions)
Minority Interests % 945 $ 224
BGE Preference Stock

Cumulative preference siock not subject to mandatory redemption, 6,500,000 shares
authorized 7.125%, 1993 Series, 400,000 shares outstanding, callable ar $102.49 per share

until June 30, 2007, and at lesser amounts thereafter 40.0 40.0
6.97%, 1993 Series, 500,000 shares outstanding, callable at $102.44 per share until

September 30, 2007, and at lesser amounts thereafrer 50.0 50.0
6.70%, 1993 Series, 400,000 shares outstanding, callable at $102.35 per share unnl

December 31, 2007, and at lesser amounts thereafter 40.0 40.0
6.99%, 1995 Series, 600,000 shares outstanding, callable at $103.15 per share until :

Seprember 30, 2007, and at lesser amounts thereafter 60.0 60.0
Total preference stock not subject to mandatory redemprion 190.0 190.0

Common Shareholders’ Equity
Common stock without par value, 250,000,000 shares auchorized; 180,519,180 and
178,300,844 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively.
(At December 31, 2006, 3,739,214 shares were reserved for the leng-term incentive plans,
7,511,741 shares were reserved for the Shareholder Investment Plan, 1,520,000 shares
were reserved for the continuous offering programs, and 1,546,143 shares were reserved

for the employee savings plan.) 2,738.6 2,620.8
Retained earnings 3,474.3 2.810.2
Accumulated other comprehensive loss - (1,603.6) {515.5)
Total common shareholders’ equity 4,609.3 4,915.5

Total Capitalization $ 9,116.1 $9,497.2

See Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME ) !

Baltimore Gas and Electric Company and Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
(In millions)
Revenues
Electric revenues $2,115.9 $2,036.5 $1,967.7
(Gas revenues 899.5 972.8 757.0
Toral revenues 3,015.4 3,009.3 2,724.7
Expenses
Operating Expenses
Electricity purchased for resale 1,167.8 1,068.9 1,034.0
Gas purchased for resale 581.5 687.5 484.3
Operations and maintenance 496.1 450.2 427.8
Merger-related costs 4.7 5.4 . —
Depreciation and amortization 227.5 2324 2423
Taxes other than income taxes 168.7 168.4 164.9
Toral expenses 2,646.3 2,612.8 2,353.3
Income from Operations 369.1 396.5 371.4
Other Income (Expense) 6.0 5.9 {6.4)
Fixed Charges
interest expense 104.6 95.6 97.3
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (2.0) (2.1) (1.1)
Total fixed charges 102.6 93.5 96.2
Income Before Income Taxes 272.5 308.9 268.8
Income Taxes
Current (22.8) 122.6 69.4
Deferred 126.6 (0.9) 34.9
Investment tax credic adjustments (1.6) (1.8) (1.8)
Total income taxes 102.2 119.9 102.5
Net Income 170.3 189.0 166.3
Preference Stock Dividends 13.2 13.2 13.2
Earninﬁﬂ\pplicab]e to Common Stock $ 157.1 $ 175.8 $ 153.1
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME |
Baltimore Gas and Electric Company and Subsidiaries
Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
(Ir millions)
Earnings Applicable to Common Stock $ 157.1 $ 175.8 $ 1331
Other comptehensive income
Reclassification of net gains on hedging instruments from OCI to net
income, net of taxes of $— ’ — — 0.1
Comprehensive Income $ 157.1 $ 1758 $ 153.0

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemenss
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS :

Baltimore Gas and Eleclric Company and Subsidiaries

At December 31, : ) 2006 2005
(In millions)
Assets
Current Assets .
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10.9 ' $ 15.1
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncolleciibles of $16.1 and $13.0, ' .
respectively) . 344.7 480.5
Investment in cash pool, affiliated company 00.6 B —
Accounts receivable, affiliated companies 2.5 1.8
Fuel stocks 110.9 102.7
Materials and supplies 40.2 40.1
Prepaid taxes other than income taxes 48.0 45.7
Regulatory assets {net) 62.5 —
Other 35.2 6.5
Total current assets 715.5 692.4
7
Investments and Other Assets
Regulatory assets {net) ' 389.0 154.3
Receivable, affiliated company - 150.5 . ©154.7
Other 127.5 144.0
Total investments and other assets . 667.0 453.0
Utility Plant
Plant in service .
Electric . 4,060.2 3,891
Gas 1,148.3 1,116.7
Common 444.6 416.0
Toral plant in service 5,653.1 5,423.8 .
Accumulated depreciation ' (1,994.7) (1,923.8)
Net plant in service . 3,658.4 3,500.0
Construcrion work in progress 97.1 93.9
Plant held for future use 2.7 2.8
Net utility plant 3,758.2 3,596.7
Total Assets $ 51407 T T § 474217

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Baltimore Gas and Electric Company and Subsidiaries

At December 31, 2006 2005
) (In millions)
Liabilicies and Equity
Current Liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt $ 2583 $ 4696
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 187.3 169.7
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, affiliated companies 163.4 152.8
Borrowing from cash pool, affiltated company — 32
Customer deposits 71.4 65.1
Current portion of deferred income raxes 47.4 9.6
Accrued taxes 18.8 35.5
Accrued expenses and ocher 79.5 70.0
Total current liabilities 826.1 975.5
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Deferred income taxes 697.7 608.9
Payable, affiliated company 250.7 2777
Deferred investment tax credits 13.5 15.1
Other 14.0 19.0
Total deferred credits and other liabilities 975.9 920.7
Long-term Debt
First refunding mortgage bonds of BGE 244.5 342.8
Other long-term debt of BGE 1,214.5 861.5
6.20% deferrable interest subordinated debentures due October 15, 2043 to wholly
owned BGE Capital Trust 11 relating to trust preferred securities 257.7 257.7
Long-term debr of nonregulated business 25.0 25.0
=~ Unamortized discount and premium (2.9) (2.3)
Current portion of long-term debrt (258.3) (469.6)
Total long-term debt 1,480.5 1,013.1
Minority Interest 16.7 . 18.3
Preference Stock Not Subject to Mandatory Redemption 190.0 190.0
Common Sharcholder’s Equity
Common stock 912.2 912.2
Retained earnings 738.6 709.6
Accumutated other comprehensive income 0.7 0.7
Tortal common shareholder’s equity 1,651.5 1,622.3
Commitments, Guarantees, and Contingencies (see Note 12)
Total Liabilities and Equity $5,140.7 $4,742.1

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSCLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Baltimore Gas and Electric Company and Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
(fn millions)
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income ' %1703 $ 189.0 $ 166.3
Adjustments to reconcile to ner cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 241.1 250.5 260.9
Deferred income taxes 126.6 (0.9) 34.9
Investment tax credit adjustments (1.7} (1.8) (i.8)
Deferred fuel costs {348.5) (11.9) 6.0
Defined benefit plan expenses 47.2 37.8 31.9
Allowance for equity funds used during construction (3.7) 3.9 (2.0)
Changes in
Accounts receivable 135.8 (98.7) (27.0€)
Receivables, affiliated companies 0.7) - (0.8) 3.5
Materials, supplies, and fuel stocks (8.2) 217 (28.4)
Ovrher current assets . (31.0) 0.5) 1.0
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 17.6 44.3 24.2
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, affiliaced companies 10.6 6.7 (5.6)
Ocher current liabilicies 0.9) 12.0 {10.3)
Long-term receivables and payables, affiliated companies (70.1) {42.9) (52.0)
Other (27.5) (37.4) (30.2)
Net cash provided by operating activities 256.9 319.8 371.4
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Utility construction expenditures (excluding equity portion of allewance for funds used
during construcrion) (320.6) {270.5) (246.4)
Change in cash pool at parent (63.8) 131.1 102.3
Sales of investments and other assets (0.4) 11.0 4.9
QOther 10.3 (10.4) 2.7
Net cash used in investing activities (374.5) (138.8) (136.5)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 700.0 — —
Repayment of long-term debt (445.3) (41.6) (149.8) -
Preference stock dividends paid (13.2) (13.2) (13.2)
Distribution 1o parent ) (128.1) {119.3) (74.7)
Net cash provided by {used in) financing acrivities 113.4 {174.1) {237.7}
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (4.2) 6.9 {2.8)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 15.1 8.2 11.0
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 109 $ 15.1 $ 32
Other Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest {net of amounts capitalized) $ B87.2 $ 8846 $ 955
Income raxes $ 187 $ 1233 "% 80.7

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Our Business
Constellation Energy Group, Inc. (Constellation Energy) is an
energy campany that conducts its business through various
subsidiaries including a merchant energy business and
Baltimore Gas and Electric Company (BGE). Our merchant
energy business is a competitive provider of energy solutions for
a variery of customers. BGE is a regulated electric transmission
and distribution utility company and a regulated gas
distribution urility company with a service territory that covers
the City of Baltimore and all or part of ten counties in central
Maryland. We describe our operating segments in Nose 3.
This report is a combined report of Constellation Energy
and BGE. References in this repart to “we” and “our” are to
Constellation Energy and its subsidiaries. References in this
report to the “regulated business(es)” are 1o BGE.

Termination of Merger Agreement with

FPL Group, Inc.

On October 24, 2006, Constellation Energy and FPL

Group, Inc. (FPL Group) agreed to terminate the Agreement
and Plan of Merger the parties had entered into on

December 18, 2005, We discuss the terminated merger in more
detail in Noze 15.

Consolidation Policy

We use three different accounting methods to report our
investments in our subsidiaries or other companies:
consolidation, the equity method, and the cost method.

Consolidation p
We use consolidation for two types of entities:

¢ subsidiaries {other than variable interest entities) in

which we own a majority of the voting stock, and

# variable interest entities (VIEs) for which we are the

primary beneficiary. Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Interpretation No. (FIN) 46R,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, requires us to
use consolidation when we are the primary beneficiary
of a VIE, which means that we have a controlling
financial interest in a VIE. We discuss our investments
in VIEs in more detail in Nose 4.

Consolidation means that we combine the accounts of
these entities with our accounts. Therefore, our consolidated
financial statements include our accounts, the accounts of our
majoriry-owned subsidiaries thar are not VIEs, and the
accounts of V1Es for which we are the primary beneficiary. We
have not consolidated any entities for which we do not have a
controlling voting interest. We eliminate all intercompany
balances and transactions when we consolidate these accounts.

The Equity Method
We usually use che equity method to report investments,
corporate joint ventures, partnerships, and affiliated companies
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(including qualifying facilides and power projects) where we
hold a 20% to 50% voting interest. Under the equity method,
we report:

# our interest in the entity as an investment in our

Consolidated Balance Sheets, and

# our percentage share of the earnings from the entity in -

our Consolidated Statements of Income.

The only time we do not use this method is if we can
exercise control over the operations and policies of the
company. If we have control, accounting rules require us to use
consolidation.

The Cost Method

We usually use the cost method if we hold less than a 20%
voting interest in an investment. Under the cost method, we
report our investment at cost in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The only time we do not use this method is when we
can exercise significant influence over the operations and
policies of the company. If we have significanc influence,
accounting rules require us o use the equity method.

Sale of Subsidiary Stock

We may sell portions of our ownership interests through public
offerings of a subsidiary’s stock. We record any gains or losses
on public offerings in our Consolidated Statements of Income,
as a component of non-operating income.

Regulation of Electric and Gas Business
The Maryland Public Service Commission (Maryland PSC)
and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)
provide the final determination of the rates we charge our
customers for our regulated businesses. Generally, we use the
same accounting policies and practices used by nonregulated
companies for financial reporting under accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. However,
sometimes the Maryland PSC or the FERC orders an
accounting rrearment different from that used by nonregulated
companies to determine the rates we charge our customers.

When this happens, we must defer (include as an asser or
liabiliry in our, and BGE’s, Consclidated Balance Sheets and
exclude from our, and BGE’s, Consolidated Statements of
Income) certain regulated business expenses and incorne as
regulatory assets and liabilities. We have recorded these
regulatory assets and liabilities in our, and BGE's, Consolidated
Balance Sheets in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, Accounting for the Effects
of Certain Types of Regulation. :

We summarize and discuss our regulatory assets and
liabilities further in Note 6.

Use of Accounting Estimates
Marnagement makes estimates and assumptions when preparing
financial statements under accounting principles generally




accepred in the United States of America. These estimates and
assumptions affect various matters, including: '

# our reported amounts of revenues and expenses in our
Consolidated Statements of Income during the
reporting periods,

# our reported amounts of assets and liabiliries in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets at the dates of the
financial statements, and

# our disclosure of conringent assets and liabilities at the
dates of the financial statements.

These estimates involve judgments with respect 1o
numerous factors that are difficult to predict and are beyond
management's concrol. As a result, actual amounts could
materially differ from these estimates.

Reclassifications

We have reclassified certain prior-year amousnts for comparative

pueposes. These reclassifications primarily relate to operations
that have been classified as discontinued operations in the
current year and did nort affecr consolidated ner income for the
years presented.

Revenues

Accrual Accounting ‘

We record revenues from the sale of energy, energy-related
products, and energy services under the accrual method of
accounting in the period when we deliver energy commeodities
or products, render services, or settle contracts. We use accrual
accounting for our merchant energy and other nonregulated
business transactions, including the generation or purchase and
sale of electricity, gas, and coal as part of our physical delivery
acrivities and for power, gas, and coal sales contracts that are
not subject to mark-to-market accounting. Sales contracts that
are eligible for accrual accounting include non-derivacive
transacrions and derivacives thar qualify for and are designated
as normal purchases and normal sales of commodiries that will
be physically delivered. We record accrual revenues, including
settlements with independent system operators, on a gross basis
because we are a principal to the transaction and otherwise
meet the requirements of Emerging Issues Task Force

(EITF) 03-11, Reporting Gains and Losses on Derivasive
Instruments That Are Subject to FASB Statement No. 133,
Accounting ﬁ)r Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,
and Nor Held for Trading Purpeses, and EITF 99-19, Reporting
Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent.

We may make or receive cash payments ar the time we
assume a power sale agreement for which the contract price
differs from current market prices. We recognize the cash’
payment at inceprion in our Consolidated Balance Sheets as an
“Unamortized energy contract” asset or liability. We ameortize
these assets and liabilities into revenues based on the expected
cash flows provided by the concracts.

During 2006 and 2005, we terminated or restructured in-
the-money contracts in exchange for upfront cash payments
and a reduction or cancellation of future performance
obligations. The rermination or restructuring of contracts
allowed us to lower our exposure to performance risk under
these contracts, and resulted in the realization of $56.7 million
of pre-tax earnings in 2006 and $77.0 million of pre-rax
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earnings in 2005 that would have been recognized over the life

" of these contracts.

Mark-to-Market Accounting
We tecofd revenues using the mark-to-market method of
accounting for derivative contracts for which we are not
permitted o use accrual accounting or hedge accounting. We
discuss our use of hedge accounting in the Derivatives and
Hedging Activities section later in this Note. These mark-to-
market activities include derivative contraces for encrgy and
other energy-related commodities. Under the mark-to-market
method of accounting, we record the fair value of these
derivatives as mark-to-market energy assets and liabilities at the
time of contracr execution: Our wholesale marketing, risk
management, and trading operation records changes in mark-
to-market energy assets and liabilities on a net basis in
“Nonregulated revenues” in our Consolidated Statements of
Income. Our retail competitive supply operation records
changes in sale contracts accounted for as mark-to-market in
“Nonregulated revenues” in our Consolidated Statements of
Income. .

Mark-to-market energy assets and liabilities consist of
derivative contracts. While some of these contracts represent
commodities or instruments for which prices are available from
external sources, other commodities and certain coniracts are
not actively traded and are valued using medeling rechniques to
determine expected future marker prices, contract quandities, or
both. The market prices and quantities used to determine fair
value reflect management's best estimare considering various
factors, including closing exchange and over-the-counter
quotations, time value, and volatility faceors. However, furure
marker prices and 2crual quantities will vary from those used in
recording mark-to-market energy assets and liabilities, and it is
possible that such variations could be matetial.

Mark-to-market revenues include:

# gains or losses on new transactions at origination to the

extent permitted by applicable accounting rules,

¢ unrealized gains and losses from changes in the fair

value of open Contracts,

# net gains and losses from realized transactions, and

¢ changes in valuation adjustments.

Origination gains, which are included in mark-to-market
revenues, arise primarily from contracts that our wholesale
marketing, risk management, and trading operation structures
to meet the risk management needs of our customers.
Transactions that result in origination gains may be unique and
provide the potential for individually significant gains from a
single transaction.

Origination gains represent the inicial fair value
recognized on these structured transactions. The recognition of
origination gains is dependent on the existence of observable
market data that validares the initial fair value of the contract.
Qrigination gains were:

4 513.5 million pre-tax in 2006,

4 $61.6 million pre-tax in 2005, and

4 $19.7 million pre-tax in 2004,

Origination gains arose primarily from:

# 3 transactions completed in 2006, of which no

transaction contributed in excess of $10 million
pre-tax,




# 6 transactions completed in 2003, one of which
contributed approximately $35 million pre-tax, and

# 7 transactions completed in 2004, of which no
transaction contributed in excess of $10 million
P[’C-tﬂx.

Valuation Adjustments
~ We record valuatien adjustments to reflect uncertainties

associated with certain estimates inherent in the determination
of the fair value of mark-to-marker energy assets and liabilities.
To the extent possible, we utilize markec-based data rogether
with quantirative methods for both measuring the uncertainties
for which we record valuation adjustments and determining the
level of such adjustments and changes in those levels.

We describe below the main types of valuation
adjustments we record and the process for establishing each.
Generally; increases in valuation adjustments reduce our
earnings, and decreases in valuation adjustments increase our
earnings. However, all or a portion of the effect on earnings of
changes in valuation adjustments may be offset by changes in
the value of the underlying positions.

¢ Close-out adjustment—represents the estimared cost to
close our or sell to a third-party open mark-to-market
positions. This valuation adjustment has the effect of
valuing “long” positions (the purchase of 2 commodity)
at the bid price and “short” positions (the sale of a
commodiry} at the offer price. We compute this
adjustment based on our estimate of the bid/offer

| spread for each commodity'and option price and the
absolute quantity of our net open positions for each
year. The level of total close-ourt valuation adjustments
increases as we have larger unhedged positdons, bid-
offer spreads increase, or market information is not
avaitable, and ir decreases as we reduce our unhedged
positions, bid-offer spreads decrease, or market
information becomes available. To the extent that we
are not able to obrain observable market information
for similar contracts, the close-our adjustment is
equivalent to the initial contract margin, thereby
recording no gain or loss at inception. In the absence of
observable market information, there is a presumption
that the transaction price is equal to the market value
of the contract, and therefore we do not recognize a
gain or loss at inception. We recognize such gains or
losses in earnings as we realize cash flows under the
contract or when observable marker data becomes
available.

# Credit-spread adjustment—for risk management
purpases we compute the value of our mark-to-marker
energy assets and liabilities using a risk-free discount
rate. In order to compute fair value for financial
reporting putposes, we adjust the value of our mark-to-
market energy assets to reflect the credit-worthiness of
each customer (counterparty) based upon cither
published credit ratings, or equivalent internal credit
ratings and associated default probability percentages.
We compute this adjustment by applying the
appropriate default probability percenrage to our
ourstanding credit exposure, net of collateral, for each
counterparty. The level of this adjustment increases as
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our credit exposure to counterparties increases, the
maturity terms of our transactions increase, or the
eredit ratings of our counterparties deteriorate, and it
decreases when our credit exposure to counterparties
decreases, the marurity terms of our transactions
decrease, or the credit ratings of our counterparties
improve.

Financial Statement Presentation

Cerrain transactions entered into under master agreements and
other arrangements provide our wholesale competidve supply
operation with a right of setoff in the event of bankruptcy or
defaule by the counterparty. We report such transactions net in
our Consolidated Balance Sheets in accordance with FASB
Interpretation No. 39, Offfetting of Amounts Related to Certain
Contracts.

FEquity in Earnings -

We include equity in earnings from our investments in
qualifying facilities and power projects in “Nonregulared
revenues” in our Consolidated Statements of Income in the
period they are carned.

E
Fuel and Purchased Energy Expenses
We incur costs for:

# the fuel we use to generate electricity,

¢ purchases of electricity from others, and

# natural gas and coal that we resell.

These costs are included in “Fuel and purchased energy
expenses” in our Consolidated Statements of Income. We
discuss cerrain of these separately below. We also include
certain non-fuel direct costs, such as ancillary services,
transmission costs, and brokerage fees in “Fuel and purchased
energy expenses” in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

QOur retail competitive supply operation records changes
in purchase contracts accounted for as mark-to-market in “Fuel
and purchased energy.expenses” in our Consolidared
Statements of [ncome.

Fuel Used to Generate Electricity and Purchases of
Flectricity '

Nenregulated Businesses

We assemble a variety of power supply resources, including
baseload, intermediate, and peaking plants that we own, as well
as a variety of power supply contracts that may have similar
characteristics, in order to enable us to meet our customers’
energy requirements, which vary on an hourly basis. The
amount of power purchased depends on a number of factors,
including the capacity and availability of our power plants, the
level of customer demand, and the relative economics of
geénerating power versus purchasing power from the spot
market.

We also have acquired contracts and cerrain power
purchase agreements that qualify as operating leases. Under
these operating leases, we record fuel and purchased energy
expense as we make fixed capacity payments, as well as variable
payments based on the actual outpur of the plants.




We may make or receive cash payments at the time we
’ ﬂ.cquirc a <onftract or assume< a PCIWCT purCh:]SE agreemcrlt When
the contract price differs from market prices at closing. We
recognize the cash payment or receipt at inception in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets as an “Unamortized energy

contract” asset {payment) or liability (receipt). We amortize these

assets and liabilities into fuel and purchased energy expenses
based on the expected cash flows provided by the contracts.

Regulared Electric
BGE is obligated to provide market-based standard offer service

to residential and small commercial customers for the indefinite
future, and for large commercial and induscrial customers for
varying periods beyond June 30, 2004, depending on customer
load. The Provider of Last Resort (POLR) rates charged during
these time periods will recover BGE’s wholesale power supply
costs and include an administrative fee. The administracive fee
includes a shareholder return component and an incremental
cost component, Pursuant to Senave Bill 1, the energy legislation
enacted in Maryland in June 2006, collection of the shareholder
return component of the administrarive fee for residential POLR
service will be suspended beginning January 1, 2007 fora
10-year period.

In accordance with thc POLR sett[cment agreement
approved by the Maryland PSC, BGE defers the difference
berween certain of its actual costs related to the eleceric
commodity and what it collects from customers under the
commeodity charge in 2 given period. BGE either bills or refunds
its customers the difference in the future. In addition, Senate
Bill 1 imposed a 15% rate cap for BGE residential electric
customers from July 1, 2006 uncil May 31, 2007. We discuss
this in more detail in Noze 6.

BGE's obligation to provide market-based standard offer
service to its largest commercial and industrial customers expired
May 31, 2005. BGE continues to provide an hourly priced
market-based sctandard offer service o those customers.

Regulated Gas

BGE charges its gas customers for the natural gas they purchase
from BGE using “gas cost adjustment clauses” set by the
Maryland PSC. Under these clauses, BGE defers the difference
between certain of its actual costs related o the gas commodity
and what it collects from customers under the commodity charge
in a given period. BGE either bills or refunds its customers the
difference in the future. The Maryland PSC approved a
modification of the gas cost adjustment clauses to provide a
market-based rates incentive mechanism. Under the
market-based rates incentive mechanism, BGE's actual cost of
gas is compared to a marker index {a measure of the marker price
of gas in a given pertod). The difference berween BGE’s actual
cost and the market index is shared equally between shareholders
and customers. Effective November 2001, the Maryland PSC
approved a settlement that modifies cerrain provisions of the
market-based rates incentive mechanism. These provisions
require cthat BGE secure fixed-price contracts for at least 10%,
" but not more than 20%, of forecasted system supply
requirements for the November through March period. These
fixed-price contraces are not subject to sharing under the
market-based rates incentive mechanism.

81

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

We are exposed ro market risk, inchuding changes in interest rates
and the impact of market fluctuations in the price and
transportation costs of electricity, natural gas, and other
commodities as discussed further in Note 13, In order to manage
these risks, we use both derivative and non-derivative contracts
that may pravide for settlement in cash or by delivery of a
commodity, including:

# forward contracts, which commir us to purchase or sell
energy commeodities in the future,

¢ futures coneracts, which are exchange-traded
standardized commitments to purchase or sell a
commedity or financial instrument, or 0 make a cash
settlement, ar a specific price and future date,

& swap agreements, which require payments to or from
counterparties based upon the differencial between two
prices for a predetermined contractual (nottonal) -
quantiry, and )

¢ option contracts, which convey the right to buy or sell a
commodirty, financial instrument, or index at a
predetermined price.

SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Dertvative Instruments and
Hedging Activities, as amended, requires that we recognize ac faic
value all derivatives not qualifying for accrual accounting under
the normal purchase and normal sale exception. We record
derivarives that are designared as hedges in “Risk management
assets or liabilities”™ and derivatives not designated as hedges in
“Mark-to-marker energy assets or liabilities” in our Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

We record changes in the value of derivarives that are not
designated as cash-flow hedges in earnings during the period of
change. We record changes in the fair value of derivatives
designated as cash-flow hedges thar are effective in offsetting the
variability in cash flows of forecasted transactions in other
comprehensive income until the forecasted transactions occur. At
the time the forecasted transactions occur, we reclassify the
amounts recorded in other comprehensive income into earnings.
We record the ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives used as cash-flow hedges immediately in earningsg.




We summarize our cash-flow hedging acdvities under
SFAS No. 133 and the income statement classification of
amounts reclassified from “Accumulared other comprehensive
income (loss)” as follows:

Risk

Derivative

Income Statement
Classification

Interest rate risk
assoctated with
new debt
issuances

Interest rate risk
associated with
vatiable-rate

debt

Nonregulated
energy sales

Nonregulated fuel
and energy
purchases

Nenregulated gas
purchases for
resale

Regulated gas
purchases for
resale

Regulared
electricity
purchases for

- resale

Interest rate swaps

Interest rare swaps

Futures and
forward
CONITacts

Furtures and
forward
CONIracts

Futures and
forward
contracts and
price and basis
swaps

Price and basis
swaps

Price and basis
swaps

Interest expense
Interest expense

Nonregulated
revenues

Fuel and purchased
energy. expenses

Fuel and purchased
energy expenses
E

Fuel and purchased
energy expenses

Fuel and purchased
energy expenses

We designate certain derivatives as fair value hedges. We
record changes in the fair value of these derivarives and changes
in the fair value of the hedged assets or liabilities in earnings as
the changes occur. We summarize our fair value hedging
activities and the income statement classification of changes in
the fair value of these hedges and the related hedged items as

follows:

Risk

Derivative

Income Staatement
Classification

Optimize mix of
fixed and
floaring-rate
debt

Value of natural
gas in storage

Interest rate swaps

Forward contracts
and price and
basis swaps

Incerest expense

Nonregulated
revenues and
Fuel and
purchased
energy expenses

We record changes in the fair value of interest rate swaps
and the debt being hedged in “Risk managemenc assets and
liabilities” and “Long-term debt” and changes in the fair value of

the gas being hedged and related derivatives in *Fuel stocks” and -

“Risk management assets and liabilities” in our Consolidated
Balance Sheets. In addition, we record the difference berween
interest on hedged fixed-rate debt and floading-rate swaps in
“Interest expense” in the periods that the swaps settle.

Unamortized Energy Assets and Liabilities

Unamortized energy contract assets and liabilities represent the
remaining unamortized balance of non-derivative energy
contracts that we acquired or derivatives designared as normal
purchases and normal sales that we had previously recorded as
“Mark-to-market energy assets or liabilities” or “Risk
management assets and liabilicies.” The initial amount recorded
represents the fair value of the contract at the time of acquisition
or designation, and the balance is amortized over the life of the
contract in relation to the present value of the underlying cash
flows. The amortization of these values is discussed in the
Revenues and Fuel and Purchased Energy Fxpenses sections of this
Note. ‘

Credit Risk

Credir risk is the loss that may result from counterparty non-
performance. We are exposed to credit risk, primarily through
our merchant energy business. We use credit policies to manage
our credir risk, including utilizing an established credit approval |
process, daily monitoring of counterparty limits, employing
credit mitigation measures such as margin, collateral or
prepayment arrangements, and using master netting agresments.
We measure credit risk as the replacement cost for open energy
commaodity and derivative positions (both mark-to-marker and
accrual) plus amounts owed from counterparties for settled
transactions. The replacement cost of open positions represents
unrealized gains, less any unrealized losses where we have a
legally enforceable right of setoff.

Electric and gas utilities, municipalities, cooperatives,
generation owners, and energy marketers comprise the majoriry
of counterparties underlying our assets from our wholesale
marketing and risk management activities. We held cash
collateral from these counterparties totaling $252.6 million as of
December 31, 2006 and $388.4 millicn as of December 31,
2005. These amounts are included in “Customer deposits and
collateral” in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Taxes

We summarize our income taxes in Nore /0. BGE and our other
subsidiaries record their allocated share of our conselidated
federal income rax liability using the percentage complementary
method specified in U.S. income tax regulations. As you read this
section, it may be helpful o refer to Nore 10.

Income Tax Expense ‘
We have two categories of income tax expense—current and
deferred. We describe each of these below:
# current income tax expense consists solely of regular rax
less applicable tax credits, and
# deferred income tax expense is equal to the changes in
. the net deferred income rax liability, excluding amounts
charged or credited to accumulared other comprehensive
income. Qur deferred income tax expense is increased or
. reduced for changes to the “Income taxes recoverable
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th.rough future rates (net)” regulatory asset (described
below) during the year. :

Tax Credits

We have deferred the investment rax credits associated with our
regulated business and assets previously held by our regularcd
business in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. The investment tax
credits are amortized evenly to income over the life of each
property. We reduce current income tax expense in our
Consolidated Statements of Income for the investment tax
credits and other tax credits associated with our nonregulated
businesses.

We have certain investments in facilities that manufacture
solid synthetic fuel produced from coal as defined under the
Internal Revenue Code for which we claim tax credits on our
Federal income tax return. We recognize the tax benefit of these
credits in our Consolidated Statements of Income when we
believe it is highly probable that the credits will be sustained.

p

Deterred Income Tax Assets and Liabilitres

We must report some of our revenues and expenses dlffcrcnrly
for our financial statements than for income tax return purposes.
The tax effects of the temporary differences in these items are
reported as deferred income tax assets or liabilities in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets. We measure the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities using income tax rates that are currently
in effect.

A portion of our total deferred income tax liability relaces o
our regulated business, bur has not been reflected in the rares we
charge our customers. We refer to this portion of the liability as
“Income taxes recoverable through furure rates (net).” We have
recorded that portion of the net liability as a regulatory asset in
our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We discuss this further in
Note 6.

State and Local Taxes
State and local income raxes are included in “Income taxes” in
our Consolidated Statements of Income.

BGE also pays Maryland public service company franchise
tax on distribution, and delivery of electricity and natural gas.
We include the franchise tax in “Taxes other than income raxes”
in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Earmnings Per Share

Basic earnings per commeon share (EPS) is computed by dividing
earnings applicable to common stock by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding for the year. Diluted EPS
reflects the potendal dilution of common stock equivalent shares
that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common
stock were exercised or converted into common stock.
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QOur dilutive common stock equivalent shares consist of
stock options and other stock-based compensation awards. The
following rable presents stock options that were not dilutive and
were excluded from the compuration of diluted EPS in each
period, as well as the dilutive commeon stock equivalent shares as
follows:

. N

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
(In millians)
Non-dilutive stock options — 0.1 —
Dilutive common stock equivalent
shares 2.0 2.2 1.0

Stock-Based Compensation

Under our long-term incentive plans, we have granted stock
options, performance-based units, performance and service-based
restricted stock, and equity to officers, key employees, and
members of the Board of Directors. We discuss these awards in
more derail in Note 14, )

We elected to early adopt SFAS No. 123 Revised (SFAS
No. 123R), Share-Based Payment, on Ocrober 1, 20053, which
was prior to the required effective date of January 1, 2006. SFAS
No. 123R requires companies to recognize compensation
expense for all equity-based compensation awards issued to
employees that are expected to vest, Equity-based compensation
awards include stock options, restricted stock, and any other
share-based payments. We recognized a small, favorable
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle of
$0.2 million after-tax due to the requirement to reduce
compensation expense for estimated forfeitures relating o
outstanding unvested service-based restriceed stock awards and
performance-based unit awards at October 1, 2005.

Under SFAS No. 123R, we recognize compensation cost
ratably or in tranches {depending if the award has cliff or graded
vesting) over the period during which an employee is required to
provide service in exchange for the award, which is typically a
one to five-year period. We use a forfeiture assumption to
estimate the number of awards that are expected to vest during
the service period, and ultimately true-up the estimated expense
1o the actual expense associated with vesred awards. We estimate
the fair value of stock option awards on the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and we remeasure the
fair value of liability awards each reporting period. The following
table presents the pro-forma effect on net income and earnings
per share for all outstanding stock options and stock awards in
each period that the fair value provisions of SFAS No. 123R
were not in effect. We do not capitalize any portion of our
stock-based compensation.




Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004
(In millions, except

per share amounts)

Net income, as reported $623.1  $539.7
Add: Acrual stock-based compensation

expense determined under intrinsic

value methed and included in reported

net income, net of related rax effects 17.8* 13.2
Deduct: Pro-forma stock-based .

compensation expense determined

under fair value based method for all

awards, net of related tax effects (24.5)*  (21.3)
Pro-forma net income $616.4 ~ $531.6
Earnings per share:

Basic—as reported $ 351 § 314

Basic—pro-forma $ 347 $ 3.09

Diluted—as reported $347 §$ 312

Diluted—pro-forma $ 343 § 307

* Represents 'expeme ﬁ)r the nine months ended September 30, 2005,
whicl was prior to adoption of SFAS No. 123R

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Al highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less are considered cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectibles
Accounts receivable, which includes cash collateral posted in our
margin account with a third-party broker, are stated at the
historical carrying amount net of write-offs and allowance for
uncollectibles. We establish an allowance for uncollecribles based
on our expected exposure to the credit risk of customers based on
a vartety of factors.

Materials, Supplles, and Fuel Stocks

We record our fuel stocks, emissions credits, coal held for resale,
and marerials and supplies at the lower of cast or market. We
determine cost using the average cost method for all of our
inventory other than our coal held for resale for which we use the
specific identification method.

Financial Investments .
In Nete 4, we summarize the financial investments thar are in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt
and Equity Securities, applies particular requirements to some of
our investments in debt and equiry securities. We report those
investments at fair value, and we use either specific identification
or average cost to determine their cost for computing realized
gains or losses.

Available-for-Sale Securities .
We classify our investments in the nuclear decommissioning
trust funds as available-for-sale securities. We describe the
nuclear decommissioning trusts and the related asset retirement
obligarions later in this Note. In addition, we have investments
in marketable equity securities and trust assets securing certain
execurive benefits that are classified as available-for-sale securities.
We include any unrealized gains or losses on our available-
for-sale securiries in “Accumulared other comprehensive income”

in our Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders
Equity and Comprehensive Income and Consolidated
Statements of Capttalization.

Evaluation of Assets for Impairment and Other Than
Temporary Decline In Value

Long-Lived Assets

We are required to evaluate certain assets thac have long lives (for
example, generating property and equipment and real estate) to
determine if they are impaired when cerrain conditions exist.
SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets, provides the accounting requirements for
impairments of tong-lived assets and proved gas properties. We
are required to test our long-lived assets and proved gas
properties for recoverability whenever events or changes in
citcumstances indicate thar their carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

We determine if long-lived assets and proved gas properties
are impaired by comparing their undiscounted expected furure
cash flows to their carrying amount in our accounting records.
We would record an impairment loss if the undisceunted
expected future cash flows were less than the carrying amount of
the asset. Cash flows for long-lived assets, or a group of long-
lived assets, are determined ar the lowest level for which
identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows
of other assets and liabilities. Proven gas properties’ cash flows
are determined at the field level. Undiscounted expected future
cash flows include risk-adjusted probable and possible reserves.
We are also required to evaluate our equity-method and cost-
merhod investments (for example, in partnerships that own
power projects) for impairment. Accounting Principles Board
(APB) No. 18, The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments
in Common Stock (APB No. 18), provides the accounting
requirements for these investments. The standard for
determining whether an impairment must be recorded under
AP'B No, 18 is whether the investment has experienced a loss in
value that is considered an “othef than a temporary” decline in
value.

We are also required to evaluate unproved gas producing
properties at least annually to determine if it is impaired under
SFAS No. 19, Financial Accounting and Reporting by Oil and Gas
Producing Properties. Impairment for unproved property occurs if
there are no firm plans to continue drilling, lease expirarion is at
risk, or historical experience necessitates a valuation allowance.

We use our best estimates in making these evaluations and
consider various factors, including forward price curves for
energy, fuel costs, legislative initiatives, and operating costs.
However, actual future market prices and project costs could
vary from those used in our impairment evaluations, and the
impact of such variations could be material. T

Debt and Equity Securities

Qur investments in debt and equity securities, which primarily
consist of our nuclear decommissioning trust fund investments,
are subject to impairment evaluations under FASB Staff Position
(FSP) FAS 115-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairment and Its Application 1o Certain Investments. FSP

FAS 115-1 requires us to determine whether a decline in fair
value of an investment below the amortized cost basis is other




than temporary. If we determine that the decline in fair value is
judged to be other than temporary, the cost basts of the
investmenc must be written down to fair value as a new cost
basis.

I
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Intangible Assets

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price of an acquired
business over the fair value of the net assets acquired. We
account for goodwill and other intangibles under the provisions
of SFAS No. 142, Geodwill and Other Intangible Assets. We do
not amortize goodwill. SFAS No. 142 requires us to evaluate
goodwill for impairment at least annually or more frequently if
events and ctrcumstances indicate the business might be
impaired. Goodwill is impaired if the carrying value of the
business exceeds fair value. Annually, we estimate the fair value
of the businesses we have acquired using techniques similar to
those used 1o estimate future cash flows for long-lived assets as
previously discussed. If the estimated fair value of the business is
less than irs carrying value, an impairment loss is required to be
recognized to the extent that the carrying value of goodwill is
greater than its fair value. SFAS No. 142 also requires the
amortization of intangible assets with finite lives. We discuss the
changes in our intangible assets in more dewil in Note 5.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Depreciation, Depletion,
Amortization, and Accretion of Asset Retirement
Obligations

We report our property, plant and equipment at its original cost,
unless impaired under the provisions of SFAS No. 144..

Our original costs include:

# material and labor,

4 conrtractor costs, and

# construcrion overhead costs, financing costs, and costs

for asset retirement obligations (where applicable).

We own an undivided interest in the Keystone and
Conemaugh electric generating plants in Western Pennsylvania,
as well as in the transmission line thar transports the plants’
output to the joint owners’ service territories. Qur ownership
interests in these plants are 20.99% in Keystone and 10.56% in
Conemaugh. These ownership interests represented a net
investment of $183.1 million at December 31, 2006 and
$171.8 million at December 31, 2005. Each owner is responsible
for financing its proportionate share of the plants” working
funds. Working funds are used for operating expenses and capital
expenditures. Operating expenses related to these plants are
included in “Operating expenses” in our Consalidated
Statements of Income. Capital costs related to these plants are
included in “Nonregulated property, plant and equipment” in
our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The “Nonregulated property, plant and equipment” in our
Consalidated Balance Sheets includes nonregulated generation
construction work in progress of $229.5 million at
December 31, 2006 and $228.8 million at December 31, 2005,

When we retire or dispose of property, plant and
equipment, we remove the asset’s cost from our Consolidated -
Batance Sheers. We charge this cost to accumulated depreciation
for assets that were depreciated under the group, straight-line
method. This includes regulated property, plant and equipment

-and nonregulated generating assets transferred from BGE to our

1
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merchant energy business. For all other assets, we remove the
accumulated depreciation and amortization amounts from our
Consolidated Balance Sheets and record any gain or loss in our
Consolidated Statements of Income.

The costs of maintenance and certain replacements are
charged to “Operating expenses” in our Consolidated Statements
of Income as incurred.

Our oil and gas exploitation and production acriviries
consist of working interests in gas producing fields. We account
for these activities under the successful efforts method of
accounting. Acquisition, development, and exploitation costs are
capitalized as permitted by SFAS No. 19. Costs of drilling
exploratory wells are initially capitalized and later charged to
expense if reserves are not discovered or deemed not 1o be
commercially viable. Other exploratory costs are charged to
expense when incurred,

Capiralized exploratory well costs were $24.7 million a
December 31, 2006 and $11.4 million at December 31, 2005,
and do nor include amounts that were capitalized and
subsequently expensed within the same period. During 2006,
there were $23.9 million of well casts capitalized at
December 31, 2005 that were reclassified to well, facilities, and
equipment based on the determination of proved reserves.
During 2005, there were $1.4 million of well costs capitalized at
December 31, 2004 thar were reclassified to well, facilities, and
equipment based on the determination of proved resesves.

No exploratory well costs have been capiralized for a period
greater than one year since the completion of drilling.

Depreciation and Deplétion Expense

We compute depreciation for our generating, electric
transmission and distribution, and gas distribution facilides. We
compute depletion for our cxplonanon and production activities.
Depreciation and depletion are determined using the following
methods:

+ the group straight-line mcrhod approved by thc
Maryland PSC, applied to the average investment,
adjusted for anticipated costs of removal less salvage, in
classes of depreciable propetty based on an average rate
of approximately 3.5% per year for our regulated
business,
the group straight-line method using rates averaging *
approximately 2,5% per year for the fossil generating
assets transferred from BGE to our merchanr energy
business and our nuclear generating assets,
the modified units of production method (greater of
straight-line method or units of production method} for
fossil generating assets constructed after deregulation
that were not previously owned by BGE, or
the units-of-producrion method over the remaining life
of the estimared proved reserves at the fieid level for
acquisition costs and over the remaining life of proved
developed reserves at the field level for development
costs. The estimates for gas reserves are based on internal
calculations.




Orher assets are depreciated primarily using the straight-
line method and the following estimated useful lives:

Asser - Estimared Useful Lives

Building and improvements ’ 5 50 years
Office equipment and furniture 3L 20 years
Transportation equipment : 5 — 15 years
Computer software ‘ 3 — 10 years

Amortization Expense

Amortization is an accounting process of reducing an amount in
our Consolidared Balance Sheets over a period of time that
approximares the useful life of the related item. When we reduce
amounts in our Consolidated Balance Sheets, we increase
amortization expense in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Accretion Expense

SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Oblzgatzom,
provides the accounting requirements for recognizing an
estimated liabilicy for legal obligations associated with the
retirement of tangible long-lived assets. In the fourth quarter of
2005, we adopred FIN 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations—an Interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 143. FIN 47 clarifies that asset retirement obligations that
are conditional upon a future event are subject 1o the provisions
of SFAS No. 143. Our conditional asset retirement obligations
relate primarily to asbestos removal at certain of our gencrating
facilities. In 2005, we recorded an asset retirement obligation of
$13.9 million for these facilities and recorded a $7.4 million
after-tax charge to earnings as a cumulative cffcct of change in
accounting principle.

At December 31, 2006, $250.4 million of our rotal assec -
retirement obligation of $974.8 million was associated with the
decommissioning of our nuclear power plants—Calvert Cliffs
Nuclear Power Plant (Calvert Cliffs), Nine Mile Point Nuclear
Station {Nine Mile Point) and R. E. Ginna Nuclear Power Plant
(Ginna). The remainder of our asset retirement obligations is
associated with our other generating facilities and certain other
long-lived assets. From time to time, we will perform studies ro
updare our asset retirement obligations. We record a liabilicy
when we are able to reasonably estimate the fair value of any
future legal obligations associated with retirement that have been
incurred and capiralize a corresponding amount as part of the
book value of the related long-lived assets.

The increase in the capitalized cost is included in
determining depreciation expense over the estimated useful lives
of these assets. Since the fair value of the asset retirement
obligations is determined using a present value approach,
accretion of the liability due to the passage of time is recognized
each peried to “Accretion of asset retirement obligations™ in our
Consolidated Statements of Income until the settlement of the
liability. We record a gain ot loss when the liability is setdled after
retirement for any difference berween the accrued liability and
actual costs. The change in our “Asset retirement obligations”
liability during 2006 was as follows:

.

(In millions)

Liability at January 1, 2006 $908.0
Liabilities incurred 3.4
‘Liabilities settled (0.3)
Accretion expense 67.6
Revisions to cash flows (2.4)
Other . . {1.5)
Liability at Deccmber 31, 2006 ‘ $974.8 "

“Liabilities incurred” in the table above primarily reflect
new asset retirement obligations recorded ar our fossil generating
facilities in Maryland. “Other” represents the asser retirement
obligation asseciated with our gas-fired plants, which were sold
in December 2006, At the time of the sale, the asset retirement
obligation was transferred to the buyer of the gas-fired plants.
We discuss the sale of the gas-fired plants in more detail in
Note 2.

Nuclear Fuel

We amortize the cost of nuclear fuel, including the quarrerly fees
we pay to the Department of Energy for the future disposal of
spent nuclear fuel, based on the energy produced over the life of
the fuel. These fees are based on the kilowatt-hours of electricity
sold. We report the amortization expense for nuclear fuel in
“Fuel and purchased energy expenses” in our Consolidated
Statements of Income,

Nuclear Decommissioning

Effective January 1, 2003, we began to record decommlssnonmg
expense for Calvert Cliffs in accordance with SFAS No. 143, "The
“Asset retirement obligations” liability associated with the
decommissioning of Calvert Cliffs was $332.4 million ar
December 31, 2006 and $308.2 million at December 31, 2005.
Qur contributions to the nuclear decommissioning trust funds
for Calvert Cliffs were $8.8 million for 2006, $17.6 million for
2003, and $22.0 million for 2004. Under the Maryland PSC'’s
order deregularing electric generation, BGE's customers must
pay a rotal of $520 million in 1993 dollars, adjusted for
inflation, to decommission Calvert Cliffs. BGE is collecting this
amount on behalf of and passing it to Calvert Cliffs. Calvert
Cliffs is responsible for any difference between this amount and
the actual costs to decommission the plant.

[n 2006, BGE received approval from the Maryland PSC ro
continue annua! customer collections of $18.7 million per year
through December 31, 2016. BGE will be required to submit a
filing ro determine the level of customer contributions after
December 31, 2016. -
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We began to record decommissioning expense for Nine
Mile Point in accordance with SFAS No. 143 on January 1,
2003. The “Asset retirement obligations” liability associated with
the decommissioning was $408.1 million at December 31, 2006
and $378.7 million at December 31, 2003. We derermined that
the decommissioning trust funds established for Nine Mile Point
are adequately funded to cover the future costs 1o decommission !
the planc and as such, no contributions were made 10 the trust
funds during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005,
and 2004.

Upon the closing of the Ginna acquisition in 2004, the
seller cransferred $200.8 million in decommissiening funds, In
return, we assumed all liability for the costs to decommission the
unit. We believe char this transfer will be sufficient to cover the
future costs to decommission the plant and as such, no
coatributions wete made to the trust funds during the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, Effective
June 2004, we began to record decommissioning expense for
Ginna in accordance with SFAS No. 143. The “Asset retirement
obligations” liability associated with the decommissioning was
$209.9 million at December 31, 2006 and $196.6 million at
December 31, 2005.

In accordance with Nuclear Regulatory Commission
(NRC) regulations, we maintain external decommissioning trusts
to fund the costs expected to be incurred to decommission '
Calvert Cliffs, Nine Mile Point, and Ginna. The NRC requires
owners to provide financial assurance that they will accumulate
sufficient funds to pay for the cost ofnuclear.decommissioning.
The assets in the trusts are reported in “Nuclear
decommissioning trust funds” in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets. These amounts are legally restricted for funding the costs
of decommissioning. We classify the investments in the nuclear
decommissioning trust funds as available-for-sale securities, and
we report these investments at fair value in our Consolidated
Balance Sheets as previously discussed in this Note. Investments
by nuclear decommissioning trust funds are guided by the
“prudent man” investment principle. The funds are prohibited
from investing directly in Constellation Energy or its affiliates
and any other entity owning a nuclear power plant.

As the owner of Calvert Cliffs we, along with other
domestic utilities, were required by the Energy Policy Act of
1992 to make contributions to a fund for decommissioning and
decontaminating the Department of Energy’s uranium
enrichment facilities. ‘The contributions were paid by BGE over a
15 year period ending in 2006. BGE amortizes the deferred costs
of decommissioning and decontaminating the Department of
Energy’s uranium enrichment facilicies. The previous owners
retained the obligation for Nine Mile Point and Ginna.

Capitalized Interest and Allowance for Funds Used
During Construction

Capitalized Interest

Our nonregulated businesses capitalize interest costs under SFAS
No. 34, Capitalizing Interest Costs, for costs incurred to finance
our power plant construction projects, real estate developed for
internal use, and other capital projects.
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Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFC)
BGE finances its construction projects with borrowed funds and
equity funds. BGE is allowed by the Maryland PSC to record the
costs of chese funds as part of the cost of construction projects in
its Consalidated Balance Sheets. BGE does this through the
AFC, which it calculates using rates authorized by the Maryland
PSC. BGE bills its customers for the AFC plus a return after the
utility property is placed in service.

The AFC rates are 9.4% for electric plant, 8.5% for gas
plant, and 9.2% for common plant. BGE compounds AFC

annually.

Long-Term Debt
We defer all costs related to the issuance of long-term debt.
These costs include underwriters’ commissions, discounts or
premiums, other costs such as legal, accounting, and regulatary
fees, and printing costs. We amortize these costs into interest
expense over the life of the debr.

. When BGE incurs gains or losses on debr that it retires
prior to maturity, it amortizes those gains or losses over the
remaining original life of the debt.

Accounting Standards Issued

SFAS No. 157 .

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value

Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a

framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures for

fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for all fair

value measurements beginning January 1, 2008. We are

currently assessing the potential impact of SFAS No. 157. Based

upon our initial assessment, we believe that SFAS No. 157 will

affect the accounting for derivatives, which is one of our critical

accounting pelicies, in at least two ways:

¢ We record mark-to-market energy assets ner of a close-

out valuation adjustment, a portion of which represents
the initial contract margin when we are unable to obrain
observable marker price information for simitar
contracts. As a result, we do not recognize gains or losses
in earnings at the inception of such contracts; instead,
we recognize gains or losses in earnings as we realize cash
flows under the contract or when observable market data
becomes available. In certain instances, SFAS No. 157
will require us to record mark-to-market energy assets at
fair value without such a valuation adjustment, resulting
in the potential for recognition of gains or losses in
earnings at the inception of new mark-to-market
derivative contracts executed after the effective date.

"# We presently determine fair value for mark-to-market
energy liabilities and risk management liabiliries for
which prices are not available from external sources by
discounting the expected cash flows from the contracts
using a risk-free discount rate. We do not apply a credit-
spread valuation adjustment to reflect our own credit
risk in determining fair value for these liabilities.

SFAS No. 157 will require us to record all liabilities
measured at fair value including the effect of the
obligor’s credit risk. As a result, we will have to apply a
credit-spread adjustment in order o reflect our own
credit risk in determining fair value for these liabilides,




which we expect would result in a lower recorded fair
value for these liabilities.

Because SFAS No. 157 applies broadly 1o all fair value
measurements, we have not completed our assessment of its
requirements, the effects of which could extend beyond the
matters discussed on the previous page. In accordance with the
statement’s provisions, we will record the initial effects of
applying SFAS No. 157 by adjusting opening retained earnings
as of the required January 1, 2008 adoption date for the effect of
eliminating the close-out valuation zdjustment for
inception gains. The remaining impacts of adoption will be
reflected in earnings in 2008. The ultimate impact of applying
the provisions of SFAS No. 157 could be material to our, or
BGE’s, financial results.

FIN 48 :

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation (FIN) No. 48,
Aceounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. FIN 48 provides
guidance for the recognition and measurement of an entity’s
uncertain tax positions through the use of a “more-likely-than-
not” threshold. This threshold would be used to evaluate
whether each tax position will be sustained based solely on its
technical merits and assuming examination by a taxing authority.
FIN 48 must be applied to all tax positions beginning January 1,
2007. Based on the analysis performed to date, we estimarte the
adoption of FIN 48 will not have a material impact on our, or
BGE's, financial results. As a result of pending implemenration
guidance, we are still evaluating the impact of FIN 48, and
therefore the actual impact of FIN 48 on our, or BGE'’s, financial
results could differ from the above estimate.

Accounting Standards Adopted

SFAS Neo. 158

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefis Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No, 87, 106 and
132¢(R). SFAS No. 158 requires the underfunded status of
defined benefit postretirement plans to be recognized as a
liability in the balance sheets. Unrecognized actuarial losses or
gains, unrecognized prior service costs, and unrecognized
transition amounts are recognized as part of accumulated other
comprehensive income, net of tax. Subsequent changes in funded
status are recognized in the year in which changes occur through
accumnulated other comprehensive income. SFAS No. 158 was
effective for us on December 31, 2006.

Although we adopred SFAS No. 158 effective
December 31, 2006, we were required to remeasure the
additional minimum pension liability prior to calculating the
impact of adopting SFAS No. 158. As a result, we recorded a
$75.6 million after-tax increase to accumulated other
comprehensive income to reduce the additional minimum
pension liability at December 31, 2006. This reflected favorable
asset returns and an increase in our discount rate assumption in
2006.

We recorded an after-tax decrease to accumulated other
comprehensive income of $169.5 million at December 31, 2006
upon the adoprion of SFAS No. 158. This reflected the
requirement in SFAS No. 158 to begin reflecting the funded
status for postretirement benefit plans and ro begin using the
higher projected benefir obligation measure to reflect pension

plan funded status. The adoption of SFAS No. 158 did not have
any impact on BGE's financial results or our, or BGE’s, debt
covenants. We discuss the additional minimum pension liabilicy
and the adoption of SFAS No. 158 in more detail in Noze 7.

FSP FIN 46R-6

In April 2006, the FASB issued Staff Position (FSP) FIN 46R-6,
Determining the Variability to Be Considered in Applying FASB
Interpretarion No. 46R. FSP FIN 46R-6 provides that, in -
applying FASB Interpretation No. 46R, Consolidarion of Variable
Interest Entities an Interpretation of ARB No. 51, the reporting
enterprise should consider the design of the entity, the nawre of
the entiry’s risks, and the purpose for which the entity was
created. FSP FIN 46R-6 must be applied prospectively to new or
modified contracts beginning July 1, 2006, The adoption of this
FSP did not have a material impact on our, or BGE’s, financial
results.

FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1

In November 2005, FASB Staff Position SFAS 115-1 and

SFAS 124-1 (FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1), The Meaning of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and its Application to Certain
Investments, was issued to replace the measurement and
recognition criteria of EITF 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-
Temporary Impairment and its Application to Certain Investments.
FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 references existing guidance in
SFAS No. 115, SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 59,
Accounting for Noncurrent Marketable Equity Securities, and APB
Neo. 18. FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 requires an other-than-
temporary analysis to be completed each reporting period (i.e.,
every quarter) beginning after December 15, 2005. The adoption
of this standard did not have a material impact on our, or BGE’s,
financial results.

SAB 108

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission
issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 (SAB 108), Considering
the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements. SAB 108 was
issued in order to eliminate the diversity in practice surrounding
how public companies quantify financial statement
misstatements.

SAB 108 establishes an approach that requires
quantification of financial statement misstatements based on the
effects of the misstatements on each financial statement and the
related financial statement disclosures. This model requires
quantification of errors based on both an income statement and
balance sheet approach. SAB 108 required public companies to
initially apply its provisions for fiscal periods ending after
November 15, 2006.

The implementation of SAB 108 did not have any effect on
our financial results.
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2 Other Events

2006 Events

v

. Aﬂer:Tax

Pre-Tax

(Tn millions}

Gain on sale of gas-fired plants $ 73.8 $ 471
Workforce reduction costs (28.2) (17.0)
Merger-related costs (18.3) (5.7)
Gain on inicial public offering of

Constellation Energy Partners LI.C 28.7 17.9
lncome feam discontinued operations

High Desert 294.1 186.9

International investments 1.4 0.9
Total income from discontinued

operations ] 295.5 187.8
Total other items $351.5 $230.1
Sale of Gas-Fired Plants

In December 2006, we completed the sale of the following
narural gas-fired plants owned by our merchant energy
business: )

Capacity

Facility (MW7) Unit Type Location
High Desert 830  Combined Cycle  California
Rio Nogales 800  Combined Cycle Texas
Holland 665  Combined Cycle Mlinois
University Park 300 Peaking Hinois
Big Sandy 300 Peaking West Virginia
Wolf Hills 250 Peaking Virginia

We sold these gas-fired plants for cash of $1.6 billion,
which is subject to working capital adjustments, and recognized
a pre-tax gain on the sale of $259.0 millien of which

$73.8 million was included in “Gain on sale of gas-fired plants”

At the time of the agreement for sale, we evaluated these
plants for classification as discontinued operations under
SEAS No! 144. Discontinued operations classification only
applies to assets held for sale that meet the definition of a
component of an entity, A component of an entity comprises
operations and cash flows that can be clearly distinguished,
operationally and fot financial reporting purposes, from the rest
of the enrity.

High Desert met the requirements to be classified as a
discontinued operation because it had a power sales agreement
for its full output, was determined to be a component of
Constellation Energy, and had separately identiftable cash
flows. The rable below provides additional detail abour the
amounts recarded in “Income from discontinued operations”
related ro our High Desert facility.

The remaining gas-fired plants were managed within our
merchant business as a group ot on a portfolio basis because
they have aggregated risks, were hedged as a group, and
generated joinc cash flows. These gas-fired plants do not meet
the requirements w be classified as discontinued operations.
The results of operations for these gas-fired plants, as well as
the $73.8 million pre-tax gain on sale, remain classified in
continuing operations.

fnternational [nvestments
In the fourth quarter of 2003, we completed the sale of
Constellation Power Internarional Investments, Ltd. (CPII).
We recognized an after-tax gain of $0.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006 due to the resolution of an
outstanding contingency related to the sale. We discuss the
derails of the outstanding contingency later in this Note.
Presented in the table below are the amounts related to
thozge discontinued operations that are included in “Income
from discontinued operations” in our Consolidated Statements

and $185.2 million was included in “Income from of Income:
discontinued operations” in our Consolidated Statements of
[ncome. - ;
High Desert Qleander International Investments Total
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
{In millions)

Revenues $161.2 $163.7 $1592 $— 3147 $425 § — §$2281 $2197 $161.2 $4065 $421.4
Income before income taxes 108.9 111.0 106.9 _ 85 205 — 14.5 16.8 108.9 134.0 144.2
Net income 70.2 70.8 68.4 — 53 126 — 4.5 9.4 70.2 80.6 90.4
Pre-tax impairment charge — — — — (4.8) — — —_ — — 4.8) . —
After-tax impairment charge — — — — (3.0) —_ = — — — (3.0) —
Pre-tax gain on sale - 185.2 — —_ - 1.2 — 14 25.6 — 1866 26.8 —
After-rax gain on sale 116.7 — —_ - 0.7 — 09 16.1 — 1176 16.8 —
Incame from discontinued .

operations, net of taxes 186.9 70.8 68.4 — 3.0 126 09 20.6 94 1878 94.4 90.4

We recognized 4 pre-tax loss from discontinued operations of $(75.6) million, before income taxes of $(26.5) million from the sale of our
Hawaiian Geothermal facility in 2004. We discuss the sale of this facility later in this Note.
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Warkforce Reduction Costs

In March 2006, we approved a restructuring of the workforce
at our Ginna nuclear facilicy. In connection with this
restructuring, 32 employees were terminated. During the
quarter ended March 31, 2006, we recognized costs of

$2.2 million pre-tax related to recording a liability for severance
and other benefits under our existing benefit programs.

We complered this workforce reduction effort in 2006. As
a result, no involuntary severance liability was recorded at
December 31, 2006. ‘

In July 2006, we announced a planned restructuring of
the workforce at our Nine Mile Point nuclear facilicy. We
recognized costs during the quarter ended September 30, 2006
of $15.1 million pre-tax related to the elimination of 126
positions associated with this restructuring. We also initiated a
restructuring of the workforce at our Calvert Cliffs nuclear
facility during the third quarter of 2006 and we recognized
costs of $2.9 million pre-tax related to the elimination of
30 positions associated with this restrucruring,

In addition, we incurred a pre-tax settlement charge of
£12.7 million in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 88, Emplayers’ Accounting for
Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Bencfit Pension Plans
and for Termination Benefits. This charge reflects recognition of
the portion of deferred actuarial gains and losses associated with
employees who were terminated as part of the restructuring or
* retired in 2006 and who elected to receive their pension benefic
in the form of a lump-sum payment, In accordance with
SEAS No. 88, a settlement charge must be recognized when
lump-sum payments exceed annual pension plan service and
interest cost. The total SFAS No. 88 settlemenc charge incurred
in 2006 includes a pre-tax charge of $8.0 millton as a result of
the Nine Mile Point restructuring. We discuss the setdement
charges that we recorded during 2006 in Nete 7.

The following table summarizes the status of the
involuntary severance liability for Nine Mile Point and Calvert
Cliffs ar December 31, 2006:

; (In millions)

Initial severance liability balance $19.6
Amounts recorded as pension and

postretirement liabilities (7.3)
Net cash severance liabilicy 12.3
Cash severance payments (3.2)
Other —
Severance liability balance at December 31,

2006 5 9.1

The severance liability above includes $1.6 million of costs thar the
Jjoint owner of Nine Mile Point Unit 2 reimbursed us.

v
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Merger-Refated costs

We incurred costs during 2006 related o the proposed merger
with FPL Group. The merger was terminated in October 2006.
These costs totaled $18.3 million pre-tax for 2006. In addition,
during 2006 we recognized tax benefits of $5.3 million on
merger costs incurred in 2005 that were not considered
deductible for income tax purposes until the termination of the
merger in 2006. Our total pre-tax merger-related costs were
$35.3 million.

Initial Public Offering of Constelfation Energy Partners LLC
In November 2006, Constellacion Energy Partners LLC (CEP),
a limited liability company formed by Constellation Energy,
completed an initial public offering of 5.2 million common
unics at $21 per unit. The inidal public offering resulted in
cash proceeds of $101.3 million, after expenses associated with
the offering, for Constellation Energy.

We continue to own approximately 54% of CEP and as a
result, we continue to consolidate CEP. As a result of the inirial
public offering of CEP, we recognized a pre-tax gain of

- $28.7 millicn, or $17.9 million after recording deferred taxes

on the gain.

2005 Events

Pre-Tax  After-Tax
(In millions)

Merger-related costs $(17.0) $(15.6)
Workforce reduction costs ) (4.4) (2.6)
Income from discontinued operations

High Desert 111.0 70.8

International investments 40.1 20.6

Oleander 4.9 3.0
Total income from discontinued

operations 156.0 94.4
Tortal other items $134.6 $ 76.2

“Income from discontinued operations” reflects the reclassification
of earnings from our High Desert facility as required by
SFAS No. 144. '

Merger-Related Costs

We incurred external costs associated with the execution of the
agreement relating to our proposed merger with FPL Group.
We discuss the terminated merger in more decail in Note 15,

Worldorce Reduction Costs
As a result of the workforce reduction efforts initiated in 2004,
in 2005 we were required to record a pre-tax settlement charge
in our Consolidated Statements of Income of $4.4 million for
one of our qualified pension plans under SFAS No. 88.

In 2005, we completed the 2004 workforce reduction
effort. As a result, no involuntary severance liability was
recorded at December 31, 2005,




Discontinued Operations
Oleander
In March 2005, we reached an agreement in principle to sell
our Oleander generating facility, a four-unit peaking plant
located in Florida. Qur merchant energy business clagsified
Oleander as held for sale and performed an impairment test
under SFAS No. 144 as of March 31, 2005..The impairment
test indicated that the carrying value of the planc was higher
than its fair value less costs to sell, and therefore in March 2005
we recorded an impairment charge of $4.8 million pre-tax as
part of discontinued operations.
_ In June 2005, we completed the sale of chis facility for
$217.6 million, and recognized a pre-tax gain on the sale of
$1.2 million as part of discontinued operations,

International Investments
In October 2005, we sold CPI. CPII held our other

nonregulated international investments, which represented an

interest in a Panamanian electric distribution company and an

investment in a fund thar holds interests in two South
American energy projects. We received cash of $71.8 million
and recognized a pre-tax gain of approximately $25.6 million,
or $16.1 million after-tax. An additional $3.6 million of the
sales price was contingent upon the collection of certain
receivables by March 31, 2006. At December 31, 2003, we
recognized approximately $2.2 million of this ameunt based on
cash collections, which was included in the $25.6 million pre-
tax gain. We recognized the remaining $1.4 million of
contingent proceeds in 2006 once realization was assured
beyond a-reasonable doubt:

2004 Events

Pre-Tax After-Tax

(Tre millions)

Workforce reduction costs $ 9.7) $ (5.9
Recognition of 2003 syncheric fuel tax

credits — 35.9
{Loss) income from discontinued

operations

Hawaiian geothermal facility (75.6) {49.1)

High Desert 106.9 68.4

Internarional investments 16.8 9.4

QOleander 20.5 12.6
Toral income from discontinued

operations 68.6 41.3
Total other items § 58.9 3713

“Income from discontinued operations” reflects the reclassification
of earnings from our High Desert facility, the Oleander facility,
and our international investments as required by SFAS No. 144.

Workforce Reduction Costs

In the fourth quarter of 2004, we approved a restructuring of
the work forces of the Nine Mile Point and Calvert Cliffs
nuclear generaring stations that was effective in January 2005.
In connéction with this restructuring, approximarely 108
employees received severance and other benefits under our
existing benefit programs. At December 31, 2004, we accrued
the estimated rotal cost of this reduction in workforce of

$9.7 million pre-tax, or $5.9 million after-tax, in accordance
with applicable accounting requirements.

Synhetic Fuel Tax Credits

In 2003, we purchased a 99% ownership in a South Carolina
facility that produces synthertic fuel. We did not recognize in
our Consolidated Statements of Income the tax benefit of
$35.9 million for credits claimed on our South Carolina facility
in 2003 pending receipt of a favorable private letter ruling from
the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). In April 2004, we received
a favorable private letter ruling. We believe receipt of the
private letter ruling provided assurance that it is highly
probable that the credits will be sustained. Therefore, we
recognized the rax benefir of $35.9 million in our Consolidared
Statements of Income in 2004. We discuss the synthetic fuel
tax credits in more detail in Nose 10,

Discontinued Operations
Geothermal Faciliry
In March 2004, management commitced to a plan to sell our
geothermal generating facility in Hawaii that met the “held for
sale” criteria under SFAS No. 144. Under SFAS No. 144, we
record assers and liabilities held for sale ar the lesser of the
carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. _
The fair value of the facility as of March 31, 2004, based
on the bids under consideration, was below carrying value.
Therefore, we recorded a $71.6 million pre-tax, or
$47.3 million after-tax, impairment charge during the first
quarter of 2004, We reported the after-tax impairment charge
as a component of “Loss from discontinued operations” in our
Consolidated Statements of Income. Addicionally, we
recognized $1.5 million pre-tax, or $1.0 million after-tax, of
earnings from the facility for the quarter ended March 31,
2004 as a component of “Loss from discontinued operations.”
In June 2004, we completed the sale of the facility. Based
on the final sales price and other costs incurred over the
remainder of the year, we recognized an additional loss of
$5.5 million pre-tax, or $2.8 million after-tax. The sale of this
facility was reflected in our merchant energy business
reportable segment.

91




3 Information by Operating Segment

Qur reportable operating segments are—Merchant Energy,
Regulated Electric, and Regulated Gas:
¢ Our merchant energy business is nonregulated and
includes:

— full requirements load-serving sales of energy and
capacity to utilities, cooperatives, and commercial,
industrial, and governmental customers,

— structured transactions and risk management services:
for various customers (including hedging of output
from generating facilities and fuel costs),

— deployment of risk capital through portfolio
management and trading activities,

— gas retail energy products and services to commercial,
industrial, and governmental customers,

— fossil, nuclear, and interests in hydroelectric generating
facilities and qualifying facilities, fuel processing
facilities, and power projects in the United States,

— upstream {exploration and production) and
downstream (transportation and storage) natural gas
operations,

— coal sourcing services for the variable or fixed supply
needs of global customers, and -

— generation operations and maintenance services.

# Our regulaced electric business purchases, transmits,
distribures, and sells electricity in Central Maryland.

4 Our regulated gas business purchases, transports, and
sells natural gas in Central Maryland.
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Our remaining nonregulated businesses:

4 design, construct, and operate heating, cooling, and
cogeneration facilities for commercial, industrial, and
governmental customers throughout North America,
and '

¢ provide home improvements, service electric and gas
appliances, service heating, air conditioning, plumbing,
electrical, and indoor air quality systems, and provide
natural gas marketing to residential customers in
Central Maryland.

During 2006, we sold six of our gas-fired facilities. In
addition, we own several investments that we do not consider
to be core operations. These include financial investments and
real estate projects. During 2003, we sold our other I
nonregulated internarional investments. We discuss the sales of
our gas-fired plants and our internadional investments in more
dertail in Nate 2.

Our Merchant Energy, Regulated Electric, and Regulated
Gas reportable segments are strategic businesses based
principally upon regulations, products, and services that require
different technology and marketing strategies. We evaluare the
performance of these segments based on net income. We
account for intersegment revenues using market prices. We
present a summary of information by operaring segment on the
next page.




Reportable Segments

Merchant  Regulated Regulared Other
Energy Electric Gas Nonregulated
Business Business Business Businesses Eliminations  Consolidated
(In millions)

2006

Unaffiliated revenues $16,048.2 $2,115.9 $ 8§90.0 $230.8 $ — $19,284.9
Intersegment revenues 1,118.0 —_ 9.5 0.2 (1,127.7) —
Total revenues 17,166.2 2,115.9 899.5 231.0 (1,127.7) 19,284.9
Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 258.7 181.5 46.0 37.7 — 523.9
Fixed charges 191.7 86.9 28.9 10.5 10.7 328.7
Income tax expense (benefit} 250.2 78.0 27.0 (4.2) — 351.0
Income from discontinued operations 186.9 — — 0.9 — 187.8
Net income (a) 767.0 120.2 37.0 12.2 — 936.4
Segment assets 16,387.3 3,783.2 1,252.8 887.8 (509.5) 21,801.6
Capiral expenditures 768.0 297.0 63.0 21.0 — 1,149.0
2005

Unaffiliated revenues $13,763.1 $2,036.5 $ 9617 $207.0 $ — $ 16,968.3
Intersegment revenues 859.3 - 11.1 — (870.4) —
Toral revenues , 14,622.4 2,036.5 972.8 207.0 (870.4) 16,968.3
Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 250.4 185.8 46.6 40.2 — 523.0
Fixed charges 178.0 80.3 26.4 10.0 15.5 310.2
Income tax expense (benefir) 41.7 101.2 21.2 {0.2) —_— 163.9
Income from discontinued operations 73.8 — — 206 — 94.4
Cumulative effects of changes in

accounting principles (7.4} — — 0.2 — (7.2)

Net income {b) 425.8 149.4 267 21.2 — 623.1
Segment assets 16,620.4 3,424 .4 1,222.5 476.1 (269.5) 21,473.9
Capiral expenditures 709.0 241.0 50.0 320 — 1,032.0
2004

Unaffiliated revenues $ 9,203.7 $1,967.6 $ 7550 $200.9 3 — $12,127.2
Intersegment revenues 984.6 0.1 2.0 (.2 (986.9) —
Total revenues 10,188.3 1,967.7 757.0 201.1 . (986.9) 12,1272
Depreciation and amortization 221.9 194.2 48.1 24.2 — 488.4
Fixed charges 196.2 80.3 29.1 15.4 5.8 326.8
Income rax expense {benefir) 22.8 86.8 15.9 {7.1) ; — 118.4
Income from discontinued operations 31.9 — — 9.4 — 41.3
Ner income (loss) (c) 389.9 131 o222 (3.5) — 539.7
Segment assets 12,395.6 3,402.2 1,163.4 675.7 (289.8) 17,347.1
Capiral expenditures 455.0 209.0 56.0 42.0 — 762.0

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation. The reclassifications primarily relate to
operations that have been classified as discontinued operations in the current year.

(@) Our merchant energy business recognized an after-tax gain of $47.1 million on sale of gas-fired plants and an after-tax gain of
317.9 million on the initial public offering of Constellation Energy Partners LLC as discussed in more detail in Note 2. Onr merchant
energy business, our regulated electric business, our regulated gas business, and our other nonregulated businesses recognized after-rax .
charges of $21.3 million, $0.8 million, $0.4 million, and 30.2 million for merger-related costs and workforce reduction costs as

described in more detail in Note 2.

(b)  Our merchant energy business, our regulated eleciric business, our regulated gas business, and our other nonreguluted businesses
recognized after-tax charges of $13.0 million, 33.7 million, $1.3 million, and $0.2 million for merger-related costs and workforce
reduction costs as described in more detail in Nose 2. '

{c)  Qur merchant energy business recognized afier-tax income of $30.0 million, for recognition of 2003 synthetic fuef tax credits and
workforce reduction cosis as described in more detail in Note 2.
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4 Investments

Investments in Qualifying Facilities and Power Projects
Qur merchant energy business holds up to a 50% voting '
interest in 24 operating domestic energy projects that consist of
electric generation, fuel processing, or fuel handling facilities.
Of chese 24 projects, 17 are “qualifying facilities” that receive
certain exemprtions and pricing under the Public Utilicy
Regulatory Policies Act of 1978 based on the facilities” energy
source or the use of a cogeneration process.

Investments in qualifying facilities and domestic power
projects held by our merchant energy business consist of the

following;
At December 31, : 2006 2005
{In millions)

Coal $125.7 $127.8
Hydroelectric 55.1 55.9
Geothermal 40.5 43.7
Biomass 46.6 48.0
Fuel Processing 33.7- 238
Solar 7.0 7.0

Toral $308.6 $306.2

Investments in qualifying facilities and domestic power
projects were accounted for under the following methods:

At December 31, 2006 2005
(In millions)
Equity method $301.6 $299.2
Cost method 7.0 7.0
Total power projects $308.6  $306.2

Qur percentage voting interest in qualifying facilities and
domestic power projects accounted for under the equity
method ranges from 16% to 50%. Equity in earnings of these
pawer projects was $13.8 million in 2006, $3.6 million in
2005, and $18.0 million in 2004.

Our power projects include investments of $220.5
million in 2006 and $228.6 million in 2005 that sell electriciry
in California under power purchase agreements.

Investments Classified as Available-for-Sale
We classify the following investments as available-for-sale:

# nuclear decommissioning trust funds,

# marketable equity securiries, andr

# [rust assets securing certain executive benefits.

This means we do not expect to hold them to maturity,
and we do not consider them wrading securities.
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 We show the fair values, gross unrealized gains and losses,
and amortized cost basis for all of our available-for-sale
securities, in the following tables. We use specific identification
to derermine cost in compuring realized gains and losses.

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized  Fair
At December 31, 2006 Cost Basis Gains Losses Value

(in millions)
Marketable equity
securities $ 811.0 $221.1 $(3.3) $1,028.8
Corporate debt and
1.S. treasuries 160.1 1.9 (0.3) 161.7
State municipal bonds 68.1 5.4 (0.2) 73.3
Tatals $1,039.2 $228.4 $(3.8) §1,263.8

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized  Fair
At December 31, 2005 Cost Basis Gains Losses Value
(In millions)

Marketable equity

securities $ 804.4 $112.7 $(3.8) 3 9133
Corporate debt and

LS. treasuries 114.8 0.2 (1.4) 113.6
State municipa! boads 107.1 2.8 (0.8) 109.1
Torals $1,026.3 $115.7 $(6.0) $1,136.0

[n addition to the above securities, the nuclear
decommissioning trust funds included $24.1 million ar
December 31, 2006 and $12.2 million at December 31, 2005
of cash and cash equivalents.

The preceding tables include $206.1 million in 2006 of
nee unrealized gains and $110.3 million in 2005 of net
unrealized gains associated with the nuclear decommissioning
trust funds thar are reflected as a change in the nuclear

- decommissioning trust funds in our Consolidated Balance

Sheets. _

We have unrealized losses relating to certain available-for-
sale investments included in our decommissioning trust funds.
We believe these losses are temporary in nature and expect the
investments to recover their value in the future. We show the
fair values and unrealized losses of our investments that were in
a loss position at December 31, 2006 and 2005 in the tables
below.

Ar Dertmberjl, 2006

Less than 12 months or
12 months more Total
Description of Fair Unrealized Fair  Unrealized  Fair  Unrealized
Securities Value  Losses  Value  Losses  Value  Losses
{In millions)
Marketable equity
securities $ 95 $(0.8 5124 $(.7) $21.9 $(2.5)
Corporate debt
and U.S.
treasuries 10.3 — 237 (0.3) 34.0 (0.3)
State municipal
bonds 4.8 — 14,0 0.2) 18.8 {0.2)
Total temporarily
impaired
securities $24.6 $(0.8) $50.1 §$(2.2) $747 $(3.0)

.-




At December 31, 2005

Less than 12 months or
12 months more Total
Description of Fair  Unrcalized Fait  Unrealized  Fair  Unrealized
Securitics Value Losses  Value Losses Value Laosses
' (Inmillions) - . - v
Marketable
equiry
securities $ 223 329 $ 23 $(03) $ 240 $(3.2)
Cortporate debt
and U.S.
Lreasuries 71.8 (.y 118 (0.3) 83.6 (1.4)
State municipal
bonds 46.0 0.6) 11.8 (0.2} 57.8 (0.8)
Total
temporarily
impaired
securities $140.1  $(4.6) $259 $(0.8) $1660 $(5.4)

Gross and net realized gains and losses on available-for-
sale securities were as follows:

2006 2005 2004
(In millions)
Grass realized gains $133 3123 § 41
Gross realized losses (13.0) {9.3) (7.7)
Ner realized gains (losses) $ 03 3 30 3(3.6)

Gross realized losses for 2004 include a $4.5 million pre-
tax impairment charge we recognized on a nuclear
decommissioning trust fund investment that we believed
represented an other than temporary decline in value.

The corporate debr securities, U.S. Government agency
obligarions, and state municipal bonds mature on the following
schedule:

At December 31, 2006

(Tn mittions)
Less than 1 year $ 76
1-5 years 74.9
5-10 years 62.4
More than 10 years 90.1
Total marurities of debt securiries $235.0

Investments in Variable Interest Entitles
We have a significant interest in the following variable interest
entities (VIE) for which we are not the primary beneficiary:

Dare of

Involvement

Narure of
Involvement

VIE

Power projects and Prior to 2003

fuel supply entiries

Equity investment and
guarantees

Power contract Power sale agreements, March 2003
monetization loans, and
entities guaranrees
Oil & gas fields Equiry investment May 2006
Retail power supply ~ Power safe agreement  September 2006

We discuss the nature of our involvement with the power
contract monetization VIEs in the Customer Contract
Restructuring section below,
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The following is summary information available as of
December 31, 2006 abour the VIEs in which we have a
significant interest, but are not the primary beneficiary:

L ' Power
Contract All
Monetization Ocher
VIEs VIEs Tortal
(T millions)

"Total assets $746.1 $355.5 §1,101.6
Toral liabilities 592.6 162.0 754.6
Our ownership interest — 51.5 51.5
Other ownership

interests 153.5 142.0 295.5
QOur maximum
exposure 1o loss 65.8 92.3 158.1

The maximum exposure to loss represents the loss that we
would incur in the unlikely event thar our interests in all of
these entities were to become worthless and we were required
to fund the full amount of all guarantees associated with these
entities. Qur maximum exposure to loss as of December 31,
2006 consists of the following:

¢ ourstanding receivables, loans, and letters of credit

totaling $94.0 million, S

¢ the carrying amount of our investment totaling

$51.4 million, and

# debr and performance guarantees rotaling

$12.7 million.

We assess the risk of a loss equal to our maximum
exposure to be remote.

Customer Conract Restrueturin

In March 2005, our merchant energy business closed a
transaction in which we assumed from a counterparty two
power sales contracts with existing VIEs. Under the contracts,
we sell power to the VIEs which, in turn, sell that power to an
electric distribution urility through 2013.

The VIEs previously were created by the counterparty to
issue debt in order to monetize the value of the original
contracts to purchase and sell power, The difference between
the contract prices at which the VIEs purchase and sell power is
used to service the debt of the VIEs, which totaled
$568 million at December 31, 2006,

The market price for power at the closing of our
transaction was higher than the contract price under the
existing power sales contracts we assumed. Therefore, we
received compensation totaling $308.5 million, equal to the net
present value of the difference berween the contrace price under
the power sales contracts and the marker price of power at
closing. We used a portion of this amount to settle
$68.5 million of existing derivative liabilities with the same
counterparty, and we also loaned $82.8 million to the holder of
the equiry in the VIEs. As a result, we received nert cash at
closing of $157.2 million. We also guaranteed our subsidiaries’
performance under the power sales contracts.




The table below summarizes the transaction and the net
cash received at closing:

(In millions)
Gross compensation from original power sales
contracts counterparty equal to fair value of
power sales contracts at closing $308.5
Settlement of existing derivative liabilities (68.5)
Third-party loan secured by equity in VIE (82.8)
Net cash received at closing $157.2

We recorded the closing of this transaction in our
financial statements as follows:

Cash Flows

Balance Sheet

Fair value of power  Risk management  Financing cash

sales contraces liabilicies inflow
assumed
{designated as
cash-flow hedge)

Sertlement of Mark-to-market Operaring cash
existing derivative and risk outflow
liabilities management

liabilities
Other assets Investing cash

outflow

Third-parry loan

O

We recorded the gross compensation we received to
assume the power sales contracts as a financing cash inflow
because it constitutes a prepayment for a portion of the market
price of power, which we will sell to the VIEs over the term of
the conrracts and does not represent a cash inflow from current’
period operating activities. We record the ongoing cash flows
related ro the sale of power to the VIEs as a financing cash
inflow in accordance with SFAS No. 149, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 133 on Derivative and Hedging Activities.

If the electric distribution utility were to defaulr under its
obligation to buy power from the VIEs, the equity holder could
wansfer its equity interests to us in lieu of repaying the loan. In
this event, we would have the right to seek recovery of our
losses from the electric distribution utilicy.
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5 Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair
‘value of the net assets acquired. Qur goodwill balance is
primarily related to our merchant energy business acquisitions
that occurred in 2002 and 2003. The changes in the carrving
amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2003 are as follows:

The following is our, and BGE’s, estimated amortization
expense for 2007 through 2011 for the intangible assets included
in our, arid BGE’s, Consolidated Balance Sheets at
December 31, 2006:

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

(Ire millions)

Estimated amortization expense—
Nonregulated businesses

$41.6 $36.3 $29.0 5208 $15.2

Batance ac Goodwill Balance ar Estimated amortization expense—
2006 Janvary 1, Acquired  Other(a)  December 31, BGE P 193 167 134 120 99
. (In millions) Total estimated amortization
Goodwill $147.1 $11.1 $(0.6) $157.6 expense—Constellation Energy  $60.9 $53.0 $42.4 $328 $25.1
Balanceat  Goodwill Balance at -
2005 January 1, Acquired Other  December 31, Una_mortlze.d Energy Contrac'ts
7F miillions) As discussed in Note 1, unamorrized energy contract assets and

Goodwill $144.8  $23 $— " $147.1 liabilities represent the remaining unamottized balance of

(a) Other represents purchase price adjustments.

Goodwill is not amortized; rather, it is evaluated for
impairment at least annually. We evaluared our goodwill in 2006
and 2005 and determined thar it was not impaired. For rax
purposes, $128.5 million of our goodwill balance is deductible,

Intangible Assets Subject to Amortization

Intangible assets with finite lives are subject to amortization over
their estimated useful lives. The primary assets included in this
category are as follows:

At December 31, 2006 2005
Accumul- Accumul-
Gross ated Gross ated
Carrying  Amortiz- Net  Carrying  Amoriz-  Net
Amouns ation Asset  Amount ation Asset
(In millions)
Software $392.3  $(182.6) $209.7 83647 $(156.5) $208.2
Permits and .
licenses 60.4 (5.9) 54.5 49.4 {12.6} 36.8
Operating
manuals and
procedures 38.5 7.0 314 IR6 60 36
Other 26.3 (17.2) 9.1 29.7 (14.3) 15.4
Toral $517.5  $(212.8) $304.7 $4824 §(189.4) $293.0

BGE had intangible assets with a gross carrying amount of $191.3
million and accumulated amortization of $109.2 million at
December 31, 2006 and $181.4 million and accumulated
amortization of $98.7 million at December 31, 2005 that are
included in the table above. Substantially all of BGE's intangible
assets relate to software.

We recognized amortization expense related to our
intangible assets as follows:

nonderivative energy contracts acquired or derivatives designated
as normal purchases and normal sales, which we previously
recorded as mark-to-marker energy or risk- management assets
and liabilities.

During 2005, we acquired several pre-existing
nonderivative contracts that had been originated by other parties
in prior periods when market prices were lower than current
levels. We received approximately $530 million in cash and other
consideration and recorded 2 liability in “Unamortized energy
contracts.” In addition, during 2005, we designated as normal
purchases and normal sales contracts that we had previously
recorded as cash-flow hedges in “Risk management liabilities.”
This resulted in a reclassification of $888.5 million from "Risk
management liabilities” to “Unamortized energy contract
liabilities,” '

We present separately in our Consolidated Balance Sheets
the net unamortized energy contract assets and liabilities for
these contracts. The table below presents the gross and net
carrying amount and accumulared amortization of the net
liability that we have recorded in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets:

At December 34 2006 2005
Accumul- Accumul-
ated ated
Carrying  Amortiz- Net Carrying  Amoniz- Net
Amount ation Liability  Amount  ation Liabilicy

(In millions)
Unamonized

energy
contracts, net $({1.642.0) % 464.5 $(1,177.5)8(1.449.2) $ 37.8 S5(1411.4)

The table below presents the estimated net favorable impact
on our operating results for the amortization for these assets and
liabilities over the next five-years:

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 Vear Ended December 31, 2007 2008 2009 2019 2011
(Int millions) {In millions)

Nonregulated businesses $37.2 $30.6 $25.0  Estimated amortization $342.8 $255.4 $178.0 $166.6 $41.8

BGE 18.6 26.3 41.4 "

Total Constellation Energy $55.8 $56.9 $66.4




6 Regulatory Assets (net)
As discussed in. Note [, the Maryland PSC and the FERC

provide the final determination of the rates we charge our
customers for our regulated businesses. Generally, we use the
same accounting policies and practices used by nonregulated
companies for financial reporting under accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. However,
sometimes the Maryland PSC or FERC orders an accounting
treacment different from thar used by nonregulated companies o
determine the rates we charge our customers. When this
happens, we must defer cerrain regulated expenses and income in
our Consolidared Balance Sheets as regulatory assets and
liabilities. We then record them in our Consolidazed Statements
of Income (using amortization) when we include them in the
rates we charge our customers.

We summarize regulatory assets and liabilities in the
following table, and we discuss each of them separately below.

At December 31, 2006 2005
' (I miltians; -
Deferred fuel costs
Rate stabilization deferral $3269 $§ —
Orher 37.8 16.2
Electric generation-related regulatory asser  154.8 173.6
Net cost of removal (161.3) {148.7)
Income taxes recoverable through future
rates (net) 67.1 70.9
Deferred postretirement and
postemployment benefic costs 19.3 22.6
Deferred environmental costs 10.0 14.9
Workforce reduction costs 4.9 7.3
Qther (net) ' (8.0) (2.5)
Total regulatory assets {net) 451.5 154.3
Less: Current portion of regulatory assets
{ner) 62.5 —
Long-term portion of regulatory assets
(net) $389.0 % 1543

Deferred Fuel Costs

Rate Stabilization Deferral

In June 2006, Senate Bill 1 was enacted in Maryland, which
imposes a rare stabilization measure that caps rate increases by
BGE for residential electric customers at 15% from July 1, 2006
to May 31, 2007. As a result, BGE is recording a regulatory asset
on its Consolidated Balance Sheets equal to the difference
berween the costs to purchase power and the revenues collected
from customers, s well as related carrying charges based on
short-term interest rates from July 1, 2006 to May 31, 2007.
During 2006, BGE deferred $326.9 million of electricity
purchased for resale expenses and carrying charges as a regulatory
asset related to the rate stabilization plan. BGE will amortize the
regulatory asset to earnings over a period not to exceed ten years
once collection from customers begins.

Other i

As described in Note [, deferred fuel costs are the difference
between our actual costs of purchased energy and our fuel rate
revenues collected from customers. We reduce deferred fuel costs
as we collect them from or refund them to our customers.

We exclude deferred fuel costs from rate base because their
existence is relatively short-lived. These costs are recovered in the
following year through our fuel rates.

Electric Generation-Related Regulatory Asset

As a result of the deregulation of electric generation, BGE ceased
to meet the requirements for the application of SFAS No. 71 for
the previous electric generation portion of its business. In -
accordance with SFAS No. 101, Regulated Enterprises—
Accounting for the Discontinuation of Application of FASB
Statement No. 71, and EITF 97-4, Deregulation of the Pricing of
Electricity—[ssues Related to the Application of FASB Statements
No, 71 and 101. BGE wrote-off all of its individual,
generation-related regulatory assets and labilities. BGE
established a single, generation-related regularory asset ro be
collected through its regulated cransmission and distribution
business, which is being amortized on a basis thar approximares
the pre-existing individual regulatory asser amortization '
schedules.

A portion of this regulatory asset represents income raxes
recoverable through furure rates that do not earn a regulated rare
of return. These amounts were $89.4 million as of December 31,
2006 and $97.9 million as of December 31, 2005. We will
continue to amortize this amount through 2017,

Another portion of this regulatory asset represents the
decommissioning and decontamination fund payment for federal
uranium enrichment facilities that do not earn a regulared rate of
return on the rate base investment. These amounts were $5.5
million at December 31, 2006 and $8.6 million at December 31,
2005, Prior to the deregulation of electric generation, these costs
were recovered through the electric fuel rate mechanism, and
were excluded from rate base. We will continue to amortize this
amount through 2008.

Net Cost of Removal

As discussed in Nose 1, we use the group depreciation method for
the regulated business. This method is currendy an acceptable
method of accounting under accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and is widely used in
the energy, transportation, and relecommunication industries.

Historically, under the group depreciation method, the
anticipated costs of removing assets upon retirement were
provided for over the life of those assets as a component of -
depreciation expense. However, effecrive January 1, 2003, we
adopted SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations. In addition to providing the accounting
requirements for recognizing an estimated liabiliry for legal
obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived
assets, SFAS No. 143 precludes the recognition of expected net
future costs of removal as a component of depreciation expense
or accumulated depreciation.

BGE is required by the Maryland PSC to use the group
depreciation method, including cost of removal, under regulatory
accounting. For ratemaking purposes, net cost of removal is a
component of accumulated depreciation and is included as a net
reduction 1o BGE's rate base investment. ln accordance with
SFAS No. 71, BGE continues to accrue for the future cost of
removal for irs regulated gas and electric assets by increasing irs
regulatory liability. This liability is relieved when actual removal
costs are incurred.
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Income Taxes Recoverable Through Future Rates (net)
As described in Note I, income taxes recoverable through future
rates are the portion of our net deferred income tax liabiliy that
is applicable to our regulated business, but has not been reflected
in the rates we charge our customers. These income raxes
represent the tax effect of temporary differences in depreciation
and the allowance for equity funds used during construction,
offset by differences in deferred tax rates and deferred taxes on
deferred investment tax credits. We amorrize these amounts as
the temporary differences reverse.

Deferred Postretirement and Postemployment Benefit
Costs

Deferred postretirement and postemployment benefit costs are
the costs we recorded under SFAS No. 106, Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions, and
SFAS No. 112, Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits,
in excess of the costs we included in the rates we charge our
customers. We began amortizing these costs over a 15-year
period in 1998,

Deferred Environmental Costs
Deferred environmental costs are the estimated costs of

investigating and cleaning up contaminated sites we own. We
discuss this further in Note 12. We amortized $21.6 million of

T
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these costs (the amount we had incurred through Ocrober 1995)
and are amortizing $6.4 million of these costs (the amount we
incurred from November 1995 through june 2000) over 10-year
periods in accordance with the Maryland PSC’s orders. We
applied for and received rate relief for an additional $5.4 million
of clean-up costs incurred during the period from July 2000
through November 2005. These costs are being amortized over a
10-year period that began in January 2006.

Workforce Reduction Costs

The portions of the costs associated with aur Voluntary Special
Early Retirement Program and workforce reduction programs
thar relate to BGE's gas business are deferred as regulatory assets
in accordance with the Maryland PSC’s orders in prior rate cases.
As a result of a 20035 gas base rare case, the remaining regulatory
assets associated with workforce reductions rotaling $7.3 million
as of December 31, 2005 are being amortized over a 3-year
period that began in January 2006, These remaining regulatory
assets were previously amortized over 5-year periods beginning in
January and Febtuary 2002.

Other (Net)

Other regulatory assers are comprised of a variety of current
assets and liabilities char do not earn a regulatory rate of return
due 1o their short-term nacure.

: Pension, Postretirement, Other Postemployment, and Employee Savings Plan Benefits

We offer penston, postretirement, other postemployment, and
employee savings plan benefits. BGE employees participate in
the benefit plans that we offer. We describe each of our plans
separately below. Nine Mile Poinr offers its own pension,
postretirement, other postemployment, and employee savings
plan benefits to its employees. The benefits for Nine Mile Point
are included in the tables beginning below.

We use a December 31 measurement date for our pension,
postretirement, other postemployment, and employee savings
plans. In 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, which was
adopted on December 31, 2006. We discuss SFAS No. 158 in
more detail in Nose 1. The following rable summarizes our
defined benefit liabilities and their classification in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets:

At December 31, 2006 2005
(In millions)
Pension benefits $468.6 $401.4
Postretirement benefits 441.5 327.9
Postemployment benefits 57.0 54.7
Total defined benefit obligations 967.1 784.0
Less: Amounr recorded in accrued
expenses and other* 38.8 —

Total noncurrent defined benefic

obligations $928.3  $784.0

* Amount recorded as curvent portion of defined benefit liability in
2006 is based on the expected cash payments associated with
unfunded plans during the next 12 months, Constellation Energy
did not record the current portion of its defined benefit obligation
prior to the December 2006 implementation of SFAS No. 158.
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Pension Benefits

We sponsor several defined benefit pension plans for our
employees. These include basic qualified plans chat most
employees participate in and several nonqualified plans that are
available only to certain employees. A defined benefit plan
specifies the amount of benefits a plan participant s to receive
using information about the participant. Employees do not
contribute to these plans. Generally, we calculate the benefits
under these plans based on age, years of service, and pay.

Sometimes we amend the plans retroactively, These
retroactive plan amendments require us to recalculate benefits
refated to participants’ past service. We amortize the change in
the benefir costs from these plan amendments on a straight-line
basis over the average remaining service period of active
employees. .

We fund che qualified plans by contributing at least the
minimum amount required under IRS regulations. We calculate
the amount of funding using an acruarial method called the
projected unit credit cost method. The assets in all of the plans at
December 31, 2006 and 2005 were mostly markerable equity
and fixed income securities.

Postretirement Benefits

We sponsor defined benefit postretirement health care and life
insurance plans that cover the majority of our employees.
Generally, we calculate the benefits under these plans based on
age, years of service, and pension benefit levels or final base pay.
We do not fund these plans. For nearly all of the health care
plans, retirees make conrributions to cover a portion of the plan




costs. For the life insurance plan, retirces do not make
contributions to cover a portion of the plan costs.

Effective in 2002, we amended our postretirement medical
plans for all subsidiaries other than Nine Mile Point. Our
contributions for retirce medical coverage for furure retirees who
were under the age of 55 on January 1, 2002 are capped at the
2002 level. We also amended our plans to increase the Medicare
eligible retirees’ share of medical costs.

In 2003, the President signed into law the Medicare
Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003
(the Act). This legislation provides a prescription drug benefir for
Medieare beneficiaries, a benefit thar we provide to our Medicare
eligible retirees. Our actuaries concluded thar prescription drug
benefits available under our postretirement medical plan are
“actuarially equivalent” to Medicare Part D and thus qualify for
the subsidy under the Act. In 2005, the Center for Medicare and
Medicaid Services accepted our application to receive a tax
reimbursement for eligible prescription drug costs, and we bcg/an
to receive the subsidy in 2006. The actual subsidy offsets a
portion of our share of the cost of the underlying postretirement
prescription drug coverage. This legislation reduced our
Accumulared Postretirement Benefit Obligation by
$42.6 million ar January 1, 2005 and our annual postretirement
benefit expense in 2005 by $5.4 million. This subsidy reduced
our 2006 cash medical costs by $1.8 million, or by 7%.

Pension Liability Adjustments

Our pension accumulated benefit obligation has exceeded the
fair value of our plan assets since 2001, At December 31, 2006
and 2005, our pension obligations were greater than the fair
value of our plan assets for our qualified and our nonqualified
pension plans as follows:

Qualified Plans Non-Qualified

At December 31, 2006 Nine Mile  Other Plans Total
(In millions)
Accumulared benefit :
obligation $107.5 $1,306.0 $63.8 $1,477.3
Fair value of assets 54,6 1,106.6 — 1,161.2
Unfunded obligaton ~ § 529 § 199.4 $63.8 $ 316.1
Quualified Plans Non-Qualified
At December 31, 2005 Nine Mile  Other Plans Total
(In millions)
Accumulared benefit
obligation $127.1 $1,325.1 $56.3 $1.508.5
Fair value of assets 84.9 1,022.2 — 1,107.1
Unfunded obligation $ 422 % 3029 $56.3 $ 4014

We were required to remeasure the additional minimum
pension liability prior to calculating the impact of adopting
SFAS No. 158 on December 31, 2006. We recorded the
additional minimum pension liability adjustments as follows:

Increase (Decrease}

Pension Accumulated Other
Liability Intangible Comprehensive Loss
Adjustment  Asset *  Pre-tax  After-tax
. (In millions) !
Cumulative through 2004 § 359.6 $40.6  $(319.0) $(192.8)
2005 121.4 6.1)  (127.5) (77.1) .
2006 (131.1) (5.9) 125.2 75.6
Toual $ 349.9 $28.6 $(321.3) $(194.3)

* Included in “Other assets” in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Upon adoption of SFAS No. 158, we reversed the
intangible asset associated with the minimum pension liability
adjustment, increased our pension and postretirement liabilities,
and reduced equity. The following table summarizes the impact
of the adoption of SFAS No. 158 at December 31, 2006:

Increase (Pecrease)
Postretirement

Accumulated Other

Pension Benefit Intangible Comprehensive Loss
Liability Liability = " Asser Pretax  After-tax
T (In millions)
December 31,
2006 $152.5 $99.7 $(28.6) $(280.8) $(169.5)

SFAS Ne. 158 reduced onr deferred income tax liability by $111.3 million.

Obligations and Assets

As a result of workforce reduction inirtiatives in the generation
business, pension and postretirement special termination benefits
were recorded in 2006 and 2005. We discuss the workforce
reduction initiarives further in Nore 2.

We show the change in the benefit obligations and plan
assets of the pensien and postretirement benefit plans in the
following tables. Postretirement benefit plan amounts are
presented net of expected reimbursements under Medicare
Part D..

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005
(In millions)

Change in benefit
" obligation (1)

Benefit obligation at January 1 $1,678.6 $1.513.2 $460.4 $423.2

Service cost 49.0 44.8 7.7 7.6
Interest cost 89.3 83.9 23.7 23.8
Plan parricipants’ -

contributions — —_ 8.3 7.4
Actuarial {gain} loss (49.1) 143.6  (27.1) 356
Special termination benefits 4.2 {0.4) 35 —
Benefirs paid (2) (142.2)  (106.5) (350} {37:2)

Benefit obligation at

December 31 $1,629.8 51,678.6 $441.5 $460.4

(1) Amounts reflect projecied benefit obligation for pension benefiss and
accumulared postretirement benefit obligation for postretirement benefiss.
Benefits paid include annuity paymenss, lump-sum distributions, and
transfers to nonqualified deferred compensasion plans.

(2
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Pension Postretirement

Benefits Benefits
2006 - 2005 2006 2005
(In millions)
Change in plan assets - o
Fair value of plan assers at
January 1 $1,107.1 $1,0844 $§ — § —
Actual recurn on plan assets 141.1- 76.2 — —
Employer contriburion{1} 55.2 530 267 298
Plan participants’ contributions — — 83 74
Benefits paid(2) (142,2) (1065 (3500 (37.2)
Fair value of plan assets at
December 31 $1,161.2 $1,107.1 § — § —

(1) Includes benefit payments for unfunded plans.
(2)  Benefits paid include annuity payments, lump-sum distributions, and
rransfers to nongualified deferred compensation plans.

Net Periodic Benefit Cost and Amounts Recognized in
Other Comprehensive Income

We show the components of net periodic pension benefit cost in
the following rable:

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
(In millions)
Components of net periodic pension benefit
<ost
Service cost $49.0 3 448 § 400
Interest cost 89.3 839 82.3
Expected return on plan assets (96.6) (100.2) (97.9)

Amortization of unrecognized prior service
cost 5.7 5.7 5.8
Recognized net actuarial loss 37.3 25.1 14.3
(13.4) (7.4)  (4.5)
$71.3 5 519 § 40.1

Amount capicalized as construction cost

Net periodic pension benefic cost {1)

(1) Net periodic pension benefit cost excludes SFAS No. 88 sertlement charge
of $12.7 million, and termination benefits of $4.2 million in 2006, SFAS
No. 88 settlement charge of $4.4 million in 2005, and SFAS No. 88
settlement charge of $2.8 million and terminaion benefits of $2.4 million
in 2004, BGE's portion of our net periodic pension benefit cosss, excluding
amount capitalized, was $25.0 million in 2006, $15.0 miflion in
2005,and $8.6 million in 2004. The vast majority of our retirces are
BGE employees.

We show the components of net periedic postretirement

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 158, ar December 31,
2006 the following is a summary of amounts we have recorded in
“Accumulated other comprehensive income” and of expecred
amortization of those amounts over the next twelve months:

Estimared
Amortization
Pension  Postretirement Next 12
At December 31, 2006 Benefits Benefits Months
(In milfions)
Unrecognized net actuarial ‘
loss $475.7 $116.6 3371
Unrecognized prior service )
cost 26.7 (29.7) 1.7
Unrecognized transition '
obligation — 12.8 2.1
Toral $502.4 $ 99.7 $40.9

Expected Cash Benefit Payments

The pension and postretirement benefits we expect to pay in
each of the next five calendar years and in the aggregate for the
subsequent five years are shown below. These estimated benefits
are based on the same assumprions used ro measure the benefit
obligation at December 31, 2006, but include benefits
attributable to estimated future employee service.

~ Postretirement Benefits
Before Afrer
Pension Medicare Medicare
Renefits* Part D Subsidy Part D
(in millions)

2007 $1055 $ 308 $ 27 § 28.1
2008 97.7 319 2.9 29.0
2009 1003 330 “3.1 29.9
2010 1115 338 3.2 30.6
2011 108.4 34.6 3.4 31.2
2012-2016 688.5 182.7 18.9 163.8

* Excludes sransfers to nongualified deferred compensation plans

Assumptions
We made the assumptions below to calculate our pension and
postretirement benefit ebligations and periodic cost.

benefit cost in the following table: Pension Postretirement  Assumption
; Benefis Benefits Impacts
Year Ended December 31, 2006~ 2005 2004 2006 2005 2006 2005 Calculation of
] (fn milfions) Benefit
Components of net periodic postretirement Obligation and
benefit cost ‘ Discount rate 6.00% 5.50% 6.00% 5.50% [Periodic Cost
Service cost $77 $76 $65 Expected return on
Interest cost 23.7 238 226 plan assets 8.75 9.0 N/A N/A Periodic Cost
Amortization of transition obligation 2.1 2.1 2.1 Rare of Benefit
Recognized net aceuarial loss 66 64 31 compensation Obligation and
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost (3.5) (3.5 (3.9 increase 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 Periodic Cost
Amount capitalized as construction cost 8.2) (7.7) (7.0)

$28.4 $28.7 $23.8

(1} Net periodic postretivement benefit cost excludes SFAS Ne. 106
termination benefits of $3.5 miflion in 2006 and $1.2 million in 2004
BGE's portion of our net periodic postretirement benefit cost, excluding
amounss capitalized, was §16.6 million in 2006, $17.4 millian in 2005,
and 15,1 million in 2004,

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost (1)
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Qur discount rare is based on a bond portfolio analysis of
high quality corporate bonds whaose maturities match our
expected benefir payments. Our 8.75% overall expecred long-
term rate of return on plan assets reflects our long-term
investment strategy in terms of asset mix targets and expected
returns for each asset class. Effective in 2006, we reduced our
assumed expected return on pension plan assets from 9.0% to




8.75% based on a fundamental analysis utilizing expected
long-term returns applied to our targeted asset allocation,

Annual health care inflation rate assumptions also impace
the calculation of our postretirement benefit obligation and
periodic cost. We assumed the following health care inflation
rates to produce average claims by year as shown below:

At December 31, 2006 2005
Next year 8.5% 9.0%
Following year 8.0% 8.0%
Ultimate trend rate 5.0% 5.0%
Year ultimate trend rate reached 2014 2010

A one-percent increase in the health care inflation rate from
the assumed rates would increase the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation by approximately $32.1 million as of
December 31, 2006 and would increase the combined scmce
and interest costs of the postretirement benefit cost by
approximately $2.2 million annually.

A one-percent decrease in the health care inflation rare
from the assumed rates would decrease the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation by approximarely $26.8 million
as of December 31, 2006 and would decrease the combined
service and interest costs of the postretirement benefit cost by
approximately $1.8 million annually.

Qualified Pension Plan Assets
The asset allocations for our qualified pension plans were as
follows:

At December 31, 2006 2005
Equity securities 64% 59%
Debt securities ) 28 32
Other . 8 9
Total 100% 100%

The category “Other” primarily represents investments in
financial limired partnerships. Qur long-term pension plan
investment strategy is to seck an asset mix of 58% equity, 30%
fixed income, and 129 other investments. We rebalance our
portfolio periodically when the sum of equity and other
investments differs from 70% by three percentage points or
more, we change an outside investment advisor, or we make
contributions to the trust.

We determine expected return on plan assets using a
market-related value of plan assets that recognizes asset gains and
losses ratab]y over a five-year period.

T

Contributions and Benefit Payments

We contributed an additional $52 million to our qualified
pension plans in March 2006, even though there was no IRS
required minimum contribution in 2006. We expect to
contribute $125 million to our pension plans in 2007, Our non-
gualified pension plans and our postretirement benefit programs
are not funded. We estimate that we will incur approximately
$3.8 million in pension benefits for our non-qualified pension
plans and approximarely $28 million for retiree health and life
insurance costs net of Medicare Part D during 2007.

Other Postemployment Benefits
We provide the following postemployment benefirs:
# health and life insurance benefits to eligible employees
determined to be disabled under our Disability
Insurance Plan,
¢ income replacement payments for Nine Mile Point
union-represented employees determined to be disabled,
and

# income teplacement payments for other employees

determined to be disabled before November 1995
{payments for employees determined to be disabled after
that date are paid by an insurance company, and the cost
is paid by employees).

We recognized expense associated with our other
postemployment benefits of $9.6 million in 2006, $9.2 million
in 2005, and $10.8 million in 2004. BGE's portion of expense
associated with other postemployment benefits was $5.6 million
in 2006, $5.4 million in 2003, and $8.2 million in 2004.

We assumed the discount rate for other postemployment
benefits to be 5.50% in 2006 and 5.25% in 2005. This
assumption impacts the calculation of our other postemployment
benefit obligation and periodic;cost.

Employee Savings Plan Benefits
We sponsar defined contribution savings plans that are offered to
all eligible employees. The savings plans are qualified
401(k) plans under the Internal Revenue Code. In a defined
contribution plan, the benefits a participant is to reccive result
from regular contributions to a participant account. Matching
contributions to participant accounts are made under these
plans. Matching contributions to these plans were:
4 $20.0 million, of which BGE contributed $5.4 million,
in 2006,
# $18.6 million, of which BGE contributed $5.1 million,
in 2005, and
# $16.7 million, of which BGE contributed $4.7 million,
in 2004.
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8 Credit Facilities and Short-Term Borrowings

Our short-term borrowings may include bank loans,
commercial paper, and bank lines of credit. Short-term
borrowings mature within one year from the date of issuance.
We pay commitment fees to banks for providing us lines of
credit. When we borrow under the lines of credit, we pay '
market interest rates.

Constellation Energy
Constellation Energy had committed bank lines of credit under
credit facilities of $4,550 million at December 31, 2006 for
short-term financial needs as follows:
¢ $1.0 billion 364-day credir facility expiring in
Qctober 2007,
¢ $200 million 364-day credit facility expiring in
December 2007,
¢ $1.5 billion five-year revolving credit facility expiring
in March 2010,
¢ 31.1 billion five-year revolving credit facility expiring
in November 2010, and
¢ $750.0 million five-year revolving credir facility
expiring in November 2010,
We enter into these facilities to ensure adequate liquidicy
to support our operations. Currently, we use the facilities to
issue lewers of credit primarily for our merchant energy

business. Additionally, we can borrow directly from the banks
or use the facilities to allow the issuance of commercial paper
with the exception of the $1.0 billion 364-day facilicy, which
only supports $500.0 million of lerters of credit and che $200
million 364-day facility, which only supports lerters of credit.

These facilities can issue leteers of credit up to
approximately $4,050 million. Letrers of credit issued under all -
of our facilities totaled $1,648 million at December 31, 2006
and $2,486 million at December 31, 2005. The decrease in
letters of credit issued is primarily due to changes in collateral
requirements with counterparties as a result of commeodity
price changes.

In 2005, our merchant energy business executed several
short-term repurchase agreements that resulted in $0.7 million
of net short-term borrowings which matured in fanuary 2006.

BGE
BGE had ne commercial paper outstanding at December 31,
2006 or 2005,

BGE has a2 $400.0 million five-year revolving credit
facility expiring in 2011. BGE can borrow directly from the
banks or use the agreements to allow the issuance of
commercial paper.

9Long-Terrn Debt and Preference Stock

Long-term Debt

Long-term debt matures in one year or more from the date of
issuance. We detail our long-rerm debt in our Consolidarted
Statements of Capitalization. As you read this section, it may be
helpful to refer to those statements.

Constellation Energy

On October 31, 2006, CEP entered into a $200.0 million
secured revolving credit facility. The credit facility will mature on
October 31, 2010. The amount available for borrowing at any
one uime is limited to the borrowing base, which is initially set ac
$75.0 million. Ac December 31, 2006, CEP had $22.0 million
of borrowings outstanding under this facility. As discussed in
Note 13, in 2006, CEP executed floating-to-fixed interest rate
swaps related 1o $16.5 million of its outstanding debr.

In May 2006, we issued $122.0 million of tax-exempt
variable rate notes to refinance tax-exempt pollution control
loans. We used $75.0 million of the net proceeds to refinance a
6.00% pollution control revenue refunding loan in June 2006
and in July 2006 we used the remaining $47.0 million of
proceeds to refinance a 5.55% pollution control revenue
refunding loan.

BGE

BGES First Refunding Mortgage Bonds

BGE's first refunding mortgage bonds are secured by a mortgage
lien on all of its assets. The gencracing assets BGE transferred wo
subsidiaries of Constellation Energy also remain subject to the

lien of BGE’s mortgage, along with the stock of Safe Harbor
Water Power Corporation and Constellation Enterprises, Inc.

BGE is required to make an annual sinking fund payment -
each August 1 to the mortgage trustee. The amount of the
payment is equal to 1% of the highest principal amount of bonds
outstanding during the preceding 12 menths. The trustee uses
these funds to retire bonds from any series through repurchases
or calls for early redemption. However, the trustee cannot call
the two remaining outstanding bonds for early redemption:

® 749% Series, due 2007

¢ 6%9% Series, due 2008

BGEs Orher Long-Term Debt .
In October 2006, BGE issued $300.0 million of 5.90% Notes,

due Ocrober 1, 2016 and $400.0 million of 6.35% Notes, due
October 1, 2036. We used the proceeds from these issuances for
general corporate purposes, including refinancing the following
long-term debe of BGE:
-¢ $300.0 million of 5.25% Notes, due December 15,
2006,
+ $121.4 million of 7.5% First Refunding Mortgage
Bonds, due January 15, 2007, and
¢ $10.0 million of 6.70% Medium-term Notes, Series D,
due December 1, 2006.

On July 1, 2000, BGE transferred $278.0 million of tax-
exempt debt to our merchant energy business related o the
transferred generating assets. At December 31, 2006, BGE
remains contingently liable for the $147.8 million outstanding
balance of this debr.

103




We show the weighted-average interest rates and maturity
dates for BGE’s fixed-rate medium-term notes outstanding at
Drecember 31, 2006 in the following table.

Weighted-Average Macurity
Sertes Interest Rate Dates
" E 6.66% 2007-2012
G 6.08% 2008

Some of the medium-term notes include a “put option.”
Thesé pur options allow the holders to sell their notes back to
BGE on the pur option dates at a price equal to 100% of the
principal amount. The following is 2 summary of medium-term
notes with put options.

Series E Notes Principal Put Option Dates
(In millions)
6.75%, due 2012 $59.5 June 2007
6.75%, due 2012 25.0 June 2007
6.73%, due 2012 25.0 ' June 2007

BGE Deforrable Interest Subordinated Debentures
On November 21, 2003, BGE Capital Trust I (BGE Trust If),

a Delaware starutory trust established by BGE, issued
10,000,000 Trust Preferred Securities for $250 million ($25
liquidation amount per preferred security) with 2 distribution
rate of 6.20%.
BGE Trust 11 used the net proceeds from the issuance of
common securities to BGE and the T'rust Preferred Securities to
purchasé a series of 6.20% Deferrable Interest Subordinated
. Debentures due October 15, 2043 (6,20% debentures) from
BGE in the aggregate principal amount of $257.7 million with
the same terms as the Trust Preferred Securities. BGE Truse 11
must redeem the Trust Preferred Securities at $25 per preferred

_security plus accrued bur unpaid distributions when the 6.20%
debentures are paid at maturity or upon any earlier redemption.
BGE has the option to redeem the 6,20% debentures at any time
on or after November 21, 2008 or at any time when certain tax
or other events occur.

BGE Trust Il will use the interest paid on the 6.20%
debentures to make distributions on the Trust Preferred
Securities. The 6.20% debentures are the only assets of BGE
Trusc 1.

BGE fully and uncondmomlly guarancees the Trust
Preférred Securities based on its various obligations relating to
the trust agreement, indentures, 6.20% debentures, and the
preferred security guarantee agreement.

For the paymerit of dividends and in the event of
liquidation of BGE, the 6.20% debentures are ranked prior to

preference stock and common stock.

Rem_{uigg Credit Agreement
On December 18, 2001, BGE's subsidiary, District Chilled

Water Partnership (ComfortLink) entered into a $25.0 million

- loan agreement with the Maryland Energy Financing
Admiiistration (MEFA). The terms of the loan exactly match
the terms of variable rate, tax exempr bonds due December 1,
2031 issiied by MEFA for ComfortLink to finance the cost of
building a chilled water distribution system. The interest rate on
this debt resets weekly. These bonds, and the corresponding
loan, can be redeemed at any time at par plus accrued interest

while under variable rates. The bonds can also be converted to a
fixed rate at ComfortLink’s option.

Debt Compliance and Covenants

The credic facilities of Constellation Energy and BGE dlscussed
in Note 8 have limited material adverse change clauses that only
consider a material change in financial condition and are not
directly affected by decreases in credit ratings. If these clauses are
invoked, the lending institutions can decline to make new
advances or issue new letrers of credit, but cannot accelerate -
existing amounts outstanding. The long-term debt indentures of
Constellation Energy and BGE do not contain material adverse
change clauses or financial covenants.

Certain credit facilities of Constellation Energy conuain a
provision requiring Constellation Energy to maintain a ratio of
debt 1o capiralization equal to or less than 65%. At
December 31, 2006, the debrt to capltahzauon ratio as defined in
the credit agreements was 48%.

The credit agreement of BGE conrains a provision
requiring BGE to maintain a ratio of debt to capitalization equal
1o or less than 65%. At December 31, 2006, the debt to
capitalization ratio for BGE as defined in this credit agreement
was 49%. At December 31, 2006, no amounts were outstanding
under these agreements.

Failure by Constellation Energy, or BGE, 10 comply with
these covenants could result in the acceleration of the maturity of
the debrt outstanding under these facilities. The credic facilities of
Constellation Energy contain usual and customary cross-default
provisions that apply to defaults on debt by Constellation Energy
and cerrain subsidiaries over a specified threshold. The BGE
credit facilicy also conrains usual and customary cross-default
provisions that apply to defaults on debt by BGE over a specified
threshold. The indenture pursuant to which BGE has issued and
outstanding mortgage bonds provides thar a default under any
debt instrument issued under the indenture may cause a default
of all debr outstanding under such indenture.

Constellation Energy also provides credit support to
Calvert Cliffs, Ginna, and Nine Mile Poinc to ensure these plants
have funds to meet expenses and obligations to safely operate and
maintain the plants.

Maturities of Long-Term Debt
CGur long-term borrowings mature on the following schedule:

Constellation Nor:rcgula(cd

Year Energy Businesses BGE
(I millions)

2007 $ 600.0 $ 205 $ 1214
2008 — 6.5 294.6
2009 500.0 1.2 11.5
2010 — 223 —
2011 — 36.5 22.0
Thereafter 1,942.9 260.4 1,267.2

Total long-term debt ac
December 31, 2006 $£3,042.9 $347.4 $1,716.7

At December 31, 2006, we had long-term loans totaling
$384.3 million chat mature after 2006, which contain certain pur
options under which lenders could potentially require us to repay
the debr prior to maturity, or which are periodically remarkered
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and could require repayment following any unsuccessful
remarketing. As a result of these provisions, at December 31,
2006, $136.9 million is classified as current portion of long-rerm
debt at BGE. Wt

Weighted-Average Interest Rates for Variable Rate Debt
Our weighted-average interest rates for variable rate debt were:

At December 31, ' 2006 2005
Nonregulated Businesses (including
- Constellation Energy)
Loans under credit agreements 3.69% 471%
Tax-exempt debt ' 3.63% 2.77%
Fixed-rate debt converted to floating™ 6.26% 4.72%
BGE
Remarketed floating rate series mortgage
bonds : —% 3.14%

* As discussed in Note 13, we bave entered into interest rate swaps

relating to $450.0 million of our fixed-rvate debe.

Preference Stock
Each series of BGE preference stack has no voting power, except
for the following: :

¢
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#.the:preference stock has one vote per share on any

charter amendment which would create or authorize any
shares of stock ranking prior to or on a parity with the
preference stock as to either dividends or distribution of
assets, or which would substantially adversely affect the
contract rights, as expressly set forth in BGE's charter, of
the preference stock, each of which requires the
affirmative vote of two-thirds of all the shares of
preference stock outstanding; and

4 whenever BGE fails to pay full dividends on the
preference stock and such failure continues for one year,
the preference stock shall have one vote per share on all
matters, until and unless such dividends shall have been
paid in full. Upon liquidarion, the holders of the
preference stock of each series outstanding are entitled to
receive the par amount of their shares and an amount
equal to the unpaid accrued dividends.
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The components of income tax expense are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, . 2006 2005 2004
(Dollar amounts in millions)

Income Taxes

Current
" Federal $246.3 % 143 & (4. 5)
State 37.2 327 .. . 205
Current taxes charged to expense 283.5 47.0 16.0
Deferred ' '
Federal ' 507 1079 854
State 23.7 16.1 242
Deferred taxes charged to expense _ 74.4 124.0 109.6
Investment tax credit adjustments . (6.9) (7.1) (7.2}
Income taxes per Consolidated Statements of Income $351.0 $163.9 $1184

Ceriain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation of discontinued operations.
Total income taxes are different from the amount that would be computed by applying the statutory Federal income tax rate of

359% to book income before income taxes as follows:

Reconciliation of Income Taxes Computed at Statutory Federal Rate to Total Income Taxes
Income from continuing operations before income taxes (excluding BGE preference stock

dividends) , $1,112.8 3 713.0 $ 630.0
Staturory federal income tax rate 35% 35% 35%
Income taxes computed at statutory federal rate 389.5 2495 220.5
Increases (decreases) in income taxes due to ) '
Depreciation differences not normalized on regulated activities 3.6 3.8 - 40
Amortization of deferred investment tax credits . (6.9) (7.1) (7.2)
Synthetic fuel rax credits flowed through to income* (120.2) (114.9) (123.2}
Estimated synthetic fuel tax credit phasc-out 44.3 — —
State income taxes, nert of federal income tax benefit 42.6 31.5 28.2
Merger-related transaction costs (5.3 5.3 —
QOther . 3.4 {4.2) (3.9)
Total income taxes $ 351.0 $ 1639 % 1184
Effective income tax rate 31.5% 23.0% @ 18.8%

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation of discontinued operations.
* 2004 includes credits associated with 2003 production at our South Carolina facility that were recognized in the second quarter af 2004
upon receipt of a favorable Private Letter Ruling from the IRS.

BGE's effectivé tax rate was 37.5% in 2006, 38.8% in 2005, and 38.1% in 2004. The difference between BGE’s effective tax
rate and the 35% statutory federal income tax rate is primarily related to Maryland corporate income taxes at an effective rate of
. 4.6%, which is net of the related federal income tax benefit. In 2006, this is partially offsec by deducting merger- related costs incurred
in 2005 as a result of the termination of the merger Wlth FPL Group {0.5%) and the taking of an employee savings plan dividend
deduction (0.5%).
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The major components of our net deferred income tax liabiliry are as follows:

Constellation Energy BGE
At December 31, 2006 2005 2006 2005
(In millions)
Deferred Income Taxes
Deferred tax liabilities
Net propetty, plant and equipment $1,539.1 $1,539.3 $524.2 $526.7
Qualified nuclear decommissioning trust funds 339.5 332.8 — —
Regulatory assets, net : 203.3 85.5 203.3 85.5
Mark-to-market energy assets and liabilities, net 154.7 141.2 — —
Other - 145.6 112.7 72.7 61.3
Toral deferred tax liabiliries 2,382.2 2,211.5 800.2 673.5
Deferred tax assets ’
Asser retirement obligation " 384.6 353.6 — —
Defined benefit obligations 351.1 243.8 39.8 41.4
Financial investments and hedging instruments 757.2 144.7 — —
Deferred investment tax credits 221 24.2 47 5.3
Reduction of investments ‘7.3 7.4 — —
Other 98.4 105.6 10.6 8.3
Toral deferred rax assets 1,620.7 879.3 55.1 55.0
Toral deferred tax liability, net 761.5 1.332.2 745.1 618.5
Less: Current portion of deferred tax (asset)/liability (674.3) 151.4 47.4 9.6
Long-term portion of deferred tax liability, net $1,435.8 $1,180.8 $697.7 $608.9

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

Synthetic Fuel Tax Credits

Our merchant energy business has investments in facilities chat
manufacture solid synthetic fuel produced from coal as defined
under the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) for which we can
claim tax credits on our Federal income tax return through
2007. We recognize the rax benefit of these credits in our
Consolidated Statements of Income when we believe it is
highly probable that the credits will be sustained. The synthetic
fuel process involves combining coal material with a chemical
reagent to creare a significant chemical change. A raxpayer may
request a private leter ruling from the IRS to support its
position that the synthetic fuel produced undergoes a
significant chemical change and thus qualifies for synthetic fuel
tax credits. :

We own a minority ownership in four synthetic fuel
facilicies located in Virginia and West Virginia. These facilities
have received private letter rulings from the IRS. In 2004, the
IRS concluded its examination of the partnership that owns
these facilities for the tax years 1998 through 2001 and the IRS
did nort disallow any of the previously recognized synthetic fuel
credits.

In 2003, we purchased 99% ownership in a South
Carolina facility that produces synthetic fuel. We did not
tecognize in our Consolidated Statements of Income the tax
benefit of $35.9 million for credits claimed on our South
Carolina facility in 2003 pending receipt of a favorable private
letter ruling. In 2004, we received a favorable privare letcer
ruling. We believe receipt of the private lewer ruling provides
reasonable assurance thac it is highly probable that che credits
will be sustained. Therefore, we recognized the rax benefit of
$35.9 million in our Consolidated Starements of Income
during 2004. In 2006, the IRS concluded its examination of
the partnership that owns the South Carolina facility for the

2003 and 2004 rax years and the IRS did nort disallow any of
the previously recognized synthetic fuel credits.

The IRC provides for a phase-out of synthetic fuel tax
credits if average annual wellhead oil prices increase above
certain levels. To determine the amount of the phase-out, we
are required to compare average annual wellhead oil prices per
barrel as published by the IRS (reference price) to a Gross
National Product inflation adjusted oil price for the year, also
published by the IRS. The reference price is determined based
on welthead prices for all domestic oil production as published
by the Energy Information Administration (EIA). For 2006, we
estimate the tax credir reduction would begin if the reference
price exceeds approximately $55 per barrel and would be fully
phased our if the reference price exceeds approximately
$68 per barrel.

Based on monthly EIA published wellhead oil prices for
the ten months ended October 31, 2006 and Nevember and
December NYMEX prices for light, sweet, crude oil (adjusted
for the 2006 difference between EIA and NYMEX prices), we
estimate a 38% tax credit phase-ourt in 2006. We recorded the
effect of this phase-out estimate as a reduction in fax credits of
$44.3 million during 2006.

Based on forward market prices and volarilities as of
February 22, 2007, we estimate a 21% tax credit phase-out for
the year 2007. The expected amount of synthetic fuel tax
credits phased-out may change materially from period to period
as a result of continued changes in oil prices.

While we believe the production and sale of synthetic fuel
from all of oue synthetic fuel facilities meet the conditions 1o
qualify for tax credits under the IRC, we cannot predict the
timing or outcome of any future challenge by the IRS,
legislative or regulatory action, or the ultimate impact of such
events on the synthertic fuel wax credits that we have claimed to
date, bur che impact could be material to our financial results.




Income Tax Audits

Our consolidated federal income tax returns for the for the tax
years 2002 through 2004 are currently under examination by
the IRS. Qur consolidated federal income tax returns for the
2001 and prior tax years are closed under the statute of

limitarions. Income tax returns filed in other jurisdictions are
also subject to audit for additional tax periods. Although the
final outcome of current and future tax audits is uncertain, we
believe thar adequate provisions for income taxes have been
made for potential liabilities resulting from such marters.

11...

There are two types of leases—operating and capital. Capiral
leases qualify as sales or purchases of property and are reported
in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Qur capiral leases are not
marerial in amount. All other leases are operating leases and are
reported in our Consolidated Statements of Income, We
expense all lease payments associated with our regulared
business. Lease expense and future minimum payments for
long-term, noncancelable, operating leases are not material to
BGE's financial results. We present information about our
operating leases below.

Outgoing Lease Payments

We, as lessee, lease some facilities and equipment. The lease
agreements expire on various dates-and have various renewal
options. We also enter into certain power purchase agreements
which are accounted for as operating leases. Under these
agreements, we are required to make fixed capacity payments,
as well as variable payments based on actual output of the
plants. We record these payments as “Fuel and purchased
energy expenses” in our Consolidated Statements of Income.
We exclude from our furure minimum lease payments table the
variable payments related to the outpur of the plant due to the
contingency associated with these payments.

. ) v
We recognized expense related 1o our operating leases as
follows:

Fuel and’
purchased
energy Operating
expenses expenses Total
(Tn millions)
20006 $162.6 $24.7 $187.3
2005 103.2 24.8 128.0
2004 11.0 23.1 34.1

At December 31, 2006, we owed future minimum .
payments for long-term, noncancelable, operating leases as
follows:

Power
Purchase
Year Agreememts  Other  Toral
(fn millions)

2007 $162.0 $ 240 $186.0
2008 121.5 19.6 141.1
2009 62.3 189 81.2
2010 59.4 17.8 772
2011 59.3 16.9 76.2
Thereafter 317.8 73.8 391.6
Total future minimum lease o

payments $782.3 $171.0  $953.3

1 2 Commitments, Guarantees, and Contingencies

Commitments

We have made substantial commitments in connection with
our merchant energy, regulated electric and gas, and other
nonregulated bBusinesses. These commitments relate to:

¢ purchase of electric generating capacity and energy,

¢ procurement and delivery of fuels,

¢ the capacity and transmission and transportation rights

for the physical delivery of energy to meet our
obligations to our customers, and

# long-term service agreemencs, capital for construction

programs, and other. '

Qur merchant energy business enters into various long-
term contracts for the procurement and delivery of fuels to
supply our generating plant requirements. In most cases, our
contracts contain provisions for price escalations, minimum
purchase levels, and other financial commitments. These
contracts expire in various years between 2007 and 2020. In
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addition, our merchant energy business enters into long-term
contracts for the capacity and transmission rights for the
delivery of energy to meet our physical obligations to our-
customers. These contracts expire in various years berween
2007 and 2019.

Qur merchant energy business also has commitred to
long-term service agreements and other purchase commirments
for our plants.

Our regulated electric business enters into various long-
term contracts for the procurement of elecrricity. These
contracts expire berween 2007 and 2009. As discussed in
Note 1, the cost of power under these contracts is fully
recoverable, and therefore is excluded from the table on the
nexr page. !




Our regulated gas business enters into various long-term
contracts for the procurement, transportation, and storage of
gas. Our regulated gas business has gas transportation and
storage contracts that expire berween 2007 and 2028. These °
contracts are recoverable under BGE's gas cost adjustment
clause discussed in Note 1, and therefore are excluded from the
table below.

Qur other nonregulated businesses have commirced to gas
purchases and to contributions of addicional capieal for . -
construction programs and joint ventures in which they have
an interest.

" We have also committed to long-term service agreements
and other obligations related to our information technology
systems.

At December 31, 2006, we estimate our future
obligations to be as follows:

Payments
2008-  2010-
.2007 2000 2011 Thereafter Total
(In millions)
Merchant Energy:
Purchased capacity
and energy $ 3671 3 7555 $271.8 5 5260 $1,9204
Fuel and transportation  2,866.5  1,867.3 4759 894.4 6,104.1
Long-term service
agreements, capital,
and other 15.8 10.1 5.5 23.9 55.3
Total merchant energy 3,249.4  2,632.9 7532 1,444.3 8,079.8
Corporate and Other:
Long-term service
agreements, capital,
and other 33.0 17.0 4.1 — 54.1
Repulated:
Purchase obligations )
and other 54.4 409 — 2.2 97.5
Toral furure obligations $3.336.8 $2,690.8 $757.3 $1.446.5 $8.2314

Termination of Merger Agreement with FPL Group, Inc.
In connection with the termination of the merger agreement
with FPL Group, there are certain contingencies relating to
potential cash payments. We discuss these contingencies in
Note 15.

Long-Term Power Sales Contracts

We enter into long-term power sales contracts in connection
with our load-serving activities. We also enter into long-term
power sales contracts associated with certain of our power
plants. Our load-serving power sales contracts extend for terms
through 2019 and provide for the sale of energy to electricity
distribution utilities and certain retail customers. Our power
sales contracts associated with our power plants extend for
terms into 2014 and provide for the sale of all or a portion of
the acrual outpurt of certain of our power plants. All long-term
contracts were executed at pricing thar approximated markert
rates, including profit margin, at the time of execution.
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Guarantees

Our guaraneees do not represent incremental Constellation
Energy Group obligarions; rather they primarily represent
parental guarantees of subsidiary obligations. The following
table summarizes the maximum exposure based on the stated
limit of our outstanding guarantees ar December 31, 2006:

At December 31, 2006 Stated Limit

(hi millians)

Competitive supply guarantees $10,001.8
Nuclear guarantees 917.8
BGE guarantees 263.3
Other non-regulated guarantees 75.2
Power project guarantees 19.2
Total guarancees $ 11,277.3

ST

At December 31, 2006, Constellation Energy had a total
of $11,277.3 millien in guarantees in outstanding related to
loans, credit facilities, and contractual performance of certain of
its subsidiaries as described below.

# Constellation Energy guaranreed $1 0.001.8 million on
behalf of our subsidiaries for competitive supply
activities. These guaranrees are pur into place in order
to allow our subsidiaries the flexibility needed to
conduct business with counterparties without having to
post other forms of collateral. While the face amount
of these guarantees is $10,001.8 million, our Calcu]a(ed
fair value of obligations for commercial eransactions
covered by these guarantees was $2,190.6 mllhon at
December 31, 2006. If the parent company was
required to fund these subsidiary obligations, the rotal
amount based on December 31, 2006 market prices
would be $2,190.6 million. For those guarantees
relared 1o cur mark-to-marker energy or risk
management liabilities, the fair value of the obligation
is recorded in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

# Constellation Energy guaranceed $917.8 million
primarily on behalf of our nuclear generating facilities
mostly due to nuclear insurance and for credit support
to ensure these plants have funds 1o meet expenses and
obligations to safely operate and maintain the plants.

# BGE puaranteed the Trust Preferred Securities of
$250.0 million of BGE Trust II, an unconsolldated
investment, as discussed in Nore 9,

4 BGE guaranteed two-thirds of cerrain debt of Safe
Harbor Water Power Corporation, an unconsohdated
investment. At December 31, 2006, Safe Harbor ‘
Water Power. Corporation had outstandmg debr of
$20.0 million, The maximum amount of BGE’s
guarantee is $13.3 million.

¢ Constellation Energy guaranteed $62.7 million on
behalf of our other nonregulated businesses primarily
for loans and performance bonds of which
$25.0 million was recorded in our Consolidared
Balance Sheets at December 31, 2006.

# Our other nonregulated business guaranteed
$12.5 million primarily for performance bonds.

4 Our merchant energy business guaranteed
$19.2 million for loans and other performance
guarantees related to cerrain power projects in which
we have an investment. '




We believe it is unlikely that we would be required 1o
perform or incur any losses associated with guarantees of our
subsidiaries’ obligations.

Contingenies

Revenue Sufficiency Guarantee Costs

In April 2006, the FERC issued an order requiring the
Midwest Independent System Operator (MISO) to
retroactively re-allocate revenue sufficiency guarantee costs
(RSGs) for the pertod April 2005 to present based on the
FERC's finding that MISO violated its tariff and incorrectly
allocated RSGs among marker participants. The re-allocation
of RSGs would result in some participants recognizing
addirional expense and others receiving refunds.

In May 2006, the MISO filed a motion with FERC
seeking a stay of the FERC order. The motion was granted by
FERC delaying the implementation of the original order until
afier the issuance of an order on rehearing. In May 2006, we
and other marker parricipants filed requests for rehearing
with FERC.

In October 2006, FERC issued an order on rehearing that
reversed the original retroactive re-allocation of RSGs. Based on
this order we estimate the impacr of the RSG re-allocation, if
any, to be immaterial to our financial resules. However, further
requests for rehearing and appeals have been submited and we
cannot predict the ultimate timing or outcome of any such
action. o

Environmental Matters
Solid and Hazardous Waste

The Environmental Protection Agency {EPA) and several state -

agencies have notified us that we are considered a potentially
responsible party with respect to the clean-up of certain
environmentally contaminated sites. We cannot estimare the
final clean-up costs for all of these sites, but the current
estimated costs for, and current status of, each site is described
in more detail below. '

G8th Street Dump
In 1999, the EPA proposed to add the 68th Streer Dump in

Balrimere, Maryland to the Superfund National Priorities List,
which is its list of sites targeted for clean-up and enforcement,
and sent a general nortice letter to BGE and 19 other parties
identifying them as potentially liable parties at the site. In
March 2004, we and other potentially responsible parties
formed the 68th Street Coalition and entered into consent
order negotiations with the EPA to investigate clean-up options

for the site under the Superfund Alternative Sites Program. In
May 2006, a sextlement among the EPA and 19 of the
potentially responsible parties, including BGE, with respect to
investigation of the site became effective. The settlement
requires the potentially responsible parties, over the course of
several years, to identify contamination at the site and
recommend clean-up options. BGE is fully indemnified by a
wholly-owned affiliate of Constellation Energy for costs related
to this settlement, as well as any clean-up costs. The clean-up
costs will not be known until the investigation is closer to
completion, However, those costs could have a material effect
on our financial results.

Kane and Lombard

The EPA issued its record of decision for the Kane and
Lombard Drum site located in Baltimore, Maryland on
September 30, 2003, which specified the clean-up plan for the
site, consisting of enhanced reductive dechlotination, a soil
management plan, and institutional controls. An EPA order
requiring cleanup of the site by 18 parties, including
Constellation Energy, became effective in November 2006.
The EPA estimates that total clean-up costs will be
approximarely $7 million. Our share of site-related costs will be
11.1% of the total. We recorded a liability in our Censolidated
Balance Sheets for our share of the clean-up costs that we
believe is probable.

Spring Gardens
In December 1996, BGE signed a consent order with the

Maryland Department of the Environment that requires it to
implement remedial action plans for contamination ar and
around the Spring Gardens site, located in Baltimore,
Maryland. The Spring Gardens site was onee used to
manufacrure gas from coal and oil. Based on remedial action
plans and cost modeling performed in late 2006, BGE
estimares its probable clean-up costs will total $43 million.
BGE has recorded these costs as a liability in its Consolidated
Balance Sheets and has deferred these costs, net of accumulated
amortization and amounts it recovered from insurance
companies, as a regulatory asset. Based on the results of studies
at this site, it is reasonably possible that additional costs could
exceed the amount BGE has recognized by approximately

$3 million. Through December 31, 2006, BGE has spent
approxiriately $40 million for remediation at chis site.

BGE also has investigated other small sites where gas was
manufactured in the past. We do nor expect the clean-up costs
of the remaining smaller sites to have a material effect on our
financial results. ;

Air Quality

In late July 2005, we received two Notices of Violation
{NOVSs) from the Placer County Air Pollution Control
District, Placer Counrty California {District) alleging thar the
Rio Bravo Rocklin facility located in Lincoln, California had
violated certain District air emission regulations. We have a
combined 50% ownership interest in the partnership which
owns the Rio Bravo Rocklin facility. The NOVs allege a total
of 38 violations between January 2003 and March 2005 of
either the facility’s air permic or federal, state, and county air
emission standards related to nitrogen oxide, carbon monoxide,
and particulate emissions, as well as violations of cerrain y
moniroring and reporting requirements during that time
period. The maximum civil penalties for the alleged violations
range from $10,000 ro $40,000 per violation. Management of
the Rio Bravo Rocklin facility is currently discussing the
allegations in the NOVs with District representatives. It is not
possible to determine the actual liability, if any, of the
partnership that owns the Rie Bravo Rocklin facility.

Litigation

In the normal course of business, we are involved in various
legal proceedings. We discuss the significant matters below.
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Western Power Markets

City afTamma v. AEP, et al,—The City ofTacoma, on .
June 7, 2004, in the U.S. District Court, Western District of
Washington, filed a complaint against over G0 compamcs,
including Constellation Energy Commoditics Group, Inc.’
{CCQG). The complaint alleges that the defendants engaged in
manipulation of electricity markets resulting in prices for power
in the western power markets that were substantially above
what market prices would have been in the absence of the
alleged unlawful coneracts, combinations and conspiracy in
violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act. The complaint
further alleges thar the rotal amount of damages is unknown,
but is estimated to exceed $175 million. On February 11;
2005, the Court granted the defendants’” motion to dismiss the
action based on the Court’s lack of jurisdiction over the claims
in question. The plaintiff has appealed the dismissal of the
action to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. We believe that
we have meritorious defenses to this action and intend 1o
defend against it vigorously. However, we cannot predict the
timing, ot outcome, of this case, or its possible effect on our
financial resulrs.

Mercury
Since September 2002, BGE, Constellation Energy, and several
other defendants have been involved in numerous acrions filed
in the Circuit Court for Baltimore City, Maryland alleging
mercury poisoning from several sources, including coal planss
formerly owned by BGE. The plants are now owned by a
subsidiary of Constellation Energy. In addition to BGE and
Constellation Energy, approximately 11 other defendants,
consisting of pharmaceutical companies, manufacturers of

. vaccines, and mariufacrurers of Thimerosal have been sued.
Approximately 70 cases, involving claims related to
approximately 132 children, have been filed to dare, with each
claimanc secking $20 million in compensatory damages, plus
punitive damages, from us.

" In rulings applicable 1o all but six of the cases, involving
claims related to approximately 50 children, the Circuit Court
for Baltimore Ciry dismissed with prejudice all claims against
BGE and Constellation Energy. Plaintiffs may atctempt to
pursue appeals of the rulings in favor of BGE and Constellation
Energy once the cases are finally concluded as to all defendants.

" We believe that we have meritorious defenses and intend to
defend the remaining actions vigorously. However, we cannot
predict the timing, or outcome, of these cases, or [helr possible
effect on our, or BGE's, financial results.

Asbestos

Since 1993, BGE and certain Constellation Energy subsidiaries
have been involved in several actions concerning asbestos. The
actions are based upon the theory of “premises liabiliry,”
alleging that BGE and Constellation Energy knew of and
exposed individuals to an ashestos hazard. In addition to BGE
and Constellation Energy, numerous other parties are
defendants in these cases.

Approximately 522 individuals who were never employees
of BGE or Constellation Energy have pending claims each
seeking several million dollars in compensatory and punitive_
damages. Cross-claims and third-party claims brought by other
defendants may also be filed against BGE and Constellation
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Energy in these actions. To date, most ashestos claims against
us have been dismissed or resolved without any payment and a
small minoriry have been resolved for amounts thar were not
materlal to our financial results. The remaining claims are
currently pending in state courts in Maryland and
Pennsylvania.

BGE and Constellation Energy do not know the specific
facts necessary to estimate its potential liability for these claims.
The specific facts we do not know include:

¢ the identity of the facilities at which the plaintiffs

allegedly worked as contractors,

¢ the names of the plaintiffs” employers;

¢ the dates on which and the places where the exposure

allegedly occurred, and '

. thé facts and circumstances relating to the alleged

© exposure.

Unil the relevant facts are determined, we are unablc to
estimate what our, or BGE's, ltability might be.

Although insurance and hold harmless agreements from
contractors who employed the plaintiffs may cover a portion of
any awards in the actions, the potential effect on our, or BGE’s,
financial results could be material.

Storage of Spent Nuclear Fuel

The Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 (NWPA) required the
federal government through the Department of Energy (DOE),
to develop a repository for, and disposal of, spent nuclear fuel
and high-level radioacrive waste. The NWPA and our contracts
with the DOE required the DOE to begin taking possession of
spent nuclear fuel generated by nuclear generating units no
later than January 31, 1998. The DOE has stated that it will
not meet that obligation until 2017 ac the earliest.

This delay has required that we undertake additional
actions related to on-site fuel storage at Calvert Cliffs and Nine
Mile Point, including the installation of on-site dry fuel storage
capacity at Calvert Cliffs. In January 2004, we filed a
complaint against the federal government in the United States
Court of Federal Claims seeking to recover damages caused by
the DOFE’s failure to meet its contractual obligation 1o begin .
disposing of spent nuclear fuel by January 31, 1998. The case is
currently stayed, pending litigation in other related cases.

In connection with our purchase of Ginna, all of
Rochester Gas & Electric Corporation’s (RG&E} rights and |
obligations related o recovery of damages for DOE’s failure to
meet its contractual obligations were assigned to us. However,
we have an obligation o reimburse RG&E for up w
$10 million in recovered damages for such claims.

Nuclear Insurance

We maintain nuclear insurance coverage for Calvert Cliffs,
Nine Mile Point, and Ginna in four program areas: liability,
worker radiation, property, and accidental outage. These
policies contain certin industry standard exclusions, including,
but not limited to, ordinary wear and tear, and war.

In November 2002, the President signed into law the
Terrorism Risk Insurance Act (“TRIA”) of 2002, which was
extended by the Terrorism Risk Insurance Extension Act of
2005. Under the TRIA, property and casualty insurance
companies are required to offer insurance for losses resulting




from Certified acts of terrorism. Certified acts of terrorism are
determined by the Secretary of the Treasury, in concurrence
with the Secretary of State and Attorney General, and primarily
are based upon the occurrence of significant acts of
international terrorism. Our nuclear liability, nuclear property
and accidental outage insurance programs, as discussed later in
this section, provide coverage for Certified acts of terrorism.

If there were an accident or an extended outage at any
unit of Calvert Cliffs, Nine Mile Point or Ginna, it could have
a substantial adverse impact on our financial results.

Nuclear Liabilizy Insurance

Pursuant to the Price-Anderson Act, we are required to insure
against public lability claims resulting from nuclear incidents
to the full limit of public liability. This limit of liability consists
of the maximum available commercial insurance of

$300 million and mandatory participation'in an industry-wide
retrospective premium assessment program. The retrospective
premium assessment is $100.6 million per reactor, increasing
the toral amount of insurance for public liability to
approximately $10.8 billion. Under the retrospective
assessment program, we can be assessed up to $503 million per
incident ar any commercial reactor in the country, payable at
no more than $75 million per incident per year. This
assessment also applies in excess of our worker radiation claims
insurance and is subject to inflarion and state premium taxes.
Claims resulting from non-certified acts of terrorism are limited
to the commercial insurance discussed above, regardless of the
number of nuclear plants affected. In addition, the U.S.
Congress could impose additional revenue-raising measures to
pay claims.

Worker Radiation Claims Insurance
We participate in the American Nuclear Insurers Master
Worker Program that provides coverage for worker tort claims
filed for radiation injuries. Effective January 1, 1998, this
program was modified to provide coverage to all workers whose
nuclear-relared employment began on or after the
commencement date of reactor operations. Waiving the right
to make addirional claims under the old policy was a condition
for coverage under the new policy. We describe the old and
new policies below:
¢ All nuclear worker claims reported on or after
January 1, 1998 are covered by a new insurance policy.
The new policy provides a single industry aggregare
limit of $200 millien for occurrences of radiation
injury claims against all chose insured by this policy
prior to January 1, 2003 and $300 million for
occurrences of radiation injury claims against all those
insured by this policy on or after January 1, 2003.
4 All nuclear worker claims reported prior to January 1,
1998 are still covered by the old policy. Insureds under
the old policies, with no current operations, are not
required to purchase the new policy described above,
and may still make claims against the old policies
through 2007. If radiation injury claims under these
old policies exceed the policy reserves, all policyholders
. could be retroacrively assessed, with our share being up
to $6.3 million.

The sellers of Nine Mile Point retain the liabilities for
existing and potential claims thar occurred prior to
November 7, 2001. In addition, the Long Island Power
Authoriry, which conrinues to own 18% of Unit 2 at Nine
Mile Point, is obligated to assume its pro rata share of any
liabilities for retrospective premiums and other premium
assessments. RG&E, the seller of Ginna, retains the liabilities
for existing and potential claims that occurred prior to June 10,
2004. If claims under these policies exceed the coverage limits,
the provisions of the Price-Anderson Act would apply.

Nuclear Property Insurance

Our policies provide $300 million in primary coverage at each
nuclear plant—Calvert Cliffs, Nine Mile Point, and Ginna. In
addition, we maintain $1.77 billion of excess coverage at Ginna
and $2.25 billion in excess coverage under a blanket excess
program offered by the industry mutual insurer at both Calvert
Cliffs and Nine Mile Point. Under the blanket excess policy,
Calvert Cliffs and Nine Mile Point share $1.0 billion of the
total $2.25 billion of excess property coverage. Therefore, in
the unlikely event of two full limit property damage losses at
Calvert Cliffs and Nine Mile Point, we would recover

$4.5 billion instead of $5.5 billion. This coverage currently is
purchased through the industry mutual insurance company. If
accidents ar plants insured by the mutual insurance company
cause a shortfall of funds, all policyholders could be assessed,
with our share being up to $92.6 million.

Losses resulting from nen-certified acts of terrorism are
covered as a common occurrence, meaning that if non-certified
terrorist acts occur against one or mere commercial nuclear
power plants insured by our nuclear property insurance
company within a 12-month period, they would be treated as
one event and the owners of the plants where the acts occurred

would share one full limit of liability {currently $3.24 billion).

Accidental Nuclear Outage Insurance

Our policies provide indemnifi¢ation on 2 weekly basis for
losses resulting from an accidental outage of a nuclear unit.
Coverage begins after a 12-week deducrible period and
continues at 1009 of the weekly indemniry limit for 52 weeks
and then 80% of the weekly indemnity limit for the next

110 weeks. Qur coverage is up to $490.0 million per unit at
Calvert Cliffs and Ginna, $420.0 million for Unit 1 of Nine
Mile Point, and $401.8 million for Unit 2 of Nine Mile Point.
This amount can be reduced by up to $98.0 million per unit at
Calvert Cliffs and $84.0 million for Nine Mile Point if an,
outage of more than one unit is caused by a single insured
physical damage loss.




Non-Nuclear Property Insurance

Our conventional property insurance provides coverage of
$1.0 billion per occurrence for Cerrified acts of rerrorism as
defined under TRIA and Terrorism Risk Insurance Extension
Act of 2005. Certified acts of terrorism are déferminied by the
Secretary of the Treasury, in concurrence with the Secretary of

State and Attorney General, and primarily are based upon the
occurtence of significant acts of international terrorism.. Qur
conventional property insurance program also provides coverage
for non-certlﬁed acts of terrorism up to an annual aggregate limit
of $1.0 biliion. If a terrorist act occurs at any of our facilities, it
could have a significant adverse impact on our financial results.

1 3 Hedging Activities and Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 133 Hedging Activities

We are exposed to marker risk, including changes in interest rates
and the impact of marker fluctuations in the price and
transportation costs of electricity, natural gas, and other
commaodities.

Commodity Prices

Merchant Energy Business

Our merchant energy business uses a variety of derivative and
non-derivative instruments to manage the commodity price risk
of our competitive supply activities and our electric generation
facilities, including power sales, fuel and energy purchases, gas
purchased for resale, emission credits, weather risk, and the
market risk of outages. In order to manage these risks, we may
enter into fixed-price derivative or non-derivative contracts to
hedge the variability in future cash flows from forecasted sales of
energy and purchases of fuel and energy. The objectives for
entering into such hedges include:

# fixing the price for a portion of anticipated future
electricity sales ac a level thar provides an acceprable
return on our clectric generation operations,

+ fixing the price of a portion of anticipated fuel purchases
for the operation of our power plants,

+ fixing the price for a portion of andicipated energy

_purchases to supply our load-serving customers, and

# fixing the price for a portdion of anticipated sales of
natural gas to customers, :

The portion of forecasted transactions hedged may vary

based upon management’s assessment of market, weather,
operational, and other facrors.

At December 31, 2006, our merchant energy business had

designated certain fixed-price forward contracts as cash-flow
hedges of forecasted sales of energy and forecasted purchases of
fuel and energy for the years 2007 through 2015 under SFAS
No. 133. Our merchant energy business had net unrealized pre-
tax losses on these cash-flow hedges recorded in “Aecumulated
othet comprehensive income” of $2,227.1 million at
December 31, 2006 and $517.1 million at December 31, 2005.
We expect to reclassify $1,522.1 million of net pre-rax
losses on cash-flow hedges from “Accumulated other
comprehensive income” into earnings during the next owelve
months based on the market prices at December 31, 2006.
However, the actual amount reclassified into earnings could vary
from the amounts recorded at December 31, 2006, due to future
changes in market prices. Additionally, for cash-flow hedges
settled by physical delivery of the underlying commodity,
“Reclassificarion of ner gains on hedging inscruments from OCI
to net income” represents the fair value of those derivatives,

which is realized through gross settlement at the contract price.
We recognized into earnings $13.4 million pre-tax gain in 2006
and $19.4 million’pre-tax loss in 2005 related to cash-flow hedgc
ineffectiveness.

In addition, during 2006, we de-designared contracts
previously designated as cash-flow hedges for which the
forecasted transaction originally hedged is probable of not
occurring, and as a result we recognized a pre-tax loss of
$35.3 million. The majority of the pre-tax loss associated with
de-designated contracts in 2006 resulted from the inidal public
offering of CEP and the sale of our gas-fired plants. During
2005, we terminated a contract previously designared as a cash-
flow hedge. The forecasted transaction originally hedged was
probable of not occurring and as a result we recognized a pre-tax
loss of $6.1 million.

Our merchant energy business also enters into natural gas
storage contracts under which the gas in storage qualifies for fair
value hedge accounting trearment under SFAS No. 133, We
recognized a $27.7 million pre-tax net gain for 2006 and
$2.2 million pre-tax net loss for 2003 due to hedge
ineffectiveness. In addirion, we recognized an $8.9 million pre-
tax gain related to the change in value for the portion of our fair
value hedges excluded from ineffectiveness testing. We record
changes in fair value of these hedges related to our retail
competitive supply operations as a component of “Fuel and
purchased energy expenses” in our Consolidated Statements of
Income. We record changes in fair value of these hedges related
10 our wholesale competitive supply operations as a component
of “Nonregulated revenues” in our Consolidated Statements of
Income.

Regulated Gas Business
BGE uses basis swaps in the winter months (November through

March} to hedge its price risk associated with natural gas
purchases under its market-based rates incentive mechanism and
under its off-system gas sales program. BGE also uses fixed-to-
floating and floating-to-fixed swaps to hedge its price risk
associated with its off-system gas sales. The fixed portion
represents a specific dollar amount that BGE will pay or receive,
and the floating portion represents a flucruating amount based
on a published index that BGE will receive or pay. BGE’s
regulated gas business internal guidelines do not permit the use
of swap agreements for any purpose other than to hedge price
risk. The impact of these swaps on our, and BGE’s, ﬁnancml
results is immaterial,
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Regulated Electric Business
BGE uses basis swaps to hedge its price risk associated with

electricity purchases. BGE’s regulated electric business internal
guidelines do not permir the use of swap agreements for any
purpose other than to hedge price risk. The impact of these
swaps on our, and BGE’s, financial results is immaterial.

Interest Rates

We use interest rate swaps to manage our interest rate eXposures
associated with new debt issuances, to manage our exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates on variable rate debt, and o
optimize the mix of fixed and floating-rate debt. The swaps used
to manage our exposure ptior to the issuance of new debt and 1o
manage the exposure to fluctuations in interest rates on variable
rate debt are designated as cash-flow hedges under SFAS

No. 133, with the effective portion of gains and losses, net of
associated deferred income tax effects, recorded in “Accumulated
other comprehensive income” in our Consolidated Statements of
Common Shareholders” Equity and Comprehensive Income and
Consolidated Starements of Capitalization, in anticipation of
planned financing transactions. We reclassify gains and losses on
the hedgcs from Accumulated other comprehensive income”
into “Interest expense” in our Consolidated Statements of:
Income during the periods in which the interest payments bemg
hedged occur.

The swaps used to optimize the mix of fixed and floating-
rate debt are designated as fair value hedges under SFAS
No. 133. We record any gains or losses on swaps that qualify for
fair value hedge accounting treatment, as well as changes in the
fair value of the debt being hedged, in “Interest expense,” and we
record any changes in fair value of the swaps and the debt in
“Risk management assets and liabilities” and “Long-term debt”
in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. In addition, we record the
difference between interest on hedged fixed-rate debt and
floating-rate swaps in “Interest expense” in the periods that the
swaps settle.

“Accumulated other comprehensive income” includes net
unrealized pre-tax gains on interest rate cash-flow hedges
terminared upon debt issuance totaling $12.5 million at
December 31, 2006 and $15.4 millien at December 31, 2005.
We expect to reclassify $0.6 million of pre-tax net gains on these
cash-flow hedges from “Accumulated other comprehensive
income” into “Inrerest expense” during the next twelve months.
We had no hedge ineffectiveness on these swaps.

During 2006, in order to manage the exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates on variable rare debt; CEP entered
into a pay fixed-rate and receive floating-rate swap relating-to
£16.5 million of its outstanding debt. “Accumulared other
comprehensive income” includes net unrealized pre-tax gains on.
interest rate cash-flow hedges totaling $0.1 million at
December 31, 2006. We had no hedge ineffectiveness on these

swaps. .

During 2004, to optimize the mix of fixed and floating-rate
debt, we entered into interest rate swaps qualifying as fair value
hedges relating to $450 million of our fixed-rate debt méturing
in 2012 and 2015, and converted this notional amount of debr
to floating-rate. The fair value of these hedges was an unrealized
loss of $7.1 million at December 31, 2006 and $0.9 million ar
December 31, 2005 and was recorded as an increase in our “Risk
management liabilities” and a decrease in our “Long-term debr.”
We had no hedge ineffectiveness on these interest rate swaps.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument represents the amount at
which the instrument could be exchanged in a current '
transaceion berween willing parties, other than in a forced sale or
liquidation. Significan differences can occur berween the fair
value and carrying amount of financial instruments that are
recorded ar historical amounts. We use the following methods
and assumptions for estimating fair value disclosures for financial
instruments:

# cash and cash equivalents, net accounts receivable, other
current assets, certain current liabilides, short-term ,
borrowings, current portion of long-term debt, and
certain deferred credits and other liabilities: because of
their short-term nature, the amounts reported in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets approximate fair value,

# investments and other assets: the fair value is based on
quoted marker prices where available, and

¢ long-term debr: the fair value is based on quoted market
prices where available or by discounting remaining cash
flows at current market rates.

We show the carrying amounts and fair values of financial

instruments included in our Consolidared Balance Sheets in the
following table. B

At December 31, 2006 2005
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(n millions)

Investments and

other assets—

Constellation

Energy $1,468.8 $1,469.3 $1,362.1 $1,362.3
Fixed-rate

long-term

debe:

Constellation ‘ . S

' Energy 4,383.8 4,513.8 4,169.3 4,379.3
BGE 1,7167  1,712.6 1,364.6 1,376.4
Variable-rate

long-term

debt:

Constellarion

Energy 723.2 723.2 699.3 699.3

BGE — —_ 97.4 97.4
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i 1 4 Stock-Based Compensation

Under our long-term incentive plans, we granted stock optiens,
performance and service-based restricted stock, performance-
based units, and equity to officers, key employees, and members
of the Board of Directors. Under the plans, we can grant up to 2
total of 18,000,000 shares. At December 31, 2006, we had stock
options, restricted stock, performance unit and equity grants
outstanding as discussed below. We may issue new shares, reuse
forfeited shares, or buy shares in the marker in order to deliver
shares to employees for our equity grants. BGE officers and key
employees participate in our stock-based compensation plans.
The expense recognized by BGE in 2006, 2005, and 2004 was
not material to BGE’s financial results.

Non-Qualified Stock Options

Options are granted with an exercise price equal to the market
value of the commeon stock at the date of grant, become vested
over a period up to three years {expense recognized in tranches),
and expire ten years from the darte of grane. The fair value of our
stock-based awards were estimated as of the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model based on the following
weighted- average assumptions:

2006 2005 2004
Risk-free interest rate — 4.10% 3.15%
Expecred life (in years) —_ 29 5.0

Expected market price volarilicy

factor —_ 21.3% 23.7%
Expected dividend yield - 3.0% 3.0%
* Includes 2.0 million fully vested options granted in December 2005,
which would have been cancelled upon a change in control if our
proposed merger with FPL Group would have been consummated
and for which an expected life of one year was used 1o value the
grant. Excluding this grant, we used a weighted-average expected life
assumption of 5 years for 2005 grants.

L M
=Ty

During 2006, no stock options were granted to employees
in anticipation of the proposed merger with FPL Group, which
was terminated in Qctober 2006, We discuss the termination of
the merger in more detail in Note I5.

We use the historical data related to stock option exercises
in order 10 estimate the expected life of our stock options. We
also use historical data in order to estimate the volatility factor
{measured on a daily basis) for a peried equal to the duration of
the expected life of option awards. We believe that the use of
historical data to estimate these factors provides a reasonable
basis for our assumptions. The risk-free interest rate for the
periods within the expecred life of the option is based on the U.S
Treasury yield curve in effect and the expected dividend yield is
based on our current estimare for dividend payour at the time of
grant. We disclose the pro-forma effect on net income and
earnings per share for the periods prior 1o adoption of SFAS
No. 123R in Noe L. ' ’

Summarized information for our stock option grants is as
fOl[OWS: ’

2006 2005 2004
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares  Exercise Price
’ (Shares in thousands)

OQustanding, beginning of year 7,172 $45.24 7365  $31.62 7,117 $29.53
Granted with exercise prices at fair market value — —_ 3,840 54.94 1,640 39.60-
Exercised (1,050) 33.77 (3,935} 29.32 (834) 28.49
Forfeired/expired (71) 45,22 (98) 42.19 (558) 33.09

Quustanding, end of year 6,051 $47.23 7,172 $45.24 7,365 $31.62

Exercisable, end of year 4,401 $46.94 4,022 $45.31 3,844  $29.99
Weighted-average fair value per share of options

granted with exercise prices at fair markert value $§ — $ 7.13 $ 7.22

118




The following table summarizes additional information
about stock options during 2006, 2005 and 2004:

2006 2005 2004

(I millions)
Stock Option Expense
Recognized $ 67 $144 § 10
Stock Options Exercised:
Cash Received for Exercise
Price 35.5 35.3 23.7
Intrinsic Value Realized by
Employee 27.6 109.8 10.5
Realized Tax Benefit ¢ 109 434 4.2
Fair Value of Shares that Vested 82.6 232.0 59.0

As of December 31, 2006, we had $2.8 million of
unrecognized compensation cost related 1o the unvested portion
of outstanding stock option awards, of which $2.5 million is
expected to be recognized during 2007,

The following table summarizes additional information
about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2006 (stock
options in thousands):

Weighted-
. Oustanding Exercisable Average
Range of Aggregate Aggregace  Remaining
Exercise Stock Intrinsic Stock Intrinsic  Contractual
Prices Options Value Options Value Life
i (In millions) (In millions)  (In years)
$20.00 - $30.00 621 $ 248 623 $24.8 6.2
$30.00 - $40.00 1,655 52.6 1,209 39.6 6.5
$40.00 - $50.60 57 1.6 35 1.0 7.4
$50.00 - $60.00 3718 50.4 2,536 30.0 6.7

6,051 $129.4 4,401 $95.4

Restricted Stock Awards

In addition to stock options, we issue common stock based on
meeting certain service goals. This stock vests to participants at
various times ranging from one to five years if the service goals
are met. In accordance with SFAS No. 123R, we account for our
service-based awards as equity awards, whereby we recognize the
value of the market price of the underlying stock on the date of .
grant to compensation expense over the service period either
ratably or in tranches (depending if the award has cliff or graded
vesting).

We recorded compensation expense related to our restricted
stock awards of $24.5 million in 2006, $28.2 million in 2003,
and $17.0 million in 2004. Summarized share information for
our restricted stock awards is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
. (Shares in thousands)
Qutstanding, beginning of year 1,272 1,223 752
Granted 511 485 1,002
Released to participants (502) (359) (467)
Canceled (74) (77) (64)
Quurstanding, end of year 1,207 1,272 1,223

Weighted-average fair value of
restricted stock granted (per
share) $58.68 $51.23 $38.83

Total fair value of shares for
which restriction has lapsed
(in millions})

$ 276 $ 1950 $ 188

As of December 31, 2006, we had $16.2 million of .
unrecognized compensation cost related to the unvested portion
of owtstanding restricted stock awards expected to be recognized
within a two-year period. At December 31, 2006, we have
recorded in “Common shareholders’ equity” approximately
$31.7 million and approximately $21 million at December 31,
2005 for the unvested portion of service-based restricted stock
granted from 2001 until 2006 to officers and other employees
that is contingently redeemable in cash upon a change in conerol.

Performance-Based Units

In accordance with SFAS No. 123R, we recognize compensation
expense rarably for our performance-based awards, which are
classified as liability awards, for which the fair value of the award
is remeasured at each reporting period. Each unit is equivalent o
$1 in vatue and cliff vests at the end of a three-year service and
performance period. 'The level of payout is based on the
achievement of certain performance goals at the end of the three-
year period and will be settled in cash. We recorded
compensation expense of $24.0 million in 2006, $7.0 million in
2005, and $2.9 million in 2004 for these awards. No awards
were settled during the year, and as of December 31, 2006 we
had $9.9 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to
the unvested portion of outstanding performance-based unit
awards expected 1o be recognized within a 14-month period.

Equity'-Based Grants

We recorded compensation expense of $0.6 million in 2006,
$0.5 million in 2003, and $0.5 million in 2004 related to
equity-based grants to members of the Board of Direcross.
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1 5 Merger and Acquisitions

Termination of Merger Agreement with FPL Group, Inc.
On October 24, 2006, Constellation Energy and FPL Group
agreed to terminate the Agreement and Plan of Merger thé
parties had entered into on December 18, 2005. In connection
with the terminatien of the merger agreement, Constellation
Energy acquired certain development rights from FPL Group
relating to a2 wind power project in Western Maryland.

Pursuant to the terms of the termination agreement, if
Constellation Energy announces its entry into certain types of
transactions on or prior to September 30, 2007, including a
merger or stock sale resulting in a third party owning 35% or
more of the voring securities of Constellation Energy, it will be
required to pay FPL Group a fee. The fee is $425 million if a
transaction is announced on or prior to June 30, 2007 and $210
million if a transaction is announced between July 1, 2007 and
September 30, 2007, '

. We incurred merger costs during the year ended

December 31, 2006 rotaling $18.3 million pre-tax. Our total
pre-tax merger-related costs were $35.3 million,

Acquisitions of Working Interests in Gas Producing Fields
In the first quarter of 2006, we acquired working interests in gas
and oil producing properties for approximately $100 million in
cash. We purchased leases, producing wells, and related
equipment. We have included the results of operations in our
merchant energy business segment since the date of acquisition.
In June 2005, we acquired working interests in gas
producing fields in Texas and Alabama for approximately
$211 million in cash and the assumption of below-marker
natural gas swaps and other liabilities totaling approximately
$18 million. The Texas asset acquisition was for approximarely a
70% working interest and the Alabama asset acquisition was for
a 100% working incerest. We have included the resukbs of

operations for these working interests in our merchant energy
business segment since the date of acquisition.

Acquisition of Cogenex
In April 2005, we acquired Cogenex Corporation from Alliant
Energy Corporation. We include Cogenex with our other
nonregulated businesses and have included their results in our
consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition.
Cogenex is a North American energy services firm providing
consulting and technology solutions to industrial, institutional,
and governmental customers. We acquired 100% ownership of
Cogenex for $34.9 million. We acquired cash of $14.4 million as
part of the purchase.

Qur final purchase price allocation for the net assets
acquired is as follows:

A April 1, 2005

(In millions)
Cash - $ 144
_Other Current Assets 12.4
Total Current Assets 26.8
Net Property, Plant and Equipment —
Orther Assets 34.9
Total Assets Acquired 61.7
Current Liabiliries (8.0)
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities- {18.8)
Net Assets Acquired $ 34.9

We believe that the pro-forma impact of the Cogenex
acquisition would not have been material to our resules of
operations in 2005.

1 6 Related Party Transactions—BGE

Income Statement

BGE is obligated to provide market-based standard offer service to
all of its electric customers for varying periods. Bidding to supply
BGE’s marker-based standard offer service to elecric customers
will occur from time to time through a compedtive bidding
process approved by the Maryland PSC.

Our wholesale marketing, risk management, and trading
operation will supply a substantial portion of BGE's market-
based standard offer service obligation to residential electric
customers through May 31, 2007, as well as a portion of BGE's
market-based standard offer scrvice‘obligations for all electric
customers from june 1, 2007 through May 31, 2009.

The cost of BGE's purchased energy from nonregulated
subsidiaries of Constellation Energy to meet its standard offer
service obligation was as follows:
Year Ended December 31, 2004

2006 2005 7

(In millions)

Electricity purchased for
resale expenses

$1,062.0° $805.9 $948.9

In addition, Constellation Energy charges BGE for the
costs of certain corporate functions. Cerrain costs are directly
assigned to BGE. We allocate other corporate function costs’
based on a toral percentage of expected use by BGE. We believe
this method of allocation is reasonable and approximates the cost
BGE would have incurred as an.unaffiliated entity.

The following table presents the costs Constellation Energy
charged 1o BGE in each period.

Year ended December 31, 2006 2005 - 2004
{In millions)
Charges o BGE $148.8 %1303 $99.8

Balance Sheet

BGE participates in a cash pool under a Master Demand Note
agreement with Constellation Energy. Under this arrangement,
participaring subsidiaries may invest in or borrow from the pool
at marker interest rates. Constellation Energy administers the
pool and invests excess cash in short-term investments or issues
commercial paper to manage consolidated cash requirements.
Under this arrangement, BGE had invested $60.6 million ac
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December 31, 2006 and borrowed $3.2 million at December 31,  Constellation Energy and its nonregulated affiliates for certain

2005. services it provides them, and the participation of BGE’s

BGE’s Consolidared Balance Sheets include intercompany employees in the Constellation Energy defined benefit plans.
amounts related to corporate functions performed at the We believe our allocation methods are reasonable and
Constellation Energy holding company, BGE's purchases ro approximate the costs that would be charged to unaffiliated
meet its standard offer service obligation, BGE’s charges to entities.

1 7 Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Qur quarterly financial information has not been audited but, in management’s opinion, includes all adjustments necessary for a fair
statement. Qur business is seasonal in nature with the peak sales periods generally occurring during the summer and winter months.
Accordingly, comparisons among quarters of a year may not represent overall trends and changes in operations,

2006 Quarterty Data—Constellation Energy ' 2006 Quarterly Data—BGE
Earnings
Earnings  Der Share  Earnings Per
Income  Applicable from Share of Earnings
[ncome from to Continuing ~ Common Income Applicable
from Continuing  Common  Operations- Stock- from to Common
Revenues  Operations  Operations Srock Dilured Diluted Revenues  Operations Stock
(In millions, except per share amounts) (In millions}
Quarter Ended Quarter Ended
March 31* $ 4,859.2 § 2040 $101.6 $113.9 $0.56 $0.63 March 31 $ 9242 $14ll $ 68.4
June 30° 4,378.8 178.3 74.0 93.1 0.41 0.52 June 30 642.3 58.5 18.4
September 307 5,393.4 530.9 306.4 3244 169 L79 Seprember 30 764.5 83.0 35.6
December 31 4,653.5 420.3 266.6 405.0 1.46 2,22 December 31 684.4 86.5 34.7
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 $19,284.9 $1,333.5 $748.6 $936.4 $4.12 $5.16 December 31 $3,015.4  $369.1 $157.1

The sum of the quarterly earnings per share amounts may not equal the total for the year due to the effecs of rounding and dilution as a
result of issuing common shares during the year.

First quarter results include:
# an $11.4 million gain after-tax for the discontinued operations of our High Desert facility,
4 2 $0.9 million gain after-tax for the discontinued operations of our other nonregulated international operations,
¢ merger-related costs totaling $1.5 million after-tax, of which BGE recorded $0.5 million after-tax, and
# workforce reduction costs totaling $1.3 million after-tax.

Second quarter results include:
# 2 $19.1 million gain after-tax for the discontinued operations of our High Desert facility, and
# merger-related costs rotaling $6.0 million after-tax, of which BGE recorded $1.6 million after-tax.

Third quarter results include:
# an $18.0 million gain after-tax for the discontinued operations of our High Desert facility,
" & workforce reduction costs totaling $13.1 million after-tax, and
# merger-related costs totaling $2.5 million after-rax, of which BGE recorded $0.7 million after-tax.

Fourth quarter results include:
4 a $47.1 million gam after-tax on sale of gas-fired plants,
# 2 317.9 million gam after-tax on the initial public offering of CEP,
¢ 2 $138.4 million gain after-tax for the discontinuéd operations of our High Desert facility,
¢ workforce reduction costs wualing $2.6 million after-tax, and
# tax benefits associated with merger-related costs totaling $(4.3) million after-tax, of which BGE recorded $(1.6) million after-
tax.

We discuss these items in Nete 2.

* Due to the reclassification of our High Desert fucility to discontinued operations, we have veclassified certain amounss previously
reported in our first, second, and third quarter Form 10-Qs. The following is a reconciliation of amounts previously reported to
amounts currently presented for those items.
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For the quarter ended March 31, 2006 June 30, 2006 September 30, 2006
Discontinued Discontinued Discontinued
As Reported  Operations  Reclassified ~ As Reported  Operations  Reclassified  As Reported  Operations __ Reclassified
(In millions, except per share amounss)

Revenues ) $4,897.5 $ (.’;8.3) ‘" $4,859.2 $4,421.9 $(43.1) $4,378.8 $5,433.7 $(40.3) $5,393.4
Income from Operations 2225 (18.5) 204.0 208.7 (30.4) 178.3 559.9 (29.0) 530.9
Income from Continuing _ . ‘ ‘
Qperations 113.0 (11.4) 101.6 93.1 (1.9.1) 74.0 324.4 {18.0) 306.4
Earnings Per Share from
Continuing
Operations—Diluted 0.63 (0.07) 0.56 0.52 (0.11) 0.41 .79 {0.10) 1.69
2005 Quarterly Data—Constellation Energy 2005 Quarterly Data—BGE
Eamings
Per Share
Income from
from Conrinuing
Continuing Operations
. Operations and Before
and Before Cumulative
Cumulative  Earnings  Effects of  Earnings Per
Effects of App]icablc Changes in Share of Earnings
Income  Changes in o Accounting  Common [ncome Applicable
from Accounting  Common  Principles- Stock- from e Common
Revenues  Operations  Principles Srock Diluced Diluced Revenues  Operations Stock
{In millions, except per shave amounts) (In millions)
Quarter Ended . Quarter Ended
March 31 $ 3,532.6 $193.8 5100.8 $120.7 $0.57 $0.68 March 31 $ 8573 $143.7 $ 710
June 30° 3,438.0 183.0 101.1 121.7 0.57 0.68 - June 30 610.3 644 236
September 30° 4,879.9 287.4 165.5 183.5 0.92 1.03 September 30 742.7 94.9 ‘4_2.4
December 31 5,117.8 280.3 168.5 195.2 0.94 1.09 December 31 799.0 93.5 38.8
Year Ended Year Ended ’
December 31 $16,968.3  $944.5 $535.9 $623.1 $2.98 $3.47 December 31  $3,009.3  $396.5 $175.8

The sum of the gquarterly earnings per share amounts may not equal the total for the year due to the effects of raundmg and dilution a5 a
result of itsuing common shares during the year.

First quarter results include:
# 2 $17.8 million gam after-tax for the discontinued operations of our High Desert facility,
¢ 2 $1.7 million gam after-tax for the discontinued operations related to our other nonregulated international i investments, and
4 a $0.4 million gain after-tax for the discontinued operations related to our Oleander faciliry.

Second quarter results include:
# 2 $16.7 million gain after-tax for the discontinued operations of our High Desert facility,
¢ 2 $2.6 million gain after-tax for the discontinued operations related to our Oleander facility, and
¢ 2 $1.3 million gain after-tax income for discontinued operations related to our other nonregulated international investments.

Third quarter results include:
¢ an $18.6 million gain after-tax for the discontinued operations of our High Desert facility,
¢ workforce reduction costs totaling $2.3 million after-tax, and
# 2 $1.4 million gain after-tax for discontinued operations related to our other nonregulated internarional investments.

Fourth quarter resules include:
4 2 $17.7 million gain after-tax for the discontinued operations of our High Desert faciliry,
4 a $16.2 million gain after-tax for discontinued operations related to our other nonregulated international investments,
¢ merger-related costs totaling $15.6 million after-tax, of which BGE recorded $5.0 million after-tax,
¢ 2 $7.4 million after-tax loss for the cumulative effect of adopting FIN 47,
# workforce reduction costs totaling $0.3 million after-tax, and
4 a $0.2 million after-tax gain for the cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 123R.

We discuss these items in Note 2.

* Due to the reclassification of aur High Desert facility to discontinued operations, we have reclassified certain amounts previously reporred in
our first, second, and third quarter Form 10-Qs. The following is a reconciliation af amounts previously reported to amounts currently
presented for those items,
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For the quarter ended March 31, 2005 June 30, 2005 September 30, 2003
As Discontinued . Discontinued Discontinued
Reported  Operations  Reclassified  As Reported  Operations  Reclassified  As Reported  Operations  Reclassified
i miltions, except per share amounts)

Revenues $3.572.0 $(39.4) $3.,532.6 $3.478.5 $ (40.5) $3.438.0 $4,922.4 $(42.5) $4,879.9
Income from Operations 221.9 (28.1) - 193.8 209.8 (26.8) 183.0 317.0 (29.6) 287 4
Income from Continuing

Operations and Before i}

Cumulative Effects of '

Changes in Accounting

Principles 118.6 (17.8) 100.8 117.8 (16.7} 101.1 184.1 {18.6) 165.5
Earnings Per Share from

Continuing Orperations

and Before Curnulasive

Effects of Changes in

Accounting Principles—

Diluced 0.67 (010} 0.57 ) 0.66 (0.097 | 0.57 1.02 (0.10} 0.92
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item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financlal Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The principal executive officets and principal financial officer of both Constellation Energy and BGE have evaluated the effectiveness

of the disclosure controls and prbcedurcs'(as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended {the “Exchange Act™)) as of December 31, 2006 (the “Evaluation Date”}. Based on such evaluation, such officers
have concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, Constellation Energy’s and BGE'’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

Internal Conerof Over Financial Reporting

Constellation Energy maintains a system of internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-1 5(f).
Constellation Energy’s Management Report on [nternal Control Over Financial Reporting is included in ftem 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Dara included in this report. As BGE is not an accelerated filer as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2, it is not
required to provide a report of management on the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, but will be required to do so as of December 31, 2007.

Changes in Internal Control .

During the quarter ended December 31, 20086, there has been no change in either Constellation Energy’s or BGE's internal control
aver financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) thar has macerially
affected, or is reasonably likely to marerially affect, either Constellation Energy’s or BGE's internal control over financial repording.

ltem 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART Il s

BGE meets the conditions set forth in General
Instruction 1{1)(a) and (b) of Form 10-K for a reduced
disclosure format. Accordingly, all items in this section
related 1o BGE are not presented.

item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the
Registrant

The informarion required by this item with respect to
directors will be set forth under Election of Directors in the
Proxy Statement and incorporated herein by reference.

The information required by this item with respect
to executive officers of Constellation Energy Group,
pursuant to instruction 3 of paragraph (b} of Irem 401 of

~ Regulation S-K, is set forth following Item 4 of Part | of
this Form 10-K under Executive Officers of the Registrant.
Rem 11. Executive Compensation -
The informarion required by this item will be set forth f
under Executive and Director Compensation and Report of
Compensation Committee in the Proxy Statement and
incorporated herein by reference.

[

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qwners and Management and Related Shareholder

Matters

The additional information required by this item will be set forth under Stock Ownership in the Proxy Statement and

incorporated herein by reference.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table reflects our equity compensation plan

(a)

Number of securities

I

information as of December 31, 2006:

w0 be issued upen
exercise of
outstanding aptions,

(b) {c)
Number of securities remaining
Weighted-average available for future issuance

undet equity cempensation
plans (excluding securities

exercise price of
ourstanding options,

Plan Category ¢ warrants, and rights warrants, and rights reflected in item (a))

(I thousands) (In thowsands)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders 4,414 $49.72 2,847
Equity compensation plans not approvedy
" by security holders 1,637 $40.53 892
Total ’ 6,051 $47.23 3,739

The plans that do not require shareholder approval are the Constellation Energy Group, Inc. 2002 Senior Management
Long-Term Incentive Plan {Designated as Exhibit No. 10(p)) and the Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Management
Long-Term Incentive Plan (Designated as Exhibit No. 10(g)). A brief description of the material fearures of each of
these plans is'set forth below.

2002 Senior Management Long-Term Incentive Plan

The 2002 Senior Management Long-Term Incentive Plan was effective May 24, 2002. Grants under the plan may be
made to employees who are officers of Constellation Energy or hold senior management level or key employee positions
with Constellation Energy or its subsidiaries. Under the plan, the Board of Canstellation Energy has authorized the
issuance of up to 4,000,000 shares of Constellation Energy common stock in connection with the grant of stock
options, performance and service-based restricred stock and restricted scock units, performance units, stock appreciation
rights, dividend equivalents and other equity awards. Any shares covered by an award that is forfeited or canceled,
expires or is settled in cash, including the sertlement of tax withholding obligations using shares, will become available
for issuance under che plan. Shares delivered under the plan may be authorized and unissued shares or shares purchased
on the open market in accordance with the applicable securities laws. Restricted stock, restricted stock unit, and
performance unit award payouts will be accelerated and stock options and stock appreciation rights gains will be paid in
cash in the event of a change in control, as defined in the plan. The plan is administered by Constellation Energy’s
Chief Execurive Officer.
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Management Long-Term Incentive Plan '

The Management Long-Term Incentive Plan was effective February 1, 1998. Grants under the plan may be made 1o
employees of Constellation Energy who hold a management level position and other employees of Constellation
Energy and its subsidiaries as may be dcs1gnared by Constellation Energy’s Chief Execurive Officer. Under the plan, the
Board of Constellation Energy has authorized the issuance of up to 3,000,000 shares of Constellation Energy common
stock in connection with the grant of stock oprions, performance and service-based restricted stock and restricted stock
units, performance units, stock appreciation rights and dividend equivalents. The number of shares available for
issuance under the plan includes shares subject to awards thac have lapsed or terminated. Shares delivered under the
plan may be authorized and unissued shares or shares purchased on the open market in accordance with applicable
securities laws. Restricted srock, restricted stock unit, and performance unit award payouts will be accelerated and stock
options and stock appreciation rights will become fully exercisable in the event of a change in control, as defined by the
plan. The plan is administered by Constellation Energy’s Chief Executive Officer.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
The additional informatien required by this item will be set forth under Relazed Persons Transactions and Determination
of Independence in the Proxy Statement and incorporated herein by reference.

Hem 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
The information required by chis item will be set forth under Raification of Appeinsment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
as Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for 2007 in the Proxy Statement and incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV
Item 15, Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

{a) The following documents are filed as a part of this Report:

1. Financial Statemencs:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm dated February 26, 2007 of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Consolidated Statements of Income—Constellation Energy Group for three years ended December 31, 2006

Consolidated Balance Sheets—Constellation Energy Group at December 31,2006 and December 31, 2005

Consolidated Sratements of Cash Flows—Constellation Energy Group for three years ended
December 31, 2006

Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income—Constellation Energy

" Group for chree years ended December 31, 2006

Consolidated Sracements of Capitalizadon—Constellation Energy Group at December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005

Consolidated Statements of Income—Baltimore Gas and Elecmc Company for three years ended
December 31, 2006

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomc—Baltlmore Gas and Electric Company for three years
ended December 31, 2006 :

Consolidated Balance Sheets—Baltimore Gas and Electric Company at Diecember 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005

Consolidared Statements of Cash Flows—Balnmore Gas and Electric Company for three years cnded

“1 December 31, 2006
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Sch;edules:
Schedule [I—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Schedules other than Schedule II are omirted as not applicable or nort required.

3. Exhibits Required by Item 601 of Regulation 5-K.
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Number
2 — Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange berween Baltimore Gas and Electric Company and Constellation
Energy Group, Inc. dated as of February 19, 1999. {Designated as Exhibit No. 2 to the Registration
Statement on Form 5-4 dated March 3, 1999, File No. 33-64799.)

*2(a) — Agreement and Plan of Reorganization and Corporate Separation {Nucléar). (Designated as
Exhibit No. 2(a) to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 7, 2000, File Nos. 1-12869 and
1-1910.)

*2(b) — Agreement and Plan of Reorganization and Corporate Separation (Fossil). (Designated as
Exhibit No. 2(b) to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 7, 2000, File Nos. 1-12869 and
1-1910.)

*2{c) — Purchase and Sale Agreement by and berween Constellation Power, Inc. and TPF Generation Holdings,
LLC dared as of October 10, 2006. (Designated as Exhibit 2(a) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

*2(d) -- Termination and Release Agreement, dated October 24, 2006, by and among Constellation Energy
Group, Inc., FPL Group, Inc. and CF Merger Corporation (Designated as Exhibit 2.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K dated October 25, 2006, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

*3{a) — Articles of Amendment and Restatement of the Charer of Constellation Energy Group, Inc. as of
April 30, 1999. (Designated as Exhibit No. 99.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 30,
) 1999, File No. 1-1910.)

*3(b) — Articles Supplementary to the Charter of Constellation Energy Group, Inc., as of July 19, 1999.
(Designated as Exhibit No. 3(a) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
1999, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

*3(c) — Certificate of Correction to the Charter of Constellation Energy Group, Inc. as of September 13, 1999.
{Designated as Exhibit No. 3(¢) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1999, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

*3(d) — Charter of BGE, restated as of August 16, 1996. {Designated as Exhibic No. 3 to the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1996, File No. 1-1910.)

*3(¢) — Articles Supplementary to the Charter of Constellation Energy Group, Inc. as of November 20, 2001.
(Designated as Exhibit No. 3(e) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2001, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.) -

*3(f) — Bylaws of Constellation Energy Group, Inc., as amended o October 20, 2006. (Designated as
Exhibit 3(a) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File
Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.) .

*3(g) — Bylaws of BGE, as amended 1o October 16, 1993. (Designared as Exhibit No. 3 to the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Scptember 30, 1998, File No. 1-1910.) '

*4(a) — Indenture berween Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and the Bank of New York, Trustee dated as of
March 24, 1999, {Designated as Exhibit No. 4(a) to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 dated
March 29, 1999, File No. 333-75217.) ’ ’

*4(b) — First Supplemencal Indenture between Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and the Bank of New York,
Trustee dated as of January 24, 2003. {Designated as Exhibit No. 4(b) to the Registration Statement on
Form §-3 dated January 24, 2003, File No. 333-102723.)

*4(c) — Supplemental Indenture berween BGE and Bankers Trust Company, as Trustee, dated as of June 20,
1995, supplementing, amending and restating Deed of Trust dated February 1, 1919. {Designated as
Exhibit No. 4 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1995, File
No. 1-1910); as supplemented by Supplemental Indentures dated as of June 15, 1996 (Designated as
Exhibit No. 4 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1996,) and as of
June 26, 2000 (filed herewith). ‘ )
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*4(d) — Indenture dated July 1, 1985, berween BGE and The Bank of New York (Successor ro Mercantile-Safe

& Dreposit and Trust Company}, Trusrce (Designated as Exhlb:t 4(a) to the Registration Statement on
Form §-3, File No. 2-98443); as supplemented by Supplemental Indentures dated as of October 1, 1987
(Designated as Exhibit 4(a) to the Current Report on Form 8-K, dated November 13, 1987, File
No. 1-1910) and as of January 26, 1993 (Designated as Exhibit 4(b) to the Current Report on
Form 8-K, dated January 29, 1993, File No. 1-1910.)

*4(e) — Form of Subordinated Indenture berween the Company and The Bank of New York, as Trustee in
connection with the issuance of the Junior Suberdinated Debentures. (Designared as Exhibit 4{d) to the
Registration Statement on Form 5-3 dated August 5, 2003, File No. 333-107681.)

*4(f) — Form of Supplemental Indenture berween the Company and The Bank of New York, as Trustee in
connection with the issuances of the Junior Subordinated Debentures. (Designated as Exhibic 4(e) to the
Registration Statement on Form 5-3 dated August 5, 2003, File No. 333-107681.)

*4(g) — Form of Preferred Securities Guarantee (Designated as Exhibit 4(f) to the Registration Statement on
Form §-3 dated August 5, 2003, File No. 333-107681.)

*4(h}) -— Form of Junior Subordinated Debenture (Designated as Exhibie 4(]1) to the Registration Statement on
Form 5-3 dated August 5, 2003, File No. 333-107681.)

*4{i) — Form of Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust (including Form of Preferred Security) (Designated
- as Exhibit 4(c) to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 dated August 5, 2003, File No. 333-107681.)

*4(j) — Indenture dated as of July 24, 2006 berween Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas, as truscee. (Designated as Exhibit 4(a) to the Registration Statemnent on Form $-3
filed July 24, 2006, File No. 333-135991.)

- 3
*4(k) — Indenture dated as of July 24, 2006 between Baltimore Gas and Electric Company and Deutsche Bank
: Trust Company Americas, as trustee. {Designated as Exhibit 4(b) to the Registration Statement on
Form §-3 filed July 24, 2006, File No. 333-135991.) :

*4{l} — First Supplemental Indenture berween Baltimore Gas and Electric Cémpany and Deursche Bank Trust
Company Americas, as trustee, dated as of October 13, 2006, (Designated as Exhibit 4{a) to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

*4{m) — Registration Rights Agreement dated October 13, 2006 among Baltimore Gas and Electric Company
and the parties named therein relating ro 5.90% Notes due 2016, {Designated as Exhibit 4(b} to the
Quarrerly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File Nos. 1- 12869 and
1-1910.)

*4(n) — Registration Rights Agreement dated Ocrober 13, 2006 among Baltimore Gas and Electric Company
and the parties named therein relating to 6.35% Notes due 2036. (Designated as Exhibit 4(c) to the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File Nos. 1-12869 and
1-1910.)

- *10{a) — Executive Annual Incentive Plan of Constellation Energy Group, Inc., as amended and restated.
(Designated as Exhibit No. 10(a) to the Quarterly Reporc on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2004, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

*10{b) — Constellation Energy Group, Inc. 1995 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and resrated.
(Destgnated as Exhibit No. 10{b) to the Quarrerly Report on Form 10-Q) for the quarter ended
September 30, 2004, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

*10{c} — Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restaced.
{Destgnated as Exhibit No. 10(c) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2002, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

*10(d) — Ceonstellation Energy Group, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Ditectars, as
amended and restated. {Designated as Exhibit 10(a) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
Quarter ended September 30, 2006, File Nos. 1-1286% and 1-1910.)

125




*10(¢) — Compensation agreements berween Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and E. Follin Smith
(Attachment 1—Employment Agreement; Artachment 2—Severance Agreement (Attachment 2
superseded by amended and restated change in control severance agreement filed as Exhibit 10(y) o the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005.){Designated as Exhibit 10(c) 1o
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, File Nos. 1-12869 and

1-1910.)

*10() — Amended and restated change in control severance agreement berween Constellation Energy Group, Inc.
and Thomas V. Brooks. (Designated as Exhibit 10(f) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2005.)

*10{g) -—— Grantor Trust Agreement Dated as of February 27, 2004 between Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and
Citibank, N.A. {Designated as Exhibit No. 10{d) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2004, File Nos. 1-1286% and 1-1910.)

*10(h) — Amended and restated change in control severance agreement berween Constellation Energy Group, Inc.
and Mayo A. Shattuck I1I. (Designated as Exhibit 10.2 ro the Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 19, 20_05, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

*10(i) — Grantor Trust Agreement dated as of February 27, 2004 between Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and
T. Rowe Price Trust Company. (Designated as Exhibir No. 10(b) to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

*10(j) — Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Benefits Restoration Plan, as amended and restated. (Designated as
Exhibit No. 10(m) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, File

Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.) .

*10{k) — Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Supplemental Pension Plan, as amended and restated. (Designared as
Exhibit No. 1%{d) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004, File
Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.) '

*10() — Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Senior Executive Supplemental Plan, as amended and restated.
(Designated as Exhibit No. 10{e) 10 thie Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2004, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.) )

*10(m) — Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Supplemental Benefits Plan, as amended and restated. (Designated as
Exhibit No. 10(p) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, File

Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

*10(n) — Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restared.
{Designated as Exhibit 10(b) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2006, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

10(0) — Constellation Energy Group, Inc. 2002 Executive Annual Incentive Plan, as amended and restated.

*10{p) — Constellation Energy Group, Inc. 2002 Senior Management Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended ana
restated. (Designated as Exhibit 10(c} to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2006, File Nos, 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

*10(q) — Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Management Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated.
{Designated as Exhibit 10(d) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2006, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

*10(} — Summary of Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Board of Direcrors Non-Employee Director
Compensation Program. (Designated as Exhibir 10(x) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2004, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.}

“10(s) — Amended and restated change in control severance agreement berween Constellation Energy Group, Inc.
and E. Follin Smith. (Designated as Exhibit 10(f} to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005.)

10(1) — Constellation Energy Group, Inc. 2007 Long-Term Incentive Plan.
12(a) — Constelfation Energy Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries Compuration of Ratio of Earnings o Fixed Charges.
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*

12(b)

21
23
31{a)

31(b)

31{c)

31(d)

32(a)

32(b)

32{q)

32(d)

— Baltimore Gas and Electric Company and Subsidiaries Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed
Charges and Compuration of Ratio of Earmngs to Combmed Fixed Charges and Preferred and
Preference Dividend Requiréments,

— Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
— Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,

— Certification of Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President of Constellation Energy
Group, Ine. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

— Certification of Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Administrative Officer of
Constellation Energy Group, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

— Certiftcation of President and Chief Executive Officer of Baltimore Gas and Electric Company pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

— Cerification of Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Baltimore Gas and Electric
Company pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

— Certification of Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President of Constellation Energy
Group, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

— Certification of Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Constellation Energy
Group, Inc. pursuant o 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopred pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

— Cerrification of President and Chief Executive Officer of Baltimore Gas and Electric Company pursuant
o 18 U.S.C, Section 1350, as adopred pursuant ro Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

— Certification of Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Baltimore Gas and Electric
Company pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Incorporated by Reference.
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CONSTELLATION ENERGY GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
AND
BALTIMORE GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE 1I—VALUATION AND QUALIFYIRG ACCOUNTS

Column A Column B Column C Columa D Column E
. N Additions
Balance Charged  Charged 1o
at to costs Other Balance at
) beginning and Accounts—  (Deductions)— end of
Description of period  cxpenses Describe Describe period
’ s (In miliions)
Reserves deducted in the Balance Sheet from the
assets to which they apply:
Constelfation Energy .
Accumulated Provision for Uncollectibles
2006 - $ 474 $29.7 5§ — $(28.2)(A) $ 489
2005 43.1 30.9 — (26.6)(A) 47.4
2004 51.7 22.2 — (30.8)(A) 43.1
Valuarion Allowance
Nert unrealized (gain) loss on available for sale
securities .
2006 ' ' 0.6 — (19.1)(B) — (18.5)
2005 0.1 — 0.5(B) — 0.6
2004 —_ . — 0.1(B) — 0.1
Net unrealized (gain) loss on nuclear
decommissioning trust funds
2006 (110.3) — (95.8}(B) . — (206.1)
2003 (73.3) — (37.04B) — {110.3)
2004 (13.7) — (59.6}(B) — (73.3)
BGE
Accumulated Provision for Uncollectibles .
2006 13.0 18.1 — {15.00(A) 16.1
2005 13.0 14.1" — {14.1)(A) 13.0
2004 . 107 16.3 —_ (14.00(A) 13.0

{A) Represents principally net amounts charged off as uncollectible.
(B) Represents amounts recorded in or reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income.
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authorized.

Date: February 27, 2007

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities }:xchange Act of 1934, Constellation Energy
Group, Inc., the Registrant, has duly caused this Report to be signad o its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly

By /s/

CONSTELLATION ENERGY GROUP, INC.

(REGISTRANT)

MAYQ A. SHATTUCK II1

Mayo A. Shartuck 111

Cbazrman of the Board, Chief Executive Qfficer

and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of Consteltation Energy Group, Inc., the Registrant, :md in the capacities and on the dates

indicated.

-

Signature

Principal executive officer and director:

By /s/

M. A. Shattuck I11

M. A. Shattuck II1

Principal financial and accounting officer:

Title

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer, President and Director

Executive Vice President, Chief

Financial Officer, and Chief

Date

February 27, 2007

February 27, 2007

Adminiscrative Officer

7
By /s E. F. Smith
E. F. Smith )
Directors:
Isf Y. C. de Balmann '
Y. C. de Balmann
sl D. L. Becker
D. L. Becker
Ist J. T. Brady
J. T. Brady
Is! J. R. Curtiss
J. R. Curtiss
sl F. A. Hrabowski, 111
F. A. Hrabowski, 111
Is/ N. Lampton
N. Lampton
fsf R.J. Lawless
R. J. Lawless
Is! D. Sullivan
D. Sullivan
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Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

February 27, 2007
February 27, 2007
February 27, 2007
February 27, 2007
February 27, 2007
February 27, 2007
February 27, 2007

February 27, 2007




Pursuanc to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Balrimore Gas and
Electric Company, the Registrant, has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized.

BALTIMQORE GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
(REGISTRANT)

Febrifary 27, 2007 By /s KENNETH W. DEFONTES, ]JR.
Kenneth W. DeFontes, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of Baltimore Gas and Electric Company, the Registrant, and in the capacities and on the
dares indicated.

Signature Title Date

Principal executive officer and director:

By /s/ K. W. DeFontes, Jr. . President, Chief Executive February 27, 2007
K. W. DeFontes, Jr. Officer, and Director

Principal financial and accounting officer
and direcror:

By /s/ E. F. Smith Senior Vice President, Chief February 27, 2007
E. F. Smith Financial Officer, and Director
Directors:
Isi M. A. Shattuck I Director February 27, 2007

M. A. Shattuck III
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange berween Baltimore Gas and Electric Company and Constellation
Energy Group, Inc. dated as of February 19, 1999. {Designated as Exhibit No. 2 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-4 dated March 3, 1999, File No. 33-64799.)

Agreement and Plan of Reorganization and Corporate Separation (Nuclear}. (Designated as
Exhibit No. 2{a) to the Current Report on Form 8-K darted July 7, 2000, File Nos. 1-12869 and
1-1910))

Agreement and Plan of Reorganization and Corporate Separation (Fossil). (Designated as
Exhibit No. 2(b) to the Current Report on Form 8-K darted July 7, 2000, File Nos. 1-12869 and
1-1910.)

Purchase and Sale Agreement by and berween Constellation Power, Inc. and TPF Generation Holdings,
LLC dated as of October 10, 2006, (Designated as Exhibir 2(a) to the Quarterly Reporc on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Termination and Release Agreement, dated October 24, 2006, by and among Constellarion Energy
Group, Inc., FPL Group, Inc. and CF Merger Corporation (Designated as Exhibit 2.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K dated October 25, 2006, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.}

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of the Charter of Constellation Energy Group, Inc. as of
April 30, 1999. (Designarted as Exhibit No. 99.2 o the Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 30,
1999, File No. 1-1910.)

Articles Supplementary to the Charter of Constellation Energy Group, Inc., as of July 19, 1999,
(Designated as Exhibit No. 3(a) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q} for the quarter ended June 30,
1999, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Certificate of Correction to the Charter of Constellation Energy Group, Inc. as of September 13, 1999.
{Designated as Exhibit No. 3(c} to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1999, File Nos, 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Charter of BGE, restated as of August 16, 1996. {Designarted as Exhibit No. 3 to the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q) for the quarter ended September 30, 1996, File No. 1-1910.)

Articles Supplemcnta’ry to the Charter of Constellation Energy Group, Inc. as of November 20, 2001.
(Designated as Exhibit No. 3{¢) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2001, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Bylaws of Constellation Energy Group, Inc., as amended to October 20, 2006. (Destgnated as
Exhibit 3(a) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File
Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.) -

Bylaws of BGE, as amended to October 16, 1998. (Designared as Exhibit No. 3 to the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1998, File No. 1-1910.)

Indenture berween Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and the Bank of New York, Trustee darted as of
March 24, 1999. {Designated as Exhibit No. 4(a) to the Registration Statement on Form 3-3 daced
March 29, 1999, File No. 333-75217.)

First Supplemental Indenture becween Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and the Bank of New York,
Trustee dated as of January 24, 2003. (Designated as Exhibit No. 4(b) to the Registration Statement on
Form §-3 dated January 24, 2003, File No. 333-102723.)

Supplemental Indenture between BGE and Bankers Trust Company, as Trustee, dated as of June 20,
1995, supplementing, amending and restating Deed of Trust dated February 1, 1919. (Designated as
Exhibit No. 4 to the Quartetly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1993, File

No. 1-1910}; as supplemented by Supplemental Indentures dated as of June 15, 1996 (Designared as
Exhibit No. 4 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartcr ended June 30, 1996,) and as of
June 26, 2000 (filed herewith).
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Indenture dated July 1, 1985, berween BGE and The Bank of New York (Successor to Mercantile-Safe
Deposit and Trust Company), Ttustee. (Designaced as Exhibit 4(a) to the Registration Statement on
Form §-3, File No. 2-98443); as supplemented by Supplemental Indentures dated as of October 1, 1987
(Designated as Exhibit 4(a) to the Current Report on Form 8-K, dated November 13, 1987, File

No. 1-1910) and as of January 26, 1993 {Designated as Exhibit 4{b) to the Current Reporc on

Form 8-K, dated January 29, 1993, File No. 1-1910.)

Form of Subordinated Indenture between the Company and The Bank of New York, as Trustee in
connection with the issuance of the Junior Subordinated Debentures. (Designated as Exhibit 4(d) to the
Registration Statement on Form $-3 dated August 5, 2003, File No. 333-107681.)

Form of Supplemcnral Indenrure between the Company and The Bank of New York, as Trustec in_
connection with the issuances of the Junior Subordinated Debentures. {Designated as Exhibir 4(e} to the

" Registration Statement on Form §-3 dated August 5, 2003, File No. 333-107681.)

Form of Preferred Securities Guarantee (Designated as Exhibit 4(f) to the Registration Statement on

Form §-3 dated August 5, 2003, File No. 333-107681.)

Form of Junior Subordinated Debenture (Designéted as Exhibir 4(h) to the Registration Statement on
Form $-3 dated August 5, 2003, File No. 333-107681.) '

Form of Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust (including Form of Preferred Security) (Designated
as Exhibit 4{c) to the Registration Statement on Form §-3 dated August 5, 2003, File No. 333-107681.)

Indenture dated as of July 24, 2006 berween Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas, as trustee. (Designated as Exhibit 4(a) to the Registration Statement on Form $-3
filed July 24, 2006, File No, 333-135991.)

4

_ Indenture dated as of July 24, 2006 between Baltimore Gas and Electric Company and Deutsche Bank

Trust Company Americas, as trustee. {Designated as Exhibit 4(b) to the Registration Statement on
Form §-3 filed July 24, 2006, File No. 333-135991.)

First Supplemental Indenture berween Baltimore Gas and Electric Company and Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas, as trustee, dated as of Ocrober 13, 2006. (Designated as Exhibit 4(a) to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Registration Rights Agreement dated October 13, 2006 among Baltimore Gas and Electric Company
and the parties named therein relating to 5.90% Notes due 2016. (Designated as Exhibit 4(b) 1o the
Quarterly Repore on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File Nos. 1-12869 and
1-1910.)

Registration Rights Agreemehr dared October 13, 2006 among Baltimore Gas and Electric Company
and the parties named cherein relating to 6.35% Notes due 2036. (Designated as Exhibir 4(c) to the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File Nos. 1-12869 and
1-1910.)

Executive Annual Incentive Plan of Constellation Energy Group, Inc., as amended and restared.
(Designated as Exhibic No. 10(a) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2004, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Constellation Energy Group, Inc. 1995 Long-Term [ncentive Plan, as amended and rcstated
(Designated as Exhibic No. 10(b) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2004, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated.
(Designared as Exhibit No. 10(c) to the Annual Report on Farm 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2002, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors, as
amended and restated. {Designated as Exhibit 10(a) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
Quarter ended September 30, 2006, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)
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Compensation agreements between Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and E. Follin Smich
(Atachment I—Employment Agreement; Attachment 2—Severance Agreement (Artachment 2
superseded by amended and restated change in contrdl severance agreement filed as Exhibit 10{y) to the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005.){ Designated as Exhibit 10(c) to
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, File Nos. 1-12869 and
1-1910.)

Amended and restated change in control severance agreement berween Constellation Energy Group, Inc.
and Thomas V. Brooks. (Designated as Exhibit 10(f) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2005.)

Grantor Trust Agreement Dared as of February 27, 2004 between Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and
Citibank, N.A. (Designated as Exhibit No. 10{d) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2004, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Amended and restated change in conrrol severance agreement between Constcl]anon Energy Group, Inc.
and Mayo A. Shattuck 11l. (Designated as Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 19, 2005, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Grantor Trust Agreement dated as of February 27, 2004 between Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and
T. Rowe Price Trust Company. {Designated as Exhibit No. 10{b} to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Benefits Restoration Plan, as amended and restated. (Designated as
Exhibit No. 10{m} to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001,
File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Supplemental Pension Plan, as amended and restated. {Designated as
Exhibit Na. 10(d) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q} for the quarter ended March 31, 2004,
File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

!
Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Senior Executive Supplemental Plan, as amended and restated.
{Designated as Exhibit No. 10(e) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2004, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Supplemental Benefits Plan, as amended and restated. {Designated as
Exhibit No. 10(p) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 20013
File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated.
{Designated as Exhibic 10(b} to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2000, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Constellation Energy Group, Inc. 2002 Executive Annual Incentive Plan, as amended and restared.

Constellation Energy Group, Inc, 2002 Senior Management Long-Term Incentive l’la;n, as amended and
restated. (Designated as Exhibir 10(c) ro the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 20006, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Management Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated.
{Designated as Exhibit 10(d) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-QQ for the quarter ended
September 30, 20006, File Nos. 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Summary of Constellation Energy Group, Inc. Board of Directors Non-Employee Director
Compensation Program. (Designated as Exhibit 10(x) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2004, File Nos, 1-12869 and 1-1910.)

Amended and restated change in control severance agreement between Constellation Energy Group, Inc.
and E. Follin Smith. (Designared as Exhibit 10(f) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2005.)

Constellation Energy Group, Inc. 2007 Long-Term Incentive Plan.
Constellation Energy Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

Baltimore Gas and Electric Company and Subsidiaries Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed
Charges and Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred and
Preference Dividend Requirements.
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23
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31(b)
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32(a)

32(h)

32(c)

32(d)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President of Constellation Energy
Group, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Certification of Execurive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Administrative Officer of
Constellation Energy Group, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer of Balnmore Gas and Electric Company pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Baltimore Gas and Electric
Company pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President of Constellation Energy :
Group, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C, Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certificarion of Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Constellation Energy
Group, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

. Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer of Baltimore Gas and Electric Company pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant ro Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Baltimore Gas and Electric
Company pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Incorporated by Reference.
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Exhibit 31(a)
CONSTELLATION ENERGY GROUP, INC.
CERTIFICATION
1, Mayo A. Shattuck II1, certify thac
1. T have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Constellation Energy Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such stacements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this repors;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
conurols and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—15(f) and 15d—15(f}) for the registrant and have:

{a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this reporr is being prepared; .

{b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepred accounting principles;

{¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effecriveness of the disclosure controls and pracedures, as of the end of the
peried covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and '

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of
Directots (or persons performing the equivalent funcrions):

{a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
sumtnarize and report financial informarion; and

(b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

Date: February 27, 2007

/st MaYOo A, SHATTUCK IIT
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31(b)
CONSTELLATION ENERGY GROUP, INC.
CERTIFICATION
L, E. Follin Smith, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Constellation Energy Group, Inc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omir to state
a material fact necessary ro make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this repor;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, -
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4,  The registranc’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e} and 15d-15(c}) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—15(f} and 15d—15(f)) for the registrant and have:

{a} Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supetvision, to ensure thar material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particulatly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

{b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for excernal purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles; -

{c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pracedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and :

{d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditers and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of
Directors {or persons performing the equivalent funcrions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and repart financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

Date: February 27, 2007

/s E. FOLLIN SMITH
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Administrative Officer




gk Exhibit 31{c)
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BALTIMORE GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
CERTIFICATION o

Ijll'(cnneth W. DeFontes, Jr., certify thac: ’
1. Thave reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Baltimore Gas and Electric Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not conrain any untrue statement of 2 material fact or omit to state
a marerial fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operatlons and cash flows of the rcg1stram as of,
and for, the periods presented in this repore; ' -

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and mamtammg d1sclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15{g)) for the | registrant and have:

(a} Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedurés to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material informatien relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidtaries, is made known to us by others within those entides, parsicularly durmg the period in

"which this report is being prepared;

(b} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusiens about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report-based on such evaluation; 2nd

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting thatl
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the repistrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has marerially affected, or is reasonably likely to matcrlally affecr, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and -

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer{s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recenr evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of
Directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions): » ~

. {a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal contrel over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial mformanon and

(b). Any fraud, whether or not matenal that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting, ‘

-

Date: February 27, 2007. ] s ) :

/s/f KENNETH W. DEFONTES, JR.
President and Chief Executive Officer




. ' ' - Exhibit 31(d)

BALTIMORE:GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
CERTIFICATION

I, E. Follin Smith, certify that:
1. Ihave reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Baltimore Gas and Electric Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this reporr does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15¢¢) and 15d-15{e)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure cotitrols and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating ro the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly duting the period in
which this report is being prepared; -

(b} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions abour the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
periad covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(¢} Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting thar
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commictee of the registrant’s Board of
Direcrors (or persons performing the equivalent funetions):

{a) Al significant deficiencies and matetial weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not marerial, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2007

s/ E. FOLLIN SMITH
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32{a)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
¢ 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Mayo A. Shattuck 111, Chairman of the Boal-'d, President and Chief Executive Officer of Constellation Energy
Group, Inc., certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 that to my knowledge:

(i)  The accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(2) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(ii) The informatton conrained in such report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and

resules of operations of Constellation Energy Group, Inc.

s/ MAYO A, SHATTUCK III
Mayo A, Shattuck III
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 27, 2007




Exhibit 32(b}

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, E. Follin Smith, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Chicf Administrative Officer of Constellation
Energy Group, Inc., certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 that to my knowledge:

(i) The accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(i) The information contained in such report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and

results of operations of Constellation Energy Group, Inc.

s/ E. FOLLIN SMITH
E. Follin Smith
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Administrative Officer

Date: February 27, 2007




S ) Exhibit 32(c)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Kenneth W. DeFontes, ., President and Chief Executive Officer of Baltimore Gas and Electric Company, certify
pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Secrion 1350 adoptcd pursuant to Section 306 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 thart to my
knowledge:

\

{i)  The accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-K for the )}ear ended December 31, 2006 fully complies
with the requirements of Secrion 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securiries Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

{ii) 'The information contained in such report fairly presents, in all material respects, the ﬁnanctal condition and
results of operations of Baltimore Gas and Electric Company.

fs/ KENNETH W. DEFONTES, JR.
Kenneth W. DeFontes, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer - -

Date: February 27, 2007




Exhibit 32(d)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, E. Follin Smith, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Baltimore Gas and Electric Company, certify
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 2dopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that to my
knowledge:

(i)  The accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Fxchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(i} The information contained in such report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of Baltimore Gas and Electric Company. :

s/ E. FOLLIN SMITH
E. Follin Smith
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 27, 2007
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We Value Your Opinion

We invite'you to share your opinions on Constellation Energys 2006 Annual Report by completing this anonymous survey, folding and sealing ir
so that the preprinted rerurn address on the reverse side is visible, and dmppmg it in U.S. mail (no postage necessary) by July 31, 2007, Or if
you prefer, you may complete this survey onlirie z’gy vzszrmg t/ae ]nvesmr Re:ﬂq:zom-;’mge of our Web site ar www.constellation.com.

‘How do you rate the overall quality of Constellation Energy’s 2006 Annual Report as comparecl to other annual reports you receive?

(circle one) Poor Fair ©+ .- Average Good Excellent

P B
How do you rate the ease of use of Constellation Energy’s 2006 Form 10-K as compared to other Form 10-Ks you receive?

(circle one) Poor Fair Average Good Excellent

On ascale of 1 10 5, please rate our 2006 Annual REport in each of the following categories: -

5. Excellent

Helping you understand our business 1 2 3 4 5
T A T L o e T Rk ) ik
-fDemonstratm why werare! the leadmg 3}:

£ g 53

\competmve energy;'
x . pal R

Communicating our furure growth plans 5

|- Providing you Withrelevantinformation e, ; A T e e T Al S R
Presenting information clearly 5

[ Providing, cranisparency. il Anancial Fepoting e Se v, 7o DR
Havingla professional appearance ) 5

-On-a-scale of-1-to-5,-please-rate-the-importance of-each-of-the following sections.in.our. 2006 Annual-Report: - . R P

Financi:ﬂ Highlights and Charts (inside front cover) 1

Narrative Section (pp. 4 — 11) 1
[At 2 Glance' (ppr:
Understanding Our Form 10-K {pp. 18 — 23) 1

|2 T3] kg, A B

NI TN

: Glossaty (p724) 7o

Form 10-K 1 2 3 4 5
E_Shareholder Informition (inside back cover)s N T

Which of the following best describes your relationship to Constellation Energyé (circle one)

Individual shareholder (non-employee) Institutional investor Investment analyst News media

Employee Retiree Other

Additional Comments:
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors sets the record and payment dates for quar-
terly dividends. In January 2007, we raised our quarterly dividend w
43.5 cents per share—a 15 percent increase over the previous quarterly
dividend and equivalent to an annual dividend of $1.74 per share. We
paid the new dividend on April 2, 2007, to shareholders of record on
March 12, 2007. Projected record dates for the next three quarters are
June 11, September 10, and December 10. Projected payment dates
are July 2, October 1, and January 2.

Detailed information abourt our dividend policy, as well as our
dividend payments and stock price ranges for the last two years, is
available on page 27 of our 2006 Form 10-K included within this
annual report.

CERTIFICATIONS

As required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we have filed the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer certificarions in
our 2006 Form 10-K. Addirionally, our Chief Executive Officer pro-
vided an annual certification in December 2006 with respect 10 our
compliance with the New York Stock Exchange corporate governance
listing standards.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
American Stack Transfer & Trust Company
Shareholder Services

59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038

(800) 258-0499

www.amstock.com

SHAREHOLDER ASSISTANCE

For general inquiries, or for assistance with lost or stolen stock certifi-
cates or dividend checks, name or address changes, stock transfers, or
the Shareholder Investment Plan, please contact our Stock Transfer
Agent and Registrar. '

SHAREHOLDER INVESTMENT PLAN

Qur Shareholder Investment Plan provides shareholders with an easy,
economical way to acquire addirional shares. In addition, accounts can
be used to sell, deposit, and transfer shares. To participate, or for more
information, please contact our Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar.

E-MAIL ALERTS

To automatically receive e-mail alerts about our financial informa-
tion—including nortification of SEC filings, financial reports, presen-
tations, and press releases—go to our E-mail Alerts page on the Inves-
tor Relations section of our Web site at www.constellation.com and
register your preferences. You can also make changes in your notifica-
tion options or unsubscribe from the service.

FORM 10-K

Our 2006 Form 10-K is included as part of this annual report. Our
2006 Form 10-K and our other SEC filings are available on our Web
site at www.constellation.com. We will also provide additional cop-
ies upon request. Send requests to Constellation Energy Shareholder
Services, 750 East Prate Street, Baltimore, MD 21202,

STOCK TRADING
Constellation Energy common stock trades under the ticker symbol
CEG on the New York and Chicago stock exchanges.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make statements in chis annual report that are considered forward-
looking wichin the meaning of the Securities and Exchange Act
of 1934. These starements are not guarantees of our future resulrs
and are subject to risks, uncercainties, and other imporeant facrors-
including those in the Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors
sections of our 2006 Form 10-K included within this annual repori—
that could cause cur actual results to differ.

@ This report was printed on recycled paper.
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